TCD Board of Supervisors ﬁﬁl
Monthly Meeting & Work Session Agenda m._

August 20, 2018 (2:00pm}) Conservation

Work Session begins al 1:00pm wDiskrick ==

2918 Ferguson St SW, Suite A, Tumwater, WA 98512, 360.754.3588 ""x-.,,_mc. o
Fry R

Na. ltem Time Allotted Tab # Plan

Work Session: 1:00pm — 2:00pm

1. Review August 20th Board Meeting Materials, All 60 minutes

Work Session Time Allotment: 60 minufes (1 hr)

Monthly Meeting: 2:00pm — 7:00pm
1. Welcome, Introductions, Audio Recording Announcement 5 minutes
and Pledge of Allegiance

2. Public Comment 20 minutes

3. Agenda Review 3 minutes
A. Establish next meeting date

4. Legal Services, All - Action items 60 minutes 1
A. Review and select interview questions for attorney candidates
B. Review and select proposals for legal services and interview attorneys
C. Contract development

5. Review of TCD Governance Action Plan, Aff B minutes 2
6. HR Discussion, Al 30 minutes 3
7.  TCD Resolution #2018-04 to WSCC to Repeal WAC 135.110.20

7. Board Officer Elections, Alf 5 minutes

8. Partner Reports: 15 minutes 4
NRCS, Jeff Swotek

WSCC, Alison Halpern

WACD/NACD, Doug Rushion

Supetvisor Reporis
Weekly Staff Updates

moow»

g, Mid-Year Budget Revision - UPDATED, A/l 40 minutes 5 AfS: 90
A. TCD Election Expense Authorization

10. Financial Report, Sarah Moorehead 35 minutes 6 A/S: 80
A. Monthly Financial Report
B. July Check Register - Action ltem
C. DOH Grant - Action Item
D. New Signature Card for Bank

11, Washington Service Corps Contract, Afl - Action ltem 5 minutes 7 AlS: 80



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

18.

CREP Plan, All - Action ltem

Board Meeting Minutes Review, All - Action ltem 20 minutes
(Information only: June 26th, 2018 action items report)

A. Discussion on Audio Recording as Official Meeting Record

B. June 26, 2018 Regular Board Meeting & Work Session minutes

C. July 24, 2018 Special Meeting minutes

Voluntary Stewardship Program, Sarah Moorehead 30 minutes
A. Discussion with Washington Farm Buraau

B. VSP Technical Support MOU Addendum

WRIA 13 Lead Entity Contract (RCO), A/l - Action ltem 5 minutes
WSFE Negotiations Letter, All - Action Item 10 minutes
Review of Policies & Procedures, All 5 minutes

A. Review of Policy 1.3 Delegation of Authority -

Adjourn, Alf

Action Item

Interim Executive Director Report (Informational Only)

10

1

12

GAP: 8

A/S: 83, 86

AlS: 457

GAP: 3B,C

Meeting Time Allotment: 293 minutes (4.88 hrs)

Total Time Allotment: 353 minutes (5.88 hrs)
Key: GAP (Governance Action Plan), A/S (Annual & Strategic Plans)




"Tab 1



Questions for TCD Attorney Candidates

1)
2)
3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

How long have you been practicing law?

What experience do you have to represent TCD?

What is your experience with Boards and nonprofits?

B

Oy

) )\ N

Cons_erv_ation
District

g

&gy 194"

Please describe your experience serving as counse! for any organizations with a

Board of Directors and a CEQ (or Director or Manager).

Describe how you communicate with a Board and a CEO, both in public in a
meeting, and between meetings when the Board members and CEO are in separate

locations.

How would you resolve a situation where you are getting conflicting direction from

different Board members?

What do you think are the District's top priority issues that a legal counsel should

address?

Do you have any experience with Conservation Easements, and have you ever set

one up?

What are the protocols for communication between the Board and its Legal

Counsel? (re: OPMA)

10)What makes your firm the best to satisfy the requirements of the position?

11)Describe your experiences, both positive and negative, in representing a small local

government entity?

12)Describe your reputation in the legal and government communities?

13)Do you have any particular axe to grind in applying for this position?




AR

Cons_ervation

—
1947
e

, Ko o

burstoﬂc

THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
LEGAL SERVICES - GENERAL & EMPLOYMENT LAW

Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors (BoS) is accepting proposals from qualiﬁed
professional law firms or individuals to provide General and Employment Related Legal Services on a
contractual basis upon selection on or around August 01, 2018, then as needed.

Proposals may be mailed, e-mailed or hand-delivered to:

Eric Johnson, Chair, Board of Supervisors

ericjohnsontcd@gmail.com or Sarah Moorehead, Acting Executive Director
Alttention: Legal Services Proposal

Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson St. SW, Ste. A

Tumwater, WA 98512

Alternatively, proposals may be e-mailed as an attachment, with the e-mail subject “Legal
Services Proposal” to Eric Johnson, Chair, Board of Supervisors, ericjohnsontcd@gmail.com or
smoorehead@thurstoncd.com. E-mail attachments should be in Word or PDF format. Consideration
will only be given to proposals received either in person, through standard mail or electronically by
July 27, 2018.

The BoS reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to request additional information concerning
any proposal, to accept or negotiate modifications to any proposal, to interview any proposer, and to
waive any irregularities in any proposal following the proposal submission deadline date, in order to
serve the best interests of the BoS.

All inquiries about this Request for Proposal and current legal services received by the BoS, should be

directed by e-mail to Eric Johnson, Chair, Board of Supervisors, ericjohnsonted@gmail.com or to
Sarah Moorehead, Acting Executive Director, at smoorehead(@thurstoned.com.




L. INTRODUCTION

Thurston Conservation District (TCD) Board of Supervisors (BoS) invites interested individual
attorneys and law firms to submit written proposals to provide general legal services beginning upon
selection.

The BoS is seeking general and employment related legal services, anticipated to be approximately 10
hours per month through December 31, 2018 (then on an as needed basis), which would include
advising the TCD BoS on matters specifically before the BoS that arise during conduct of regular TCD
business. It is expected that this individual or firm will attend BoS Board meetings, work sessions,
regular, and special meetings as needed and indicated by the BoS.

This individual or firm would be responsible for or assist with preparation and review of all TCD
Policies, Procedures, Resolutions, contracts and other legally-related documents; legal opinions and
memorandums; purchasing of real property ot development rights; employment matters; public
disclosure laws; Union Contracts, and certain other limited legal services as designated by the BoS.

All proposals shall be considered valid for a period of ninety (90) days from the proposal closing date
and shall contain a statement to that effect. Accepted proposals shall be subject to applicable laws and
regulations governing public disclosure. Any information received within the proposal will be
considered part of the public record of this procurement.

The individual or firm selected to provide general legal services will serve at the pleasure of the BoS,
reporting directly to the BoS and may be removed per terms of an approved contract.

The BoS is prepared to review proposals from individuals or firms to serve as an independent
contractor. The BoS is requesting that proposals include fees calculated on an hourly basis, or a
monthly retainer based on 10 hours per month (followed by an hourly basis for as needed consultation.)

1L ORGANIZATIONAL BACKGROUND

Washington conservation districts help people take care of most everything they can see outside their
windows — from farms, to forests, to urban yards, to rivers, lakes, and coastline. For more than 75
years, they have served as trusted, non-regulatory local partners helping people care for natural
resources.

Conservation districts are locally led. Each district is directed by a five-member board of supervisors.
Three members are elected locally. The Washington State Conservation Commission appoints the
remaining two members. The District has approximately 10 staff.

Chapter 89,08 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) is the enabling statute for conservation
district work in Washington and was adopted by the legislature in 1939.

The TCD is a member of Enduris Washington. Enduris Washington provides General Liability, auto,
and other insurance coverage for the TCD. The individual or firm selected would work for The
Thurston Conservation Districts Board of Supervisors (BoS), on TCD issues or claims against the




District Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors meets regularly on the last Tuesday of each
month at 2:00 P.M. Occasional special meetings may be held, based on need, and at the request of the

Board.

I1T.

CONTRACT PERIOD

It is anticipated that the period of contract will be twelve months, continuing on an as needed basis
thereafter. The TCD retains the right to solicit other proposals for legal services at any time after the
initial 12 month contract, or if the TCD needs for general legal services change substantially.

IV,

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Description

d.

Act as general legal counsel to the TCD’s Board of Supervisors. Legal counsel will
provide representation, advice, and interpretation of federal and state laws as well as
local statutes, ordinances, Union Contracts, as it applies to TCD. (Estimated average of
10 hours per month, or as needed)

2. Typical Duties (not exhaustive)

d.

Provide general legal advice to the BoS regarding all legal matters relating to the
performance of their duties.

Attend Board of Supervisors meetings (regular meetings typically the last Tuesday of
each month at 2:00pm) and other TCD special BoS meetings and work sessions as
requested.

Review policy changes and updates to be considered by the Board of Supervisors.
Advise Board of Supervisors on employment related issues.

e. Prepare and/or review policies, resolutions, contracts and other documents as
necessary to represent and protect the TCD Board of Supervisors interest.

Represent the TCD Board of Supervisors in litigation as requested.

Provide research, recommendation, written legal opinions, preparation and review of
issues relating to RCW 89.08, finance, personnel law, private/public partnerships, Union
Contracts, and public record requests as requested by the Board of Supervisors.

DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS

1. Minimum five (5) years of experience in providing general legal services to Conservation
Districts, or like entities, is desirable.

2. Extensive knowledge of federal and state law, case law, regulations and policies relevant to
Conservation Districts and of legal procedures.



VL

3. The BoS will give preference to individuals or firms with experience in personnel issues,
contract development and interpretation, public records act, open public meetings act, and
RCW 89.08.

4. Experience in working with public entities and boards.

5. Member of the Washington State Bar. The selected firm will be required to declare that it
will represent the BoS and declare any potential conflicts with the interests of the BoS.

6. Firm preferably to be located within 75 miles of Thurston County for the purpose of timely
interactions between BoS and legal counsel.

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Proposals should include the following information. Proposers may submit additional information as

deemed appropriate.

1.

2

Individual or firm name, address, phone, email and fax number.

A summary of the individual or firm's qualifications as they relate to the duties and desired
qualifications described above, as well as demonstrated knowledge relating to Conservation
Districts and RCW 89.08

A list of at least three (3) local professional references, addresses, phone numbers, and your
relationship with them. Provide the same information on three personal references.

A description of how the individual or firm would propose to provide the required legal services
to the Board of Supervisors (BoS). This should include an understanding of the TCD’s service
requirements, the individual or firm's ongoing service commitment, responsiveness, attendance
at Board Meetings, and other meetings as necessary, office location, etc. Include information on
availability and back-up attorney services, if absent for illness, vacation, trials, etc.

Qualifications and experience for each attorney likely to provide legal services, along with
detailed resumes. Clearly identify the person who will serve as the primary attorney and
differentiate this person from other supporting key personnel and their particular area(s) of
expertise. For each attorney, please include the following:

a. Law School (including year of graduation), year of admission to Washington State Bar,
and years of practice. Must be a member in good standing of the Washington State Bar
Association. Provide each attorney’s Washington State Bar Admittance Number.

b. A description of related experience with public entities of similar size and scope to the
District. Including, years of public sector law practice in a law firm or as a sole
practitioner.



¢. Particular areas of knowledge and experience in Washington government law, including
but not limited to law related to Conservation Districts. Examples of areas may include
but are not necessarily limited to law related to:

1. RCW 89.08;

ii. Personnel matters and Union labor negotiations;

iii. Public purchasing and contracting;

iv. Open meetings, public records, and public disclosure;

v. Government ethics; and

vi. District Elections.
d. Litigation experience, including descriptions of representative cases and outcomes.
c. Discuss experience in working with public record requests.

f. Discuss experience in working with Human Resource, Employment law, and employee
grievance, Union Contract and Negotiations, as well as employee and supervisor
education and training,.

g. Discuss experience in working with Conservation District’s, if any, Board of
Supervisors on reducing liability/exposure to the District Board of Supervisors.

h. Drafting experience, such as drafting of contracts, memorandum, ordinances, and
resolutions. i

i.  Experience giving oral advice such as during the course of Board of Supervisor
meetings and by telephone to District Board of Supervisors.

J. Other types of clients represented.

Describe any conflicts of interest (real or perceived) that may be incurred with this
appointment, and how you propose to address or mitigate them.

6. A Statement of Contract Compliance: Upon execution of a Professional Services Agreement the
person/firm selected will be required to provide proof of comprehensive insurance, general
liability or other financial security in a manner satisfactory to the District and sufficient to
provide a minimum of $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim in liability and lawyers' professional
errors and omissions coverage. Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors must be
named as an additional named insured on liability policy(s) and a certificate of insurance
provided for lawyers’ professional policy(s).



7. Proposed compensation for general legal services should be proposed at a fixed monthly
amount based upon 10 hours a month to start and an hourly rate for additional services, as
needed. As an independent contractor, this should include any proposal for expense
reimbursements beyond payments for time. For a firm’s proposal, if the proposed compensation
will vary depending on which attorney does work, this should include the proposed method of
charging for each attorney who will be performing work. (Final agreement will be negotiated
under a professional services agreement.)

VIIL PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

All proposals will be reviewed and screened based upon the qualifications and requirements
outlined in this request by a committee comprised of the Board of Supervisors. Those individual
and/or firms deemed most qualified will be screened further by the District Board of Supervisors
based upon reference checks. The finalists will be invited for interviews. The approval of a
professional services contract will be made by the Thurston Conservation District Board of
Supervisors.

TCD RFQ2018updated - 062018



BENJAMIN CUSIIMAN
3000 Monta Vista St. SE
Olympia, WA 98501
{360) 280-4601
e-mail: ben@deschuteslawgroup.com

CUSHMAN LAW OFFICES, P. 8., Olvmpia, WA 2003 to July 2017

Managing Partner, Pariner

0 Met with clients and recommend course of action

¢ Litigation — drafted pleadings, took depositions, prepared motions, attended hearings and
trials, managed discovery.

0 Appellate — drafted Appellate Briefs and attended oral argument at Court of Appeals.

0 Transactional — drafted and reviewed construction, employment, and property purchase
contracts, and assisted with business formations, mergers, and acquisitions.

0 Managed business finances, operations, and staff.

CUSHMAN LAW OFFICES, P.S., Olympia, WA 1999 to 2003
Partner

0 Met with clients and recommended course of action

0 Litigation — drafted pleadings, took depositions, prepared motions, attended hearings and
trials, managed discovery.

Appellate — drafted Appellate Briefs and attended oral argument at Court of Appeals.
Transactional — drafted and reviewed construction, employment, and property purchase
contracts, and assisted with business formations, mergers, and acquisitions.

0
0

CUSHMAN, RAYMOND AND MIDDLETON, Olympia, WA 1996 to 1999

Associate

0 Advised clients and recommend course of action

0 Litigation — drafted pleadings, took depositions, prepared motions, attended hearings,
managed discovery.

EDUCATION

J.D. NORTHWESTERN SCHOOL OF LAW OF LEWIS AND
CLARK COLLEGE, Portland, OR (Certificate in Environmental
and Natural Resources Law.)

B.A. REED COLLEGE, Portland, OR

LICENSES

Member Washington Bar Association, Member Oregon Bar Association, Member Idaho Bar
Association, Member Alaska Bar Association, Member North Carolina Bar Association, and
associated Federal Courts.

OTHER RECOGNITION AND ACTIVITY

Past President of the Thurston County Young Lawyers

Current President, Harlequin Theatre Board of Directors

Board Member of the Year, Harlequin Theatre Productions, Olympia
Former Assistant Speech and Debate Coach, Capital High School
Speech and Debate Judge, Capital High School



BENJAMIN CUSHMAN
3000 Monta Vista St. SE
Olympia, WA 98501
(360) 280-4601
e-mail: ben@deschutestawgroup.com

BACKGROUND SUMMARY

Civil litigator with extensive experience representing clients at administrative hearings,
mediations, arbitrations, and trial and appellate court proceedings. Counselor with experience
advising clients regarding litigation avoidance, litigation preparation, and conflict resolution.
Primary practice areas include Land Use, Environmental, Public and Private Construction
(including heavy civil construction), Public Bid Protests, Liens, Public Records Requests, Real
Property, and Tort Law.

LEGAL SKILLS

<

Advise clients.

Draft and review complex contracts.

Draft pleadings, contracts, appellate briefs, declarations, and memoranda in support of
pleadings.

Take and defend depositions.

Prepare discovery requests and review discovery responses.

Attend oral arguments for hearings, arbitrations, mediations, trials, and appeals.
Prepare business formation, merger, or acquisition paperwork.

Perform legal research using internet and non-internet research tools.

< >

(el e v o

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

Review Associate Attorney productivity and work product.

Hire and fire staff.

Resolve staff conflicts.

Develop and implement office procedures.

Supervise business financial practices including tax and audit procedures and money
management.

[ e B+ e

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

DESCHUTES LAW GROUP, PLLC, Olympia, WA August 2017 - Present
Partner

¢ Meet with clients and recommend course of action

¢ Litigation — draft pleadings, take depositions, prepare motions, attend hearings and trials,
manage discovery.

Appellate — draft Appellate Briefs and attend oral argument at Court of Appeals.
Transactional — draft and review construction, employment, and property purchase contracts,
and assist with business formations, mergers, and acquisitions.

¢ Manage staff.

0
0

;
.
:
i
|
|
|
|
|
.




DEBORAH REBACK-CUSHMAN
3000 Monta Vista St. SE
Olympia, WA 98501
Cell: (360) 339-0360
Email: ddreyfusO4@comecast.net

BACKGROUND SUMMARY

Professional self-starter with extensive and relevant expetience working in small business,
corporate, and law firm environments. Effective combination of research, organizational,
analytical, communication, and computer skills. Highly adaptable to rapidly changing situations.

COMPUTER SKILLS

¢ Office 365 - Business

o Word Perfect

¢ Novatus, Contract Assistant, DocuSign

e Cosmolex, TABS, Clio, Timeslips

 Firefox, Microsoft Intemet Explorer, Google Chrome
Sharepoint

Windows 7, Windows 8, Windows 10

Quicken, Quickpay, Quickbooks

Westlaw, Lexis/Nexis, Westlaw Case Notebook
BMS

SPECIAL SKILLS

¢ Excellent oral and written communication skills
e Detail oriented

e Able to work independently

¢ Quick to master new computer programs

¢ Type 70 wpm

e 10-key by touch

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

CODA, Inc., Portland, OR 01-2018 to Present

Contracts Manager

* Review, revise, and negotiate contracts including grant, partnership, State, County,
coordinated care organization (CCQO), private insurance and vendor contracts.

e Verify, maintain, and retrieve contract documents,

* Interface with outside counsel and corporate insurance representatives.

¢ Manage contract, insurance, and regulatory (State, HIPAA, and 42 CFR, Part 2) compliance.

* Prepare business license, professional license, and grant applications.

 Assist Executive Director in rescarching state level drug and alcohol treatment vhpolicies.




DEBORAH REBACK-CUSHMAN
3000 Monta Vista St. SE
Qlympia, WA 98501
Cell: (360) 339-0360
Email: ddreyfusO04(@comeast.net

DESCHUTES LAW GROUP, PLLC, Olympia, WA 06-2017 to 12-2017
Attorney/Firm Administrator

o Perform legal research.

s Review contracts and leases.

e DProcess trust transactions, timekeeping, and billing in Cosmolex.
e Manage HR, including hiring and payroll matters.

e Handle A/R and A/P.

e Oversee operating and client trust accounts.

¢ Design and carry out marketing plan.

» Administer all computer systems.

o Prepare office procedure and policy manuals.

BUDSBERG LAW GROUP, PLLC, Olympia, WA 09-2015 to 05-2017
Law Clerk/Bookikeeper

e Prepared and filed complaints, motions, responses, and other pleadings.

e Drafted and reviewed scttlement contracts.

+ DPerformed legal research.

WESTERN INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW BOARD, Puyallup, WA 8-2015 to 11-2015
Novatus Specialist 10-2014 to 01-2015
e Created complex templates and reports within Novatus Contract Management System

e Trained staff to utitize Novatus.

e TEintered backlogged contracts into Novatus.

¢ Reviewed, revised, and negotiated vendor contracts.

MORRIS-SOCKLE, PLLC, Olympia, WA 4-2014 to 09-2014
A/R Bookkeeper

e Prepared monthly statements in TABS billing software.

¢ Processed incoming payments (cash, credit card, or check).

s Calculated monthly attorney fee splits.

¢ Communicated with clients and attorneys regarding client accounts.

s Managed delinguent accounts.

WESTERN INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW BOARD, Olympia, WA 10-2011 to 4-2014
Vendor Contract Manager

o Drafted, reviewed, revised, and negotiated vendor contracts.

+ Managed vendor contract database and prepared repotts in contract management software.
» Created vendor contract review process.

e Trained staff on contract management software and on vendor contract review process.

e Managed vendor contract lifecycle in contract management software.

e Performed legal and non-legal research regarding contract terms and operational issues.

¢ Coordinated and implemented adoption of new, advanced contract management software.

2



DEBORAH REBACK-CUSHMAN
3000 Monta Vista St. SE
Olympia, WA 98501
Cell: (360) 339-0360
Email: ddreyfusO04@comcast.net

CUSHMAN LAW OFFICES, P.S., Olympia, WA 02-2009 to 12-2011}
Bookkeeper/Office Manager

s ®» & » &

Managed client database, entered attorney time, and prepared monthly statements in TABS
billing software.

Calculated and made 401(k) contributions to company 401(k) plan.
Processed employee timesheets and prepared employee payroll.

Calculated and paid payroll taxes and gquarterly business taxes,

Handled all A/R and A/P.

Managed business bank account and client trust accounts in Quickbooks.
Corresponded with clients regarding client accounts.

Prepared financial reports for Managing Partner.

Interfaced with insurance companies regarding required renewal paperwork.
Provided technical support for minor computer issues.

Handled all office equipment issues, repair, replacement, eic.

Worked with Managing Partner to negotiate and manage vendor contracts.
Created office procedures and prepared policy and procedure manuals.

RREEF, Beaverfon, OR 10-2002 to [1-2003
Administrative Assistant

Prepared and processed Tenant leases, licenses, subleases, and correspondence.
Assisted District Manager in preparing annual financial reports.

Maintained Tenant databases and office files.

Interfaced with Tenants and provided customer service.

Monitored Tenant insurance.

Designed posters and flyers.

Employment information prior to 2002 available upon request.

EDUCATION
J.D. NORTHWESTERN SCHOOL OF LAW OF LEWIS AND
CLARK COLLEGE, Portland, OR (Ranked 21st out of 102. GPA
3.28. Certificate in Environmental and Natural Resources Law.)
Half Semester Ph.D. CALIFORNIA INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, Pasadena, CA
B.A. WELLESLEY COLLEGE, Boston, MA

AWARDS AND LICENSES

Member: Washington State Bar Association (#50181), Member: California Bar Association
(#185437), Scholar List (Lewis & Clark), recipient of a Dean's Fellowship (Lewis & Clark),
American Jurisprudence Award for Outstanding Achievement in Criminal Law and Procedure
during (Lewis & Clark), Phi Beta Kappa (Wellesley), Magna Cum Laude (Wellesley)

3




400 Union Ave. SE Ben Cushman

Suite 200
Olympia, WA 98501 ben@deschuteslawgroup.com
' p 360-918-7217 | f 844-774-0503 . .
Deschutes Law Group, PLLC info@deschuteslawgroup.com Licensed in WA, OR, ID, AK, NC

July 22,2018

Eric Johnson, Chair, Board of Supervisors
ericjohnsontcd@gmail.com

Adttention: Legal Services Proposal
Thurston County Conservation District
2918 Ferguson St. SW, Ste. A

Tumwater, WA 98512

RE: Legal Services Proposal
Dear Mr. Johnson:

I am writing in response to the Request for Proposals requested by Thurston Conservation
District (TCD) Board of Supervisors (BoS).

1. My firm name, address, phone, email, and fax number are:

Ben Cushman

Deschutes Law Group, PLLC
400 Union Ave. SE, Suite 200
Olympia, WA 98501
360-918-7217
ben@deschuteslawgroup.com

2. Ben Cushman’s qualifications as they relate to the duties and desired qualification

described in the RFP, as well as demonstrated knowledge relating to Conservation
Districts and RCW 89.08 are as follows:

3. The following are three professional references and three personal references:

Professional References Personal References




Thurston Conservation District
Tuly 16, 2018

Page 2

4,

Daniel Berschauer Stephanie Bird

Retired Judge stephanie@nrchomesge.com
4708 — 60™ Lane SW
Olympia, WA 98512
360-754-1107

Bob Raymond James Reddick

Administrative Law Judge lehnert-reddick@comcast.net
Board of Industrial Appeals

2439 Chandler Court

PO Box 42401

Olympia, WA 98504-2401
360-753-6823

Kerry Lawrence Janey Mueller

Aftorney sea.memphishead(@gmail.com
Pitlar Law PLLC

1030 N Center Pkwy
Kennewick, WA 99336-7160
206-587-2332

Our firm’s attorney, Ben Cushiman, would provide the legal services to the BoS by
attending Board Mectings and other meetings as required. Our firm has two back up
options for when Ben Cushman is not available. First, the Firm Administrator,
Deborah Reback-Cushman is also an attorney and could easily cover meetings or be
available for conferences if Ben was not available, Our firm also has an arrangement
with Goldstein Law Office, PLLC, where they will act as back-up attorney services if
Ben Cushman or Deborah Reback-Cushman is not available to provide services under
this contract.

Attorney information:

Ben Cushman

Graduated Lewis & Clark Law School 1996

Admitted to the Washington State Bar Association 1996

#26358

Experience: Substantial experience with government contracting, land use,
environmental regulations, public records, and real property issues. Further experience
working with nonprofits, including assisting in grant writing, grant review, and grant
compliance issues. Further training through lawschool classes in Administrative Law
and Municipal Law in public bond and local tax laws. General familiarity with RCW
89 and WAC 135.



Thurston Conservation District
July 16, 2018

Page 3

Deborah Reback-Cushman

Graduated Lewis & Clark Law School 1996

Admitted to the Washington State Bar Association 2015

#50181

Experience: Contract Management for medium size for-profit and non-profit
corporations. Responsible for overseeing all aspects of purchasing and contracting
matters. Negotiated complex contracts including leases, SaaS, telecommunications,
non-disclosure, business associates, vendor, and client agreements. Interprets confracts
and handles any compliance matters. Drafts corporate policies and procedures
regarding contract management, procurement, and grant management.

Pricing:

Our firm will provide these services with the following general terms. Initial
consultations on new matters involving the prospect of litigation or substantial
administrative process will be free for up to two hours of mitial meeting and case
assessment work, including any necessary or advisable site visits. Thereafter, our firm
will charge the TCD for time worked at a reduced rate of 80% our usual rates ($200
per hour for Ben Cushman).

We appreciate the opportunity to bid on this proposal and look forward to hearing from you

500n.

Very truly yours,

Ben D. Cushman

BDC/dm







4ad buizsaw 1p10ads 10
+oInbas (1) 42y315 30 sarorod
Pas1a2.4 pup pamaiia.

2avYy sutosiraiadng pivog
ddD.L *a3vp 03 pazajdwio) g

‘Burzaapy
p4vog fiiaas v jussasud

‘Pojepdn
9q 01 Paau Jery
sororod a1} eznrrord

[ pIeog oy, -

‘Suneowr

Iad yoogpuey

93} JO 1IN0 Wl | 1SBI]
Je Surpeas 03 WU

L

‘®TOZ $1 IPY3 yooq saunpado.d M szostatadng g SOIOT[0g
Areniqey ur Sunest pup fiarjod fidoo puvy sjooqpuey ao proydn
pIeoq rernsar m D paa1223a. spy Joswuuadng | sinpasord pue Lorfod Pue puejsispun
Suruurdeq Sunosour P4DOg DL YODH ‘8TOZ LZ'Z Adoo prey e oaey 03 ssaudurnmun
preoq A1oas 1y Irey) preog 4o sv pazajdwoy v [ I0stazadng yoey v pajensuouracy
'8102/1€/4
4q Jre1s pue preog
DL U2omIa( UOISSIS
HIom e ozIuedIiQ ‘g
eis v s1ostaTodns
preog oL £q paudig pue jyels
"S# uodn juspuadop s1 sy Pnpuod jo apo)d U22M39q JOTABTSq
Spru-uonezruesio syerrdoaddeur
810T ‘1€ AInp £g HEIS ® preog go.L jdope pue s189I0-00 Y pue [npoadsarsiqg
"0V SSUNLI oNqng
uadQ pue Ponpuo)
Jo 9po) a173 o 1red
SB ‘IaT10 oea iIm sSuneowr ofgnd
‘S# uodn juapuadap s swygr Sredrunwuroo ATuado uado e Jolaeyaq
8107 ‘1€ Anp £g 01 93pord & usrs syerrdoxddeur
preog ol [ SISQUIOW pIeog °y pue mpoadsaisicq
NOSY3d (AMYINIIAINS)

ANITINIL

J19ISNOJS3Y / av3l

S1Y0443 NOILNT0S3Y 1D141SId

INT10S3Y Ol (S)INOILDY

aNssi

8T0Z 0€ AYVNNVT AYV09 QL IHL AS d31d0Oay ‘8T0Z AYVNNYI A3SOdOYd

8T0CvC ¥ :31vadn 14vyd

NV1d NOILDY IDONVNYIAOD 1D141SId
(@ol) 1o1d1sIa NOILVAYISNOD NOLSHNHL




month beginning. ST
2.15.2018. Board 0:9:._ _

read a policy at the

4.24.2018 meeting..

Passive
aggressive
behavior

Acting Executive
Director will re-send
letter to TCD Board
RE: 11/1/2017
WSCC Letter to TCD
Board - will resend
letter to Board, Shana
and Paul

Will send out Board
reminders about TCD
staff meetings by
Monday before each
meeting

A. Completed as of 1.29.18

Acting Executive
Director

By March 31, 2018

Inaction on
advice from

Enduris following

investigation -

Coo oo | Endurisc
e __mewﬁwmoﬁos_

Invite Michelle
Fossum. to upcoming
TCD Board Meeting
Discuss
recommendations

- and advice w.og

plan /response.

.- Inform staff of momoﬂ_

plan

A. Completed

Board Chair

A Byregular -
Ll ____m.@g.ﬁmp%
Boar d. -

oo Y Meeting:

B m<>wawo

- 2018

A a.ﬁﬂ..fﬁ.mﬂh. e .:..zM&tf} E.w%ﬁb.ﬁggJ;_ﬁaLNOHm :

= _.U,__ By 9% w H

Lack of board
member travel
reimbursement
pelicy

w B OO

Develop Board
Member Travel Policy
Richard will send new
proposed policies to
TCD Board

A. Work has been done to
update/create Board
Member Travel Policy draft.
This item has not yet been
completed or adopted as of
4.20.2018.

B. Completed

B. Richard

muw March 3T, 2018
May 31, 2018




11

01
SUN9N pIeog]
8I0Z°0&°T Jo sp | yoes Je ssousnqg JoJ,
‘uoysny bnoq fig pan1aoad | :9I STUNLIW JUBAI[II 6
Alayerpaurtul U3YG 2aDY SILIDWIWNS uo Jno odax [ uonesITUnNWIWo)) |
aamoaqe ‘8urodu) preog DL 'V pup sipiodad Buriaapy 'y | sIsquay preod dDL Jo 3oer]
SN SUT1a
pue s3UIpIooal
orpne J03 Aorod
MITASI T PIeod dODL -
1A
pue SUOISSTOSIP
1uelrodur
‘suonowr UTPToUl
‘QUI[INIO Ue SB epuage 8
Uy ursn SUrea
810¢T rewadg 8107/6/1
‘ogeunp Ag D sbusaw 213 JIOJ S$23TLUT
8107 ‘6 ainanf 110 Guipmoul P21UaLIO-UOTIO0r
Lrenuep A9 g med ‘0O ‘81°0£°T Jo sv payspdwiop g opraoxd T gels -
810T ‘6 »eis dol '€ Sexhaterie g-geratciclent sojnuT SIS
Arenuep A9 "y 1S Ol 'V 81°0¢'T Jo sp pajajdwio) v o uonduosuer} oN - pofre1sp AJ19A0
*dauuvw FUNLIUL OB3 3I0Iaq T ST
quarorffo puv fjawnyy | Kepsinyg sy} preog
» U2 ssaoco.d sy mojjof 01 110 1U3s $19¥2ed °
03 fizriorad v uIDWAL JIM 3T SUTPIW. OB
3INPaYyos s1Yy3 03 Buriaypy 210Joq Aepsoupam
u1 sabua)pyo pasod soy 23 epuULSe 1IBIp
11 ‘sasva.toap firondpo [foys ® oZI[eul M IeYD .N.

sy ‘(parfioads sp fA1jovxa

30u ybnoyy) pamoyiof |
.. u2aq SDY DPUILD Bunsswl

Bunsod puv Hurnoiddn
Jo apnpayos 4a1y4vd

up Aoasusn ‘Ripnigag
Jo yauow 4of pajrajduwio)

Aepuopy Surmor[of
o1 AqQ JUIWIUOD

.. 9p1aoid JIm pIeOH:
: Y S e

210504 s Aeplig
v £q epusde PeIp

N0 PuLs [ JFeIg

ssupeow |-

PIBOQ TUSIOLJSUL
% AISUoT




*Blank rows are for district to insert additional issues and actions as necessary.

District Governance Action Plan agreed to on January 30% 2018 in Tumwater, Washington by the following;:

SIGNATURE POSITION
CONSERVATION DISTRICT CHAIR

CONSERVATION DISTRICT VICE CHAIR

CONSERVATION DISTRICT AUDITOR

CONSERVATION DISTRICT SUPERVISOR

CONSERVATION DISTRICT SUPERVISOR

CONSERVATION DISTRICT (Acting) EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

CONSERVATION COMMISSION 3TAFF —
REGIONAL MANAGER







Conservation
B District =

Ij‘)

b
. ar
th Hrgton®

To: Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors
RE: HR Temp and Contract Complaint
July 25™ 2018

Dear Supervisors,

Please take note of the following formal grievance in regards to the new HR person, Diretha Hollenbaugh,
hired from Smart Talent temp agency.

On June 26™, 2018 during the regular Thurston Conservation District Board Meeting, the Thurston
Conservation District Board of Supervisors authorized Board Auditor, Richard Maniamyer to hire an HR person
through a temp agency. Eric Johnson, Richard Mankamyer and Linda Powell voted in favor of this motion. Paul
Pickett voted in oppasition.

During the June 26™, 2018 TCD Board Meeting, and again via email to the TCD Board on July 11" 2018, 1
voiced several concerns:
1. Hiring staff is a delegated authority of the Executive Director (TCD Policy 1.3) or Acting Executive
Director (TCD Palicy 1.3.1).
2. TCD is currently in the process of developing the mid-year budget revision, including several
unforeseen expenses {2018 TCD Election, etc.).

a, |am concerned about where the funding is/will come from to pay for the HR position. As you
know, without Rates & Charges funding this year, the budget for District Operations expenses is
minimal and already allocated to existing core functions, per the approved 2018 Annual Budget.

b. Iam also concerned about the appearance that the TCD Board has hired an HR person using at
an unlimited expense amount, as a budget revision including this expense has not been
approved by the TCD Board, nor has an actual expense allocation for this position been
approved by the TCD Beard to date.

Included in my email sent ta the TCD Board on July 11" 2018, | noted that | understood the desire of the
Board to move quickly and recommended steps that could been taken for the quickest and most appropriate
path forward, per TCD policy.

L; 360.754.3588 < f:360.236.0941 o www,thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson 5T 8W STE A Tumwater, WA 98512




Conservation
= PDistrict =

I have several additional concerns, in addition to the aforementioned:

3. The TCD Board authorized the Board Auditor, Richard Mankamvyer, to hire an HR person at the June
26™, 2018 TCD Board Meeting. Linda Powell signed the Temporary Staffing General Business
Agreement with Smart Talent on June 8" 2018. {Please see attached.)

a. |recommend contracts come before the entire TCD Board of Supervisars to approve before
signature,

4. Diretha notified me that she worked 18 hours the week of July 16" ~July 20™, 2018. Smart Talent
charges 546,50 per hour.

5. I'have not yet seen a scope of work or list of job duties that Diretha has been assigned. [ am unable to
appropriately coordinate with her and the Staff without know what her intended function is within the
District. Please share with me the scope of work or list of job duties assigned, at your earliest
convenience.

6. Diretha attended the July 18" 2018 Board of County Commissioner’s briefing on Rates and Charges.
This meeting was not related to Human Resources and | am concerned about the District incurring an
expense for attendance at this meeting that meeting that appears to be entirely unrelated to HR
responsibilities.

7. Contracting for goods and services also requires a systematic process and appropriate documentation
{TCD Policy 4.6). Please share with me the documentation obtained in the selection process at YOUr
earliest convenience.

8. 1have received a written complaint from a staff member that felt ‘uncomfortable’ with interactions
and requests made by the HR temporary hire that took place on 7/24/2018.

9. Atthe July 24th, 2018 Emergency Special Board meeting, Linda Powell recommended cutting existing
staff hours to pay for legal services for the District. | believe this could have legal ramifications and
would recommend discussions with the staff collective bargaining unit and myself before sharing this
in a public meeting. This seems inappropriate given the recent HR position hire. Diretha mentioned in

2018 that her position was half time, with the potential of fulltime as

our meeting on July 17
needed.
10. Staff has witnessed her rifling through filing cabinets with protected landowner Information (farm

plans). This information has elements that must be redacted before release as public record.

I 360.754.3588 e f: 360.236.0941 o www.thurstoned.com
2918 Ferguson 5T SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512




Conservation
= District =

4
" 0

.fh It_rstoﬂc&.

11. 1 have been asked twice by Board Auditor, Richard Mankamyer to provide a Certificate of Liability
Insurance naming Smart Talent as co-insured. 1 am very uncomfartable performing this task given the
concerns listed above. | believe that this issue needs to be discussed an authorized by the full TCD
Board, | noted these concerns and requested approval by the full TCD Board on these matters via email
to the TCD Board on July 17%, 2018.

[ am concerned these instances may contribute to a hostile work environment for staff and increase the risk of
liability to Thurston Conservation District if unresolved. | appreciate the Thurston Conservation District’s Board
review and response to the complaints filed within this grievance. | have attached TCD Policy 3.1.8 Employee
Complaint and Grievance for your convenience. | look forward to working together within our policies and
procedures to move the District forward.

Resp c:t\fuily,

Sarall Moorehead

interim Executive Director
Thurston Conservation District
smoorehead@thurstoned.com
360.754.3588 x136

b 360.754.3588 o 1:360.236.0941 = www.thurstoned.com
2918 Perguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

Yy




POLICY STATEMENT & CONFIDENTIALITY

Temporary Staffing General Business Agreement

StnarTalont i un employer-paid, direct hire, teniporary and profect stafling service. Smar(Talent Is sn squal opporiunity employer and refiers all applicants regardless of their race, cotor,
national origin, religion, creed, marital status, nge, disability or any other busis protected by applicable law. Personal date submitied by SmariTalent segarding it temporary associaies und
candidates and all busicess-related non public informalion inchuding pricing and fees is highty confidentint and fhe castomer agrees not to disclose sach informtation te any third pany.

TEMPORARY SERVICES FEES

JmurTalent qssocinte selection fees cover all activities relaling o the locating,
iérvicwving, sceeaning, testing und pre-selection of aur emporary associntes. Supzevision
of the assigned assosinte tor the sgreed apen duties is Customer’s responsibility.

UNCONDITIONAL GUARANTEE

SmarTatent provides an uncanditionsl pnarantee for all semporary associale employees.
Let SmartTalent know within 48 hours after the start ol any assigumens and charges for e
ensatisfuctory porlim: of sny Hme cherped switl be waived nrd 2 replacemsent wilk be sent.

HOURLY RA'I TS

intemaf safeguands.  Accordingly, Cuslemer aprees lo assume sole and complete
responsibility, and thold SmartTalent harmless, for any losses or slaims that résult from a
SmanTalent associale being assipned by Customer the respousibility for handling or
pousession of any cash, securities, keys, eredit cands or other valuables or property of any
kind, #nd from uny Tosses or claims fat resull from SmartTalent eatployees having been
enlrusted with any unetiended praperly or preimises.

TEMP-TO-DIRECT CONVERSION FLE
if the Custamer seeks fo hire a SiarTalerd lompomry associate 10 their own (o any
subsidiary, affiliated or refaled company’s} staff during a temporary assiganient, after a
temporazy nssu,nmem has ended, aﬁer n n.-,ume refenal uuewmw after A | n_sumc rcfetml

rialepayment will be appht.dﬂﬁcrf&’rd'\ys—and 1555 tate—
payment fee will be applsed ai't(,r 60 days. In the event that the Customer fuils to pay the
charges issusd by SmartTelent, whether for temporary services or for conversion fees
when due, Customer shall poy @ cellection andfor liigation cests, plus reasonuble
altormey lecs.

= QOMBRTMENT TO-SAFETY . .
Customer agrees o comply with all applicable heatth and sufely faws and (s;dm-mcev, nml
10 provide nl SmartTalent associates all yeneraf and specilic safely tmining information
and equipment necessary for their sald assiponient(s), mcluding infarmation rapgarding
exposures 0 lzardous substances, sad safoly equipment that is legally required or
neeessary to perform any sssignment safely (and will ensure that associales wse said
cquipment), Customer naderstands that our associsles are nel allewed o entor any sorl of
confined space and thet (Re customer assures Sman Talent thal they have fdentified and
posiod waming at alf contined spaces in accordance with WAC 286-809. Custonser firthier
assures that iF they have confined spaces that our sssocietes will be warned aboul thent at
their initind oclemation, Custamer assures SmariTalent they have completed a personal
pratective equipment {PPE} writien hozard essessinent ns required by WAC 296-800-1610
and will provide any vequired information for wearing PRE to SmanTalent. Customer
wyrees Lo comply with all accident and injury seposting requireinents,

DRIVENG ASSIGNMENTS

Cuslomer gueees nol {¢ pernit andfor anthoiize any SmnriTalept assaciale (o operale iay
molor vehicles, automolive, truck or heavy machinesy equipment withoul signing a
{¥ver's Release Borm supplied by Smar(Talent. Customer acknowledyes and agrees tha
SruurtTalen( does nal fiernish insurance to cover damage or physical foss caused by the
operation of any vehicle operated Iy SmarTalent’s ussociates for Customer benefit or
the request of Cuslomer, Customer accepts full responsibility for any Bodily injury,
property damnge, fire, theft, callision or public fiabifity claim adsiey from a SmarfFoleat
assuciafe boing asked by Cusiomer, Hs supervisory employees or anyone else acting on
Bbehalf of Custamner, fo operate machinery, or equipent, or drive a vehicle, whether owned
by 2 SmartTelem assucinte, by Castomer, or aihisd pasty.

CASH HANDLING ASSIGMMENTS

Customer urklersiands and agrees that SmartTaleni provides temporery associales to work
under Cust g direcl \enl and supervision, and that SmarTakent has no contyol
over and assumes no gesponsibility for Customer’s intemal sccusity systems or other

(curént sndfor formeey G

fates, officors, direet

Sinart Taleat employ
managing sgats
3. Governing Law - Fhe Temperary Sidliog Geoemd Business Agreement shall be governed
s constroed in nccondance wish the fows of the state where StwartTalest's tenypotory
associntes are assigned.
© 4. Digelaimer of Rep — M ray G whamantfes-have besa or are given - --
by SmarTaleal except as ::xpmssly provided in s Temporury Staffing General Business

, supervisoss, ardfor. lelr:f

potny

Apreemod. This Ay P al§ prior ngy and igns or
promises of any kind and is the fulf, finsl, ond complete agresmunt l:ntween the partics on
mniter expressed herain.

5. Disputes — Exeept for a suit to enforee any rion-compaté agreement between the parties,
the patties agres lo submit any dispuis wising oul of or iw auy wey rehated ta this
Temporary S1affing Genernl Busiusss 1o Gnal and binding erbitration pursuant 1o the
Fedaral Arbiteation Act {"FAA™. Oag or sore parties iy & any time niliate arbiralion.
Arhitrntion, Arbitration shall bs conduated by Judicial Dispule Regolutions LELC using jis
ales und procedures nol inconsiston with the Act pndier usy teen horain

6. Cmanndes ~ SmortTalent does not guarantes ke acounky of U infornativi weeolved as o
sesult of roforence, credil, or efminsl backprownd checks! drug screewms. Customer
gusrmtees and wearents that [ will alide by olk applicable fedect, state and lucal laws,
snvluding backgrownd check Baws.

7. Cuslomar agrees wol {0 irensfer any SmacTalemt employee 1a she payroll of anether
cugfemer or anolher tenparary stafling company withiosl prior writlen pymission aud
campensition to St Falent,

Thunk you for scleeling SmertTalenL The undersighed acknowledges receipl and
ageeptince of dhis Agreement on beball of Customer and that it applies to all assignments
o Customer of tempurary sssociales Dy SmartTalent, untl revoked by Custonser in
writing, and warrants that he/she is suthorized 1o so obligate Customer,

Signed on behalf of 'T Cz()

{Compeny Nmrfc)

Llr\cﬁc{ 3 ?Uuuﬂ

gmdl«_k ¢6(1Witt€c6

{ Pringf {Title)
L 2 AJ_M._L_EL
Nigaalure) {Date)

Swiarl Felent 0724-15




@@@@ @y@&

AN
7.6.2018 //ﬁ/

& J 2
%@mm@

SmartTalent is committed to providing you the highest of quality and service when it comes to your
staffing needs - temporaries, temp to hire and direct hire. To that end, I would like to provide you with
proposed 2018 bill rates for Thurston Conservation District. All rates are sub;ect to review and adjustment
following any increase In a city, state or federal mandated tax.

Human Resource Manager
Pay Rate $30 perhour
Bill Rate $46.50 hour
The hourly rates Invoiced to Customer include a $.07f hour ACA Line item Charge in addition to wages and alfowances for all

statutory charges, e.g. FICA, FUTA, Industrial Insurance, State Unemployment, Payroll Taxes, etc. This rate also includes all
background screening.

All of our SmartTalent employees are thoroughly screened, tested and reference checked - those results
are made available to you. Below are some of the reasons and values that SmartTalent offers to its clients,
which make our company the staffing firm of choice.

1. We offer a 100% guarantee. If you are not happy with the production of our employee then you do not
pay for our employee, We are that confident of our service and commitment to our customers.

2. We respond immediately; SmartTalent offers a 45-minute response time from your initial call when you
place an order with us. Within those 45 minutes, you will receive a status call from us as to when the order
will be filled, if we already filled it or an update of our status. You never have to call us to find out the
status of your order; if you do, then you receive two hours off your next invoice.

3. We are available to you 24 hours a day. Business needs do not always fall into business hours. When you
need assistance on weekends, before or after regular hours, a qualified SmartTalent staff memberis only a
phone call away.

Tiffany Nevils

Business Development Manager
SmartTalent — Lacey

P: 360.456.0380 | C: 360.259.7655

Printed Name

Signature
Date

At SmartTalent our motto is, "We're Going To Make Your Business Day Better."
[ look forward to building a long lasting Partnership with you and your organization.




Instructions: Rate cach of the items listed below for safety and/or completeness,
8 = Satisfactory/Yes U = Unsatisfactory/No i Action Needed N=Not Applicable

Name of Account: ‘Thu Y’fﬁﬁm (Mﬂ/vﬁ-hm %e 7/ 1 I | fﬁ

Name of SmartTalent Rep conduciing the Inspection: i pf“’"m\'\l NQU 4

Name of Client assisting with Inspection:=Z=

Linpa, (P@wd

Frgonomics, Safety Training & General Items

Do they have an Ergonomic Program? M / H— !

Are the chairs used at the workstation adjusta'b'le?; o

Are the keyboards and mouse within an easy reach?

Do they have an APP plan?

Who is responsible for safety? _MM_ _ngML)__

Is a safety orientation given to all tempmary employees on their first day of work?
Reminder to client: Training must include what to do in an emergency, er gonmmcs and agy areds our assoeintes are
not to go or duties not to performgy | . D) 4

Who provides the orientation? jiEQ{ WM AA g ;4 ;: 17 ﬂ r )

Will temporary employees be offered or hcluded in traunng that wgular empfoyees are during their employment on-site?

Is each first ajid kit 1dcnt1ﬁed vigible and complete?

Are there any first aid trained employee and are cards dfjl'r,eﬁnt?

Are emergency phone numbers posted where they q;;p‘h‘e:seéﬁ fiom telephones?

Where you able to view their OSITA 300 log‘?
What is their most common injnry?

-VW\M‘DW/\ RN

Are tile Safety Data Sheets (5DSs) readil avallable Tor all chericals on site?

Emergeney Exit

Are all exits and paths to!ﬁ‘om exits free of obstruclions?

Can all exits be opened firom the fnside without a key?

Are all exiting signs illuminated?

Is the way of exit to the street obvmus from all locations?

Ate Goors that could be mistaken for a‘'way of exit marked “Not an Exit” or with the name of tha room?

WONG VAR

Avre fie extingpishers charged and mounted in their asmgned Iabeled locatlons‘?

Is there a minimum 18” clearance below sprmkle hedds?

General Housekeeping

Are mateials stored safely to prevent {ripping, fire or pest hazards?

Are plugs, cords, electrical panels in good condition?

Are extension cords being wsed correctly?
Reminder: Bxtension cords are not to be plugged info gach other

What is the general condition of the work-site?

Ave file drawers kept close when not in use?

Are gy items over 4 foet tall secore from falling?

s there at least 6 1/2 feet of head room in all isles and on ali stairs?

Is stair tread strfaces non-slip, not excessively woin and free from materials?

&T/XJ)JJD’ UTU)U};UB [

Ts thers a guardrail with mid rail on open sides of stairs with 4 or mote risers or a handrail when both sides are walled?




-| Corporate Approval; -

Customer Signature %/MX W ,() / . ._-._Date

SERAT

SmariTalent Representative MW W Daite; _




1933
1934
1935
1936
1937
1938
1939
1940
1941
1942
1843
1944
1945
1946
1947
1948
1949
1950
1951
1952
1953
1654
1955
1956
1957
1958
1959
1960
1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1967
1968
15965
1970
1971
1972
1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
1978

THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Policies & Procedures

Purpose:

Definition:

Policy:

Procedure:

3.1.8 Employee Complaint and Grievance
Effective Date: June 9, 2000

To encourage employees to resolve work-related concerns informally with
their supervisors, (o provide employees with internal options and
procedures so that complaints and grievances will be given thorough
consideration, and to be resolved in a fair, timely, and mutually acceptable
manner. As well as to assure there will be no resultant retaliation against
the employee utilizing these options.

A claim of infringement by the District of its established policies and/or
practices with respect to salaries, hours, or conditions of work, or an
employee’s claim of the District’s noncompliance with state or federal
laws.

It is District policy to provide employees with internal review processes to
help reach solutions to their work related concerns, problems, complaints,
or grievances.

1. Employees are encouraged to attempt to resolve complaints and
grievances through informal discussions with their immediate
supervisors. If the grievance is not resolved through informal
discussion, the employee may submit the grievance in writing to the
supervisor within 30 days of the alleged violation.

2. While it is hoped that the major portion of problems that arise can be
handled informally and verbally at this level (procedure “A”), if the
complaint is not resolved the employee is asked to put the matter in -
wriiing, including names, dates, occurrences, and allegations, The
supervisor attaches the employee’s statements, the supervisor
statement of action taken or suggested and submits them to the District
Administrator.

3. If the matter is not resolved at level “B”, the Executive Director
ascertains the relationship of the situation using District policies and
professional judgment and attempts to conciliate the situation. If the
situation is resolved, then an agreement or statement of conciliation is
drafted, including all actions to be taken and the names of any
additional involved parties. If the matter is not resolved at this level
then;

4. The Executive Director may exercise the option of requesting an
advisory judgment from the Washington Human Rights Board, District
Legal Counsel, District Board, District Treasurer, or outside mediation
services.

Page 57
07/25/18



1979
1980
1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987

THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Policies & Procedures

5. If the employee’s grievance directly involves any superior in the chain
of command, the preceding processes may be amended at the
employee’s option, to bridge over that superior to the next higher level
of authority culminating in procedure “D”.

Good faith efforts will be made to respond to foregoing steps in 10
working days from the request of the grievance through chain of
responses, unless otherwise arranged by parties.

Page 58
07/25/18




THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Policies & Procedures

3199 4.6 Subcontracting Procedures and Bid Thresholds
3200 Effective Date: January 28, 2003
3201 Updated: July 31, 2017
3202
3203  Purpose: To establish the procedures employees of the District will use when
3204 subcontracting to buy goods or services.
3205
3206 Policy: Thurston Conservation District will use the following procedures:
3207 I. Use Sound Business Judgment
3208 Employees will use sound business judgment and fair administrative
3209 procedures in acquiring goods and services. This applied to invitations
3210 to bid, requests for proposals, solicitation of subcontractors or vendors,
3211 and awards of subcontracts or purchase contracts.
3212
3213 2. Select Responsible Subcontractors
3214 Employees will award subcontracts only to responsible subcontractors
3215 with the ability to perform successfully under the terms of applicable
3216 grant contract. As of June 1, 2017 the District contracted with MRSC
3217 Rosters to generate lists of qualified contractors and consultants for
3218 projects
3219
3220 3. Competitive Procurement
3221 Employees will award subcontracts through a competitive process
3222 based on the table included herein and MRSC Rosters solicifation
3223 Guidelines when applicable.
3224
3225 4. Ensure Subcontractor Compliance
3226 Employees will ensure that subcontractors adhere to the same terms
3227 and conditions as the district. Employees will ensure that all
3228 subcontractors comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws
3229 and regulations related to discrimination, labor and job safety, and
3230 environmental protection; and that subcontractors perform in
3231 accordance with the terms and conditions of their contracts.
3232
3233 5. Provide a Written Contract Document
3234 Subcontracts must be written, enforceable and legally sound, and must
3235 include appropriate general conditions (i.e. verbal contracts are not
3236 permitted). When subcontracting, the employee is responsible for:
3237 a. Including specified provisions of applicable grant contract in any
3238 subcontract or Interagency agreement that is entered into;
3239 b. Ensuring that the subcontractor follows applicable reporting
3240 formats and procedures;
3241 ¢. Ensuring that no right or claim arising from the grant contract is
3242 assigned either in whole or in part, except as prescribed by grant
3243 contract within suspension or termination procedures; and

Page 99

07/25/18



THURSTGN CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Policies & Procednres

3244 d. Seeking administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances
3245 where subcontractors violate or breach applicable grant contract
3246 terms.
3247
3248 6. Analyze Purchases for Cost-Effectiveness
3249 Employee will avoid purchase of unnecessary or duplicate items, and
3250 consolidate or break out purchases as appropriate to obtain a more
3251 economical price. Where applicable, the employee will analyze lease
3252 versus purchase alternatives in determining the most economical
3253 approach.
3254
3255 7. Cooperating with Other Local Governmental Units
3256 To foster greater economy and efficiency, employees will utilize
3257 existing Interlocal Agreements or enter into agreements with other
3258 public agencies for joint or cooperative action, Pursuant to Chapter
3259 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation Act.
3260
3261 8. Soliciting for Goods and/or Services
3262 The chart below outlines the procedures for services as well as goods
3263 procurement. Dollar thresholds do not include applicable sales tax or
3264 shipping expenses.
3265

Dollar Threshold Competitive Process Major Activities

$1 - $4,999 Phone comparison—Fax, » Telephone calls or internet

internet, or e-mail searches can be made to firms or
documentation required. individuals describing the services

or goods desired and requesting
price, schedule and qualifications
to perform.

* Verification of information
obtained is to be obtained by fax,
internet, or e~-mail. This
information must be included with
purchase order for authorization by
the supervisor.

$5,000 - $299,000

MRSC Small Works, * Prepare written solicitation
Consultant and Vendor document/letter including at a
Roster minimum: description of services

and/or goods required, project
schedule, request for consultant’s
qualification, request for costs or
feeds, and due date for responses.
¢ Select contractors / consultants

from list generated on MRSC
Roster. Adhere to equability
requirements if not soliciting bids

Page 100
0772518




THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Policies & Procedures

from all roster participants.
Evaluate responses and make
award decision.

Negotiate subconfract with
successful contractor.

Document for file:; initial roster
list, narrowed search list, if
applicable and process of
equitability information of firm’s
responses, basis for award
decision, and copy of subcontract.

$300,000 - or more

Formal Competition

Prepare formal solicitation
document, Request for Proposals
(RFP) or Request for
Qualifications/Quotations (RFQQ).
Include all requirements in order
for proposes to understand what
the district needs and how the
district will evaluate responses.
Publish solicitation document on
district website,

Develop score sheets for use by
evaluators.

Issue REP or FQQ to a minimum
of 6 firms/businesses. District may
also just send a noiification to 6 or
more businesses that the
solicitation document is posted on
the website and can be accessed
there. Document for the file if
fewer than 6 firms are contacted
and state the reason why.

Conduct pre-proposal conference,
if required in RFP or RFQQ, and
issue addendum.

Provide answers to bidders’
questions via addenda to all who
receive the RFP or REQQ. Or
advise those who download the
REP or RFQQ from the web site to
check back for any addenda that
may be posted.

Date and time stamp proposals
received by the due date.
Electronic proposals will have the

Page 101
07/25/18




THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Policies & Procednres

date and time automatically noted.
Evaluate proposals strictly against
criteria set forth in the RFP or
REQQ and score. Mustuse a
minimum of 3 evalunators for
scoring and score proposals using
score sheets, Tabulate scores and
determine ranking of proposes.
Schedule and conduct oral
interviews of top finalist, if
desired.

Determine final scoring and select
apparent successful contractor.
Notify successful and unsuccessful
firms.

Negotiate contract with apparent
successful contractor.

Conduct debriefing conferences
with unsuccessful proposes, if
requested.

3266

Page 102
07/25/18




-
s BN e RN B e T U R T S I

DDA DDA D DR DWW WL LWL WWWHNDRMNDBDNRNDNDNNR = = = = e e e
o bW, OoOVEE-IAAUNMEWND—L,COoWVUWEIOWUAWN =0V -ITNWL AW —

1.3.1 Delegation of Authority to Acting Executive Director
Established: January 9, 2018

Purpose: This document describes functions, responsibilities, and expectations the Thurston
Conservation District (TCD) Board of Supervisors delegates to TCD’s Acting Executive
Director (AED).

Definitions: Acting Executive Director (AED) is the interim chief executive of the TCD, acting
under the direction of and approved by the Board of Supervisors (Board), with
responsibility for District activities, including but not limited to:

1. Overall management, supervision of district programs and employees, and satisfaction of
district clients, partners, and the general public in consultation and communication with the
board.

2. Implementation of the district mission, annual and strategic plans, policies and budget in a

timely and efficient manner.

Coordination and/or development of sufficient financial resources to fund district programs.

Engagement of programs and partners that further the mission of the district.

5. Ensuring all district functions and services are managed and provided in accordance with all
applicable laws, regulations, and district policies.

= g

Generally, the Board will make policy-level decisions by motion or by resolution in its regular
meetings. Generally, the AED will design and implement procedures to catry out those policies, with
input from the Board.

The Board of Supervisors’ authority, delegates the following authority to the Acting Executive
Director:

Execution of Mission/Vision/Work Plans: The AED is the chief employee entrusted by the Board to
coordinate with staff to maximize resources and partnerships to execute the mission, vision and work
plans of the TCD. Day-to-day program management and execution of duties to implement the mission,
vision, work plans, and Board direction of the District is delegated to the AED in consultation and
communication with the Board.

Representing the Organization: The AED will represent the District, to partners, local, state, federal
and tribal officials, the media, constituents, and the public.

Employment Practices: The AED shall recommend the proper level of staffing and salaries to the
Board at least once each year, as part of the annual budget preparation. The adoption of the budget,
that includes these, is a policy decision and must be approved by the Board

The AED shall hire, promote, or retain employees, in consultation and communication with the Board,
as needed to meet the approved staffing level.

The AED shall determine merit raise increases, and implement these decisions as the District’s budget
will allow, in consultation with the board, in an orderly manner consistent with maintaining employee
morale and retaining competent staff to conduct District operations.



49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
17
78
79
80
&1
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90

The AED shall conduct performance reviews of employees, at least annually, giving the Board
opportunity for their input into these evaluations. The Board is responsible for the AED’s performance
review, at least annually (on or before their anniversary date or as agreed), or more often if need for this
position.

The AED shall take all disciplinary actions needed, including and up to termination of employees as
necessary, and keep the Board informed and consult with Board of such actions, in writing, as they may
become necessary.

The Acting Bxecutive Director approves all leave, including family medical leave, sick, annual,
bereavement, personal holidays, unpaid holidays, and leave without pay, within the guidelines of the
District’s Policies and Procedures Manual.

The AED shall ensure employees receive adequate training, counseling, and other tools and make
themselves available to employees as needed to carry out the mission of the District.

The AED shall ensure Board members receive adequate training opportunities: eg. basic District
operations, District finances, Open Public Meetings Act, Board Responsibilitics and any other training
for the duties of being a Board member.

The AED may appoint employees to management positions based on the needs of the District and may
instruct other District Employees to report to those managers rather than directly to the AED, in
consultation with the Board.

In the absence of the AED, she/he may appoint a designee to carry out any and all of these
responsibilities on her/his behalf upon approval of the Board. This may occur if the AED is out of the
area for more than 24 hours and unable to perform their duties, has a medical event ete. and critical
District business must still occur. The Board of Supervisors in consultation with the AED will set up a
chain of command to fulfill the AED role.

Execution of Contracts & Agreements: The AED will execute contracts and agreements (with
exception of those that specifically require Board approval/signature) on behalf of the District,
including the following: a) those that are of normal and customary business and in alignment with the
District’s mission/vision and annual work plans; b) those that do not spend more than $5,000 of the
District’s own financial resources on a single project or program.

Funds passed through by other agencies or funders that exceed $5,000 or are deemed out of normal or
customary business and/or spending more than $5,000 of the District’s own financial resources, must
be approved by the Board by motion or resolution prior to execution. The AED is authorized to spend
up to limits specified in Board-approved instruments.




91
92
93
94
95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109

Policies & Procedures: The Acting IExecutive Director shall, after review of all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, promulgate and implement such procedures as are necessary to effectively and
lawfully manage the District. To the extent new policies must be created, the Acting Executive Director
shall present draft policies to the Board for consideration of ratification at the next regularly scheduied
Board meeting. '

The Acting Executive Director may create, adopt, implement, change, rescind, modify, or eliminate any
procedure after consultation and communication with the Board, as such action is required for the
lawful and efficient operation of the District.

The Acting Executive Director shall disseminate information promptly to all staff, the Board, and other
affected parties upon the change of a District Policy or Procedure and have them posted to the district
website within 14 calendar days or as arranged.

A policy is a broad statement expressing the intent of a particular program or making a fundamental
decision about a particular issue or set of issues and is established by the Board. Annual and strategic
plans are examples of policy statements — a statement of what is intended for the time period.

A procedure is a method, a system of processes, a list of steps, or an ordering of tasks that give effect to
the policy of the District. A procedure is the process of implementation of a policy and is done by Staff.







RESOLUTION PETITIONING WSCC TO FOLLOW ELECTION LAWS AS
INTERPRETED BY THLE ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

WHEREAS: THE TIMING OF DISTRICT ELECTIONS VIOLATES STATE LAW AS
INTERPRETED BY THE AGO.

WHEREAS: ACCORDING TO THE 2001 AGO NO. 4 (ATTACHED),
CONSERVATION DISTRICT ELECTIONS ARE SUBJLECT TO THE GENERAL
ELECTION LAWS CODIFIED IN RCW TITLE 29 BECAUSE STATE LAW WAS
AMENDED IN 1999 NO LONGER REQUIRING PROPERTY OWNERSHIP AS A
QUALIFICATION FOR YOTING. THEREFORE, THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONDUCTING CONSERVATION DISTRICT SUPERVISOR ELECTION WAS
TRANSFERRED FROM THE DISTRICTS THEMSELVES TO THE COUNTY
AUDITORS IN 1999,

WHEREAS: WSCC STAFF KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN ABOUT THIS
PROBLEM AND RECOMMENDED WAC 135-110-200 BE REPEALED OR AMENDED
SO IT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL ELECTION DATES SIY FORTH IN
RCW 29A.04.330.

WHEREAS: WSCC’S FAILURE TO TAKE THIS ACTION WOULD BE NEGE ECT OF
DUTY AND MALFEASANCE.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: THE TCD BOARD PETITIONS THE WSCC
TO REPEAL WAC 135-110-200 AND MOVE TO REPEAL RCW 89.08.190.

DATED:




Home > EHect of changing eligibility to vote In conservation district efections on whan and how elections are conducted
Attorney General Christine Gregoire

ELECTIONS — CONSERVATION ~ CONSERVATION DISTRICTS ~ Effect of ¢changing
eligibility to vote in conservation district elections on when and how elections are
conducted.

1. By removing property qualification as a condition to voting in conservation
elections, in Laws of 1999, ch. 305, the Legislature automatically madsa voirservation
districts subject to the general election laws codified in RCW Title 29.

2. One effect of Laws of 1999, ch. 305, was to transfer responsibility for conducting
conservation district supervisor elections from the districts themselves fo the
county auditors; this change does not constitute a “new program” or “increased
level” of service entitling either the district or the county under RCW 43.135.060 to
reimbursement from the state for the expenses of conducting such elections.

WREREFERRARREE IR AR AR R AR RNR R R RRR
July 12, 2001
The Honorable Bob Morton

State Senator, 7th District Cite as:
P.O. Box 40482 :
Olympia, WA 98504-0482 AGO 2001 No. 4

Dear Senator Morton:

By leiter previously acknowledged, you asked for an opinion on issues pertaining to
conservation district elections. Your request seeks our answers to questions involving the
effect of the Laws of 1999, ch. 305, on the election of conservation distr'=i supervisors.
Your questions, which we have paraphrased and re-ordered, ask:

1. Does the enactment of Laws of 1989, ch. 305 result
in making the election of conservation district




supervisors subject to the general election laws
contained in RCW Title 29, and if so, in what
respects?

2 if Question 1 is answered in the affirmative, and
conservation districts are required to reimburse
county auditors for their proportionate costs
pursuant to RCW 29.13.045, are conservation
districts eligible for reimbursement under the
provisions of RCW 43.135.0607

BRIEF ANSWER

The enactment of Laws of 1999, ch. 305 subjects conservation districts to many of the
requitements for elections set forth in RCW Title 29, most notably the requirements of
RCW 29.13.020 regarding the dates for elections and of RCW 29.21.0140 regarding
primaries. Because such elections are neither “ new programs” nor “increased levels of
service under existing programs” as those terms are used in RCW 43.135.060,
conservation districts are not eligible for state reimbursement of their district supetvisor
election costs.

BACKGROUND

Simply defined, conservation districts are government subdivisions that assist landowners
in addressing various environmental issues, including air quality (blowing dust), prevention
of groundwater contamination, stream improvement for endangered salmon, dairy waste
management, streambank stabilization, irrigation water management, forestland
improvement, and erosion control. See RCW 89.08.010.

Each conservation district is governed by a board consisting of five supervisors—two
appointed by the state conservation commission and three elected from the district.
RCW 89.08.160. Prior to the enactment of the Laws of 1999, ch. 305, conservation district
elections were governed by RCW 89.08.180, which established the time and procedure
for elections. Under this statute, elections were held during the first quarter of each
calendar year. Candidates were nominated by pefitions signed by at least 25 district
electors. RCW 89.08.190 authorized the Conservation Commission to establish the
procedures for elections, canvass the returns, and announce the official results. The
statute also provided that supervisors would take office at the first board meeting following
the election.

Prior to the Laws of 1999, ch. 305, only those persons who owned or occupied land within
a conservation district could vote for the elected supervisors of the district. Former RCW
89.08.020. In 1999, the Legislature passed SHB 1747, which changed the gualifications
for voters in conservation district elections. Laws of 1998, ch. 305 (codified in scattered
sections of RCW 89.08). SHB 1747 removed the voter qualification of “land owner or
occupier” and defined the class of voters in conservation district elections as “registered
voter]s] in the county where the district is located who reside[] within the district boundary
or in the area affected by a petition”. See RCW 89.08.020.




This is a significant change for purposes of determining the requirements that govern
election of conservation district supervisors, because in many respects, as explained
below, RCW Title 29 governs election procedures in special purpose districts where land
ownership is not a prerequisite to voting.

ANALYSIS

Question 1. Does the enactment of Laws of 1999, ch.
305 result in making the election of conservation
district supervisors subject to the general election
laws contained in RCW Title 29, and if so, in what
respects?

With certain exceptions, elections generally are governed by RCW Title 29. One such
exception is elections at which land ownership [1] is a prerequisite 1o voting. Such
elections are exempt from many of the reqguirements of RCW Title 29. See RCW
29.13.020 (exempts such elections from timing of election provisions); 29.15.010
(exempts candidates in such elections from the requirement to file a declaration and
affidavit for candidacy); and 29.21.010 (exempts such elections from primary election
requirement). Thus, by removing the “land owner or occupier” qualification from voters in
conservation district elections, the Legislature, by virtue of statutory language previously
enacted, automatically changed certain election procedures for conservation districts. See
Bennett v. Hardy, 113 Wn.2d 912, 926 784 P.2d 1258 (1990) (legislative bodies are
presumed to have full knowledge of existing stafutes affecting the matter upon which they
are legislating).

A. Timing of Elections; RCW 29.13.020

RCW 29.13.020 generally governs the timing of elections. This statute provides that “[a]il
city, town, and disirict general elections shall be held throughout the state of Washington
on the first Tuesday following the first Monday in November in the odd-numbered years.”
RCW 28.13.020(1) {emphasis added). The only relevant exception to this provision is
“district elections at which the ownership of property within those districts is a prerequisite
to voting, all of which elections shall be held at the times prescribed in the laws specifically
applicable thereto”. Id. § (1)(b). Because RCW 89.08 no longer contains the land
ownership qualification for voters, the question arises whether conservation district
elections now are subject to the election times established in RCW 29.13.020(1).

Both RCW 29.13.020 and RCW 89.08.190 establish times for holding elections. In this
sense, RCW 29.13.020 and RCW 89.08.190 are in pari materia because they “relate to
the same person or thing [elections], or the same class of persons or things [elections
where land ownership is not a voter qualification].” State v. Yim, 139 Wn.2d 581, 592, 989
P.2d 512 (1999) (quoting State v. Houck, 32 Wn.2d 681, 684, 203 P.2d 693 (1949)). Rules
of statutory construction ordinarily require that to the greatest extent possible, when two
statutes relate to the same subject, they should be harmonized rather than read to conflict
with one another. See Wasfe Mgmt. of Seatlile, Inc. v. WUTC, 123 Wn.2d 621, 630, 869
P.2d 1034 (1994). However, when such statutes cannot be harmonized, and one is a




general act and the other is a specific act, the specific act wilt prevail. Wark v. Wash. Nat'
Guard, 87 Wn.2d 864, 867, 557 P.2d 844 (1976).

Here, the two statutes cannot be harmonized. They plainly establish conflicting dates for
holding elections. RCW 29.13.020 is the more specific act. It is part of a chapter that
relates specifically and only to elections, including district elections, while RCW 89.08.190
is part of a general chapter regarding conservation districts. In addition, RCW 29.13.020
sets a specific date for district elections, while RCW 89.08.190 sets a general date during
the first quarter of each calendar year. Therefore, the “timing of election” provision in RCW
29.13.020 prevails over that set forth in RCW 89.08.190.

Thus, even under ordinary rules of statutory construction, RCW 29.13.020 would apply to
the exclusion of RCW 89.09.190. In this case, however, the Legislature also has expressly
stated its intent that the provisions of RCW 29.13.020 are to govern the dates for holding
elections even when other statutes, general or specific, may set a different date. In this
respect, RCW 29,13.020(5) provides:

This section shall supersede the provisions of any and all
other statutes, whether general or special in nature,
having different dates for such city, town, and district
elections, the purpose of this section being to establish
mandatory dates for holding elections.

Thus, we also reach this conclusion based on the plain language of the statutes. When a
statute is not ambiguous, it is not appropriate to look to legislative history to determine the
Legislature's intent. Stroh Brewery v. Dep't of Rev., 104 Wn. App. 233, 239, 15 P.3d 692
(2001). Rather, the Legislature's intent is determined by what it said. King Cy. v. Cent.
Puget Sound Growth Mgmt. Hearings Bd., 142 Wn.2d 543, 555, 14 P.3d 133 (2000).

The language the Legislature used to establish mandatory election dates in
RCW 29.13.020 is not ambiguous. By its very ferms, it applies to all district elections
(unless property ownership is a prerequisite to voting) and applies regardless of the fact
that another statute may provide a different date. RCW 29.13.020(5).

Even so, we have reviewed the final bill report of the 1999 legislation and note that it is
silent on the subject of legislative intent in this regard. Young v. Estate of Snell, 134
Wn.2d 267, 280, 948 P.2d 1291 (1997) (courts look to bill reports to inferpret ambiguous
statutes and determine the Legislature's intent); see also Johnson v. Cont'f West, Inc., 89
Wn.2d 555, 561, 863 .2d 482 (1983) (the views of individual legistators do not constitute
legislative history). We also must presume that when the Legislature removed the property
ownership qualification for district electors, it was aware that the change would make such
elections subject to certain mandatory requirements of RCW Title 29. Bennett, 113 Wn.2d
at 926. Since 19683, RCW 29.13.020 has exempted from its provisions district elections at
which ownership of property is a prerequisite to voting. See Laws of 1963, ch. 200, § 1.
Prior to that time, the statute exempted other special purpose district elections from its
provisions. See Laws of 1951, ¢h. 101, § 1 (exempted elections for irrigation districts, port
districts, and public utility districts from provisions of RCW 29.13.020). In 1976, the
Legislature amended RCW 298.13.020 and stated its intent that all elections shall be
subject to the statute's provisions, unless otherwise exempted. See RCW 29.13.020; Laws




of 1975-76, 2d Ex. Sess., ch. 3, § 1. At the time this provision was enacted, conservation
district elections were exempt from RCW 29.13.020, because only property owners or
occupiers could vote in such elections. The enactment of Laws of 1999, ch. 305 removed
the “stopper” that had prevented the general election laws from applying to conservation
districts. [2]

Thus, we conclude that elections for district supervisors formerly governed by
RCW 89.08,190 are now subject to the provisions of RCW 29.13.020. Elections for district
supervisors must be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November in odd-
numbered years, or pursuant to the special election provisions of RCW 29,13.020(2) in
even-numbered years. [3] Similarly, elections regarding the creation, dissolution, or
alteration of a conservation district must be held pursuant to RCW 28.13.020. See RCW
89.08.110, .130, .180, .350.

_In further response to your first question, we will briefly analyze the extent to which the
general election laws in RCW Title 29 now govern conservation district elections.
Additional issues may arise concerning the interplay hetween RCW Title 28 and RCW
89.08 that are not immediately apparent. For this reason, we do not suggest that our
analysis identifies and discusses svery potential consequence of the 1989 law for
conservation district elections.

B. Conduct and Canvass of District Elections; RCW 29.13.020, .040

The county auditor is the ex officio supervisor of all elections held pursuant to
RCW 29.13.020. RCW 29,13.020, .040. Because district elections must be held pursuant
to RCW 29.13.020, the county auditor is ex officio supervisor of such elections. In
addition, the county canvassing board must canvass district elections. For the same
reasons set forth above, these stafutes prevail over the provisions of RCW 89.08 that
authorize the Conservation Commission to supervise and canvass district elections. See
RCW 89.08.110, .130, .190. and .350.

C. Time of Taking Office; RCW 29.04.170

The term of office for a conservation district supervisor under RCW 89.08.200 is “three
years and until his successor is elected and qualified”. RCW 89.08.200 {emphasis added).
Under RCW 89.08.180, conservation district supervisors take office at the first board
meeting following the election. A separate statute in the election code, RCW 29.04.170(2)
provides:

For elective offices of counties, cities, towns, and special
purpose districts other than school districts where the
ownership of property is not a prerequisite of voting, the
term of incumbents shall end and the term of successors
shall begin after the successor is elected and qualified,
and the term shall commence immediately after
December 31st following the election. . .

In enacting RCW 298.04, the lLegislature intended to “provide a common date for the
assumption of office for all the elected officials of counties, cities, towns, and special
purpose districts. . .where the ownership of property is not a prerequisite of voting.” RCW




29.04.170. Unlike the time for elections and the requirement that the county auditor
conduct and canvass elections, we do not believe that RCW 28.04.170 and 89.08.190 are
in conflict.

The term of office for a conservation district supervisor is “three years and until his
successor is appointed or elected and qualified”. RCW 89.08.200. The term of office is not
inconsistent with RCW 29.04.170. When conservation district supervisors are elected and
gualified by December 31st, they can take office immediately thereafter. The conservation
district can schedule a board meeting immediately after December 31 to avoid possible
inconsistencies in the term of office provisions.

D. Primary Elections for Conservation Districts; RCW 29.21.010

A further question that may be raised by the enactment of Laws of 1999, ch. 305 is
whether a primary election is required when more than two persons file for the same
district supervisor position. We believe the 1999 changes to RCW 89.08 require a primary
election.

l.ocal government primaries are required by RCW 29.21.010, which states:

All city and town primaries shall be nonpartisan. Primaries for special purpose districts,
except those districts that require ownership of property within the district as a prereg Uisite
to voting, shall be nonpartisan. City, town, and district primaries shall be held as provided
in RCW 29.13.070.

The purpose of this section is to establish the holding of
a primary, subject to the exemptions in RCW 29.21.015,
as a uniform procedural requirement fo the holding of
city, town, and district elections. These provisions
supersede any and all other statutes, whether general or
special in nature, having different election requirements.

As we explained above regarding the timing of elections, we must determine the
Legislature's intent regarding the primary election provision by its plain language. The
purpose of this statute is to “establish” a primary “as a uniform procedural requirement.”
Id. The Legislature further expressed its intent that RCW 29.21.010 would supersede all
other statutes having different requirements. /d.

Further, as was the case with respect to the timing of elections, RCW 29.21.010 cannot be
harmonized with the district supervisor nomination process set forth in RCW 89.08.190.
Under RCW 89.08.190, conservation district supervisors are nominated by petition, which
must be signed by at least 25 district electors, and all nominees are placed on the baliot.
This provision is in conflict with RCW 29.21.010, which requires a primary election where
there are more than two candidates for a supervisor position. These two statutes cannot
be harmonized. As with the timing of elections requirement, RCW 29.21.010 is more
specific, because it is part of a title that relates specifically and only to elections, while
RCW 89.08.190 is part of a chapter regarding conservation districts. Further, the
Legislature expressly stated its intent that RCW298.21.010 will supersede all other
statutes, general or specific, having different requirements. RCW 29.21.010. Therefore,
conservation district elections are subject to the primary election provisions in RCW 29.21.




E. Reguirement for Filing Declaration of Candidacy; RCW 29.15

RCW 29,15.010 requires a candidate for elective office to file a declaration and affidavit of
candidacy. This requirement does not apply to candidates for office for which the
ownership of property is a prerequisite to voting. When the Legislature enacted the Laws
of 19989, ch. 305, it removed conservation district elections from the property ownership
exemption. The times for filing declarations of candidacy set forth in RCW 298.15.020
“supersede all other statutes that provide for a different filing period for these offices.”
RCW 29.15.020(2). Therefore, for the same reasons conservation district elections must
be held in accordance with RCW 29.13.020, and a primary must be held pursuant to RCW
29.21.010, the filing requirements of RCW 29.15 apply to candidates for conservation
district supervisor.

RCW 29.15.020 requires candidates to file declarations of candidacy between the fourth
Monday and the fourth Friday in July of the year they are up for election. This filing
schedule applies to offices that are “scheduled to be voted upon . . . at, or in conjunction
with, a state general election”. RCW 29.15.020(1). The state holds general elections every
year. RCW 29.13.010. A special election held in November of even-numbered years
under RCW 29.13.020(2)(f) is held in conjunction with a state general election under RCW
29.13.010. Therefore, candidates for conservation district supervisor must filte according to
this schedule, regardless of whether they are on the ballot for a general election or a
special election that is held in November of even-numbered years in accordance with
RCW 29.13.020(2)(. :

In summary, then, the timing of district elections is governed by RCW 29.13. For those
district supervisor elections that occur in odd-numbered years, the election dale is the first
Tuesday following the first Monday in November. RCW 208.13.020(1). All other
conservation district elections must be held pursuant to RCW 29.13.020(2)(governing
special elections). RCW 29.13 prevails over provisions in RCW 89.08 that provide for
inconsistent election times. See RCW 89.08.110, .190, .3560. Likewise, the county auditor
conducts and canvasses district elections under Title 29 so the inconsistent provisions in
RCW 89.08 no fonger apply. See RCW 89.08.110, 130, .190, .350. The change in voter
qualification for conservation district elections also makes conservation district elections
subject to the primary election requirement of RCW 29.21.010. Candidates for
conservation district supervisor must file declarations of candidacy as set forth in RCW
29.15.020 or as determined by the county auditor pursuant to RCW 29.15.170.

Question 2. If Question 1 is answered in the
affirmative, and conservation districts are required to
reimburse county auditors for their proportionate
costs pursuant to RCW 29,13.045, are conservation
districts eligible for reimbursement under the
provisions of RCW 43.135.0607

Since conservation districts previously conducted their own elections pursuant to
RCW 89.08 and bore their costs, your second question essentially asks whether the
provisions of RCW 43.135.160 would entitle the districts to state reimbursement now that
the same elections are conducted by the county auditor.




Under RCW 28.13.045, conservation districts are liable for their proportionate share of the
costs of an election. The purpose of this statute “is to clearly establish that the county is
not responsible for any costs involved in the holding of any city, town, or district election.”
RCW 29.13.045,

The relevant language of RCW 43.135.060(1) provides:

After July 1, 1995, the legislature shall not impose
responsibility for new programs or increased levels of
service under existing programs on any political
subdivision of the state unless the subdivision is fully
reimbursed by the state for the costs of the new
programs or increases in service levels.

This statute is inapplicable to the recent changes in conservation district election
procedures for the reason that district supervisor elections constitute neither a “new
program” nor “increased levels of service” under an existing program within the meaning
of this statute.

The Washington Supreme Court has defined “programs” and “services” synonymously as
‘measures designed fo accomplish specific public goals and to benefit the public.”
Moreover, the court has made it plain that to trigger the state reimbursement obligation
under this statute, the new or increased public benefit must be quantifiable. Cify of
Tacoma v. State, 117 Wn.2d 348, 358, 816 P.2d 7 (1991). District supervisor elections are
not new. The 1999 amendment changed the voter qualifications for such elections and, as
a result, changed the way district elections are conducted but did not make any
fundamental changes in the way conservation districts are governed or the programs they
provide to the public. In other words, the changes did not result in any new or increased
quantifiable public benefit within the meaning of RCW 43,135.060.

Although the amendment to the definition of "district elector” in RCW 89,08.020 made
district elections subject to certain requirements under Title 29, this change does not
constitute a “new program” or an “increased level of service”. District supervisors always
have been selected by election, The change in timing and procedure is a modification to
an existing program, not a new program, and it results in no increased level of service to
the public. See Seattle v. State, 100 Wn.2d 16, 256-26, 666 P.2d 359 (1983).

Accordingly, we conclude that RCW 43,135,060 does not apply, and conservation districts
remain liable for the costs of conducting district supervisor elections.

We trust this opinion is of assistance to you.
Sincerely,

SHANNON E. SMITH
Assistant Attorney General
(360) 586-2683




‘pmd

Footnotes

[1] While Title 29 refers to the special voter qualification of “land ownership,” the special
voter qualification of “land occupier” apparently has been treated consistently as satisfying
the land ownership requirement for conservation district elections.

[2] In determining legislative intent, we must consider not only the intent of the 1999
Legislature in changing the voter qualifications for conservation districts but also the intent
of the 1983 Legislature in making Title 29 applicable to almost all district elections. No
subsequent Legislature has amended the plain language of RCW 29.13.020, expressing a
clear intent to supersede all other election laws. The 1899 legislature could have
amended this [anguage to create an exception for conservation districts, but it did not. The
“infent of the Legislature,” then, involves careful consideration of the intent behind all the
statutes that are currently in force and not simply an analysis of the Legislature's state of
mind at the time of the most recent amendments.

[3] For sake of consistency, conservation districts may request a special election on the
first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even-numbered years. RCW
29.13.020(2)(f). Conservation districts should be mindful of the timelina for requesting a
special election set forth in RCW 29,13.020(2).




Tab 4



WACD and NACD Updates for Thurston CD Board Meeting
July 31, 2017

WACD For more information - http://www.wacd.org/
1. WACD initiated a newsletter - http://www.wadistricts.org/2018/06/wacd-spring-
newsletter.html|
2. WACD has established a communications committee to develop a plan, including website
updating.
3. Work continues on the NACD joint SW/Pacific meeting September 17-20, 2018 in Kennewick.

NACD For more information - http://www.nacdnet.org/
1. 2018 NACD Summer Meeting and Southeast Region meeting will occur Aug. 3 — 8, 2018 at
Williamsburg. http://www.nacdnet.org/news-and-events/summer-meeting/
2. The Southwest/Pacific joint region meeting will be Sept. 17 — 20 in Kennewick.
3. NACD 2019 Annual meeting is Feb. 2 — 6, 2019 in San Antonio.
http://www.nacdnet.org/news-and-events/annual-meeting/

Washington Conservation Leadership Function
e An orientation and tour of the Barker Ranch, managed hy NACD 2" VP Michael Crowder, near
West Richland was held on 7/20 for USDA Under Secretary Bill Northey and Congressman Dan
Newhouse. The WSCC, WSDA, NRCS, WACD and others were also represented. Crowder gave a
history and overview of the Ranch’s operations and then led a tour of the 2,000 acre ranch.
With about 40 attending, it was gratifying to see the positive changes in the land over the
decades and what a difference “on-the-ground” conservation can make.

NACD on 2018 Farm Bill http://www.nacdnet.org/about-nacd/what-we-do/federal-policy/

e OnlJune 21%, the House of Representatives passed its version of the farm bill 213-211 after
failing during a previous attempt. The following week, the Senate began floor consideration
of its version and ultimately passed it by a much wider margin, 86-11 on June 28" NACD
President Van Dyke submitted a letter to the House and Senate Ag Committees with NACD’s
response to their bill and NACD staff have uploaded two blogs on our website which goes
into more detail on hoth the House and Senate bills.

Now that each Chamber has passed its version of the farm bill, each party’s leadership will
appoint members to the conference committee consisting mostly of House and Senate Ag
Committee members from both the majority and minority. The House began this process
yesterday by voting to go to Conference and appointing its members and the Senate is
expected to follow shortly after. While Congress still has until September 30 to pass a new
farm bill, there are many significant differences between the two bills and there are always
competing issues for floor time. With the House scheduled to only be in session one more
week before they leave for August recess, and only three weeks once they get back after
Labor Day, the calendar quickly shrinks before a September 30 deadline.




Conservation
District

g

s 1981

To: TCD Board of Supervisors

From: Sarah Moorehead (Interim Executive Director}
Date: August 20'", 2018

Subject: Weekly Staff Updates

| am pleased to see this item included on the agenda. | would like to check in with the
full board regarding the continuation of weekly staff update emails. Originally, these
updates were provided as an extra report to the board so that new board members
could get a sense of what each staff position did on a routine basis. District staff have
been compiling these update emails for approximately 18 months, and it is good time to
check in and see if they are still useful to the Board of Supervisors.

As a reminder, these reports are generated and compiled by staff on a weekly basis
solely for Board Supervisor education. As the staff supervisor, | use other methods of
monitoring work plans, deliverables, etc. Given the major reduction in staffing and the
increase in responsibilities during this time on each staff member, it has been
challenging to maintain appropriate workloads and balance necessary reporting levels
with fulfillment of on the ground grant deliverables, as | have reported during prior board
meetings in 2018.

| propose that TCD transition back to a monthly reporting tool that is aligned with our
annual and strategic plan goals that serves a dual purpose, provided to the Board of
Supervisors at each monthly meeting. This will allow TCD to maximize efficiency by
directing that the time staff spends on reporting is fulfiling multiple needs: board
education, monitoring of grant deliverables and annual plan implementation.

Thank you for your consideration.




Tab 5



"(786'T£9%-089'9793)+(£85'S0E$-8880TES) §1 24ndY panoLisay aYL *(LT6'8LTS-vrL TSTS) + (TEQTHTS - 0§2’£ZTS) 5! 8nSiL pa1aLllsalun ay3 9583 SsIy3 Ul ‘spiom
Jay30 v snjding/ioyaq Bululewsy + snjdins/uaag (unr-uer) |en3oY SI UOIlRINJJED BY L *JeaA 3yl Jo puUa ayl 1B swodul 18U pa10adxa 530143510 243 SMCYS 3W0IU] JaN 1D3A Jfo pu3z 810 pa323/0dd YL 4«

-swnjwald aouelnsul pasealoul ayl pue (Qoo‘ses) uoaale eyl (00L'ss) Hpne ayl jo sasuadxa USasaJ0LUN 343 PN|IUI Jou op saundiy 188png |en1dY pue 18Epng S931AI3S PII0RIUCD PIIILISBIUN BYL 4«

+%3W00U| 13N 1E3A JO pul 8T0Z pardslold

016°0T8 8T9Lvy | 8Zs'8SZ'T ¥86'TE9 [85'S0E | TLS'LE6 9Z6°8LT TE0'ZYT | £S6°02€ sasuadxj |e30)]
0 0££'S9 TEL'E TOT'68 0 EEL'ST £52°7 986'LT 0 LEQ'BE 8LY'T STT'TP 13430
0 L' 0 L' 3.1BUS 1500
T 0E8'VE ¥69'SE PesTL 1 0€8'7E 769°9€ $2STL sall|in pue sanijioed
T 1556 €0L'TT STTT T 7681 6/6'0T TL8°CT 0 659°L ¥zl £8E'8 [3ne]
0 285'89 £86'7S TL5°€2T | O 995's/ SLLYT Te'06 T (826'9) 802'0F 0€T'EE 4,S3IAIBS PIJIRIIUCD
0 0TSCTL LTIT'LS 79671 |0 LT9TL 015'SS [Zr'ser |1 (sot) 809'T 00S'T 53010135 |BUOISS3104d
T SYe'vT ¥SL'ET 665'8€E 0 Otb'ST ESLL €6T'EC T (v6s) 00091 sov'stT sa||ddng
0 9/5'E9 T25'6¢ £60‘E6 0 9/5'€9 TZ5'6T L60'E6 peayiaa0
0 T9E'68Y pee'zzz | SSLTTL | O 738'78¢ vr0°2LT | 956195 | O 6.t'v0T 0ze'sy 66L6YT sijauag pue sallejes
sasuadxy

papuadxy 1°28png |leniay 198png papuadx3 1a8png [eniy 1e8png papuadxg 19dpng |en3y 198png

388png | Sulureway | Q3IA 8TAd 8102 198png | Bulwewsy | gIA 8TAd 8102 1@8png | Suluieway [ dIA 8TAd 8102
40 % 10 % J0 %

%PE 896'EES STI'8EY 980°2LZ'T |%EE 089'929 888°0TE 895°L£6 £tL'TST 0£Z'LTT 8IS'VEE awoou| [e10)
%512 veL'T PTLT 00 anuanay "IsiA
%88 LEEY LBEY 000's 8unsal 10§
%ES SE8'T SE8'T 09Y'E [e3uay Juswdinby
%L 0 208'8T 005°sZ ales ue|d
%It £50'ES 6YT'LE 20z'06 uorie3usz|dW| JISM
%TE T99'6L S66'EE 959'60T pesyiang el
££0'ST €L0'ST 5U01303||0D) JUBISSISSY
%T 0 677 000°00T JUBWSS3ssY /10T Sululeway
Iwoau|

pazieay |swodu| 8T0Z| [EMAY 198png pazijeay |swodu| 8TOZ| [endY 192png pazijeay awoou| |eniy 123png

198png | [euolMppY | QIASTA4 810¢ 198png | [euolippy | QA 8TAd 8102 198png 3102 a3A 8TAd 8102
0% paladx3 0% paedxg 0% |euonIppy
padadxa
spun4 [e30L sk SPUNS pajoLisay spung paluisaiun

g1L0z aunp - aenuep
Aewwing - [en}oy "sA }26png sso7 g Jjoid
J913SIQg UOIBAI3SUO] Uolsiny |



0 to0g’s  |lg) 4 £16T |0 0 [} 0 0 (g08't) (1) 0 8697 |0 0 vs'e |(z) 0 (zso'e) |o 3nuaAsy I8N
0 LBS'SOE | TLS'LE86 | 0 8vL'ST | LE6THI | O 0 6T59VT | T 20’64 | 90SLST| T 65L°05 | 0EV'E6 | 0 ove'hL | LLv'ive| o L18'TL | Z0L'0ST sasuadxy e3o)
0 ESTT | 98674z |0 8EI 80L 0 008 6SE9 0 L8 616's |0 9z 000'sT 119 0 2410
zzL’t | o L |0 a4eys 1503
3N PUe salyljioed
T 6L6°0T | T48°21 | € 9z0'T | #9€ 0 056 T 29tz |ovz'z |o 866'T | 000'% [T £96 98T |1 9z'y | 18’ [anes
0 SLLPT | TYE06 0 506°0S $ 98V | t¥6'CT | 0 0 26672 |0 682 00S'T $3JIAIBS pajdelIuc)
0 015°sS | £Z18TT 1997 |0 SEE's |0 0 0 00€ 0 €8L°0E | 06£98 |0 TEL'ST | LEV'TR S3J|AIBS [BUCISSE0.d
0 £SLYL £6T'ET SZT 0 0 000 |Q SLT FTEY | T £88'E | 0ET’s |0 068'T | TvEor |€ LL8'T | 86F saljddng
0 12562 | L6066 |0 L6 | ESS'BT 0 EEE'BT | O TOEZT | 41682 | T £08's | 06t's |0 91’8 | $08°1Z peaytang
0 L0241 | 956°T95 | 0 20581 | 2TETTT ] TEE'EL | O €266 | 999'sTT| 0 v06°2% | L9765 | 0 9v'ZE | vTTLs |0 782°8F | 98L°E0T s}jauag pue salle|es
sasuadxy
YEE 888'0TE |89S°LE6 [%6T T99°4T |LE6°TPT |0 0 615'IPT |%60 8TZ'LL  |SOS'ZST |%b9 L51'65 |0Ev's6 |%1E L8L'LL |SLY'IvT |%9P 59489 |zoL'osT awoau] [e30]
pazijeay | |endy | 328png | pazieay | |enjy 193png | pazijesy | jenyoy | 393png | pazijeay |enyoy | 1e8png | pezijeay | |enwy | 1a8png pezieay | |emdy | 1@8png | pazijesy | [emay | 3a8png
% 8TAd 810Z % 8TAd 8102 % 8TAd 8102 % STAd 8102 % 8TAd | 8102 % 8TAd 8T0Z % 8TAd 8102
[E301 papdLysay ISIA Hoa 205M 95§ ysyl[dys [e=1]

810z aunp - Asenuep

['e}aQg spung pajoLsay - [enjay "sA jJabpng sso7 g jjoid
191351 UCHBAIaSUOS UojSINy |




)\

AUDITOR

THURSTON COUNTY

Mary Hall
AUDITOR

June 21, 2018

Dear Jurisdiction,

Attached you will find your invoice, costs breakdown sheet, and allocation factor spreadsheet for the
March 3, 2018 Conservation District Election.

Your invoice contains two separate lines with charges. These lines are used for internal accounting

purposes.

Please send one check for the amount on the total line. Payment needs to be in our office by

July 31, 2018.

If you have any questions regarding this invoice, please call me at 360.786.5408.

Sincerely,

Coha £ (efoefs—

Tillie Naputi-Pullar

Elections Manager

Thurston County Auditor's Office
naputit@co.thurston.wa.us

Elections Ballot Processing Center Financial Services

2000 Lakeridge Dr SW, Bldg 1 Rm 118 2905 29t Avenue SW, Ste E& F 929 Lakeridge Dr SW, Rm 226
Olympia, WA 98502 Tumwater, WA 98512 Olympia, WA 98502

Phone: 360.786.5408 Phone: 360.786.5408 Phone: 360.786.5402

Fax: 360.786.5223 Fax: 360.705.3518 Fax: 360.357.2481

Deaf & Hard of Hearing: 711 Washington Relay

Licensing and Recording

2000 Lakeridge Dr SW, Bldg 1 Rm 106
Olympia, WA 98502

Licensing Phone: 360.786.5406
Recording Phone: 360.786.5405

Fax: 360.786.5223



THURSTON COUNTY
BT RO

SINCE 102

Thurston County Auditor

Elections Division

Tillie Naputi-Pullar, Elections Manager

2000 Lakeridge Drive SW, Olympia, WA 98502
Phone 360.786.5408 Fax 360.786.5223
naputit@co.thurston.wa.us

TO Thurston Conservation District
Sarah Moorehead
2918 Ferguson St SW Ste A
Tumwater, WA 98512

INVOICE

INVOICE # 9551-9552
DATE: JUNE 21, 2018

Please send payments to:
Thurston County Auditor
2000 Lakeridge Drive SW
Olympia, WA 98502

CUSTOMER NUMBER JoB

PAYMENT TERMS DUE DATE

2018 Conservation District

Within 30 days

Please submit payment or financial form within 30 days. If you have questions, please call Tillie Naputi-Pullar at (360) 786-5408.

Election
QTyY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL
Election Services - Conservation District Election
1090A231 341450 02017 3,251.76 $3,251.76
TOTAL $24,930.18

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!




ey AR

rRiLie

e e

50008
Zr'819'1Z

gZ'v6e
0084

81'860°C

§1'69

jA

L9°E8
1670481
0y Ovs'L
028801
602822
000
18'8zLTL

el

sjgjo |

_ paieaojly ag 0} S}S0J uoijaa|g _m._m:mom

| |

|
W 00e$ @ suonolpsunl | =s994 WNWIUIN 8597
g)son uonoe(a [BaRUSD) BI0L| i

_ (%G1 X SISOD) PESYIBAD PPV
S50 UoHIB|3 [RIeUBD)| |

361504 SUOHEIIUNUILIOT m_mmoommm e
UOHEOIUNLILLIOD 000ZYS N
_ sablel) p Se0IARS JAYIO

}o0)s Jojieg bue Japio adoj@aue) seijddng A 000LES

Awqgesig uue | Buol 000425
uonesuadwo uswiodwsaun 000sSes
uofesuadwog sIS3IOM 000FES
ayr/[BuaQ/[2oIpeIN 000EZS
uswainey 000<2s
Aunogeg [B100S 0001LZS
djey Aesodiue) Jo BIIX3 000915
swiuaad 000G1S
selees 0000LS

seobeje)) Ul swey|

sabepn g mm_.mm_mww

$1500 9/qEMOjY|

Paysyiop Bulig

. gl-leN-€

UoR9a|g 10LISI LORBAISSUOD)
sU0NosIg AJUnoD UoISINY




| abed

s1v.ioL|

uocneAsasue) o1

0601 pund 1 . . ; 61 B uonolpsunp

Zl . ‘ L
R P e _ g VOOV | 2102 ‘¢ Yo4ely Jou)siq uoyesianuog|

Aunog uojsinyy |
Z' sn|d | jo Jojoe4 uone20||y




Tab 6



Date Check# through Check# Totaling Voided Check #'s

712002018 10642 19666 57,267.21
The following checks were written on Timbertand Bank:
6/4/2018 EFT EFT 3,005 32 [IRS Payroll Tax
6/6/2018 EFT EFT 2,523,566 |Insurance Premium
6/7/2018 ddo4251824 dd04251831 9,973.26 |Payroll
6/13/2018 EFT EFT 2,782.02 |IRS Payroli Tax
6/13/2018 EFT EFT 2,963.88 [IRS Payroll Tax
6/14/2018 19643 18655 5,417.71 |Accounts payable
6/14/2018 EFT EFT 5,412.52 |DRS - PERS
6/21/2018 19656 19667 14,304,89 |Accounts payable
6/22/2018 dd04251832 dd04251838 9,865.97 |Payroll
B/27/2018 EFT EFT 22.08 |DRS - PERS

Total 57,267.21

Richard Mankamyer, Board Audltor Date



2:53 PM Thurston Conservation District
08/01118 Payroll Transactions by Payee
June 2018
Date Name Nitn Type Memo Account Amount
Colonlal Supplemental insurance

G8/14/2018 Colonlal Supplement... 19655 Liability Check 3081001 - 308.10.01... -26.20

0672772018 Golonial Supplement... 19667 Liability Check 3081001 - 308,10.0H... -26.20
Total Cotonial Supplemental insurance -52.40
Dept of Retirement Systems :

06/12/2018 Dept of Retirement ... EFT Liabflity Check 2358 3081001 - 308.70.01... -5,412.62
Total Dept of Retirement Systems -5,412 62
EFT Payment

06/01/2018 EFT Payment EFT Liability Check May 1 -May 18 2081001 - 308.10.01... -3,995.32

0611212018 EFT Payment EFT Liability Check May 16 - May ... 3081001 + 308.10.01... -2,782.02

06/12/2018 EFT Payment EFT Liability Check Jun 1-Junis 3061001 - 308,10.01... -2,969.88
Total EFT Paymaent -9,747.22
QuickBooks Payroli Service

080712018 QuickBooks Payroli ... Llabliity Check Adjusted forv.., 3081601 - 308.10.01... -8,945.18

G8/07/2018 QuickBooks Payrolt ... Liahility Chack Created by P... 3081001 - 308.10.01.., -1,028.08

06722/2018 QuickBooks Payroll ... {iability Check Created by P... 3081001 - 308.10.01... -9,865.97
Total QuickBooks Payroll Service -19,839.23
Berger, Kathleen T

08/08/2018 Berger, Kathleen T dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

06/25/2018 Berger, Kathleen T dd042...  Paycheck Birect Deposit 3081001 - 308.10,04... 0.00
Total Berger, Kathleen T 0.00
Bishop, Stephanie E

06/08/2018 Bishop, Stephanic E dd042...  Paycheck Diract Daposit 3081001 - 308,10.01... a.00

0612512018 Bishop, Stephanie E dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308,10.01... 0.00
Total Bishop, Stephania E 0.60
Hatch-Winecka, Amy B

0610812018 Hatch-Winecka, Am...  dd042..  Paycheck Direct Daposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

061252018 Halch-Winecka, Am...  dd042.. Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... _ .00
Total Hatch-Winecka, Amy B 0.00
Healy, Mara E

06/08/2018 Healy, Mara E dd042...  Paycheck VOID: Direct ... 3081001 - 305.10.0%.., 0.00

061082018 Healy, Mara E ddg42..  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

0B25/2018 Healy, Mara E dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 « 308.10.01... 0.00
Total Haaly, Mara E 0.00
Moorehead, Sarah

06/08/2018 Moorehead, Sarah dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

06/25/2018 Moorehead, Sarah ddC42...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00
Total Moorehead, Sarah 0.00
Watren, Nicole A

06/08/2018 Warren, Nicole A dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

06/25/2018 Warren, Nicole A dd042...  Paycheck Diract Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00
Total Warren, Nicole A 0.00
White, Nora E

06/08/2018 White, Nora E ddo42..,  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00

06/25/2018 White, Nora E dd042...  Paycheck Direct Deposit 3081001 - 308.10.01... 0.00
Total White, Nora E - 0.00

TOTAL -35,051.37

Page 1




TAXPAYER HAME; THURSTOM CONSERVATION DISTRICY

Deposit Gonfirmation

Your payment ks been accopted,

payment Sncoessiul

An EFT Agknoviedgament Nusrber has been provided {or his paynient, Please kepp lis ninber for your records,

i Any amounts representad & ihe subcalegodes of Sacly

i

Payrent Information

Taxpayer EIN

i Tax Form
Tax Type
Tax Perlod

Payment Amount

Settlament Rate

Subcategories:

1 Social Security

2 Medicara

3 Tax Withholding

Account Rumber

i Account Type

Routing Number

Bank Nama

EFT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT NUMBER:

REMINDER: REMENBER TO FILE ALL RETURNS WHEN DUEL

PLEASE NOTE

Enterad Dats

xaaxa 1612

941 Employors Fedewal Fax
Feoderat Tax Baposit
Q2018

$3,986.32

OG/O4rX018

32,139.04
3500,24
31,366.00
aouxB 354
CHEGKING
325170764

TEMBERLAND ANK

270855553913365

TIM: xxxux1632

1 Securlty, Madicare, and Income Yax withholding are for ifermational |
purposos only, i

{

¥
i
1
i

Enrollment

My Profila

Payments

iHoine
UsA.gov  IRS.gov

Elegtronic Fuderat Tax Payment Syslord® and EFTPS® ara re

Heln & Informiation

Treasury.goy.

Contart Us

Logaut

istered servicemarks of thie LS. Depariment of the Treasury's Pureau of ihe Fiscal Sewvice.




TAXPAYER NARE: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT

Deposit Conflrmation
Yair ayimant fias reen accepled,

Payment Successful

T xxnxx 1892

An EFT Acknowlzdgoment Number has been providad for Riis payment, Pleast keep (s number lor your sgcords,

REMINDER: REMEMEER TO FILE ALL RETURNS WHEN DUE!

EFT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT NUMBER:

2704554542810 —I

PLEASE NOTE

Any sraounts reprosonled In e subcategotias of Sucial Soourily, Medicars, sid lncuma Tax Wilkholding are for lsfarmationa)

purposes anly.

Baymant Information Entaered Data
Taxpayer EIN XHARKIG1Z
Tax Form 941 Employers Federal Tax
Tax Type Fadarat Tax Deposi
Tax Period QHz018
Payment Amount $2,752.02
Sattlement Date UB13/2018
Subcategoties)
1 Social Security $1,558.34
2 Medicarae $364,68
3 Tax Withholding 858,00
Account Number *xaxnf654
Account Type CHECKING
Routing Number 325170754
Bank Name TIMBERLAND BANK




TAXPAYER NAME: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT THN: oo 1612

Beposit Confirmation

Your payment bias loen acoepsed,

Payment Successul

An EEF Acknowiedgement Number has been provited for Bils gayment. Please keop Ibis number for your rcords.

REMINDER: REMEMBER TO FILE ALL RETURNS WHEN DUzl
I_EFT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT NUMBER: 2TOBEOAA2676 10

PLEAGH HOTE

Any amous repregontad In the subcatagories of Saclal Sscurily, Medicare, and Incoine Tax Withlojdieg are for informational
prrposas anly,

Payment Infermation

Entered Data

Taxpayir EIN

xxAxx 1612

Tax Form a41 Employers Fedural Tax
Tax Type f*ageral Tax Deposit
Tax Period Q18
Payment Amolunt %2,065.88
Sattlement Date /132058
Subcategories:

1 Social Securlty $1.65244

2 Medicare %386.44

3 Tax Withholding $831.00
Account Number KxxarB554
Account Type CHECKING
Routing Numbar 325170754
Bank Name TIMBERLANE BANIC




¥

Thurston Conservation District 11:26 AM
Check Detail 061412018
June 14, 2018
Num Date Name Account Paid Amount
3081091 - 308.,10.01 Cash TimberLand Banl
19643 06/14/2018 A & L Western Agricultural Laboratories
209589 05/21/2018 ASMNT:AD98- Soil Tests 5314117 - Soit Teéting -263.20
«263.20
19644 06/14/2018 Bishop, Stephanie
PO 8249 05/24/2018 GREEN:G019,28 Dawkins 5313103 - Project Supplies -13.47
GREEN:G019.28 Dawkins 5313103 - Project Supplies -53.40
-66.57 /
19645 06/14/2018 Brian Thompson oy Fet
8222 06/05/2018 MISC:MO65 - Soil Health 6314100 - Professional Servicas -100.00
~100.00
19646 06M4/2018 Gerry Allard
8250 06/04/2018 GREEN:G(19-S8 GREEN({General) 5313103 « Project Supplies -67.92
-67.92 “/
19647 0614/2018 Half Moon Sanitatlon
349519 06/20/2018 MISCM0120 - Pacific Mouritain 5313103 - Project Supplies -125.00 ’
~125.00 /
19648 06/14/2016 Hatch-Winecka, Amy B {employes)
05/31/2018 RCO:R011.2 - Laad Enlity 11-1483P 53143085 - Maals f Per Dlems -48.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entily 11-1483F 5314305 - Meals / Per Diems -64.00
RCO:R{11.2 - Lead Enfity 11-1483P 5314305 - Meals / Per Diems -64.00
RCGO:R011.2 - Lead Entily 11-1483FP 531430% - Meals { Per Dlems -64,00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Enlity 11-1483P 5314305 » Meals / Per l"Jiems -64.00
RCO:RO11.2 - Lead Enflly 11-1483P 5314307 - Parking fees -55.20
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entlly 11-1483P 5314306 - Alrfare ~734.01
RCO:RG11.2 - Lead Enfity 11-1483P 5314305 - Meals / Per Diems -25.00
RCGO:R011.2 - Lead Enilty 11-1483p 5314303 - Lodging ~1,200.09
-4,323.30
19648 - 06/1412018 North Thurston Public Schools
1718000327  04/12/2018 GREEN:G019.27 Pralrfes and Pollinators G 5314144 - Subsitute Teachers -82.01
1718000408  05/23/2018 GREEN:G019.105 NOAA Grant 5314114 + Subsitute Teachsrs -B2.01
: GREEN:G019.105 NOAA Grant 5314112 - Bus Trenspariation ~175.26
‘ -339.28

Pagetof 2




il

Thurston Conservation District 14:26 AM

Check Detail 06/14/2018
June 14, 2018
Num Date Naine Account Paid Amount

3081001 - 308.16.01 Cash TimberLand Bank

19643 06/M14f2018 A & L. Western Agricultural Laboratories

209589 05/21/2018 ASMNT:A098- Soil Tests 5314117 - Sofl Testing -2563.20
-263.20

19644 66/14/2018 Blshop, Stephanie

PO 8249 05/24/2018 GREEN:G019.28 Dawkins 6313103 - Project Supplles -13.17

GREEN:G019.28 Dawkins 5313103 - ProJect Supplies -53.40
86.57 ./

19645 06142018 Btlan Thompson < fee

8222 06/05/2018 MISC:MOBS - Soil Health 5314100 - Professional Senlces -100,00
-100,00

19646 06/14/2018 Gerry Allard

8250 06/04/2018 GREEN:G019-88 GREEN{Genaral) 5313103 - Project Supplies -67.02

-67.92 ‘*/

19647 06f1412018 Half Maon Sanitation
39518 06/20/2018 MISC:MO120 - Pacific Mountaln 5313103 - Project Supplies ~125.00 '
~{25.00
19648 06/14/2018 Hatch-Winecka, Amy B {employee)
05/31/2018 RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entity 11-1483F 6314306 - Meafs / Por Diems -48.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entlty 11-1483P 5314308 - Meals [ Per Diems -64.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entity 11-1483P 5314305 - Meals / Per Diems -64.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entity 11-1483P 5314306 - Meals / Per Diems -—64.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entity 11-1483P 5314305 - Meals / Per Diems -64.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entlty 11-1483P 5314307 - Parking fees -55,20
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entily 11-1483F 5314306 - Aifare -739.01
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Entliy 11-1483P 5314305 - Meals / Per Diems -25.00
RCO:R011.2 - Lead Enfity 11-1483P . 5314303 - Lodging -1,200.09
2,323.30 i/
19649 - 061412018 North Thursten Public Schools
1718000327  D4/12/2018 GREEN:G019.27 Pralrdes and Pollinators G 5314114 + Subsitute Teachers -82.0%
47168000408  05/23/2018 GREEN:G019.105 NOAA Grant 5314114 - Subsitute Teachers -B2.01
) GREEN:G019,105 NOAA Grant 5314112 - Bus Transporiation -175.26

~339.28

Page 1 of 2



Washington State Department of Retirement Systems

Electronic Payments

Completed Payment Advice

Employer:

Report Perlod:
Retirement Due Date:
Payment Status:

THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
05/2018

06/15/2018

Submitted ( 06-12-18 3:20:33 PM by S. Shelton )

System

Deferred
Compensation
Program Payment

DCpP

Plan 1 Payments
PERS

Plan 2 Payments
PERS

Plan 3 Payments

FERS

Report Groupfinvoice # Amount

919 16.00
Totfal Amount for DCP;

2358 0.00

Total Amount for Plan 1:

2358 2894.95

Total Amount for Plan 2:

DB Employar bC WsIB
2358 1687.10 137.05
0.00 0.00

Total Amount for Plan 3:

Total Payment Amount:
Scheduled Date of Payment:

DG Self
678.42

0.00

15.00

0.00

289496

2502,57

2502.57

5412.52
6/14/2018

Page 1 of 1




Zjo | afed

\ Z8°266-

SOOIAIBG [BUCISSSIONd - O0LYLES

UEILNOW 2Ulaed - 0ZLCWOSIN 8102/70/S0

3

19UISIg UCHEARSUOD 0GB SARID 8L0Z/1Z/90 9961  %O9UD
1201~
\ 00'gL- swei(] Jed / SIEe - SOEFLES Jesyi-L1 Alug pesT - 2L LOYI00
vl 28" abesN - FOEYLES de8bl~11 ABUS peeT - Z'LL0H:Q0Y 8102/ L/90
(eeAo|dws) g AWy "BYOSULM-YOIEH 8102/LE/3D £9961  98YD
5 52°95- S80IAIOG [RUCHUBT - FOLFLES pEBUIen-G L0V LNNSY 8102/SZ/E0
\ swieyshg Buiues() odd-uep 2102/12/80 Z996l  osUD
76802 seoinieg Bululid pue AdoD - 20Ty LES PERUSAC-0LOV:LNINSY 8L0Z/E1/30
\ s80ld Uetianuin 8L0Z/1Z/90 19961  >osuD
007058 $90IABS [BUCISSSI0Nd - 0C}FLES -pRaUIRAO-0 L0V LNINSY 8L0Z/08/50
x wea ] 9010 81.02/12/90 09961  o8YD
\ 915
0TS soeg abeqieD - Z0LVLES peaIRAQ-0LOY: LNNSY 810Z/10/80
762 soeg SBRQIED - Z0LYLES pReYIeAD-0L OV LNINSY 8102/10/90
jesodsi( S40Bd 8102/12/90 65961  oayD
z1 56 fend oRIUeA - LOZELES PESYISAC-D L0V LNWSY 810Z/1E/50
‘ \ [an3 Jeauold 8102/12/90 85961  9P8UD
L iyer
9T L8 ses - AIBN - S0LFLES PESUIBAO-0LOV: INNSY
LE'8GL- fomoes - LOLYLES PERUBAD-0LOVILNINSY 8}102/61/90
ABiauz punog 198nd 2102/12/30 /5061 93UD
00°SP6°6 $BOIMBS |BUCISSSY0Lg - QO LYLES SJOUIO O} SWRID ~I81%82-ISPUN Usweus g102/1e/S0
\A pun4 Uojelo}say punog jebnd 8102/18/90 9886}  Mosyd
unoury pied 1UNoooY aweN azeq NN edAL
810z ‘g aunp
81L0T/12/90 [felaqg 3jo9uo
d g2t 10LSiQ UCHRAISSUOD Uo)sInyl

™ u



z40 } abeyg

\ 28266~
\ v)'Z0L
005~

L8

\ G795

SSVINEG [BUCISSRI0NS - Q0L FLES

Sl 13d [ SiBS - GOEFLES
afesi - y0ErLEG

sedlaleg [BHCHUE! - $CLYLES

%
P
4

. HEJUNoW JH0Rd - 0ZL0WFOSIN 8L0Z/F0/SC
WS UoneAIasUO) Joqiel sARLD 810Z/1Z/90 ¥8861 ¥os4D

dE8YL-L L Agug pee] - Z L1000
JEBFL-LI AQUR peeT - Z'L10W:00Y 810Z/L1/S0
(eafojdus) g Ay “exoauiam-UsIeH 210Z/12/90 £0051  MoBun

PEIUSAQ-OLOY- ININSY 8102/92/50
stelsAg Bujuesi) otd-uepr gLoz/LZ/90 2986}  Meyd

e e0e- seolBg Buguud pue AdoD - g0ZY1ES pPeESUBAO-OLOVIINNSY 8L08/2L/80
\ Ssald uBwsinuiy glL0z/Le/a0 19981 A28y
00'0gg- S8OAJSE [2UOISSBI0LS - OOLPLES ~PESUBAC-DI0V- L NISY §10Z/08/50
\ wes ) asiyO 8LOT/L2/90 09961 Azeyso
\ P9 LE-
gege- aoinleg obeques - Z0LVIES PEEUISAQ-0LOVI LNIWSY 8102/10/90
Prec- soineg ebeqieo - Z0/7LES PERSAQ-0L OV INWSY 8102/L0/80
[esods]q oyioed 8102/42/90 65961 A38UD
4 eL G end sPnleA - LOZELES PEIUIBAO-CL OV ININEY B10Z/LE/S0
\\ [end Jesuold 210z/1Z/90 85961  MoBYD
Ly Lye-
S TAAS Y seD - QN - S0LFLES PRSISAD-CLOV: ININSY
L& 851~ ABoIRoRIT - LOLYLES PESUIRAC-0L OV LNINSY 210E/51/90
ABisuz punog 186nd 210Z/12/90 18361  oeYyn
7 00'E¥6'5 S20IISS 1BUOISSRI0Ad - QOLYLES SBUI0 O] StUBIg) -394 PuUnd USY|RUS §LOZ/LE/S0
\ punj ucnieiolsay punosg 1sBnd 810%/1.2/90 963961 A984D
unowy pled Jnosvy e are wnN adA)
gLog ‘Lz sunp
8502/12/90 Hey=sq ¥o9yp
Nd g2l

JOLI3SIQ UOlJBAISSUOD UDISINY]

]
5



Washington State Department of Retirement Systems
Electronic Payments

Completed Payment Advice

Employer: THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
Reporl Peried: 03/2018
Retirement Due Date: 04/15/2018
Payment Status: Submitted { 068-25-18 1:42:14 PM by S. Shelton )
System Report Group/lnvoice # Amount
Deferred

Compensation
Program Payment

DCGP 918 0.00
Total Amount for DCP: 0.00
Plan 1 Payments
PERS 2358 0.00
Total Amount for Plan 1: 0.00
Plan 2 Paymenis
PERS 2358 15.92
Total Amount for Plan 2: 15.92
Plan 3 Payments
DB Employer DC WSIB DG Self
PERS 2358 6.16 0.00 0,00 8.16
0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Amount for Plan 3: 6.16
Total Payment Amount: 22,08
Scheduled Date of Payment: 62712018

Page 1 of 1



%Iy ee %ES LY (2974016 000 8E'6IZLT |00 /TE9T 6T-UNf-0€ [ LI-INM-T | L71-€T-8T STOM ¥o01sAIT W
S
%ET'8L  |%ES LV |OV069'E 000 QOPITET |0V PS6°9T 5T-unr-gg | LT-Inf-T | ID-£T-8T 0L0M 3Jeys IS0 d3WD| &
2
%20'ZT %eR Ly [9TLITES |0DC v8°6TC'ST |00°L¥Z'89 6T-UNM-QE | LI-I0-T | F0-€1-8T 0L0M Y1 434D w.
o
. L i o § yoeanngl o
%LE°ST %00°0Z Ba°LFPOCTT (0070 TP'Cee’0C |00°00FV'ZET | 6T-UN-0E | RT-JBN-T | 14-€T-8T 050M ureld poold Sieyayy w
=
%0C'00T (%00°00T {000 000 00'SZ9'6L |C0'ST96L gT-unr-0g | LI-IN-T | NI-ET-8T 980M uojeluawaldu] m.
: ¢ P . 1o9foad
%6181 %ELEE SEVSS8TIT |L0°L0Z°2T S9°SEv LT JOD'000'0ET | 0Z-9°Q-T€ | LT-4BIN-T | 90FT-9T 0E0d SUBTI 3104 1583
-~
0
TTTOH c
%01°56  [%00'00T |000 ETTOV'ZE O£ IOV'3YT |00°0ZE'S67 | T-UNF-0E | ST-INM-T TIPE-9T 5 TTTOY Hvsd pue Ainug pest
1@3png |sunljo 9| adueleg siauonop | STOZ RUNf | junonny poiad Juels A9quunp | Jsguinp W :
0% Jumieway | Suipueising nayy ueio |2lo) eln | unoIdy |
| |
810z =2unp

ydey seauejeq jueio

1213SI(] UOREAIBSUOD UOISINY]




%I EE %B9°LS 95'9€0°0Z  |00°0 PP E96°6 00°0000¢ 6T-ARIN-TE | LT~IBIN-ZT £2°610D| s103euljjod pUE salilekd v
5
%LEEL %SY'Syr  vETIZC 00’0 S0°0ET'6 OO EFETT FT-98(-T€ | 81-UE{-T SOT'610D YYON| w
%6ELL VN 8T'09%LE (007D $6°€18S £TPLTPy  [ueds|aun| 8T-UBl-T 2oL 2oL W
3
%89°8S %y oy 00 £LE°0T {0070 00'€Z78'82 |0000Z6Y BT-08Q-1& | BT-UE[-T SS5-6109 essusn| =
‘JeSpng {swiil jo9s| @dueeRg sIByanoA | BTOZ sunf | unowy pOLIa4 JUBID JBquinN | Jegquiny
0% Fuuenay | Sulpueising Nyl el [ejol Jueln | UNOIY
e o o . wsarr loygor N . ; sapuasy
%8y LS &00°0¥F £E I8P 0¢ (000 £9°999°/,Z 00'8V1 8% BT-08(0-1t | 8L-G&8d-T %8T-45 1820 O3 SIUEID - GdS
%180 %00°0% LLBETST  [0C0 ETLVT 00'987°8T 8T-92Q-TE€ | 81-4=4-1 CLIVOIN V1 aulpioys
%SL'9% %000y |08 YEEY 0070 0T'5L9°S 00°000°0T 81-02(-1¢ | B8TU=4-T OT'TYOW| sisumopuet Suldesus 4]
]
=
%00°C %00 0% 0D 000°'0T 00D 00'C 00°000°0T 8T-22Q-1¢ | 81-G=4-1 T TFON UBYS IS0 =
g
%91 8T %00°0¥ T79Ts'Es (000 YT'T6TTT |SS /T84 8I1-030-T€ | BT-G84-T L TN PIURISISSY |ESlUPIR]| o
%FE1T %00 0F IVELQEE  [O0C 8T'T/68 0SvH0 LY 8T-99Q-TE¢ | 8T-04=4-T ETFOW| s9210Y] Jel)) YsHiaUs
%8E°0€ %007 0% 57'65£'08 (00D TO'0ZV'ET [0EBLTYY g81-980-1¢c | 81-933-1 TTVoN FPRUSINEM
¢ ? 01 SUGI}OBUUD)
198png |awil jo 9| ddueeg SIBYINOA 2T0Z 2Unr | iunowy poLisg JUEID) JROUINN | JaguInn _
JO % Suluewsy | SupuRISING niyi weds pog WelD | UnNoNsy
810z ounr
Jdey seouejeg juels
J0LSI(] UOlEAlasUOD UoisSINY L




%yT'88 {%000F |SOEBS 56907 000 00°000°S §T-09G-TE | ST-U24-T 0ZTOW WEIUNOA} 21108
i . R . ) - e UOIsUaIxXg
é i ¢ é ¢ 8T-090-T& | 8T-UBl-T 0oL AMSIBAIN 53235 VAL
%0 L UIVF'67 |ET'6/9TL |L808L'S 00°0 0009Y 4L | BT-UN-0E | §T-uel-T 0oFIN dsh| =
=
- (]
é 131181 vopeasasuody| o
; i ; i -3ny- -uep 5
é é i é 0Z-8ny-GT | QT-UBM-T Z0ZIN Joa1D 183504 m
o
%BOPT  |%IGBT  [67°S94°ST |68 LTET 96°Z08T  |PE986'67 | 0TI9Q-TE | LT-UNf-TT | SL-67-9T SSOIN UL YIeay 10§ 7
. . . . , 1QIALL s8Inyasad
d é é i é g1-28Q-T¢ | gT-uel-1 SE0N / A1 uorsany
. . . ) . . eln |[@ssny
é é é é é wedsipun| |T-IN-T SEOW / snaned punog ya5ng
jeZpng |swi} jo % | odue[eg SIBYINOA {TOZ unr unowy poliad Jueln ABQRUUIRN | JaguInp 7 i
30 % Sueway | Burpueising nyr JuEID |ejoL Juels | unody m 7
| _
gL0z sunp
m 1iday ssouejeqg JueID
P 39LOSI] UonEBAIeSUOD uolsinyl




(286 T£9%-080'979L+(/85'S0ES-288 0T ES) 51 24nBY pa3oLasey oYL (2Z6'8L TSP TETS) + (TE0"ZYTS - 0ET'LETS) S1 34n3Y pajoiisaiun aus Bse si3 ul ‘spiom
18530 U] snjddng/aoieq BululeweY + snidins/aoieq {unf-uer) [EN3oY S| UORENG(ED UL “123A 3U3 0 PUS 3U1 12 SWI00U| 12U Pajoadxa 5101810 U SMOUS SW0IU] 33N JNa/4 S0 puT 8T0Z Pa323{0ld UL s

'swniwus.d 2URINSY) PaSERIILI 3L pUB (000'5ZS) Uonda|e aul (o0L'ss) Hpne syl 4o sasuadxa Uaasaoyun aL3 apnjaU] 30U op saindy 15Epng [emoy bue 18Epng 523iA185 PRISRIIUOD PAIIMISBILN BUL 4

{o86"Tr) : {£) {g26"TY) #4SWDAU] 13N JBRA J0 pLT BTOT pRRS[oad
0 016078 819" Lk 8T588¢’T {0 ¥86'TED 185°s08 | TL5'L66 0 9e6'8LT TED'ZHT L56°02€ sasuadyg jerol
0 0LE'SY TELE 10169 0 EEL'ST | 52T 98612 0 ££9'6E 87T STT'TY Py0
0 ezi'L c (4444 3:BLS 1503
i T 0EB'YE y69°9€ | ¥25'TL T CE8TE ¥69'5€E YESEL SN puE saPed
T 1856 E0LTT $ST'TE T 7687 | sL6'0T TLETT D £S58°2 YZL £8E'8 [aAed L]
0 28589 £86'FS TLSEET J0 595'GL SLL'YT TYE'S T {826} 807’07 DET'EE LSBIIAISS pERLI0T
o CIS'TL L1145 L7967 |G L19TL 01555 rer’eer |1 (20T) 2037 005’7 SE31Al8g [BUGISSAL0IZ
1 SYRYPT PSLET 665’8 [ Torpr'st - |gsLt . | EBT'EL T {#65) 000°9T AL senddng
0 SLE'ED TZ5'6E LB0E6 0 9L5'e0 TZS'BE LB0EG pealiaan
0 TIE'68Y PEETEL 1 55.TIL O T88'¥RE PLOLLT 1956135 |.O BLYPOT | 0ZE'SY 56L°6YT syjauag pue sallefes)
sasuacxg

papuadig 1edpng leny 122png papusdx3 198png 1eniny 128png papuadxg 3e3png |enaoy 199png

1e89png | Swiewsy | gIA8TAd 81I0Z 1@dpng | Swuewsd | aiAgTAd 8102 3@Zpng | Bwujelual | QIA BTAL g0z
10 % .

jo.o : ] )

9TT'REy  |920°TLZT |%EE 029929 988°0IE  {B9S'[E6 DEZ'LZT  |BTSPEE 2oy (2301

99V ¥TLT ¥2.'7 Dol anuaAIY ISIN
%88 LEE'Y LBE'Y 0D0’s qusa] o
%ES GER’'T g£8’t Qasy'e 1ejusy uawdinby
%L a 8028 00852 2[E5 UB|Y
] %Y £50°ES 69T'LE Z0Z'06 uoleuas|dw D05M
%TE 199°sL SE6'EE 259'60T peEaLIaAD UED
EL0°ST EL0'ST SUDRYB|0] IUBLUSSESSY
YT ] GYEPT a00’D0T JUBLISSAsSY £ TOZ SUILIBLISY
sucIuy
pazyEdY (BWOSU] §I0Z| |BRIY 123png paziEsy |awodl] BTOZ [enjay j28png pazijeay JUI0DUE [BnaYy 123png
328png |, [2UCRIPPY | QWA BTAd 8102 1wEpng 1 [BUOHIPPY | OIA8TAd "T102 18dpng 2102 Q%A 8IM 8102
oy | papatkd 0% pajacxg 2% [BUCIIPRY
’ payaadig
spling |e30L - s SPUN pEILSEY ' spuhg peldIsaun '

10z sunp - Alenuer
ATBUILUNG - [2N30Y "SA JeBpng $507 *p Mlodg
- - J0H}S1(] UOQBAISSUCS UOISINY ]



o TOES  {(S) 0 ET&'T |0 [ o [ o {sceT} |3} [ g5e'% | a [} b’ (z) 3 12s0'e) | o anligaay N
1 £8550€ | TL5°2E6 | 0 BYLST | LES'THT| O [+ BIS9YT | T YZO'5L | 90U T 65205 | 0Er'E5] 0 opETPL | LovbE |0 LIF'TL | Zh'est FRELACXY [Eye ),
¢ ESET  198e2T o BEL 204 0 nog BSES ¢ 248 6I6'% |0 5% 0g0'51 119 0 IO
UL 10 wil |0 S BIRYS 1500
SIREN PUE SAIY|0EY
T BLE'0T | TL8Tr | € e g 088 T 847 jovez Jo §85°C |00’ |7 £96 5E8'T | 9ZTy | I8Y'E e
0 SALYT | TPEOS [} 50805 T SeY'Pl [ FPECT {0 0 ZE6E | O [TH U05'T SA3lMS5 pRIDEALO])
0 015’55 | LZ3'8TT 1982 | 0 . SEES |0 i G, joes o £8e'0e | nsgse |0 TELAT | LEVIR §30|lag |EU0NsSDI0.g
0 £5L°L | g5T'8T a3 0 [4 COCE |0 [7a3 YeEYy It 28's Joer's Jo 0587 | Tre0t le L5'T [ Rey saijddns
0 TTS'67 | LED'EE [0 L6T'E | ESS'BT 0 £ge’sl |0 TOE'ZL | 41682 |3 [08'S 106¥'5 {0 SIT'R | #08'IZ PEAISAD
[ YLO'LAT | 85655 | O ZIOSBT [ ZIELTT [ TEEEL |G ETEEY | SB8STL IO YOBLY | 2p8'B5{ 0 IOY'ZE | V&8 §0 TETBY | IBLEDT Syyeusg pue salleles
. 525UBdNT
9G5S $82°0TE |205°LE5 [36T Tan'Lr  [2E5°TYT o [ G1S00T {%EY STTZL  |SOSUST (%P9 45’65 |OEYES [%TE LBECL|SENIYE RSy 59£°83  |zos'pst QLI [BI0),
pazijesy | [empy | yedpng | pezijesy | fenpy | jedpng [peziesy | [empoy | I9png | peanesy | |enly | YEpng | pozijesy ! jemioy (322png | peresy | fenwy | 1efpng |pazyeey | Jenpy | 303png
% 8TAd gT0Z % STAL BT02 % 8Thd | BIOT % STAd 2702 % gTA [ 870T % BTA4 8T0Z % 2TAd adera
[e3el PRRMREIY ] Hog J05M a3s Usliraus [e5H]

BL6T AUNp - Aenuar

jeyer] spung PeloLSeY - 2oy "sA Jabpni ss0m ® U0l
91351 UORRAISSHOD UOJSINYL



363 PM Thurston Conservation District
08/01/18 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basls As of June 30, 2018
Jun 30, 18
ASSETS
Current Assels
Checking/Savings
3088010 Checking Accounts 49,006.42
3088020 Savings Accounts 140,411.66
3088030 Pelty Cash 800.00
Total Checking/Savings 190,218.08
Accounts Receivable 198,204,30
Qther Gurrent Assels
3090506 Prepaid Accounts 7,126.25
Total Other Current Assels 7,126.25
Total Current Assets 305,638.63
TOTAL ASSETS 395,638.63
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
current Liahilities 102,754.01
Long Term Liabitities 153,391 43
Total Liabillties 256,145.44
Equity 139,493.19
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 395,638.63

Page 1



3:45 PM Thurston Conservation District

08/01/18 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

Accrual Basis

ASSETS
Gurrent Assets
Checking/Savings

3088010 Checking Accounts
3088020 Savings Accounts

3088030 Petty Cash
Total Checking/Savings
Accounts Receivahle
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilitios
Tofal Liabilities
Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

As of June 30, 2018

Jun 30, 18 Jun 30,17 $ Change % Change
49,006.42 110,407.86 -61,401.44 -55.6%
140,411.66 2B83,279.57  -142,867.91 -50.4%
800.00 285,30 514.70 180.4%
190,218.08 393,972.73 -203\.754.65 51.7%
198,294.30 231,642.07 -33,347.77 -14.4%
7,126.25 3$,260.50 3,865.75 118.6%
395,638.63 628,875.3(_) . "233,238.67 -37.1%
395,638.63 §28,875,30  -233,236.67 ~371%
102,754.01 55,660.36 47,103.65 84.6%
163,301.43 189,946,592 -36,565.44 ~19.3%
266,145,449 245,597.28 10,548.16 4.3%
139,493.19 383,278.02 -243,784.83 -63.6%
395,638.63 628,875.30  -233,236.67 -37.1%

Page 1




10:57 AM Thurston Conservation District
0BI07118 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis ' January through June 2018
Jan « Jun 418
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
3300000 - Intergovermental Rev .
3340000 - State Grants 181,270.83
3370000 - Local Revenue 119,324.22
Total 3300000 - Intergovermental Rev ’ 300,595.05
3400000 * Charges Goods&Sves 25,139.95
3600000 - Miscellaneous Revenue
3811160 - Interest & Other 116.38
3670000 - Contributions Private 100.00
3689000 + Misc. Revenues 53,266.67
3600000 - Miscellaneous Revenue ~ Other 907.78
‘Total 3600000 - Miscellaneous Revenue - 54,389.83
3685000 - Assessment : 16,073.15
Total Income 395,197.98
Gross Profit 395,197.98
Expense . ‘
5531010 + Salaries & Benefits 292,276.99
5531030 - Supplies 22,082.45
5539040 - Servites & Charges
5314100 - Professlonal Services .
5314101 + Legal Services 1,607.60
5314102 « Audit & Accounting 11,243.38
5314103 - Compufer Services 7,988.97
5314104 - Janltorfal Services 1,977.37
5314105 - Miscellaneous Services 12,022.69
5314111 - Lab Fees 2,464,20
5314112 - Bus Transportation . 5,537.668
5314113 - Teacher Stipends/Subs 4,016.95
5314100 - Professlonal Services - Other . 63,002.37
Total 5314100 - Professional Services 108,867.09
5314200 - Communications 3,366,18
5314300 - Travel 7,229.18
5314400 - Advertising . 1,794.52
5314500 - Rentals & Leases ’ 26,288.34
5314600 + Insurance Pramiums 3,321.75
5314700 « Utility Services 3,013.21
5314900 - Miscelianeous
5314901 - Meeting EXpenses 2,336.28
5314802 - Dues & Subscriptions 1,118.89
5314988 - Overhead Allocation-Services 0.00
Total 5314800 - Miscellaneous 3,455.27
Total 5531040 - Services & Charges : 168,329.54
5531060 + Maintenance 310.68

Page 1



10:57 AM Thurston Conservation District

08107118 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through June 2018
Jan - Jun 18
5845360 - Capital Outlays 2,798,867
5986000 - Other Financing Uses
§989600 - Cost Share Program 7,722.00
Total 5980000 » Other Financing Uses 7,722.00
66100 - Cleaned up ltem Ad}. Expense 172.00
66800 + Reconcliation Discrepancles 44,83
Tofal Expense 483,746.16
Net Ordlnary Income -88,648.18
Other Income/Expense
Other Expenss 184,00
Net Other Income 184,00
Net Income -88,732.18

Page 2




3:54 PM Thurston Conservation District

0B/01/18 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis June 2018
Junis
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
3300000 - Intergovermental Rev 89,175.51
3400000 - Charges Goods8Sves 965.11
3600004 - Miscellanaous Revenue 23.844.13
3685000 - Assessment 4,022.93
Total Income o 118,00’_1@
Gross Profit 118,007.68
Expense
5531010 » Salaries & Benefils 35,411.41
5531030 - Supplies 2,303.70
5531040 - Services & Charges 25,450.78
5846360 + Capital Outlays 1,671.38
66900 - Reconciliation Discrepancies . 10.65
Total Expense 64, 847,82
Net Crdinary income 53,159.86

Net income 53,159.86

Page 1



3:50 P Thurston Conservation District

08101718 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Actrual Basis June 2018
Jun 18 Jun 17 $ Change % Change
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
3300008 - Intergovermental Rev 89,175.81  113,466.21 -24,290.70 -21.4%
3480000 + Charges Goods&Sves 965,11 743.79 221.32 29.8%
3600000 - Miscellaneous Revenue 2384413 14,532.01 931212 64.1%
3685000 - Assessment 4,022,93 48,098.94  -45076.01 -91.8%
Total Income ﬂB,ODT.GB 177,840,095  -69,833.27 -33.6%
Gross Profit 118,007.68  177,840.95 -59,833.27 ~33.6%
Expense
5531010 - Salaries & Benefits 35411.414 7100995  -35598.54 -50.1%
5531030 - Supplies 2,303.70 8,689.20 -6,385.50 “73.5%
£531040 - Services & Charges 25,450.78 55,786.34  -30,335.56 -54.4%
5531060 - Malntenance 0.00 1,497.72 ~1,497.72 -100.0%
5945360 - Capital Outlays 1,671.38 3,812.42 -2,141.04 -56.2%
5880000 - Other Financing Usesa (.00 8,822.15 -8,822.15 -100.0%
66900 - Reconciliation Discrepancies 10.55 0.00 10.55 100.0%
Total Expense 64,847.82 14961778  -84,769.96 -56.7%
Net Ordinary Income 53,159.86 _2?,223‘1 7 24,936.68 88.4%
Net Income 53,159.86 28,223,117 24,936.69 88.4%

Page 1




Timberland Bank
A\

Page 1ofl 06/30/2018
THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRECT

SHELLWISH FUND o skt
2918 FERGUSON ST SW STE A BLDG 1 CYCLE-101 2410

TUMWATER WA 98812

REG SV MO STMT *Xx%%(02410
BEGINNING RATE  0.10000
PREVIOUS STATEMENT BALANCE AS QF 05/31/18 ccivcnrssrmnnerennnns 198,999.07
PLUS 1 DFPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS .oivvciverirerviersensinnenas 13.81
LESS 3 CHECKS AND OTHER DEBITS .ovvrvrrriresemsmresnainaransins 59,817.68
LESS MAINTENANCE FEE .. .icvvrrvvarmrremramercsrsii e 0 .
CURRENT STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF June 30, 2018 v, 139,195.20

NUMBER OF DAYS IN THIS STATEMENT PERIOD: 30
*%% ELECTRONIC / NON-CHECK TRANSACTIONS ***

Date Description Amount

06/01 SF28 Grants to Others Puget 50 9,943.00

Q6/12 May Shellfish Vouchers 14,874.68

06/21 Funds Transfer via Online 35,0:00.00
%% DEPOSITS ***

Date Description Amount

06/30 INTEREST PAYMENT 13.81

##% BALANCE BY DATE ##%

Date Balance pate Balance Date Balance Date Balance
05/31 198,999.07 06/01 189,056.07 06/12 174,181.39 06/21 139,181.39
06/30 139,195.20

PAYER FEDERAL ID NUMBER....vmviiiiie 91-0260220

INTEREST PAID YEAR TO DATE....ccsivisnn. 112.01

Eederal law requires us to tell you now we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Our privacy policy has not changed
and you may review our policy and practices with respect ko your personat Information at www. timberlandbank.com/privacy-poiicy
or we will mail you a free copy upon request if you calt us at 1-800-562-8761.

Member o
. VAL HOUSIRG
FDI@ www.timberlandbank.com 2 FENEER




11:38 AM
07/52118

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Summary
3082002 - Saving-6568 - Timberland, Period Ending 06/30/2018

Jun 30, 18
Beglnning Balance 1.216.46
Cleared Transactions
Depaosits and Gredits - {1 item 0.01
Tofal Cleared Transactions 0.01
Cleared Balance 1,216.47
Reglster Balance as of 06/30/2018 1.216.47
Ending Balance 1,216.47

Page 1




11:39 AM
67102{18

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Detail
3082002 - Saving-6568 - Timberland, Period Ending 06/30/2018

Type Date Mum B Name Clr Amount Batance
Beginning Balance 1,216.46
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credlts - 1 ltem
Deposit 07/31/2018 X 0.01 0.01
Total Deposits and Credils 0.01 0.01
Total Cleared Transaclions . Q.01 0.01
Claared Balance 0.01 1,216.47
Register Balance as of 06/30/2018 0,01 1,216.47
Ending Balance 0.01 4,216.47

Page 1




Timbeﬂd Bank

Lonee (95
Page 1oft 06/30/2018
THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRICT
2918 FERGUSON ST SW STE A BLDG 1 ’ S
TUMWATER WA 98512 CYCLE-101 6568
REG SV MO STMT *kEX1G6568
BEGINNING RATE  0.01000
PREVIOUS STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF 05/31f18 i 1,216.46
PLUS 1 DEPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS ...cccovivevvreeevnniennnis K31
LESS 0 CHECKS AND OTHER DEBITS ...corvcivevecmnrserrnmnessminans .00
LESS MAINTENANCE FEE ....c.c00irrvemrereeecnnsirereie s esaennns 0
CURRENT STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF June 30, 2018 ..o.iivveeceeemesen e 1,216.47
NUMBER OF DAYS IN THIS STATEMENT PERIOR: 30
k% DEPOSITS ***
Date Description Amount
06/30 INTEREST PAYMENT 01

*%% BALANCE BY DATE ***

Date Balance Date Balance Pate Balance Date Balance
05/31 1,216.46 06/30 1,216.47

PAYER FEDERAL ID NUMBER.....orvrnvannns 91-0260220

INTEREST PAID YEAR TO DATE......c00neee 3.38

Federal law requires us to tell you how we colfect, share, and protect your personal information. Our privacy policy has not changed
and you may review our policy and practices with respect ko your personal information at www.timberlandbank.com/privacy-policy
or we will mail you a free copy upon request if you call us at 1-800-562-8761.

Membher -

f , QUL HOUSHA
FDI@ www.thinberlandbank. com 2 FURER




11:37 AM Thurston Conservation District
07102118 Reconciliation Summary
3081001 - 308.10.01 Cash TimberLand Bank, Period Ending 0B/30/2018
Jun 30,18
Beginning Balance 7.670.44
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 38 items -80,353.31
Deposits and Credits - 15 items 136,801.54
Total Cleared Transactions 56,448,23
Cleared Balance 64,123.87
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 19 ltems -25,228.27
Beposlts and Credits - 21 items 965.09
Total Uncleared Transactlons -24,260.27
Register Balance as of 06/30/2018 39,863.40
Ending Balance 39,863.40

Page 1



11:38 AM
o728

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Detail
3081001 - 308.10.01 Cash TimberLand Bank, Period Ending 06/30/2018

Type

Date

Num

Name

Beglnning Balarnice

Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 38 items

Bill Pmt -Check
Bil Pt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Check

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Chack
Bill Pint -Check
Bili Pt -Check
Bilf Pmt -Chack
Bill Pmt -Check
Bilf Pl -Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bl Pmi -Check
Liability Check
Liabllity Check
Bl Pmt -Check
Liabllity Check
Lability Check
Liability Check
Liability Check
Liability Chack
Bill Pmt -Gheck
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bilt Pmi -Check
Bl Pmt -Check
Bill Pent ~Check
Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmi -Check
BHl Pt -Check
Liability Check
Llabllity Check
Biit Pmt -Check

Total Checks and Payments

03713/2018
06/10/2018
06/10/2018
05/10/2018
05/15/2018
05/24/2018
05/24/2018
0b24/2018
0G/24/2018
05/24/2018
05/24/2018
05/2412018
056/24/2018
05/24/12018
062412018
05/24/2018
052412018
0572412018
060172018
06/06/2018
06/07/2018
06/G7/2018
06/1212018
06/12f2018
06/12/2018
06/14/2018
06/1472018
06/14/2018
D6/14/2018
06/14/2018
Q6/14/2018
06/1412018
06714/2018
06/14/2018
06/14/2018
06/14/2018
06/22/2018
062712018

19549
19620
19602
19614
18627
19639
19642
19631
19628
18641
19630
19634
19640
19637
18635
19636
19632
10833
EFT

EFT

EFT

EFT

EFT

19648
19653
19650
18651
18649
19662
18647
19645
19646
19644
19655

EFT

Deposits and Credis - 15 items

Deposlt
Dapostt
Deposit
Transfer
[eposit
Deposit
Depasit
BPeposit
Transfer
Daposit
Transfer
Deposit
Deposlt
Deposit
Deposit

Total Deposits and Credits

04/25/2018
06/01/2018
nef01/2018
06/01/2018
06/04/2018
06/06/2018
08/082018
06/t1/2018
06/12/2018
06/18/2018
06/21/2018
06/22/2018
0B6/26/2018
06/28/2018
06/29/2018

Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance

TRAN..,

Transfer

TRAN...

Skookumchuck Gra...
Riverbend Properiie...
A & | Western Agric...
Pacific Disposal
Whillock Limited Par...
Thurston County Pu..,
Whiticck Limited Par...
Accountemps
OfficeTeam
washington State Co...
Waterfall Engineering
North Thurston Publi...
V8P - Vision Care
Sallsh Sea Conferen...
Okanogan Conserva...
Clympla School Dist...
Blshop, Slephanie
Colonial Supplement...
EFT Payment
Regence - Health C...
QuickBooks Payzoll ...
QuickBooks Payroll ...
Dapi of Relirement ...
EFT Payment

EFT Payment
Hatch-Winecka, Am...
Wells Fargo
OfficeTeam

Riceh, USA Inc - Us...
North Thurston Publi..,
United Concordia In...
Half Moon Sanitation
Briars Thompson
Gerry Allard

Bishop, Stephanie
Colonlal Supplement...
QuickBooks Payrol ..,
Dept of Retlremant ..,

Cly

PP P B R P B P S S LR T LTI T T SR T I Vi S P Y P Ve

FM O K MM H KRN

Amount Balance
767544
-200.00 -200.00
-6,178.00 -6,378.00
-598.20 -8,973.20
-49,64 -7,022.84
-3,950.00 -10,972.84
-14,686.60 «25,659.44
-3,860.00 «28,609.44
-2,004.50 -31,613.94
-1,600.00 -33,213.24
-1,415.15 -34,629.09
-1,375,00 -236,004.00
-1,162.36 -37,166.45
-347.20 -37,513.66
-230.00 -37,743,65
-234.00 -37,943.65
-170.00 -38,113.65
-33.00 -38,146.85
26.20 -38,172.85
-3,095.32 -42,168,17
-2,523.56 -44,691.73
-8,945.18 -53,636.91
-1,028.08 -54,664.99
-5,412.52 -60,077.51
-2,069.88 -63,047.38
-2,782.02 -85, 829 41
-2,323.30 -68,152.71
-500.00 -68,652.71
-400.00 -69,052,71
-357.04 -68,408.75
-339.28 -69,749,03
-330.54 ~FQ,079.57
-125.00 -70,204.57
-100.00 -70,304.57
-67.92 -10,372.49
-66.57 -70,439.06
-26.20 -70,465.26
-9,865.97 -80,331,23
-22,08 -80,353.31
-80,353,31 -80,353.31
40,451.09 40,451.09
215.94 40,667.03
3,362.57 44,028,60
9,943.00 53,872.60
1,231.58 55,204.18
1,640.69 56,844.77
351.12 57,195.89
4,022,093 61,218.82
14,874.68 76,093.60
22300 76,316.50
35,000.00 111,316.50
48.00 111%,364.50
6,207 .46 117,571.98
18,848.64 138,420.80
380,94 136,801.54
136,801.54 136,801.54
£6,448.23 56,448.23
56,448.23 64,123.67

Page 1




11:38 AM Thurston Conservation District

07102118 Reconciliation Detail
2681001 - 308.10.01 Cash TimberLand Bank, Period Ending 06/30/2018

Type Pate Num Name Clr Amount Balance

Uncleared Transactlons
Checks and Payments - 19 items

BiHl Pmt -Check 05/16/2017 19261 Crains Office Supply -144.63 -144.83
Bill Pmt -Chack 0610512017 18266 Crains Offlce Supply -58.74 -203.37
Bili Pmt -Check 12/29/2017 19505 Wendy Stevens -451.68 -666.02
Bill Pimt -Check 05/10/2018 19621 RTI Fahrication Inc. -8,453.00 -10,108.02
Bl Pmt -Check 05/24/2018 19629 Kathleen Berger -30.50 -10,138.52
Bill Pmt -Check 06/14/2018 19654 Whitlock Limited Par... -518.66 -10,657.18
Bl Pmt -Check 06H472018 10643 A 8 1. Wastern Agric... -263.20 -10,820.38
Bijl Pmt -Check 06/21/2018 19656 Puget Sound Restor... -9,943.00 -20,863.38
Bill Pmt ~Check 06/21/2018 19665 Get Outside Olympla -1,700.00 ~22,563.38
Bill Pmt -Check 06/21/2018 10664 Grays Harbor Conse... -992.82 -23,556.20
Bill Pmt -Check 06/21/2018 19660 OfficeTeam -860.00 -24,406,20
Bilt Pmt -Check 0672112016 19657 Puget Sound Energy 247147 -24,663.37
BIl Pt -Check 06/21/2018 19661 winuteman Press -209.94 -24,863.31
Bilf Pmit -Chack 06/21/2018 19663 Halch-Wlnecka, Am... -102.74 -24,966.05
Bill Pt ~Check 0612112018 19658 Ploneer Fuel -85.72 -25,061.77
Bill Pmt -Check 06/21/2018 19662 Jan-Pro Clsaning Sy... -56,26 -25,118.02
gill Pmit -Check 06/21/2018 19659 Pacific Disposal -61.64 -25,169,66
Bill Pt -Check 06/21/2018 19666 Culligan Water Co. -29.41 -25,199.07
Liability Check 06/27/2018 To Print  Caolenial Supplement... -26,20 -25,225.27
Total Checks and Payments -25,225.27 -25,225.27
Deposlis and Credits - 21 itemns
Transfer 10/09/2017 300.00 300.00
Sales Receipt 1013172017 80541... UNRESTRICTED:A... 130.00 430.00
Transfer 1410872017 ' 100.00 530.00
Sales Recaipt 11/30/2017 B0541.. UNRESTRICTEDA.. 180.00 710.00
Sales Recalpt 1213412017 60541... UNRESTRIGTED:A... 55,00 765.00
Transfer 03/21/2018 200.00 965.00
Paycheck 08/0812018 ddo42.,. Healy, MaraE 0.00 965,00
Paycheck 08/08/2018 ddo42...  Bishop, Stephanle E 0.00 965,00
Paycheck 06/08/2018 dd042..  Moorehead, Sarah 0.00 965,00
Paycheck 06/08/2018 ddod2... Hatch-Winecka, Am... 0.00 965.00
Paycheck 06/08/2018 dd042...  \White, Nora E 0.00 865.00
Paycheck 06/0812018 dd042... Healy, MaraE 0.00 965.00
Paycheck 0610812018 ddo42...  Warren, Nicole A 0.00 965.00
Paycheck 06/08/2018 ddo42... Berger, Kathlean T 0.00 885,00
Paycheck 06/25/2018 ddo42...  Warren, Nicole A 0.00 966.00
Paycheck 06/26/2018 ddo42,.. Hatch-Winecka, Am... 0,00 965.00
Paycheck 06/25/2018 ddo42... DBishop, Slephanie E 0,00 965.00
Paycheck 06/26/2018 dd042... Healy, Mara & 0.00 965,00
Paycheck 06/26/2018 ddn42.,, Berger, Kathleen T 0.00 965.00
Paycheck D6/25/2018 dd042...  Moorehead, Sarah 0.00 965.00
Paycheck 06/25/2018 ddo42.,,  White, Nora & 0.00 965.00
Tota) Deposits and Credits 965.00 965.00
Total Uncleared Transactions -24,280.27 -24,260.27
Register Balance us of 0613012018 32,187,96 39,863.40
Ending Balance 32,187.96 39,863.40

Page 2



X

. A 4’:’?‘:::R| FE T . -
el SNLE
Timberiand Bank
e ST Qnee 0I5
Page i1 of5 06/30/2018
THURSTON CONSERVATILON DISTRICT
2918 FRERGUSON ST BSW STE A BLDG 1L y RS
TUMWATER WA 98512 CYCLE-030 PHEEEG554
FREE BUSINESS CK *RE¥*06554
PREVIOUS STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF 05/31/18  osercerevininennarenes 48,126.53
PLUS 14 DEPOSITS AND OTHER CREDITS v vcrvrevmrvanienns 96,350.45
LESS 38 CHECKS AND OTHER DEBITS 1ravvrveeemeerrensrscrcssaiesres 80,353.31
LESS MAINTENANCE FEE .....coiivviimreniscimsinisicrnssnrcsnseenes )
CURRENT STATEMENT BALANCE AS OF June 30, 2018 ..vireresssireressnsiine 64,123.67
NUMBER OF DAYS IN THIS STATEMENT PERIOD: 30 )
**% CHECK TRANSACTIONS ®¥x%
Date Seriat Amount Date Serial Amount Date Serjal Amount
06/08 19549 * 200,00 06/11 19634 1,162.36 06/27 19646 67.92
06/11 19602 * 595,20 06412 19635 200.00 06/29 19647 125.00
06/05 19614 * 49.649 06/12 19636 170.00 06/22 19648 2,323.30
06/05 19620 *  6,178.00 06/15 19637 230.00 06/27 19649 339.28
06/18 19627 *  3,950.00 06/11 19639 *  14,686.60 06/27 19650 400.00
0611 19628 1,600.00 06/14 19640 347.20 06/26 19651 357.04
06/08 19630 %  1,375.00 06412 19641 1,415.15 06/26 19652 330.54
06/11 19631 2,004.50 06/18 19642 3,950.00 06/26 19653 500.00
06/04 19632 33.00 06/22 19644 * 66.57 0627 19655 * 26.20
06/11 19633 26.20 06/29 19645 100,00
(*) Asterisk denotes skip in check sequence
*¥% Fl ECTRONIC / NON-CHECK TRANSACTIONS *%*
Date Description Amount
06/04 AC IRS USATAXPYMT 3,995.32
06/06 AC BLUESHIELD OF WA INS. PREM. 2,523.56
06/07 AC INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS 1,028.08
06/07 AC INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBOOKS 8,945.18
06/13 AC IRS USATAXPYMT 2,782.02
06/13 AC IRS USATAXPYMT 2,969.88
06/14 AC WA DEPT RET SYS BRS EPAY 5,412.52
06/22 AC INTUIT PAYROLL S QUICKBCOKS 9,865.97
06/27 AC WA DEPT RET SYS DRS EPAY 22.08

Federal law requires us to tell you-how we collect, share, and protect your personal Information. Our privacy policy has not changed
and you may review our policy and practices with respect to your personal information at www. timberlancibank,com/privacy-policy
or we will mail you a free copy upon reguest if you call us at 1-800-562-8761.,

Member

FDIC

www.timberlandbank com




'o- \
Tlmbﬁﬂdﬁd Bank
;__, Sinee 195
Page 2of5 06/30/2018

THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRLCT

2918 FERGUSON ST SW STE A BLDG 1 RRERRRGE R4

TFUMWATER WA 98512

**k% DEPOSITS **%

Pate Description Amount
06/01, SF28 Grants to Others Puget So 9,943.00
05/01 CK Deposit 215,94
06/04 CK Deposit 1,231.58
06/05 AC WA ST SCC VENDOR PAY 3,362.57
06/07 AC WA ST SCC VENDOR PAY 1,640.59
D6/11 AC TCTREASURER 1104 CITYREMIT 4,022.93
06/12 May Shellfish Vouchers 14,874.68
06/12 CK Deposit 351.12
06/18 CK Deposit 223.00
06/21 Funds Transfer via Online 35,000.00
06/22 CK Deposit 48.00
06/27 AC WA ST RCFB VENDOR PAY 6,207.46
06/28 AC WA ST RCFB VENDOR PAY 18,848.64
06/29 CK Deposit . 380.94

*%% BALANCE BY DATE ***

Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
05/31 48,126.53 06/01 58,285.47 06/04 55,488.73 06/05 52,623.66
06/06 50,100.10 06/07 41,767.43 06/08 40,192.43 06/11 24,140.50
06f12 37,581.15 06/13 31,829.25 06/14 26,069.53 06/15 25,839.53
06/18 18,162.53 06/21 53,162.53 06122 40,954.69 06/26 39,767.11
06f27 45,119.09 06/28 63,967.73 06/29 64,123.67

NOTE: THERE IS A NEW PHONE NUMBER T( CALL TO REPORT A
LLOST OR STOLEN CARD. THE NUMBER IS 1-800-500-1044.

Me mb r EQUALHOUSING
FDI@ www.Hmberlandbank.com 1=y PR



narana,
canener

tmrmfuseﬂﬂ EY,BATEA

Packrrtak Q) :ry

- 13548
anmﬂmud um:e! £ mm“ﬂ‘:'nm

TERL VA 313 TEAUT OUNPIA 1A 1883
543841

;2\!0,&

[t

Teoka, WASATE)

Crags Moy

oA

TRATICA COMALAYALH L

& amannmnre B

POESLE GIEETBP5NE LHUGOLES wr

. wmvamxm :-u.:mup i
Ty "’#WM{
ellerys,
e Huetad 51,
: Vil Fogicotq
. M DAHREY
B

Page: 30of 5

mh numu Gon sERVAT!O'il bmnu:r
L8 FENCE by L UTER

n o e drem it ey B L

FOIGEA0N GAREIMTELE WIOODESELY

T RGO P
WLI&K\‘YI Lzl l‘}-‘(lf
TR Friguian 5t HAHRSES
un:?l& Shlfrion i g “waw
Al S il Ao
A1 i y T oy -
ABL D A e Ll THATOH EEHHAYA BN I
b inaswd Ao, SV H -
o, A ©5345 —

06/08/2018 19549 $200.00

A&ﬁ

B smcersimuinaass o siner B . . y

¥OLR0I HITSLIRYSN LROGOBESLV

06/08/2018 19630 $1,375.00
I Y e T AT T T L e —————

URSTAR CO) 18631
e e s T . nan
mwM A4 e WA Hland
1543124
g ATk ]
=
T o AL
perzriengs
POBXTORS
Lay Aogrkas, BAROR-RSY

JEMG  uts Tday CVIVRTL 308 IVAIA

1 g [+
VO RAS3 I HITE1Y07558 LBOGOE 55 he

06/11/2018 19602 $595.20
TN p—

H TRy
munsmn cmlssnvmoumsm:cr o logd THURSTON CONSERVATION DISTRIC s losa2
ot 3 N
wrgﬂ,w“ %;4({5" B mum "ot (L1 A l I-I.IIM||1 TWRFUL WA 112 N3
bijo it
£ o 5 " pigl S owhe § e
Y TN
DoLLANS . Ll
Prrite Do Erghaa B 2 I
temag S et S S ST Ve
FaBnER -
kg, Ce AN ) v — s 7 7"’3’_
5 AR WO O i [ At o -
. B s i s B 13
COAAE Mt RIEETOTSNT LHOODEESIY FOLIBA W BAXSI70V5R LIODNS SHLY
06/05/2018 19614 $49.64 06/04/2018 19632 $33.00
,ﬂm .
UR! fuN canszﬂv.mcﬂblsmu.r THBEHANE LUK 19320 i " ) -
THURST st it A e TINGRATON CONSERVATIOH DisTRIOY T e 19633
. o s e
Tu\m.kml.vm e i :. mﬂlreﬁ.ﬂ& HIR Cra T EoTy '
E H
p Fetendhrinito § TS0 } — I o
Epnd o3t TayvpSin e R0

]
FOMABETS GAZEL0 754 k‘iBBDBES'ﬂ'

tard Brpoii UG
B ottt DrSTe———
frencer w mmai -
Caurkia, 50 BNINS K Aa—
.| - _;éfﬂq,
mn 1 ey m-uuu.-w
3 ) B weamnrnam e e
CEEGE 0¥ 1 RNLYOTEM] LYRONGSSLe *O3A63I 12125030750 LSRBORS 5L
06! 05/ 2018 19620 $6,}.78 00 06[11/ 2018 19633 $26 20
AT T 3
THURSTOH coussav.mou mamlcr NRATALAY 0 DK 1e627 I 'ﬂluﬂsWN COHAERVATION DISTRIGT TP LT B 19634
i S RS - R U s
yrera Vi lrastéadwndip t s 850,00 i hgme Forth Treratsn ik o Betonis s 1628 |
Thred T it b o o " )
ks [
vam el bty | ey oeLLARS
PISTh A A ""'“"‘“’"““""’“"" IJ "J’g‘,’;‘,“;;‘:‘“ TN ST psg T J
Tormals, WARSIZ 2 Ol WA
?""‘"***‘ ECH
- 1
Uk jupast ﬂwm!ﬂ | e ’#“:l’ éJL‘mm J
e

-3 &
¥DIBE3Lr Hi1251707500 LIOOOLS 5L

06/1B/2018 19627 $3,950.00

———

a=me
19628
A e o e
DLAATA VA HILFTEY IR VA TN IR
A
el "
miggr o 3 "o

OTesThan
PG RTR3RS
s deptan, BALEITIIA

VO Weekd B CABIRIN S BITRTL .

JATEY CONSERPN "?x
%1 j&__

[P Y

-

~ 06/1172018 19634 $1,162.36
LT T e T T LA e s p s e m e T VA

N!l SR Ewitlon Raghte!

POIFEROe HAIET0T5ME LYOOOAGSLY

wQ b G 511251?0?5!.!. LYQCOE B¢

06/11/2018 19628 $1,600.00

06/12/2018 19635 $200.00




TIIURSTOH [ZONE E| I\VR:W&" DiSFRICT
T\M :n,wa Jasieaur

Terb LA BAYE
0 WASEPRGTOH ATEEY £
CUTWrA VoA FHE

Clyvesta Echood DYt
T Laeavin 6
Ctyrgla, YA £330

MEND Lt Gy (b - Vn AdaR) o BTSRANE
&

“DLNEXG® HIZELIOTEM

LRYOOBSELY

Page:40f 5

» x . -
'munsmn cuussuv.man DISTRICT TIRLRLAND BT 19694
BFLACIIS00 kY S, LTI VAL IO BIREKY 32 REIE
— 1mmmn,wmsum . S, WA a1 #uand
vtane Mdon, Sephaey MEASP
Lo atod s
Sy srand
- TAIANS
Sapdae alrp

gLy

e  mmocm st
[T —————

0 IFekhe BIASIFETSLY LROOOBESH

06/12/2048 19636 $170.00

Woltill L@m

2053 PRGN B2 K1Y, SLITE,
mm:sm;;: st

Y RT Saah Sen Corfirivon 7 Wl Dehwded E6

TINERFAMIG BAYS
T2SHASERO IO SIATEY $7
EUTHPANIA $L

19837
wram
ik

E

pren
TrsHnk el THHy wd GAGE

Sush a3 x4 ob DR Exinded B4
SR N
Batrrgpuues, WA AT

[T

BORIRATY I.SEEI'JD?EEH

[ ———— %

ICHIART

06/22/2018 19644 $66.57
m——m7mmm STk

- 13645
TWEIRLAND Emi
‘IFWKSTON CDNﬁRVAT!DH pisYaICT Py v fasieg
e JER YA Rizmba CUPILATA 5131 AN
B TroTpsen 16030
gogge Dot s
B Trovpses
121 Dxdsoth i
Fiadbster, ARSI
vena (%]
L i MY

'o'lﬂGIJBSS"l“

MELHEL ST BARSLT0 75/ LAOOOHR S L0

06}'15[2018 19637 $230.00
FE ViU pp—

!
:
!

ﬂl\mlﬂ}ﬂ C!}HSEI#’ATN“};IT‘DMTHWT
wwmmm HE( 81K

Brpns  Fie Sl i esh Dstned
Laiiehy

Iy
mmulrmwcmrﬁriz
TR WA HRE

H

18639
Haoan

2]

{6880

3
Tharkn Gty iubic Bkt £ S ¢
4§3LEy Rl

Corng, ARG 112

v

ETC TR

VOLRLATe 1t Jii\?ﬂ?shl'

LEODDRSELM

06/29/2018 19645 §100.00

iz
18340
'ﬂ|URS‘I’0H CGNSER\MTIQH DISTRICT ‘“m‘;‘;";?ml%‘?a‘ﬁ&‘, - Pl
um\:‘u Wttt Y it Pl
teeppix o) 5 THR
v .
o DaLLALs
Garphrnd nm|unuuumm|
. ulﬁ{. Vsl
pxe Wl ‘4114

I
l"D\‘H‘.'-ﬂI‘ ayeEVa s k"mEIUEEEI.I‘

06!11[2018 19639 $14, 686 60

. B v
»ORHELDY B EESH’U!’SM.

LACORIRS St

06/27/2018 19646 _%$67.92

VIRSTON CONSEAUATION DISTRIGT andenaen losiz
YW Eﬂ,\’l.l xﬂ’rum LU SR IV
avmpe Wl EReka we2600
Sirmre 5
ot Tiewidg Flet 1] 1400

HEl Mo Lardinfon
1IN AT
Yo, vehibis!

B vnaunswsssauoein

rOIAELIY 2326170 T5% LADODE SELY

06/14/2018 19640 $347. 20

06[29[ 2018 19647 $125.00

r— TOCESELT: TS
GE R - - 10641
- - -~ LALAMD EART - - .
TSR comSRIR DT - L
o n-mmmmmmul CRTRN WA DS - -t MAANA -t e e
LT S48

3

'3
#RINEhLr HIE5E70750)

1]
LRNDOS 550

06/12/2018 19641 $1,415.15
N 8 1964 15

COEGL N S3251TDTEW

B emmnnrb b G

18642
THURSTOH GONSEIWATMNDISTRSG" “’mﬂm:g‘&(u e
‘nﬂ A n.m hsul.m SRR, TISE LD
i
prrone M UdnPahasky | $ 13/
Suaa
t !hn&nl!a’
e Ll Pt § foLLass
3 §
1520 Aot AW, SHA DRA IO RGN AT
Ve, VA9
v ke ket 1’/% /

LAQODE 554

o608 |
THURATAH GOHSERVATION DISTRIGT P o o LN T
sul.mnr)l,[wa wisiz DUTIRW 1A 50801 &
rvions  HidhWark, AarDisrdel § an
e
o 1 (b s
DOLLARY

Btiyivacky, by Biweplies]

VI PRaRva By LB Bty &

r@19ELAC 11325405, LA0006S Sty

06/22/2018 19648 $2,323.30

FHURETOH COHBERVATION DITVRIGT 19640
N (nwmmxmsmzeru A 1
; S i -
T5dasls l
pwpnys Mo Tenen e Edock REEE] h
ohixheE ¥ H
Thye L Trityiza and 56400 i
. poulars ||
I Ef&n;;gwﬁmm RN COAFARYATNGH DS TR T K
Ctacgls, b
L2l
| o 2l
l (L8] [/, i
PR J

POAGELTr CIESLR075LE LUNODEG 5L

06/18/2018 19642 $3,950.00

06/27/2018 19649 $339.28




T o T % A L i3 DS80S Ch 1 L PP W

‘lHunsm}e t.ousuw.\mn msm]cr TRIZIKLAYD DINK. £0550
HIbTERGUSCHET BVE A RTATTIGIISIECT RE Hannn
WARKATER A :3'411&1" DML YL vz L
" -
Jetone Doy g T
et ek pd 33 KNG
otal COLLAYY
el sn
St et O L
Kaogeor, CAUTERSS {24 e
e A
FELG Tk Epday GMISTIHS —_ AroTRTemR P T
[T — . Y y

POVIRSIR 1132617076k LOORE S54T

06[27,’2018 19650 $400 00

-munsm coussnvmanmmmf TR Y{‘I{Lu‘%?s':"pﬁﬁé . N 39651 1
vwmuu.m tﬁ‘\#’:ﬁk‘ : . G e et e mlao ST
* mridnix - _R:chUS"l\'.: R P ,‘wm
ooy s RN - Lo ) 5 s
- ‘ ! 3 DOLLAR

R UELWe
N AT
- Faivdian £4 HTIBLL5

H RN B meanummaiazs ansnne §

g LGRS 135870750 LAUUOREELY

06/26/2018 19651 $357. 04

L i o
il cogevmonplaigy 1 M b e
Am\m |‘lvg’ium . e &?&a‘mwk R MU}}II"MW‘ .
P . .

B lh\:l:nmﬁlhjmﬂn

POL96S

[ W ——
qaswavsw LUBOR GEL :

06/26/2018 19652 $330.54

(bbbt 11~
- ‘rﬂunst’alwmafwmnunmnlur' T ‘uw“mm“;‘a . or e
prls : cox
nmmummr' o R T YR

B nanruransagiousog § . 5 -

EQIELEIE HIZELI075RG LHG00BEGLY

06/26/2018 19653 $500.00

"
THURBYOM DONSERVATION DISTRIGE iy LALAD A 16055
e iy v se sawmmin
lm Lﬂ‘.flh ey PHONE
MAH N
TAY TN Coloatal Buppis reedel nrts: nzma
ity s
:
SALLAFS E
cosbiLn k
luarng tonks i
s

POR 1S
Cehrrils, 50 ZHN 1355

LEwd
[ R Y r

cEIRLSEY 3251 FOTSUM LH0LG SR

06/27 /2018 19655 $26.20

Page: 50f §




Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Detail |
Wells Fargo, Period Ending 06/17/2018

9:26 AM

a7/04/18

Type Date Num Name Clr Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 595111
Cleared Transactions
Charges and Gash Advances - 34 items
Credil Card Charge  06M11/2018 Flrst Student Charter X -552.51 -552.51
Credlt Card Charge  05/15/2018 Capitoi Campus Par... X -12.00 -564.51
Credit Card Charge  06/16/2018 Batdorf and Bronsen... X -39.17 -603.68
Credlt Card Charge  05/17/2018 8339 UPS X -10.91 -614.59
Credit Card Charge 057212018 AM PM X -51.156 -B865.74 .
Credit Gard Charge  05/21/2018 Windows to the Univ... X -1.00 -866,74
Bill Pmt ~-CCard 051232018 Ay Crowley X -480.00 -1,148.74
Credit Card Charge  05/23/2018 8348 Tuinwater Parks and... X -50.00 -1,196.74
Credit Card Charge  05/24/2018 Bark & Garden X -218.44 -1,415.18
Credit Card Charge  05{24/2018 . Amazon X -40.28 -1,455.48
Cradif Card Charge  06/24/2018 8349 urs X -9.76 -1,4858.22
Credit Card Charge  0B/25/2018 8221 US Postal Service X +33.50 -1,488.72
Cradit Card Chargs  0B/28/2018 Dollar Tree X «65.82 -1,564.54
Credlt Card Charge  05/31/2018 8365 ups X -0.85 -1,574.39
Credit Card Charge  05/31/2018 Washington State F... X -8,35 -1,582.74
Credit Card Charge  05/31/2018 Good to Go Tolt X -7.00 -1,589.74
Credit Card Charge  06/31/2018 Port of Kingston X -6.00 «1,595.74
Credlt Card Charge  05/31/2018 Tacoma Onstreet P... X -2.00 -1,697.74
Gredit Card Charge  05/31/2018 Tacoma Onslreet P.., X -1.00 -1,598,74
Credit Card Charge  06/01/2018 P1-40.. QuickBooks Payrofl ... X -680.00 -2,218.74
Credit Card Charge  06/04/2018 City of Olympia X <26.00 -2,304.74
Credit Card Charge  08/05/2018 Haggen X ~74.24 -2,378.88
Credit Card Charge  06/06/2018 Amazon . X -22.63 -2,401.61
Credit Card Charge  06/07/2018 50306... Carolina Biclogleal 5... X -318.95 -2,720.56
Credit Card Charge  08/07/2018 Dispute Resolulion .. X -300.00 -3,020.56
Credit Card Charge  06/07/2018 T Sheats® X -65.00 -3,085.56
Credit Card Charge  O6/07/2018 Fred Meyer X -20.00 +3,105.56
Credit Card Charge  06/07/2018 8359 ups X -12.31 -3,117.87
Credit Card Charge  06/11/2018 X -78.04 -3,195.91
Gredit Card Charge  06/11/2018 Weils Fargo X -75.00 -3,270.91
Credit Card Charge ~ 06/11/2018 i.eavenworth Parking X -3.00 -3,273.91
Credit Card Charge  06/13/2018 Safeway X -28.32 -3,303.23
Credit Card Charge  08/14/2048 8360 UPS X -11.09 -3,314.32
Credit Card Charge  06/25/2018 Skamanta Lodge X -226.58 -3,540.90
Total Charges and Cash Advances -3,540,90 -3,540.90
Tota! Cleared Transactions -3,540.80 -3,540.90
Cloared Balance 3,540.90 9,492.01
Uncleared Transactlons
Charges and Cash Advances - 54 ltemns
Credit Card Charge  06/30/2017 Best Buy -65.25 -66.25
Credit Card Charge  0BI22f2017 7846 Fed Ex -18.32 -83.57
Credit Card Charge  09/06/2017 7868 San Fransclsco Sire... - -33.02 «117.49
Credit Gard Charge  09/06/2017 7754 Trader Joes +33.58 -161.07
Credit Card Charge  09/06/2017 7868 Wagners Ewopean ... -32.67 -183.74
Cradit Card Charge  08/06/2017 7852 Spooner Berry Farm -23.00 -206.74
Credlt Card Charge 1072412017 8017 Dispute Resolution ... -30.60 -236.74
Credlt Gard Charge  10f27/2017 8005 Minuteman Press -890.43 412717
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 8008 SPSCC -154.76 -1,281.92
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 3024 San Franscisco Stre... -152.70 -1,434.62
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 8023 Alberisons -60.45 -1,503.07
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 8007 Brown Paper Tickets -53.74 -1,666.81
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 a0t Starbucks -34.71 -1,891.52
Credit Card Charge  10f27/2017 7959 Facebook -30.00 -1,621.82
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 . BO0O3 Rispute Resolution ... -30.00 -1,651.52
Credit Card Charge  10/27£2017 8026 Fred Moyer -26,89 -1,678.41
Credit Card Charge  10/27/2017 8028 Haggen -18.01 -1,696.42
Credlt Gard Charga  10/27/2017 8029 Qlympia Food Co-Op -14.90 -1,711.32
Credii Card Charge  10/31/2017 7978 Gasplo inc -59.00 -1,770.32
Cradit Card Charge 1073172017 8044 Dispute Resolution ... -30.00 -1,800.32
Credit Card Charge  10/31/2017 7880 . Dispute Resolution ... -30.00 -1,830.32
Credit Card Charge  10/31/2017 - 8016 Dispute Resoclution ... -30.00 -1,860.32
Credit Card Charge 1073172017 7993 Dispule Resolution ... -30.00 -1,880.32

Page 1



9:26 AM
07/04/18

Thurston Conservation District

Reconciliation Detail
Wells Fargo, Period Ending 06/17/2018

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
Credit Card Charge  11/04/2017 7983 Brown Paper Tickets -26.87 -1,817.19
Credit Card Charge  11/08/2017 79514 Office Depot -209.08 -2,126.27
Credit Card Charge  11/08/2017 7882 San Franscisco Stre... -47.04 -2,173.31
Credit Card Charge  11/08/2017 7982 Wagners Europaan ... -25.06 -2,198.36
Credit CGard Charge  11/08/2017 7882 Trader Joes -11.98 ~2,210,34
Credit Card Charge  11/08/2017 7982 Trader Joas -7.99 -2,218,33
Credlt Card Charge  11/M4/2017 ’ Window Seat Madia -2,002.04 -4,220.37
Credif Card Charge  11/14/2017 7907 Amazon -292.95 -4,513.32
Credif Card Charge  11M4/2017 7920 Harbor Freight -144.20 -4,657.52
Credit Gard Charge  14/14/2017 T Sheets -85.00 -4,742.52
Credit Card Charge  11/14/2017 Cralns Office Supply ~713.97 -4, 816.49
Credit Card Charge  11/14/2017 7905 Starbucks -34.71 -4,851.20
Credit Card Charge 11/1442017 7918 Olympla Food Co-Op -32.53 -4,883.73
Credit Card Charge /1472017 7917 Cab -27.43 -4,911.16
Credit CGard Charge 1114/2017 7919 Haggen -21.26 -4,932.42
Credit Card Charge  11/14/2017 7905 " Trader Joes ~18.95 -4,9581.37
Credit Card Charge  11/14/2017 7918 - Frad Meyer -8.69 -4,960.06
Credit Card Charge 12/08/2017 8074 Staples ~470.64 ~5,130.70
Credit Card Charge  12/08/2017 8088 Facebook ~10.00 -5,140.70
Credit Card Charge 1213172017 UP3 -19.71 -5,160.41
Crodit Card Charge  01/10/2018 -04.88 -5,255.29
Credlt Card Charge  03/13/2018 81486 Caspio Ine -59.00 -5,314.29
Credit Card Charge  03/13/2018 81586 RE} =16.27 -5,330.56
Credit Card Charge 0372172018 8075 Crains Office Supply -442.39 -5,772.95
Credlt Card Charge  03/21/2018 8076 Crains Office Supply -140.80 -5,913.75
Credit Card Charge  03/21/2018 T Sheets -80.00 +5,993.75
Credit Card Charga  03/21/2018 8091 Chavron -66.04 -6,061.79
Credit Card Charge  03/21/2018 7964 Orca Books 36,84 -6,098.67
Credit Card Charge  03/21/2018 B0BY Port of Kingston -5.00 -6,103.67
Credit Card Charge  05/16/2018 Trader Joas -24.54 -6,128.21
Gredit Card Charge  06/07/2018 Skamania Lodge “226.58 -6,354.79
Tolal Charges and Cash Advances -6,354.79 -6,354.79
Payments and Cradits - 2 items
Bilt 08/14/2018 Wells Fargo 500.00 500.00
Bilt 06/156/2018 Wells Fargo 500.00 1,000.60
Total Uncleared Transactions -5,354.79 -5,354.79
Register Balance as of 06/17/2018 8,895.69 14,846,80
New Transactions .
Charges and Cash Advanhces - 7 ltems
Credit Card Charge  06/19/2018 Trader Joes -19.45 -19.45
Credit Card Charge  08/20/2018 Nineveh Assyrian -302.39 -321.84
Credit Card Charge  06/20/2018 San Franscisco Sire... -55,20 -377.04
Credit Card Charge  06/21/2018 Wenatches Valley M... -250.00 -627.04
Credit Card Charge  06/2172018 8363 US Postal Service -33.60 -660.54
Credit Card Charge  06/22/2018 8364 UprPs -33.45 -693,99
Credit Card Charga 06/28/2018 8370 UPS -9.85 -703.84
Total Charges and Cash Advances -703.84 -703.84
Total New Transactions -703.84 -703.84
Ending Balance 9,599.53 16,550.64

Page 2




CONTRACT NUMBER: SUBRECIPIENT
: Washington State Departmentof | CBO23407 Xyves [INO

’ H e ﬂ l th g‘ﬁg F EIF;I\S REQUIRED

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Washington Department of Health, hereinafter
referred to as DOH, and the party whose name appears below, hereinafter referred to as Contractor.

CONTRACTOR NAME and ADDRESS:
Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson Street SW, Suite A
Tumwater, WA 98512

UBI #: 600-330-344

PURPOSE: The purpose of this contract is to collaborate with Thurston Conservation District to restore
riparian function while preserving farmland in Henderson Inlet, Eld Inlet, Totten Inlet and the Nisqually
reach.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED THAT:

STATEMENT OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide all the necessary personnel, equipment,
materials, goods and services and otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of
the work as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance under this
contract shall be from the Date of Execution through March 31, 2020 unless sooner terminated as
provided herein.

DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES APPROVAL: This contract may be required to be
filed with the Department of Enterprise Services (DES) for approval under the provisions of Chapter 39.26
RCW. No contract or amendment required to be so filed is effective and no work thereunder shall be
commenced nor payment made therefore until ten (10) working days following the date of filing, and, if
required, until approved by DES. In the event DES fails to approve the contract or amendment, the contract
shall be null and void.

FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA): If checked
above, this contract is supported by federal funds that require compliance with the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA or the Transparency Act). The purpose of the Transparency
Act is to make information available online so the public can see how federal funds are spent.

To comply with the act and be eligible to enter into this contract, your organization must have a Data
Universal Numbering System (DUNS®) number. A DUNS® number provides a method to verify data
about your organization. If you do not already have one, you may receive a DUNS® number free of charge
by contacting Dun and Bradstreet at http:/www.dnb.com/ .

Information about your organization and this contract will be made available on www.USASpending.gov
by DOH as required by P.L. 109-282. DOH’s form, Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 1 of 54
Revision April 2018



Data Collection Form, is considered part of this contract and must be completed and returned along with
the contract,

CONSIDERATION: The maximum consideration available under this contract shall not exceed

$300,000 without a properly executed wrilten amendment signed by representatives of both parties
authorized to do so. Consideration includes but is not limited to all taxes, fees, surcharges, etc.

Source of Funds:
Federal: $300,000 State: $0 Other:  $0 TOTAL: $300,000

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable rules and regulations associated with these funds.

Unless otherwise indicated in this contract, any State funds which ate unexpended as of June 30th will not
be available for carry over into the next State fiscal year (July — June).

INVOICES AND PAYMENT: Contractor will submit invoices to the DOH Project Manager for all
amounts to be paid. hvoices must reference this contract mumber and provide detailed information as
requested. All invoices must be approved by DOH prior to payment; approval will not be unreasonably
withheld. DOH will authorize payment only upon satisfactory completion and acceptance of deliverables
and for allowable costs as outlined in the statement of work and/or budget. DOH will return all incorrect
or incomplete invoices and will not pay for services that occur outside the period of performance. The
Contractor will not invoice for services if they are entitled to payment, have been, or will be paid by any
other source for that service.

DOH will issue payment within 30 days of receiving a correct and complete invoice and approving the
deliverable(s). DOH must receive correct and complete invoices per the Statement of Work, Txhibit A (it
applicable) or within 60 days after the contract expiration date, whichever is eatlier. Late invoices will be
paid at the discretion of DOH and are contingent upon the availability of funds, Failure to submit a properly
completed IRS form W-9 may result in delayed payments.

GOVERNANCE: In the event of an inconsistency in this contract, unless otherwise provided hercin, the
inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:

Federal statutes and regulations

State statutes and regulations

Contract amendments

The contract (in this order)

Federal compliance and Standard Federal Certifications and Assurances (Attachment 3]
Primary document (document that includes the signature page)

Standard/General Terms and Conditions (Exhibit B)

Statement of Work (Exhibit A)

Towr

hal

UNDERSTANDING: This contract, including referenced exhibits, attachments and documents included
herein by reference, contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this contract shall exist or bind any of the
parties hereto,

APPROVAL: This contract shall be subject to the written approval of DOH Contracting Officer and shall
not be binding until so approved. Ouly the Contracting Officer or his/her designee, by written delegation
made prior to action, shall have the expressed, implied, or apparent authority to alter, amend, madify, or

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 2 of 54
Revision April 218




waive any clause or condition of this contract. Furthermore, any alteration, amendment, modification, or
waiver of any clause or condition of this contract is not effective or binding unless made in writing and
signed by the Contracting Officer,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: DOH and the Contractor have signed this contract. |

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE DATE

PRINT OR TYPE NAME AND TITLE

DOH CONTRACTING OFFICER SIGNATURE DATE

This document has been approved as to form only by the Assistant Attorney General.

NOTE: The Contractor’s signature is also required on Attachment 1,
Federal Certifications and Assurances (pages 31 and 54).

DO Contract CB(023407 Page 3 of 54
Revision April 2018



810T [udy uotstaay

S Jo  aSeg LOFETOED 1W0enuo) HOA
welbold
LiEsH Jo 89ue]sISsy uoneuawa|duw) AousBy uglas0ld
VIN ON 000'00€$ | 000‘00E$ . pue suonebiisaau| | £Z1'99 | 000°000'5$ [BIUDWIUOLIAUT | 9T0Z/Z/8 0-1.008LrL00d
1dsg Ym LS
[ea1uy2a ] epuaby $31815 paun
uoloYy punos 18bnd :
aalnog
u Bujpuny o
ajey awdo mw_:.w _3_ .Aco_t«. M_ﬁ >M“mm< 0} premy ajeq JaquinN
N0 | PG PRENISD | Awseelimo | yBneay oL weiboid va49 | #VQ4D | |esepad ayy | awen Aousby jesspay | premy uonesyRUap|
uuw._:u_-__ pue m—u_._zn_ spund |eispaq wwmn_ o uC_._OEGq |e1apa4 -u._mgdq _N._m—um-n_
Buwiy yaa |eJapaq 40 junowy Jo awep 4 2
BaS3yY | jo junowy |ejol
[ejoL
uonosield JeyqeH pue Ajjent Jalep 1o} Usi4 pue suued JayjeBo) Buibuug z5£0-91.0Z YN uonduosaq joaloid
Kiejes yes Jo %0l 0202 ‘L€ yaltey - 30d 3jueulIol3d Jo polad
3jey j031ipu] pasoiddy 0S8 £87 891 # SNNA
19}SIBWUIBAA USISIY
L0¥£2092 # JoelUOD
LEEE'9E2709¢E l[eaieq Aoeil
AOB EMOp@SuBmey Aoei]

uoljewJlojuj Joejuon Jabeuep joen3U09 HOQ Joulsiq UoljeAlasuog uolsinyl Jojoesnuogpuaidioalqng

}99Ysg uoljewloju| Jue.s) [eiapa]

uo12310.4d JelIqRH pue Alljeny Jaiep 10 Ysi4 pue swied Jaylabo) buibulg
SAIlBINU| 21631118 YSIY||IRYS

0202 ‘I€ HOYVIA - NOILADAXH 40 ALVA
LOTALSIA NOILVAYHSNOD NOLSI1HL
LO¥E€20dD LOVIINOD HOA
MIOM 40 INFINALVLS
LOPE£T0dD LOVIINOD HOA
Y LIGIHXA




2107 [Udy UOISIAZY
76 30 § 98eq LOPETOED Penuo) HOA

“wei301 ] uLie] Ueqi() Ue ISAIRD
pue a3ea1d [[im pue spuednired g Jo WNWIIXeU € 03 SUTUTeD) uLiej uo-spuey apraoid [Im (D) UojSIMY, ‘SIoULTe] SUNSIXS pue Mau
01 sanoj urrey pue sdoysyiom (g Jo [e03 & Yiim Suturer; ssautsng / SuresIews ey pue Juauragewrew wiey apraoid [m (D uoismyy,

"SOUDTRUT UTTULIR] SW0D3q A3} “SINDD0 JeU} UayMm Pue JOSUU0D SIDUMOPUE] "SpIau I8l 113

TeU} SISUMOpUE[ 10 PUE] I0J O0O[ 03 Pas001d Usy} “SurjuLre; Ul [[OIUd Ued SISUMOopueT] ‘(uogonpoid L1rageniq 1roddns jey; suonipuod
31T YIIMm 931s asea] e ur paoefd st 1eonpoid Auraqanyq e *3-a) ases] 103 a[qefrese A31odoid S]qeims 9Ly OYM SISUMOPUE] HLM PUe]

JO Pa3U UT SI5ULIR] SUTUDIEW UI JSISSE [[IM SUTTurre ] ay, urei301d uIuLle,] a3 eI 3[qIssa00e aq [[1m aseqeiep orqnd sATORISUT

UV ‘JUSWIISES UOGRATISUOD € Ym pajpaord 1o uoponpoid ur pueruirey payruspt deey o} suondo dopasp [im @O uoisimyL

‘souprew T 0 dn aeloey M (D) UOISIYL, “(UruLre] U0ISIy]) }Ip Wing 03 Apeal SISULre] MaU UM Pue] MO[[e] JO SISUMO Ypjet
pue AFIuspr 03 310338 U} SMUKUOD [[IM (D U0ISIMYT) PLHSI UOYRAIISUOD) UOISINY] ‘sTowred Jo UOTI[EOD ProIq B Uiim SUD{Iopm

MIINYEAO

CSE0-910T ‘(I WOoHOY ULIS] 183N

000D0E $ *P=90Xa 03 10N

1ypear A[renbsi a1} pue S}9[U[ USHO], PUe ‘PlH ‘UOSIIPUSH Ul puefuiie; Suratesard

a[nm uonouny werredil 103531 [[IM UOTIRIOQR[[0D ST} ‘SUresls Sulreaq-uowues jusoe(pe spue| rexnyrotide ur Sursnooy suonduosa 399/oLd FRrg

0Z0Z ‘1€ UDIBIAl - UOLINIAXY JO 91k (] :90URUIIONS ] JO POLId]
ATeTes jye3s 3o 9,01 21ey] Paxrpy] pasoiddy

Legg-9¢T (09€)

AOS EM JOPISUD[MEL] AJel] ‘sunimeL] £oe1], (Goze-9£7 (09€) A0S M 0P DTS OWUTI | URISITY ‘I91STOUILI M Ue1SIT] :1a8eueA 10eIU0D) HOA
00-TFFTO0AMS -#I0PU/\ 2pIMaielg

FFe 0€€ €09 414N

0S8 €87 891 % SNNA

71586 VM “ISTEMUIILT, “MS 1S U0snS1a7 8167 “885c-F5/ (09¢) “TI0D POUCISINUTOMUAWE ‘YosUIp-UoIeH Aury :3083uo) wardaIqng

19LIST(] UOLRAIRSUOD) AJUnoy) uojsiny ] ‘uoneznre3iQ jusrdpaiqng

LOFETOED HRqUINU 10elU0])

LOPEZOID LOVUINOD HOA
V LI9IEXH

{’\‘}

J30.44 Aenis3y [euolieN|

DZDOm ._.m_OD&



810¢ [udy uoIsIAsy

p$Jo g ofeqg LOFPETOED Wenuo) HOA
]

"SI9395 PUR| 10 SISUMOPUE] St Weirdol ] JUIrjuLe] punog

0Z/00S [[onIs/qoeay nog ut (g [[o1ua pue sAemIazem 03 Arumxord uo paseq SIaUmopUe] 05 JO WNWILIW € Yoeay

00T SIDJEUL [ETIUS}0] ‘sjuedpnred Yurjwie punog yimog o3 saypjew regusiod goT pusg

siaujred

UOT}EATIISUOD JIMm -aseipind aydurs 995 10 Juswases

] s3uneawr Af1a3reny) UOLRAIISU0D 31e0S3N "UOTISURT} Ul PURULIR] UM SIaumopue] AJqusp] ‘uorysey ordajexns

PUe paeurpIond e ur Uoearasuod yoeordde 03 s9U1Us UOTIRAISSIOD 218}[DE] PUER JUSAUOD)

o SISuMopue| "SU01Y3}01d UOEAIISUOD I9U}0/S1UIWSES UOTRAISSUOD Sunuawa[dult sTaumopue| ¢

suora301d UOLEAISSUOD 1930 10 SPUSIISES UOT}RAIISLIOD

00T S2I10Y U3nony; spaysIejepq punog 3a8n J ur skemiIszesm Iesu pue| [eImyroride Jo sa1e (07 199301

{A3quinu,))

SEE ]

(.s213e, *5-9)

ST

(.pauados. spaq ysyjpys,, “2:3)

uondiuassg

‘}oda gLVHA 9y Jo usuodwon e St 3[qer ST, A0[aq $)Se} U} UT J1I0 Pa[ed SeInseaut pue s3[qeIsal[ep A=y sezireurwmns Ajduirs sy,

SAAILD3G0 F1aVINSVAN ® STVOD

seare Ajuotrd ur sanyradord ajeand uo syio33e uoneAIISUOD /

UOHEIOISL 343 0} UORIPPE UL 3q [[Im IS, "8G YSTES U} O [[e 10 33IS UOHRTSUOWAP © Se SUOHRPUSUIIIONal Iajjng werredr mau sy
yuswraduur 03 sdox Terauszad pue sSunuerd aaneu Jo puslq € YIim paloisar 39 [[1m punog 128nJ ojur urexp yey; yoeay Arenbsin pue
S19[U] USHOT, Pue “p[g "U0SISPURH jO seare onyderdoad sy ur ‘sureass Suireaq-uowes o3 juede(pe puel fermymouse ‘Aprys ased e sy

LOPET0ED LOVIINOD HOd

V LIdIHXH

weldold AJenis3 [euonen

ANNOS 1395Nd




#6330 £ o8eg

9107 Judy uoIsIA9y
LOFEZOHD enuo) HOJ

“pIemeqns STy} I9PUN JUSWISINUIIAL 10§ J[qI3T[auL

3q [ ( dse T, Jo uona[durod au3 o3 1oud paja]duiod NIoA) “PIEME]NS ST} I9PUN I0M 130 Aue SUNEnIUT 31079q pajerdwon aq jsnux yse; sT],

yuswdoreaaq alorg OASYIH =

‘pIemeqns SIY} YILM PajRIoOsSE SIUT[peap Pue ‘s3[qeIaslap ‘sx{se} a4 ale SUIMO[0F 3L

SHIIVIAHAITEA 2 SMSV.L
0T JouRISISSE ‘SIDWIIE} ()7 03 90UB}SISSE [EDURUl pue SUTurel} ssaulsng apraoid
0T sinoy/sdoysyriop ‘sagmunireddo o wrey/sdoysyIom g IpLacid

"(9a0qe payDeal ()G U3 03 UOTITPPE UL ST ST} — 230Uu)
005 spuedonred sao10eI ] JuswaSeur Ay 1seg pue Sunerew ‘Jurnre[d ssaUISNq 10§ SISUITE] 0} UOHEITIPI 9PIAOL]
ocoidn sa1oe -sdo> [ernymoude ennusiad pue sjueld aaneu Surzmn uonosjoxd tepng werredi juswaduy
002 yoeay farqenb zayem uo syoeduat a3 pue ssonoead fernymonde weqin Surpredal paydeal SENPIATPUL 00T
suapre3d
Ananuuro)
g UAIM IO M
suapred Amumurwod Sunsmxe 10 Suruurdaq ¢ 03 90URISISSE [EDTULD3] IPTAOL]
UILM padIom
9 suapIes [00Ydg
suapred [00YDSs g O} SDUBISISSL [EDIUYD3} 9PIAOL]
LOPETOID LOVIINOD HOA
V LI9IHXH {

A ..,4 \Jl]
AJEI .U.I

NO_._M,_,,/_

ANNOS Fm_OD&




810 [Hdy uocIsIAay
$S 3o g o8eg LOFE20ED 10enU0) HOJ

apraoad [qum pue ‘pafod zod yderSered e mnoqe v [N oy 10§ yoeordde stsArewe we apraoid [[1m wres) SSaUSADOSHS JSd ‘payoen Suraq sorewr
1o3loxd Burp re3az ures) ssausAN0gR (JSd) drysreugre ] punog 1280 ayp yam (samurnu g¢) auoydara) era JNSU0d pue PRI [[Im JuardpaI-qns L,

{(219VDI1ddV 4]) NOLLVIINSNOD SSANIALLITAIT ' 0

'sananoe werSord moA jo ssaoons pue eduwr s noqe noL [[3) S}{NSI IWOdINO U} Fesm SSTSTP 03 pasn “afoxd
SUmO[[0] *SPOYFaW UOHIIT[0D eep Surpnppur uogenyeas 10§ suerd s,ureaSoxd moA Suiqrosap uawnoop Junnrerd s8ed auo 310ys ajapduwon)
:(ALVIAWAT HO) NV1d NOLLYNTYAT €0

"¢ 98ed Zunadwiod Jo nar] ur wioj 1earem JIVO) 943 03 pepuadde aq Aew (1°T ysel)
ueld joafoxd parrejsp sy, ‘pasocrdde pue pajardwmod are s12ATEM 10 JIVE) 943 [HUn wiSaq jou Aew BJEp [BJUSUIUOIIAUS SUTIII[0D 0] Paje[al MI0MM

‘paaocidde

ST pue paja[dwod are s19ATem J VT Ui [Hun urdaq J0U AUl ejep [ejuswuoIiAus Sunsxa Buisn 10 mau Zurjoa[od 03 paye[al YIOMM
"ddVO ay3 2ao0adde pue dofaasp 03 DY) JHN- I01eUIPI00D) ANTeny) JAN S,A30[007 Yiim d10Mm T syuetdmar-qns ‘parmbar st JIV0
eI ( SIUBINSSE-AH[EN(/SIDIAISS-OFHUIDS /1R I9d0-aM- MO /ST-N0q /A0S €M AS0[009//:5d11Y ) a8ed geMm 0URINSSY .ﬁ.ﬂmﬁ@ JAN m\mwoﬁnuum
jo yusunreds(q ayeig U0ISuUTsEAA 93 SULMaTAST Iojye SUISN WLIOT I9ATE M e J 303lo1] sduemssy Ajeng) e Jruagns [[im justdmai-qng
INAWJOTIAI (IIVO) NV1d LOF(0¥J HONVINSSY ALITVAD T°0

M..6E.98 TCT apmyBuo ‘q8L | N LILI LF apmne] "egl

VN, 123u2 3stmIayjo ‘ATuo syuerd afoxd sgwads aoeld 101 :NOLLYIOT 1DALOMNI

"pasn 8q 0sTe Aewr 01350 s JuaLdDaIqNS © JO $33RUIPI00D YT, "JeULI0] SUIMO[[0] 3y Ul $39133p [ewmap Ut (spnyrSuof
‘apririer) sapeurpIo0d 103fo1d yrugns pnoys s1adeuew pafoxd [y oslord arayy 103 eyep reneds jueasfar spiaocid prnoys seSeurur 301

“Aressadau are sjuswarnbal [eUonIPPE OU PUe SUOHD3SIBIUT 9SURYD S} aaey Aeur suonde J1 99s o} 3oalord 9} JO MITAJL © PIJRII[IDE]
sey HO( "sawooino pue suoneoadxs jsloid squossp o3 surpswy pue surpno 1sfoxd pareiap  e1esn [im spueidpai-qng mo[aq syse} Uz Ul

Juawssassy auelD arewI)D) pue e renedg palorg 10

LOYECOED LOVIINOD HOA

v LIEIHXE WeJ30.d Aenjsy [euoieN|

ANNOS 139Nd



810T [udy uotsiay
+¢ Jo 6 a8ed L0¥ETOED Wenuo) HOd

jrgns rosuodg 103(0x] 3} el [EORLID SI 31 ‘SI0JRISY} B[NPAYPS Sunrodar V3 S, WeIS01] jUeIs) sy} ULIOJUT 0} paduds axe spotad Funrodar sy,

'ssa1301d yjim ADUSISISUOD 10§ PaMITAAI 3] [[IM

saotoay] A[yuour wey; Apuenbaiy s1ow ou yng pue A[zeirenb see] 18 PARIUIGNS 3q ISTILL SVLOAU] “I0FLSIUILPY ORIUOD UHEIH 30 qusunreda
a3 01 “VI-61V oY YHm papniout suwtoj a[qedtjdde [[e Yiim SSDI0AUL pue sI[RISATRP ‘sy10do1 ssarSoxd Apzeprenb [rews [[1m justdpaI-qns Sy
S1I0dTY SSTID0UJ ANV DNIJIOAN] ATHILEVN) Z'T

110daz Ajreyrenb 3sI yitm prom GIA Ul jruIqns pue (STe[duaa) papraoT TsTl) j9ayswoey psload e ayear)

LIFHSLIVY LoA(0dd T'T
"SUOHIPU0D PUe SULIS] [erapaj Surd[zepun [[e yim Arduxoo pue 03 1979y

JuewraaiSe a3 Ul PUuIno sajep uonajdurod Aue yiim aouepIodde ul joaloxd o AxreD) ‘swat aoweuriojrad paimbai jo eprugns pue

paloxd s 105 Aressavau syySu Aradoxd 10 ‘sjusursses ‘sasusdt] ‘sruatad parmbaz e Yim souerdwon pue “jo 3d1e0az ‘10j uogeordde ‘syusurarmbaz
JuawWaa13e [e00]-I97ul pue Sureuod Juawamdold siqesridde yim aouerjduos ‘syzodar ssaidoxd pue ‘swiIog [23SY ‘SIAUONOA Juswded

70 TeRTUIqnS ‘SpI00al j0ao1d Jo oURURIIIRIAL "PIeME QIS ST M Pajeloosse sjuawrarmbar Sunzodar pue UORDI[0D ejep ) SIQLIISAP NSe} SIL

puilioday pue Juswabeuey 133[0id " | MSVL 44

(A1essaoau
020T 1€ YoreN J1) UOLFER}[MSU0D SSIUSALDIFFH il
“uonarduos 1PeRU0d J AP
Teurq ‘ayep 11els juaweaide Jo sAep 09 URIIM anp eI ue[J uonenEAg €0
$3S00 Tenjoe uo paseq ﬁum.dﬁmuma Bt &%@ pue
a1ep 1IE3S JUswaaIde Jo sAep g UM anp 1yei( Wi UOheururiald( ILArM JIVO 70
00s$ JUDUISSASSY
9107 ‘ST Am[ 0} dn JUSWIISINGUITY ayewnr) pue ereq Tenedg 3sforg

ayep woparduro) | JUSWIASINITISNY | J[qEIRATR IquInN]

“UTea) SSAURATIOSIIA JSJ YF JHLM J0rjU0D Ul jusidmal-gns sy ynd of [reurs
ue pues [T aageiussardar werSoxd juers 1§ USY(aYS A, Urea] Aros1ApY aATenIIU] 2139381)G YSTT[AUS SY) 03 SISATeuR SS3UIATIOR]FS 3} JO S)Nsat

LOPETOED LIVIINOD HOA

M wesSoud Auenjsg [euolieN|

ANNQOS 13d9MNd




8107 [udy uorsiaay
530 01 98ed ooy e

610T Pue 8107 :owrumng  :usamiaq pagardwod Sunaodar renueur N
0Z0T ‘6102 ‘810T :TTed pue Sunidg ugamiaq pajerdwres Junaodar I N

SIseq [enuue Ue U0 SUOOe I19Y3 JO SNIR)S [BDULUL] e

SISeq JeNUURTUISS B U0 SUOTIR I1Y} JO Sje)s uonejuawaidu]

:3urmorjoy s uo y1odar 03 parmbai ate sTaUMO YN
ONLLI0dTY VLN AIHIN0TY dIHSYANLAVJ ANNOS 13904 Z°7°T

uonarduwos penuod uodn :£q pararduron 1rodar sy g reurg
1 139010
1 mdy :4q parerduwon aq ysnw Sunzodsy sIvHI

"paures] suossa| JulssTIsIp pure sawooino aloxd Suny3mySry 4osloxd smua

S} SQUOSIP [[1M pue ‘Rreid ayj Jo pus ay 1aie 4noasop 1slord Sunmp papracid aq [um “8urnq 30sload reury ayy Sunosyar 410dax g1 g
[euy ay L, ‘1oda1 L yH A Teuy e se [[am se ‘sprodaa ssaxfoxd (washg Supyovi] Surunoody wayshsosg puv wiouvuly) SLVHI [enure-1q ajayduwon)
SIVAIT'Z'T

:sjuswrarmbar Sunroday

T Arenue[ Aq anp Areuwrung 1€ 99 — 1 1390320 'POLIaJ I93IENy) YN0,

(171 Ase @9s) Arewrumns joafoxd se aatas [im STV 0¢ 1deg - T Amf poLIa IajTenyy paryr,
ST Am[ 4q snp Arewrurng og aun( - T (udy pOLIa3J I8Teny) puodsg

(17T vse], 29s) Arewruns 30a(01d se 9AISS [[M SIVE] € YoTeA — [ Arenue| {POLI3J IS)Ienyy 18ILg

"(mor2q 99s) syusurarmbai Sunoder ayy [Te pajerdwon Arooeysnes saey nok ey WUIPIAY e
51500 10 “fIom Jo adoas ‘ayep uonardwod sy Sunoagye seourelsWNOID 10 werqoid Aue Jo uondiosa e
'SI[qRISAL[SP ULIS}-TeaU pue sananoe 1daloxd ay 105 jep uonsdurod pue smyes ayl e
"S3[qRIBALRP
patardurod Aue pue s1aured Lue pue 1osuods joalord syp £q Surpuads rejo; Surpnpur “1a31enb jse[ aip ur pajarduwos y10m 8y3 jo uondisapy e
FUITIUITUILT € e ‘Spnput [[eys sizodar ssa18o1] “papraord st S7e[d W] v -=a[npayos Surmofroy ays 03 Surpiosoe

LOPETOLD LOVIINOD HOQ

¥ LIERCe WeJ30.14 AJenis] [eUOIIEpN|

ANNOS 149Nd



210z [dy uoIsiaoyg
#5370 11 358d LO¥ETOED Wwenuo) HOA

(11 29s) 399ysioeg 1alo1] parepdn ue aq [rm 3x0dax oaloxd Teury

a3 yitm papnpuyg “werd 309 (o1d pafrelap 9y} Ul PARUIPT SANSLIUW 20reur1ofrad aiyj BUIASILDE O §S3DINS A} SFENTesd [[LM j10da1 [euy ST, I0M
2ININJ I0J SUOEPUSUIWIONAI PUE PIUTEI] SUOSSS] ‘SHNSSI ‘SPOYIIU 3} SIGLIOSIP 183 SISUMO 109loxd ayp Aq uepLIm 3 [[im }roda1 [euy v
Ly0day Loalodd TVNIg €T

uonadwos oexucd vodn puy
Aqrenuue ‘g1 12900 :4q pejarduron Sunrodar ggM/A9IN
Ire q p

"000°05T$ SPSs9x3 YaTyM

wontod ey 1snl 10u ‘ajqeirodaz are suonoe jusurainoold [V "SIseq [enuue we uo (YZ6-0045 wiog V) Hodar Stusursarfy AousBersiug

pue sjuswaaIsy sageadoo)) ‘sjrels) [eIepad Jopun UOLRZIH ] HEM/IGIN,, € Jugns pue 33a[dwod o saa13e justdoar 9y, "SUOLEdIpOuT
I0/pUe spusIIpUstIe SUIPNOUL ‘000*0STS JO FUNOWTE PIOYSI] a3 Pasoxa jeyi 41039480 19430, 343 UL SUEO[ 10 SpIemedqns Iapum
Juswamoord 1o juardmar auy 4Aq juewamooad 1oa1rp 10y pajadpnq spuny Surpniput ‘sarjddns pue seoatas quawmadmbe ‘wononysuos Surmoord
105 pa3eSpnq spuny aTe 2I9Y) AISYM sjudUIaaISe aouelsisse 10§ parmbar st Sunrodar (erapay sHL -Arenuue parmbar st Sunrode1 3gM/A9IN

sra0dTy (AgM/TIIN) SSANISNG AANMQ-ALIMONIA/NIWOM ¥°Z°T

uoneduros peguod uods) :Aq paserdurod A1jus [HYQ.LS [BUL]

1'ZTse], ‘S[Mpayos SLVHA 23S :Aq pajerdwos Suniodar THIOLS

‘0unIajal 103 ajdures

uonedyIaA Axjue ue st a1af] spodar ssaxdoid Arsirenb a3 ur QI LHYOLS Ui 9PNPU] "SS3I] 10 SI9pORIEYD GE 3q 01 SPadu (I 1olord eanbnm
o (o uoypziuSio 1asur) £107 JAN :SMO[[0 se 13(01d ok sureu ‘JHYOLS Ul Surpes) Ut isisse o, -A[penure papruqns aq prnoys (1
9(] — T Ue[) Teak Tepusied aInus Ue 10§ ejec] “paimbar aq [im Sunoder THNOLS ueys (erep 1e3qey pue [20120701q 1910 PUE ‘190000I}UY
10 100 g “uaSonu [ez03 ‘snozoydsoyd ‘Hd “Arprgimng ‘Aynutres ‘emmjeredurs) 1oesm ‘UaBAX0 PAATOSSIP *3-3) ejep [EJUSUIUOIIAUD 10 [T
TeotsAyd Lue 3oaf[os syustdpar-qns J1 'V dg £q pado[easp erep Surrojmrour Ayrenb 1ajem 103 WSAS eyep OTUOII[R UR 0} 813731 THYOLS
ONILYOdTY V1VA (LAY O.LS) IINVHIXE ALITYND) YTLV M ANV TVASRL LAY ANV 39VIQLS £'C'T

“pourea] suossa Suissnosip pue sawodino yaford SunySmyeny 1oofoxd armua
o} 5qLISAp [[IM pue “ueId sy Jo pua ay Iajye 4noasop asloxd Surmp papraoid aq [ Burfiq oaloxd peury ez Sunospyar 41ode1 SIVHEA
reuy sy, 1oda1 gL vE ] rews e se [am se ‘syiodar ssarSoxd (wiagshg Suppvi] Sununoodyy wiagshsoog pup [pouvul]) SIVEA Teruue-1q aerduro)

LOPET0ED LOVALINOD HOA
V LIdIHXA

R LAt A imonic 1ol IoneN |
LUBISOIA] AJEI Dﬂwul _.ﬂ.rho_ww\mw \J

ANNOS 13DNd



10T [HdV uoIsIATY
#530 71 e8¢eq L0PETOED Wenuo) HOd

"$S800T1S PUR 2DUIPIFU0D YAIM Ydjewr 03 sjredonred
11oddns 0 032 sarnonuys ases] armjonyseur pue juswdmba ‘sjo03 Sunueuy puer ‘ssyerdus; aseay Sururejuoo sjuedpired 10§ Areiqry
0IN0sa1 paseanul ue ysnoyy moid osfe [m wexdoxd snyy, -uononpoxd [ermmornde uw puey Surureia1 Aqaray ‘suedpnred o) pareys

sayprew Tenuajod QT pue s1sess puel 10 SIUMOpUe] JoUie se urerdord yurjuire] sy ur SUI[OIUS S[ENPIATPUT 07 YILM ‘urerSord

SU3 IMOqe Pajesnpa aq [[1M SIBUMOPUE] ()G 1SE3] 1V "S}USWIIIL 3[es pur 95ea] 838ald 0} SISPIOY PUR| PUe SISass PUe| SSUpIewW YoTym
‘urexSord Yuruwireg Punog ynog aur Mo18 [[im PHISIJ UOHRAIISUOD) U0ISINY ] ‘SPUe] PayLUspl 3U; Uo suonsa;oid UOeAIsSuod
13130 10 S}UIWAsEs UOHEAISSUOD 321U} 3}eRo3au [[im pue juswrdorasap ojur wononpoid wory uonisuesn SULIeau 10 U pueuLie; yimm
SIUMOpPUR] AJHUSP! [[LM UOHEHTIR] ST, *AJUNoD) UO0JSINY ] Ul S)USWases U0HeAIssuod Sunnoaxa pue Sunenogau 103 aqIsuodsaz
SUOTeZIURS10 33 JO [’ SUSAUOD [[IM JOLIISI( UOHEAIISUOD) UOISINY], 9y} ‘S1seq Ajzaprenb e uQ ‘jusurdo[@Asp oTwouods ur Sungsaaur
Aq £1renb 1arem Sunpsjord pue uononpoid rermymonSe ur puey ure3a 03 szeonpoid remymoude UIM SUDIOM UO SISTID0F 3Se3 SIY

sAemialep\ punos 196nd yinos ui Alijend Jarep pue pueT |[einindiby JO UOIIRI0Id "Z MSV.L 44

uonardurod oenuod payepdn 399G 10 parepdn pue jrodaz reurg &1
uonardwod joesjuod uodn pue A[enue ‘c] 19qoR0 Junrodey 9gM/agIN 7L
1°CT 3[Mpayss SLVHA 2] (paxmbai j1) 1TIOLS €T
0Z0T pue 10T teurumng Smelg [ERURUL] e

sTye)g uonejuawaIdul] e

0T0Z PUe 6107 ‘S10T [1ed pue Sundg Bugroday VIN paambay dsd | zTT

Areruue ‘T 19qo30(0) pue [dy syrodal G V] [enuue-Tsg 7T
S3S0D [erjok uo paseq saLIPWIWING

Afrenunre ‘c1 Lrenue[ pue Amn[ 08'8/7'67$ pelo1g pue soroaur Aj1a3reny) A

03 dn JuaasINquUITaY 199Yg 106y 303lo1g

810Z ‘ST A

91ep uorrduros) JUDS U3 SINqUITSY] S qRISATR Jaqunp

LOPETOID LDVIAINGD HOA
v L wesSo.ld Aienisy [eUonepn|

ANNOS 139Nd



8107 [udy uoIstaay
$¢J0 €1 29ed v

Ajunon) uojsImy] Sy "SudpIesd AJTunuimod 10§ a0ue)sIsse [edIUyda} pue ‘suspIeS [00UDS 10§ 3DURISISSE [EDNUPa} Pue dHewrersold
‘sagradoxd ueqm 10§ 20UeISISSE [RITULRS] JO Sunsisuod weidord [emjmonde weqin ue 23eald [[IM PIGSHJ UOHRAIISUOD UOISITL

urerSoag aamymoLISy ueql ) ue IBAISP A[3ARJe pue do[aasq £2

‘§830011S puE
20USPIFUOD YHM UDJRul O} spedonred jroddns o3 ..uu\m S2INJONI}S 9Sea] SINIONIISLIJUL pue juswdmba ‘s[00} Sumureury pue| ‘sajerduray
asea] Sururejuod syuedonred 10y ATeiqr] 80IN0SAT PIsEIIdUL UB y8noxp moid osre [ wexaord snyy, “uononpod rerymotide

ur puey Sururejar £qazays ‘sywredpnaed o3 pareys saypyew feusjod QT PUE SIS PUe] 10 STOUMOPLUE] 1S SB urer8oxd yurjuieg
oy ut Surp[oIus sTenprarpur 0z vim ‘urexdoid sy3 SurpreSar payoesal aq 1M SISUMOPUE] (08 15E3[ 1V ‘s1UsUIaaIde 9Tes PUE 95es] 93eald
0 SI9P]OY PUe] PUe S19329S pue] Saypeu Yonym ‘urerdord Jurjuiie] punog yimog ai MOI3 [[IM PILISI(] U0 BAISSUOD) UOISINY] YL,
WVYDO0Ud JNITIWIVY] ANNOS HLNO0S MOdD Z°C

SN ], pueuLre] ATUnuIuo) purmnog s} Jo Jinog pue sniy, pue] TondeD) :apnul 103§ ST} Ul sTaujre “Surpuny pue

MITADI RIS 10] POHTWIQNS Us3q 3AeY Jey) SPUE] PAHUSPT U3 U0 SU0RD9101d UOEAIISUOD IO I0 SPUIUISSES UOHEAIISUOD 91U}
a1e09ou [[im pue Juawdo[eAsp ORI UoHoNpoId WI0Iy UoTIsUeT} SULIEIU I0 UL PUBTUIIR] 1M SISUMOPUE] AJiusp! [[1m UOTRII[IoR]
ST, “UOTEAISsU0D pure| [ermynoride o3 ypeoidde or8ajexns e Juewadwi pue do[aasp 03 AJUnoD) UOISILY ], Ul SJUSUISSEd UOHRAISSUOD
gunnoaxa pue Jurenoau 10y a[qrsuodsar suoneZIIeSIO AU JO [[& SUSAUOD [[IM LIS UOHRAIISUOT) UOISITIT, U ‘s1seq A1193renb e uQ
ANNOS 1390d HLNOS NI SAVMYALVM dVIN ANVT TVENLTNORIV 40 STHIV 00 Z LIELOUd T°C

S[IOM STU} JO S}NSSI pue SpUaI} 9U} JUSUINO0P [[1m weidord NEHYD PUnos ynos ay3 £q pajonpuod Surojruour Ayenb

1972 "9pMNS SuTuapIES UegIn puE TeNURW 3DO0JSIAT] Wedin e SUIPT[DUT S[ELISjeU (Dealino Mau Jo uononpoid 3y} apnpur os[e

T urexSoad smymonde weqm s,([D] "seorpeid Suruepred Arunuruiod Iy} ySnony uonniod rarem Suruaaaid ur ‘s1oumoauIoy
-uou Surpn[oUl ‘SPUSpPISal [[€ JAISS 1913q 0} SUSPIES AJUNUILIOD Pue [0S Y30q UL 30Ue}SIsse [EDII23} pue Sururnurerdord
Amumuauros Aq pajusura]duiod 3 [[Lm 0URISISSE [EDIUYDa} Paseq IsUmMOpUR ] ‘SUOHIBgUI Ayrenb 1ayem ssrasal pue juasaid

diay s DL “Iarem o3 uonnjod juaadid o3 suonde Supe; Ul sjuaprsal sopm3 yey wexSoxd [emymonSe weqin we SULISAL[PP pue
Sunean £g "punog 1231 Jo Ayrenb 1ajem ay3 03 1eaIL © s950d SIRTALDE 3SAU} JO UORY "SIUSPISAI Ueqin £q pasrer Suraq Yo03saAl pue
sdom prefyoeq [[ews pue Sealy UIMOoIo) Ueqi(] U} UM Pajedo] SULIe) aTe 313U} ‘Sasealoul uoremdod pue dofaAsp 03 SINUHU0D
Aunon) uojsIny], Sy ‘SuspIed AJTUnunuios 10§ 3oUe3SISSe [edIUPa) Pue ‘SUapIed [00DS 10§ 0UR)SISSE [EINID3) pue orpeururerford
‘sappradoid weqm 105 sduelsISSE [ONUYPa) Jo Sunsisuod urerZord reInyMOLISe UeqIM Ue 23a1d OS[e [ PPLOSKJ UORRAIISUOD UOISIYT,

LOYEZOED LOVILINOD HOA
V LISIHXE e IR (IS



¥S 70 1 28eg

810 [udy uosAy
LOFPETOED 19E1UC) HOQ

020Z-1€-€0

0202-1€-€0

S}S0D [enIoe Uo paseq
89TOL6TLS

0Z0Z-1€-€0 03 dn jusurasmnquuray]

33ep uonsjduoy) JUS WIS SIN LIS

uonesignd
|enue|A 3301S8AIT UBQIM 31B3ID

AJeugi| 321n0osal 3sNqod JO UoIeald
paJeys sayajew |eijualod QOT

JurTwled
PUNOS Y3nos 01Ul S39||0JUS MdU QF

payoeal sienpiapul 005

q

e

€7

T

"uoijelapisuod

u! saiysdoud Aue jo uoneayiuspl

pue s1onpoud 123foid pue ‘saspuayie
pue sajou pue sepuade Suileaw ywgng

Suipuny 10} palapisuoa
8ulaq S1UBWIRSES UOIIBAISSUOD 33UY |

Ajianenb siaulied susauo)

S[qeIRATR A

q

B

'z

“(hrexd siyy £q papumy jou g juers sy jo 3roddns ur suop srom
Ayrenb 1a3em) y10M ST JO S)NSRI PUre SPULL AU} JUAWMDOP [im wrerdord NHHYD punog yimog ay3 4q pajonpuod Juriojruour Aenb
133 M "IPINS SuruapreS weqim pue [eNURU Y003S3AT Ueqin ue urpnour STeLIaeUI 2eanjTIo MaU Jo uononpoid ay; spnpur ose

T urerBoxd smmymouge ueqin s, ‘seonoerd Suruepres Anumurnuros xey; ySnoryy uoynyod reyem Surjusasid Ul ‘SI9UMO3WoY]

-UOU SUIPIIUL ‘SjUSPISAI [[e 3AIIS 19}39q 0} SUapres Ajrumunuos pue [00YDs Y30q ur soue)sisse Jeoruyps) pue Surururerdord
Arumunuod 4q pajusus]durod aq [[im 30UeISISSE [edTuypa) Ppaseq Isumopue] ‘suonoeul AjTenb Iajem 9s19A1 pue Jusasid

dray msm @D “rerem o3 uonniod jussaid o1 suonoe Sunye; ur syuspisar sapms jeyy urerdord fermymonSe ueqm ue BurIaATep pue
Buges Ag punog 398ng jo Ayirenb rayem aus 03 jeary e sasod sanramoe 953U} JO YoeY 'SJUSPIsaI Weqin Aq paster Suraq y003saAl pue
sdoxm predyoeq rews pue seary ypmorn) ueqin sy ungm P23e00] swire; are 21913 ‘saseanour uorremndod pue dojaasp o3 senumuod

LOPETOID LOVIINOD HOU
V LI9IHXA

weJdold AJenisy [euonen

ANMNOS 1495Nd



$107 [udy uoisiaey
¥530 g1 98eg LOFEZOED 0enU0) HOA

"SIDTAIDS UI2}SAS003 puoAaq puel Iay; wox Ayanonpoid

armbaz yeu Spaysisjem INo Ul suewmny Jo aduasaid sy saSpapmowoe Jey; pus[q € J1q UO[eI03sal [y & JOU ST ST, "UOReARND
[enuue axmbaz jou op yes sdoId WOy ISUMOpUE] 33 10§ AJIqelA JUOUD? SWOS 10§ SULMOJ[E OSTe A[TYM sassan01d weans Teardo[orq
107 Aressanau uononpoid a1eIqalIsAUIOIE Pue IPLYs IPTa0Id 0F SMUHUOD 0} STIUSUL AU, TEJHS 10 SH{OUYPHIe ‘SILLISGaNn[q

‘ggox; 3y se yons sdo Teruusiad Jo SUO 0JUT S331} PUE STLIS JO SPUS[J SALIEU WOLJ SISUFes Jelf} SUO OFUI eale 1ajjnq S9ZIPLIGAY
UOTN[OS ST, “eale I9J1Lq Sy} WO JJausq JIULIOU0Id 1aured 03 snunuod 0} 1eonpoid syt SUIMOTTe IYM UORUny 0 S[qe aIe sassa001d
werredu femyeu axeym uonnios e ave[d ut ynd o3 3NoGIIp S131 ‘eIni[nolide 0} PIUOHISURL JALY Seale uerredr1 a3 JO UoNW S

-sdox rermmowSe reruuszad pue s1apng Uerredi SATEU JO PUS[] € [3im S (g 03 dn Surre;o} sayis 941 04 dn 2103891 pue AJIIUSP]

sJajing ueledry jo uonejusw|dw] "€ NSV.L 44

‘Suizijeuly o1 Jo1id
M3INB] }I3M U0 Joj HOQ 07 |ElI31EW
paund pue suonesignd jle ywgns  f

Axjenb J23em uo syoedul|
3y} pue sa2i30ead [edninalide ueqgun
8uipiedal payaead sjenplalpul 007 'l

suspJes
Aunwulod Suiasixa Jo Sujuuigeq
G 0} 9IUB1SISSE |B2IUYIal apIAcld Y

suapJed jooyds
g 03 9IUBJSISSE |BIIUYD3] IpIADLd '3

uoieolgnd
aping Suiuapied ueqin aleal) )

LOPE€T09D LOVIINOD HOA

VLTI weJ80.d Asenisy [euoljeN|

ANNOS 13495Md



810 (udy uolsaoy
$$30 91 9Feg L0FETOID WwenuoD HOA

“JuaA@ 03 1011d M3TABI 10§ HO( O3 S[eMRTeW JeIp jnuqng “(doyssiom
Iop1oy2els Wm0y ‘eouazayuod) d1dog oslord ayz 03 jureasyar yupas a8ueyoxa agpaymowy [euor3at e je sawooino aford jussard pue ur ajedpnreg
HINTHIINOD TYNOIDTY LV INISTAJ T'S

"Tes ST uonedunuIuIod o ssodind sinsus pue ssustpne pajadie; sUrULI}Ep 0F HOJ YIM JIOA

uollediunwwo) pue syoeduw| dopeolg g JSV1 44

0202-1¢-€0
‘sreonpoid (7 Jo wmurrura

e 03 Sururen} SumayIew pue SSaUISNq SPIAOLJ D
smo; pue sdoysyIiom (g JPnpuo) °q

(s1adyy anoy
pue sdoysyrom Surpniour)

MITAJI J99M U0 MITAIL §}150D [ernjoe uo paseq
107 HO( 0% S[eLIaew 09°7S29%% SI9UMOpPUE] (S JO WINITUTUL
DRa1I10 JeIp }Iuqng 0} dn JuswesIMquITey e 0} sspmumoddo [euoneonps  apraoig e ¥

arep uonsjduwoy JUSUIASIN UL I[qRIATR T qUETLN]
"ST9ULIR] ()7 JO WINWIUTW & 0} papraoid aq [im Jururer; 3unesrews pue SSaulstq
"A[[eUORIPPY 'SISUMOPUE] PUE SISULIEY ()G JO WNWIUI & SUnjpes ‘s1noy pue sdoysszom (g 1onpuod [[Lm (D) UOISINYL 'S0nIeI]

Juswadere]A 359 Jo uonewswa[duIr sy uo souepms pue ‘Sunarew ‘Sururen ssaulsnq ap1aoId [Im 1OTISI(] UOTJEAIISUO]) UOISINY],
SI3UMOPUET 01 UOIIEINPT BPIA0I] " MSV.L 44

5}S0D TETIOE U0 paseq ‘leacidde Joy ue|d Bulloluc|y pue Suilue|d Hugns
T8°L0S001$ 'sdoJa [eininotiSe |efuuasad pue syue(d anieu

020T-1e-€0 03 dn Jusuwrasmquuiay Buizijan paJolsss Jayng ueuedld jo salde g5 o1 dn

9jep uonarduroy | JUS LIS SIN. U] S[qEISATI

NOILLdIHDSIQ

"aalaIns s3urjue[d 9Y3 Jo 945/ JO WNWIUIW € Jel} PUE S931S UOIeISUOWSP SE PIZI[n g ued
S93Is aInsuy 'saaoe (S Sulrelol ‘sdoxd [eanynoSe [eruusiad pue siayng ueliedLl 2A13RU JO PUS[] B YIIM SIIIS 341 03 dn 3103591 pue Anusp]
Sd0¥D TVHNLTINITYOV TVINNTY I ANV SINVId FALLYN 40 ANITA V ONIZITIL[] SYTL4Ngd NVIHVdrd LNANWATIN] T E

LOPETOED LOVIINOD HOd
VLR weJs0.4d AJenis3 [euoiep|

ANNOS 139Nd



810¢ [udy uoisiAey
._ummomﬁum.mm LOYEZ09D wenuo) HOA

“JUSWMOOp ST} JO PUB U} 03 pIPPE aIe pue ‘pIesme U} JOoYSNOon} pai SUOHOLYSaI IO ‘SUOHIPUOD ‘SULIa} 33 pue pIeme 343 3O yred
© Se SPeUI SUOREIYHIS) PUER S3IULINISSE 3} 03 UOHIPPE Ul 318 SUOHIPUOD PUe SIS} asal], * 19je[-10- 7 10z-ZC-[HdB-9A1j09]Jo-SU0pUOd-PUB-SULIa}
[eIouag-eda/sjueis /A0S eda MMM]/:SATY Je S[qe[reAe SUOGIPUOD pue SuLial [eraua8 v 7 Jueimd ay3 Yyim A[duroo o3 searde justdmaiqns sy

£107-£z-F payepdy] - SUOHIPUOD pue SUIIA] [EXaUdD) )

SUOT}IPUO)) JATJENSIUTUIPY pue SULId ], [eI3Pa]

S0°000°00€ TvIOL

(satreres J0 9,01 JO 23Rl

U0 paseq SUoTena[eD) ayey 1airpu] pasorddy Aqrerepay o3 Surpiodde pardde pue Aq pawroddns aq 1snw)

€L £0gST $1507) J0IIPU]

0T64L'€9T 53500 0aII(] €301

00°000°TIL s10eIII0))

2A0QE Ul papnouy syyauag

8T°6£9951 SolIeTeg

junowy Ax0891e)

110dNngd

-ampayos T yse] 1ad y1odaz

13loxd reuy 1o/pue SLVHI YHM sojoyd josloxd jruugng TS
6102-82-20 53500 [en1de U0 paseq 70'79Scs 30USISJUOD [eU0IBal 6/81(0T B 18 FUIS3L] 1°g
Juaaa 03 10u1d sAep Qg 03 dn JUSWASINGUITIY] HOQ 03 S[eLjew uonejuasaid yerp yruqng T8

‘suorearqnd aIMyny 103 Pasn aIe SOIPIA 10 so3oyd ased ur
asealal e paudis sey 0apia 10 ojoyd ay ur suoLue amsuy ‘(039 ‘sseadord ‘ssao1d) 0aloxd s yo sdip o9ap1a 10 sojoyd slord Lrenb-y3ny sugng
SOLOHd Z2'S

LO¥€T09D LIVIINOD HOA

V LIGTHXT weJdold Asenisy [euoneN|

ANNOS 1395Nd



810T [udy uoistaay
e LOPETOED 10enu0) HOA

"4 3redqng 00T AID T YILm 3dUepIodde ur sjuswarmbai yrpne ay yiim A1durod o3 ses1de justdpaiqns ay,

TIA Xtpuaddy 00z ¥ID T yim soueprodoe ut resodoad ayex 3500 pazrpur sjt jrurqns pue aredaxd o saazSe 31 ‘ayer 3500 Pa1rpuL
paysiqelsa A[snorasid v aaey jou s20p JustdaIqns sy J1 4, STUsWaaISy 33ey 1507 19aIIpul, SUOTIIPUOD) PUk SULIA], TeIaUas) 3} 03 UOLIpPE U]

"preme s o3 ‘sperrdordde se ‘sjqearidde are g 1redqng 0oz M4 7 30 serdourd 1500 sy

[eqIL], PUE S3)e}S I0F §3S00) J0AITPU] - SUOHIPUO]) PUR SWII] [eI9Ua5) “§

FPA’SIULIADSI IS0 10 UOHIPUOD UET3 AJLITDSS 19qAd/STUSIOp/Z0-G10¢/59[1/U0RINpOId/Sajis/A08 Bdo g MMM /A iy

:syuRtday] I9Yi0) 104

FPA UORIPUOIATINISSISqASTUR TS [eqL/STUSUWIIDOP/Z(-C [0¢/59]J/U0Hon pOId /5aj1S/A08 Bda g MMM /-dTT

‘SHATAL 104

JPA UORIPUOD ATITDSSIoqASTURTSSTeIS/STUSWII0P/Z(-C L0¢/59] 3/ U0 HoTpOId /5a]15/A0S Bda g MMM//:a1y
‘SHLVIS 104

"9}ISRAA SUOIPUOD) PUE SULIT, SJURID) W JH JUl U0
PUnoj 5q Ued SUORIPUOd pue swiis} Yy, -, A1Noas1aq4)),, SUORIPUD pue suLia) e1suss v i jusimd aug ym A1dwon o3 saaide uerdmaiqns ayJ,

£31IM9s19q4AD) — SUOLIPUOD) PUE SULI] [eIdUas) ‘g
“ajel A[rep Wnwxew auy suruizsiap 03 g Aq pardinu uays st yanm ‘oyex A[Inoy Wrumxeur I} SUIULLIARP 0} SINOY

£80T Aq PapIAIP ST ATe[es [enuue s\, *, I[NPaYDG SANTIIXY Y} 10F A JO Sajey], 199[9S pue ‘,593ep) pue ATe[eg, 109]95 BI0/A03 WA MMM]/:ARY
9318 JOUISU] SULMO[[OF U} UO S[NPIYDS ATNISXF Y} JO AT [9A37] IO ATe[es [eruue a3 puty Aewr Juatd109Iqns ay ‘S)ul] ,S1eak 21Ny 107 ‘I LON

"moy tad §g°£/$ Aep 1ad g/ 779 Sty ays ‘410z ‘T Arenue jo se /, deD) nureymsuo), 94 SUOTIPUO)) PUE SULI3 [ [eISUN) Y] 0] UORIppe uf

UOH{EULIOFU] [BUORIPPY - deD) juejnsuo)) - SUogIpuo) pue SWIa] [EI2Uan) g

SUOQIpUoI-pue
~SULIS}-URLS[SJURIS /A0S BAa MMAM]/AHY fe punoj aq ued 1esA Aq SUORIpuod pue suua) [ersuss ays 103 Arojisodsr v g YL

LOPET0ID LDOVHEINOD HOQ
Ve WeJ30.4d AJenisy [euoieN|

ANNOS 1349Nd



2107 [dy uoIstAny
$S30 61 28ed e

"s0an0s [euaiod are Aoy} oAU M WA} SURPIOS
pue sjs1] uone3I0s uo sggq Sumed apnpour [[im snp S1ustdpaIqns JUSWUISA0S) Pue [2207] Pue 933§ TeqiL], UeIpU] 104 "SARIATDE
JUSUINIDAI pue yoeanno ySnory ajqeanderd jusixa 359y aus 03 sspiunroddo Sunoenuoo jo aresme spew are sgg( 3msig (e)

“PAUTEIAI 3q [[BYS SHOJJ2 Irey POOS XIS 3 Yiim aouerdurod Sunuawmoop spIoday -A1dwoa osTe s1010RII0D
surud pue ‘syustdoar weol ‘sjustdaI-gns Jey) sImbal 03 Pue JUSUIISISE 20URISISSE [l Y H U 1apun sariddns pue saorazss Juawdmba
Aroronnsuod unmooid I9ASUSYM SII0FFS Yirej pood SUImO[[oF Uy} Sxeu 0} soa13e 1emIdmaIqns 3y} “TOE EE UOT0aG D 0F 03 Juensing

D yedqng ‘gg 1ed IO 0F ‘SLYOIIH HLIVA AO0D XIS

‘moaq paurerdxe pue  1edqng c¢ 1e JID 0F Ul pIquDsap se uorrenoSau saagoalq areys e pue ‘D redqng g¢ Med
M) 0F UT paquI0sap Se syusurarmbal 3105g Yire poos) a3 SUIpnPUIL 493JJ9 UL UTeWal £¢ 3B JID 0F Ul paurino syuswaImbal 18Y}0 a3 ‘19AMOYy
Z0C"6€ UOTI3G ‘6 e WD OF Ul paquosap se syuawaimbar Suniodar ggM/FdIN 93 WO UOHRIASD pasoidde ue syusserdar uortstaoxd ST,

[ SUni0dataqp/dqs0/A08 ede MMM][:A
e 98¢ J awol] s, wrergoI] ssauIsng [[eWS JO 9d1F0 VJH 3} & PUroy aq Uwed yge-0048 W0 VT U1md 3],

“ur103 8y Sunarduwrod usym gg uondas Ul Xoq U3 J2ayp pIroys jusrdioaigns ays ‘porzed Sunrodal ayy
Surmp aoerd axyes sjusurarnoord paje8pnq ou j1 jou 1o porrad Suniodax ayy urmp aoerd axes spuswamoold paunrerd ay3 paym Aenure 1odar
03 parmbaz are juswamooid 10§ spuny pajadpnq 10/pue papuadxe ypm sjuardpaqng sjuawrainoord [ejo} uo paseq st yusureambal Bunzodaz ayy

15113 sowoD 1343PTYM ‘porad 30a(o1d auys Jo pus ays 1aFe sAeP 06 10 wOE 1200 Aq anp dIe syrodai Teur “1eak Yoea Jo y0g 189030 A9

anp are s3rodaI [Ty "WLI0F 3Y3 JO g Uoroas Ut 3aloxd sy jo j10dar 3sey,, SY3 10§ PajedIpul X0q d13 33 O} pIjornsur are syuardarqgns “rodar
[eUy a3 104 "WLI0} 93 JO g UOHOas Ul ,[eNUle,, PI[HE X0 3 303y 0} pajonysut are sjuaidoaiqns A1oda1 fernunre sy Sunardurod Usyp'000'0ST$
spasoxa Uorym uonzod yeus jsnl jou ‘a[qeirodar are suonoe juswRmooId [[y "siseq [enuure ue uo (Yzs-0048 Wiog v Jq) 1todar ,sjusurasidy
£ousSeraiu] pue sjusweaIdy aaneladoo)) ‘sires) [erspay 12pur] UOHeZIH) HIM/I G, © Fuuqns pue ajarduron 03 saaade justdaiqns ayL,

g yedqng ‘g¢ 1ed YD 0F “ONILIOJTT HIM/IIN

“e¢ 1R 41D 0 UL PAUTRjUOoD ‘STUSWsaIde soue)sisse opun

sanLanoe juswamooid 10y uresSox (3g(]) astdiojuy sseumsng paSejueApesi(] s, Jd JO SfUeUIaImbal au yim Apduron 03 ssaa8e yuatdoaigns sy,
€€ 1ed WID 0F ‘'HONVITINOD

TVIEINTD (HIM/AGN)STISTIIIALNG SSANISNE S.NINOM ANV ALTIONIN TIVINS 40 NOILVZITILO 'S

LOPETOED LIVIINOD HOA

v LETEXA weJSo.d Aenisg [eUOIeN|

ANNQOS 139MNd



810¢ [udy uotsiaay
e LOPEZOED 19enu0) HOA

steon) Sunpdeooy sjuardpaiqng 103 ‘7

"sjueuraInoo1d s31 Ul ST AM/IFIAl JO UOTRZI[GN 3Y3 10§ S[e03/saannalqo ateys

arej openogau 03 paxmbaz jou st pue ‘(q 3redqng ‘g 11ed M40 OF JO stuswaImbal aanoalqo aTeys Irey oy woly 3duraxa ST juswesiSe a0ue)SISSE
ST 3O JuRtdaIqns S13 ‘BI0JaISY], "$S3] 10 0O0‘0STS ST 1834 [e9S (e3P, JUBLIND 3U} UT VT WO} SjUswaside a0Ue)sIsse [enueur s juardmaiqns
943 7O J[e JO JUnOwe Ie[[0p [e303 Y3 10 ‘SS3] 10 (0('0ST$ ST IUNOUTR PIeME 3} 10 (Y1) JUeIr) S0URISISSY [EIMUYDA] © ST JUSISaIFe a0UR)SISSe ST

597 10 000'0ST$ SPTemMY JueID 104 T

d 1edqng ‘g¢ 1eg 04D 0% ‘STALLIAI90 TAVHS MIVA

‘suonduraxa pure syuswarmbar ogoads 107 (3) pue (q) 105 cE WOHIAG 1)

0% 93s asea[{ "sjuawrarmbai Surppiq aanneduwod ‘Ao[[o7 01 $3500UD 10 ‘03 33lqns st weoy ay3 jo jusidwar ayy J1 35T SI9PPIQ © UTEJUIRWL PUR 332310 0}
SUue0] pagnuep! Sutatedal saunua armbaz o3 aa18e os[e puny weo] Sura[osaz e azmeyided o] Juswsside Q0UR}SISSE [eDURUL] V4 Ue jo sjusrdmaiqng
‘IST[ SI9PPIq © UeIUreul pue a1eald 03 9a18e juerd Suniodar fenuue 1930 10 uels) urerdol ] [elueuuoIaug Sumuguo)) e jo syuardoaiqng

(°) pu® (9)T0S €E UOLPIS “WID 0F “1LSI'T SHFAAId
"T0E"EE UONDAS YHD 0F Jo suorstaoid uonesiunrpe 30eIiuod ai; yim A[dwos 03 sea1de juatdmaiqns ay,
T0E'EE UOIRS “WAD 0% ‘SNOISIAOUI NOILVILSINIAAQY LOWVIINOD

I0T}095
STyt Jo (3) ySnonys (e) syderBered ur sdajs syy oxey 0 1030enu00 surzd sy axmbar ‘sppenuodqns spIeme Iopoenuod suwrad sy iy ()

"sastzdIenIy ssaursng AJLIOUIAl pue USWOAA JO 90L3() 9YL-97e3S U0ISUryse
U] "e019two)) 0 jusunreda(] ay; Jo Lusdy juswdo[aaa(y ssaursng AJLIOUT[A 13 PUe Vg aY} JO 0URISISSe pUE Sad1AIas A 95 (8)

"A[[enPIATPUL 3[PUeY 03 SULIY 3533 JO AU 107 95Ie] 007 ST }ILIFU0I © USM STE(] JO WNTIOSUOD & M Sunpenuod s8emoduy (p)

"s58001d aannadurod sy ur sgg £q voredmnied wmwmxeur junrad o) sannuenb
10 $se} I[[LUIS OJUT J[qISeaf A[[INUOU0DD UM STUSWAIMbaI 230} SUIPIAIP SpTPUI [[IM STY} ‘S1us1dDaIqns JUSUIIA0N) [eo0[ pue
781G ‘TeqL], URIPU] 104 "SHEQ YHM PBIU0NS pnod speipuod a3re] 105 Sugaduos surry msyjaym sseoord Sunoenuod sy ur 1spisuo)) (o)

‘91ep Sursop

Tesodoxd 10 piq a3 a1033q sAep repusyes (g Jo W e 10§ sesodoid 10 spiq 105 suonyeipIfos Sunsod ‘aqrssod Iaasusym ‘sapnour
s, *ssa00ad aannedwod a3 ur sggQ 4q uonedwnred ssyeioe; pue safemodus yey; Aem e ur qnuzad sjuswarmbar 93 aIaM ‘SI[NPaYds
AxaAT/ap YsI[qeIse pue spoe1jU0d 10§ sawrely swy afueiie pue sgg( o3 a[qelreat sapunizoddo SUIIOIY}I0] U0 UOTRULIONT e (q)

LOYETOFD LOVIINOD HOQ

V LI9IHXH - T J—— -
Weldodd AJenisy [eUuOilepN]

| o

ANNOS 13d9DNd



9107 [udy UoIsIASY
vmmoﬁmomﬁ L0¥£T0ED 0enuo) HOd

1205 /241193 [q O areYS IR JUaLny

uonduwexa we 103 Ajrenb Lew uoneznreSI0 19Y; YUY} £313 J1 ‘10JeUIPIO0D FGJ TS} YILM JI0M PROYS syustdmaiqng (1 3redqng ‘eg 1eg
~[ID) 0F Ul paqrsap sjuawarmbai saanoalqo areys ey s uroxy jdurexa aq Aew stuardioaigns swos TTF€E UOTaS 4D 0F UM 30IepIcode Ul

‘sjUewaaIde our)SISSE [epueur aU3 Iopun jusuramdoid ur uogedpured
HAM PUe AgIA 10§ $9A1300(q0 a1eys Irey ‘9ausIsep IaU/sNy 10 ‘TeDI0 pIeme VI aperzdordde au; yaim syenoSeu jsnur justdmaigns Sy,

sTe0S) paysI[qelsy YIim syusrdpoargqng 10 €

-payruqns aTe sjeod/eAnoalqo areys irej pasodoxd

aup oum syuswraamooid 10§ spuny v Iy sit pusdxa jou Leur jusidmaiqns ay ‘Qurel) awg Aep (71 U} URfM PRALR0a1 Jou axe s[eod/aanaslqo

areys arey pasodoxd 3] “UOISSTUIQNS 2y SUIALR03I O SARD (F UIYFLM STe08/041103(q0 dIeys Ire pasodoid ayz o3 puodsaz [[Im Y JH "PIeme a0ue)sisse
[eueuy ays o aouedadoe sj1 3o SABp (7] UNEIM 10§eUIp100D) FM/ATIA [PU0L3ay a1 03 ‘Aprys Apuredstp 20 sisdfeue Aiqerreae Sunroddns

a3 yim J1a3e303 ‘sTeod/saanoalqo areys ey pasodord jrurqns o3 saa13e juardmaiqns ay ], JuardaIqns wyjoue Jo sTeod/saanos(qo areys

1rey oy Sundsooe jou st jusidmaiqns ayj Jeys sueaw Lpnis Airedsip 1o ssAeue Sunroddns sy yiim speoS axeys arey pasodoad Jo uorssTIIqns Ay,

quswrdmbe pue sarpddns ‘s3o1azes ‘uonoNIISUOD 10§ jodyrew Surdng oryder80ad JUeASTSI IR UL SFIM PUe SHAN payirenb jo “Aprus £yrredstp 10
‘s1sApeue AJI[iqe[reAt we uo paseq s[eod/seandalqo FAM/AGIN pasodoid jruuqns 03 ssa18e jusrdiaigns ay ‘s|eod /saanalqo areys ey A M/FIN
umo s31 23813039 03 saystm Juatdpaiqns ays J1 s[eod/saandalqo areys Irey HM/ALIN WMO ST arenogau o3 uondo a3 sey justdaIqns 3y,

F0P'EE W01IAS “YAD 0F “S[e0D/59a12(qQ areys 1reg SunenodaN

qayrewr Surdng onyder80a3 jueAs[al refruls 10 sutes Sy ur Juswrdmbs pue sadiAIas ‘sarrddns “uorNIISU0d Te[ruls 10 aures au3 Surseypnd
ST 31 JeU3 30F 93 0} §359jFe pue s[eod/saan0alqo areys 1rey ayy Bundadoe st usrdpaiqns s ‘Justnearde souessisse [erueur sty Surusis Ag

“TPd S[E0SeIe SITe]([1/5] pd/dqs0/A03 Bdo MMM]/-ATI -pumoj 3q ued sTe0d/seannalqo areys ey T WOy YL, 'V Jd
uILm parenodsu sreod/saanoslqo areys arey ggM/AdIN 21qedtdde ays s1danoe juardaIqns ST, "2I0u 10 ‘000°05TS ST VA W01} Teak [edsy [e1apay
JUSIIND 3} Ul sjUswaaIde aoue)sisse [enueuly s Jusidnaiqns ayj Jo [[e JO Junowe Je[[op [2303 a3 10 “uauIaside 90UR]SISSE ST JO JUNOWE IB[[Op 3T,

juatdoay yjouy Jo sTe0D/s9a10a[qQ a1eYS Ireg 3y} Sundany

-wogdwexs e 103 Ayrenb Aewr uoneznreSIo 19y} U} AU JT ‘10JeUIPI000 G IRY} YILm SIOM PIIoys syuardmaIgng ( edqng ‘eg 18 d gD
0% UI paquosap se spuauaimbaz seanoalqo areys 1rej au woxy jdurexa aq Aew sjuaTdIDaIqns SwWos [TH EE UOTRS D 0F Yilm 0UepIodse uj

‘sUeWIaaISe 20UR;SISSE [eneuy 2y fapun juswaanooid ur uvonedpnred
TOM PUE GEIN 10§ S9A103[q0 aTeys drey ‘@auBIsap I19Y/sIY 10 ‘(BP0 preme v g srendordde a yim arenjodau jsnw justdoaIqns

LOPETOED LIVAINOD HOA

VLI we.do.ud Asenisy [euoizeN

ANNOS 139MNd




810¢ [Hdy uotstaay
S _ LOFETOLD Wenuo) HOd

"$3S0D Jum Y31y 10 SUILLIAAO 3500 Jo uoyeue[dxa pue sisATeue ‘oyerrdordde uaym ‘Gurpnpour UOMRULIOfUT Juauniad [euonippe

‘oyerdozdde 1 Jowr jou a19m sT208 paysiqeise Aym suoseaz ay;  °q
‘pourad a3 103 werd sj1om JuawsaISe aour)sISSE AU U PaYSI[qe)sa sawomo/sindino ayy 03 sjusurystdurosoe fengoe jo uostredwos e e

:seare BUrmor[oy 8l Jo
U283 U0 UOHRULIOfuL JoTIq Spn{out yey; sizodar sowewioyrad jruigns o} saside jusidpaiqns s ‘eyerdordde se ‘gzer00z MAD 7 YIlm SouepIosIe uy

Arearuonospe papraoid aq Aew pue 1e0h3Q 12[01 V. Jq 943 03 papIuIqnS aq Ireys sirodsy ‘porrad Sunzodas yoes jo pus
A 13y shep repusfed (g anp are spoday “0a(oxd sy o 1] a3 Sunnp sypuow (9) x18 1940 syr0daI aouewniozrad jruqns Treys jusidoaiqns 9y,

syroday soueuLIOfIag [PRUWY-TWAG 'T

SUOIIPUO)) IIVUUIVISOL]

U111 30URI9a1 Aq 11 93e10d10out 10 Juswaaide S0uR)SISsE [RIDURUY 93 Ul 9010P STy} AFdads
isnw yuardpaigns sy, *s1mo00 uonde Jusuarnooid ay UPIYM UL 1ea4 213 10§ 10 PSPIEME ST URO] PayLUIPI QU3 YoTUM UT Teak a3 103 19131 aoefd
ur aandalqo areys 1rey sy A1dde 03 asooyn Lewr jusrdidaiqns ay; ‘reak auo UBL} SI0W I9A0 IMDD0 [[M spuswarnooid Ji yeys seaile jusidoeigns ayf,

‘@ ¥edqng ‘gg 1Ted 11D 0F UM 90URpIOIIE Ul SFIAL Pue
SHEIN JO AII[IqR[IeAR BU3 JO 3DUIPIAS J[qRLSUOWIP U0 Paseq aq IStur s[e02/saanaalqo ayeredas asay ], ‘s1uatda1 URO] PAYLIUSPT SH M SaAT3lq0
axeys Irej syeredes senodau 10 Jaxrew orydei8oad jueasyar Teuns A[enuelsqns e Suisn Se0] Payuap! 0} VJd Yim pateriodau saanoslqo areys
Ireg umo syt Ajdde roy3ts 03 sasade juardmaiqns sy ‘spuny weoy Sutafoas: szieyides o3 JusUIaaile SoUR]SISSE [PIURUY I Ue Jo juardmaIqns e sy

spuardpay ueo Jo sjeos/RAR3(qO

ATINOQ Siu1dDay ST SATHIANMOA T PUE TASMD TdSMd 104

'sTe08/saan0s(qo areys arey ayy SunenoSsus: usym q jredqng
‘€€ #ed AdD 0F Ut pauIIno se sjuswarmbal mofjoy 03 parmbar st juardoaiqns Y7, ‘saan2a(qo areys 1rej oy Sunzoddns ejep 2y o3 saSuweyp
JUEdYIUSIS re a1ty SSAUN s1eak [easyy 991y} 10§ J03[A UT UTeWIaI S9AT03[q0/S[e0d paystqesse ‘(] Wredqng ‘eg 1red 410D 0F UILm SouepIodse ug

s[eon)/saanpalqQ areyg meg SungenoSan

‘Jpd's[e0saTeysITej([1/5]pd/dqso/A03 ede MMM //-dITy
‘pumoj aq ues s[eo3/s3AR03(qo axeys Irey 0 UOISY SY, BIOW 10 ‘000°0STS ST VA W0l Ieal (2057 [eIapay
JUBLIND A} UI SJUSUIARIFe 20UeSIsse [epreuy s puaidoaiqns 213 Jo [[e JO JUToure Ie[op [e30} aU3 10 JUsuIaaIde aoue;sisse STU} JO JUnoure Ie[[Op Y],

LOYET0ID LOVEINOD HOA

V LIGIHXA weJdo.ld Auenis3 [euoieN

ANNOS 1d495Nd




810 1udy UOISIASY
wmmommuwmm L0¥ETQED wenuo) HOd

sprawarmbay W00 UOTIRULIONU] {

-gaa1p3(qo 109loxd a1qr3r[e FeypIng 0 pasn aq [reys pue Jusidnaiqns
3y} pue vaa Aq 1sloxd a1 03 peRuIwod Spuny of pSppe 2q [[eys puk JusldoaIqns 3y} £q paurezar aq [[eys porrad josloxd ayy Sunnp
paues swoout weador 3oaloxd sTyy 03 parera1 awoour urergord 103 junoove o3 parmbax s1justdpaIqNs S ‘parerauad s1 awoour urerdod 1

uonIppY — awodu] werdor] ‘¢

-Kressavauum 10 ayerzdozddeur st jr0daz € ypns swasp 190130 12[01] ays J1 1x0dax soururiojrad [euy e 105 juawaImbal a3

aarem Aew 101330 32lo1g au 4oelord sy jo uonarduwod 1eyy “porred joslord simus sy 19402 pmoys mq ‘syrodaz orpouzad 13 UT S UORULIOFUT
auTes au urepuod Afexausd [reys 11odex ay “A[[esnuonoae papraoid aq 1S pue 120130 1301 A3 01 pIRTWIANS aq [eYS 1roda1 A, ‘preme

U JO uoTeUTULIRY 10 Uorenidxe ay IajFe sAep TepusTed (¢ aMp ST UPTYM ‘SLVEL ySnong j10daz aowreurzojred euy e jrugns reys jusidaigns ayL

j10doy sourwIodJ TeUL] g

“UOLENYIS A} 9A]0SAI
0} popasu souesIsse Aue pue ‘pate[dunsiuod 10 uee) U0HOR U3 JO JUSWIS}E}S B aPToUL [[eYS UOHEDFHOU SHL “wre[d J10M JUSUISAISE aaure}sISse AU}
ur parywads sawonmo/sindino sy 19aur 03 Aiiqe ayy rreduar ATRTIaIEWL [[IM YOTYM UMOLD] SW0D3] SUOHTPUOD ISIAADE IO sAefap ‘swajqoid se uoos

st TaeueN PRnU0D) HO 4 WIojul 0 saa1de jusrdpaigns sy ‘ejenidordde sy sagianoe parzoddns-presie ayj uo Joeduar juedgnulis e asey
1eys syuewrdoraaap jo efeur A spenu0) HOJ 24} AJou A[ajerpaurul [[eys juatdmaIqns a; ‘sprodar souwewiojrad Tenunre-TuIss 3y 0} UOTIPPE Uf

*$1500 jrum Y31y 10
SUNIIZAO 1509 JO UOTJEULIOfU} pure stsATeue ‘peridordde usym Surpnpur ‘UoneuIIofur jusuniad [eUOHIPPe
9w J0U 319M SaUooino/syndino paysijgessa jt sadeddifs 10§ suosear 3y; ‘q

‘pouad sz 107 werd y1om
JuaWISaISe S0UeISISSe AU} UT PIYSI[qelss sawrodino/sindino ayp 03 sjuawrystdirodde [enjoe Jo uosireduwod e e

:Seate SUIMO[[O] 3U JO UDE3 U0 UOLRULIOJUI JOLIq 9PR[IUL Feif; sytodar souewtofred jruuqns o3 saa13e juatdmalgns oy, ‘[reW DTUOII[d

£q papTuIqns 3q [Teys pue 13010 198lo1g 3y £q papraoid wrxoy SLYHA 4 U0 10YFQ 121014 9y 03 payuuqns aq [[eys syroday 1eak Tepuared
yoea 10 yi0¢ Taquuaidsg pue 1sTE YR pus [[eys spouad Sunrodar ayg, poued Sunzodal yoes jo pus a3 19)e sAep Iepuaed g anp ae spodey
(gL vad) weishg uppeil Sugunoooy waisAsooy pue [epueul] punos 183nd s,V Jd ySnomny sprodar soururioprad ruqns [(im jusidpaIgns sy,

“UOJenYIS A} dATOSAI
0} popasu s0ue}sIsse e pue “paje[duajuiod 10 uae: Uorde aU JO JUSWISjels & apjoul [[eys UoHedHou SiyL, “erd y10Mm JUIWIITe FOUR)SISSE
a3 w1 paymads sawoaino/sndino ays 19sux 03 A1[iqe a3 redurt AJ[eLIR1EW [[LM UPIYM UMOLY] 3W009] SUOGIPUOD 3SIBAPE 10 skefap ‘swarqord

S U00S Se I30GJO 19901 Ay wiosur 03 seaide jusrdbaiqns aus ‘eyerdordde sy sanyianoe pantoddns-preme auy uo 1oedurt nreoyrudis e aaey

1eys spuawdoraasp o w8euely speRU0D) HOJ 94 AJ10U A[31eIpauuur [eys juardaiqns aus ‘s3zodax sourewnrofrad Tenure-was 3y} 03 UOHIppE U]

LOYETOID LOVIINOD HOA

¥ LI weJdo.ld AJenisy [euoiieN|

ANNQOS 1d49MNd




8107 [Hdy vosaay
¥ 70 $7 98eg o B sy

BIE(] JUSUIAINSEIA [ejuswuoriauy Surs) 10/pue Jupersuss) suoneziuediQ jo LHusjadwo) ‘g

*Apms papuny a3 woiy Sunnsaz spnpoid 10 syrodar reur Aue Surseafaz 03 zo11d 103MUOIA 303(01 23 03 papracid

3q [ I 33 £q passaIppe are sPUsUIoD aanoadsar Moy Jo uondinsap Jatiq e pue SJUSUIUIoD JO pa0da1 v ‘sisiemads rapew oalqns jueasal
30 Bunsisuod dnoid AI0SIApE 10 MOTASI [EITIDA] & WOy 30eqpas) puk MalAdl ‘dIApPe D08 Jsnut 3s(o1d sny jo (1) 1ore8ussaur edoursg
3y sponpord [eonupe; jueoyrusts Aue Surzieur o3 1ot “punog 323nJ 0} Sunear suosap Juswaeuew a5e Aewr 30aloxd ST} JO SINSaT Y],

MBITANY 133 J *J

FGE/SWIS]/AT0 pUNosiadNdoa MMM]:SANY “1a3pnq

pasodoad 1tey; ur S30UAIAJUI0D Surpusije 105 53500 paredoryue apnpur pInoys yuatdmarqns ayy, ‘SunSpor pue [paen 105 Aed o1 spury preme asn o3
PaMmo[[e aq [T Justdaigng ‘pasodoid yiom 93 JO 3InjeU 3y} uo puadap [ s20uaIayu0d dyadg /90U ISJUOJ eSSBS/ TIpa LM M MMM //-d11]
SUOLRIDOSSE JURAS[SL 1930 I0 DYLUSIDS ‘Teuoctssayord qeqri], jo sSungesw [euor3a1 10 [e20] pue Jqesd/fuooMn/npa U0y 3 U sem sidap//-dny
IDUBISJUO)) WId}SAS00g ulseqg e131020)-punog 188nJ [ENIIS1G S} ‘0} PajILUI] 30U 3I® I11q ‘OPNOUT S20UIIIFUCD JURAI[DL Arenuaod

0 a7durexy yiom PIPUNJ 94} JO SSUTUTIUIWIOD UOTRI0S3I puk uonoajord waeisdsooa oenbe 28re] pue “eag USI[eS ‘punog 1980 J 9y} UM
SSaUaIeME 9STRI 0] AT[ersuad pue ‘soustradxa I3} woz 3jauaq Aeur ey suongeznredio UM SIOM Papury I8U3 Inoqe UoReuIonut adueyoxa 03
S{1om papuny sy} 03 aelaa ye) swrerdoad pue SSARBHIUL LILAS[RI I9UF0 WO JJauaq pue jnoge ures] 03 ssnunizoddo ymm syuardoaIgns apraoad
03 st 3uauraImbayr snyy yo asodind QUL 199130 HIrRID U3 YILmM UOHERINSU0D Ul PIUTULISISP 3 [[LM Sa0UaIayucd agnads ayJ uordar punog 128n

19804 a3 uryym aq Aewr yotysm “1ead yoes saouatajuod syerrdordde szouw 10 suo puspe Aewr jusrdoaigns ay,
S3DUAIAIU0)) [PnUUY 'g

L Isn

103 UOLPPUIUIUOIII 10 JUIWISIOPUD JMYHSUOD $§30npoid [EIIWUI0D 10 SIUTLU 3PEI} JO UOTUIU SI0P I0u “Aouafy 101309301 [21USWIUOIIAUY
213 30 s3DI[od pue sMa1A 3y} }0I[F31 A[LIESSIDIU J0U OP JUSWNIOP ST} JO SJUIJUOD SY L "Yi[edy jJo yusumreda(y ajers uoiSuryses o3 1088800
-Dd Jusuadide adueysisse 1pun Ausly w0108301] [PIUISTIUOIIAUT saje}g pajru) ay; £q jred ut 10 AJJoym papuny uaaq sey yafoxd smyp,

‘Jusuraye;s SUTMmOr[o]
U} UTEIUIOD [[els JusuIaaide aduessisse st} £q papury spoalord jo jred se padojaasp “erpawt 1ayz0 10 ‘soap1a ‘a8eudis ‘spusumoop ‘syroday

Surpuny v dd jo uonruSeday ‘g

“pa1daIp Sureq ST £A9AIns AU} WOYM 0] (§) PUe {UOTFRULIOFUT L]} 10] PIau 33 o uoneue[dxs
(7) 'pa393[[00 9q 03 UoHERWLION a1 j0 UondUDSAP (1) UOHLWIONIT JULMO[[O] SU3 100 303[01] ¥ JH 33 01 apraoid [[m justdmaiqus ay,

‘suosiad arour 10 9T 03 pasod suonsenb resnuapr jo

Sweaur Aq UOHERULIOJUT JO UOHII[02 s pustdaiqns ayy o3 oud soweresp (FA0) 193png pue juswaSeurA Jo DYFO UreIqo 03 Iy saxmbaz /( -bas
#2 TOSE "D'S'1 ¥¥) S661 JO PV uononpay y1omiaded ay “AHanoe SuroyreS-UoyeULIofur Te[Iurs 10 aIreuuoysanb ¢ ‘A3ams e SOPTI[OUL YIOM JO
adoos a3 asnesag ‘wsloxd ay; Superduros ut oy uonInpY yromrade  au jo sjuswarmbai ay yimm Adwod 03 sa13e justdaiqns ay; pue v g

LOYETOID LOVIINOD HOA

v LI weJ3o.d AJenis] [euonep|

ANNOS 1d95Nd



8107 Tudy uoIstAay
%EN%& L0¥£70E0 1We0) HOA

eare slord a3 ur sentadord a1 UO S9SINOD Iajesm IU}0 UO S32IN0S Uonn[[od SSIPPe JSIMISY30 10 SIOpMq werredu syerrdordde spnpour sesodoxd
UoTYM 03 JUSIX3 33 12PISuU0d pmoys osfe saajuesd ‘stesodoid 1oslozd Surdofsasp usyp "2A0qe P0ULILYRI SUOHEPUSUILIODAT SU3 3IM Aoueysisuod
syoalord Sumitim UT WIFUoD [[eys svvjues) duepms ¢107 ‘97 10q0P0 Ut 10 (10T 91 rudy eyep paareoar dureys) €10z ‘6 11dv pue (€10T

% Areniqa - ayep paataoal dures) €107 ‘0¢ Alenire| Jo SI913a] IDIAIAG SILIBYSL] SULTRIA] [EUOTEN] A] 9D1AISG UOHERAIDSUOD) 8DIMOSIY [eIeN ) pue
VT 03 pap1A0id SUOHEPUIINIODS 19331q Uretred I UILISIUT 313 U3IM JUSISISUOD 3 [[BYS seale [ermjmotide u s1oaload uonezoisar 1apyng werredny

srayyng uerredry QL

"(XOM) 28urypxy A3en) 1918 S,V JH PUR SSRIATOE UDJell UM Pajeroosse ejep Aypenb 1arem jo a8e103s ay} 103 pazIOn
aseqeiep THNOLS-UoU Aur Usemiaq yrem ssomd e do[aasp 03 padernodus are spustdpaiqng - (9seqerep IS0 Swos 10 [TNOLS ur) a[qissaooe Aprqnd
aq JsTuz uoewIopuT Sun[nsal 3y ‘ejep Ayenb 1arem Jo uoneIausd ay SAJ0AUT 1UswIaaIde 20URISISSe [RISPaY ST 10 UDJeU Se PIjJIIqILs Salaloe I

TXB M TaT075/A0S Bda MMM/ Je PUnoj aq red ‘sferroyny Surpnpur

‘asnoyarem [THOLS 9% PUE ‘Gam XOM “XOM INOoqe UOTEULIOJUT 310JA] SI0MI3N 38ueypxy oy uo s1sujred J0911p J0U aIe Jety s107eIsUas

BIEp IDRWS 10] F2ULI0} TV OLS 3U3 OIUI BJep HI2AUCD 0} 00} paseq qom e ST qam XOM Prmonns [HI0LS/XOM Ui 03 dIronys aseqeep 19U}
dew stoupred BWAYPS XOM 9 SUIS] SI0MIBN 23UeyoXg [eqLL] PUR 21215 V. JH SU} [LM Pajeoosse BUIayps e1ep Iajem atj st (XOM) adueyoxyg
£31[eng) 19t AL AU, eIep 1e3iqey pue [22r30][01q WOy pajersuald Sa0pul pue SOLHIW aU3 pue ‘ejep [ed180[01qOIN ‘ejep £A3o1X0] Bpnul ejep

3T, "aNsST ST PUE JUSWITPas “Isyem 10 sjmnsax ajdures [earso[orq pue ‘Teonuel ‘Tetsdyd apnput TTIOLS 107 areudordde eyep £menb 1o1ep ‘qam
XOM 20 XOM Toyie Sursn asnoyarem eyep (LAYOLS) [eASM9Y pue 2881015 5,A0usly i 0jul paynuIsirex aq o} parmbaz aq [[m ‘premeqns Aq 10
Apoarrp 1oy Juaureaide aoUeRISTSSe ST} JO [Nsal e st Ue[( 303[01J Souemssy Aeng) pasoidde v g we YHm sduepiode ul parerauad eyep Lienb
Iatem [TV "S198PTq II9Y3 UT S3S00 DTS SpN{oul pue sueld STom I} Ol sjuswaimbal Sunrodar pazrpIepuess ayrygsur o} parmbar are syusidpaIqng

jusuraxinbay I1AYOLS '6

“2Jep [EFUSUIUOIIAUS JO 3T IO UOTRIBULS 3V} SUIA[OAUL pIEME S} I9PUN SIHIALOR AUk o
Surires o3 zorxd Aousiaduros ajeRSUOWRP PUR UOHRIUSWNIOP JWANS 0} saa1de puardarqng ayJ, -a[qeonoeid jou st Aousiadunod J0 uoHeISUoUISp
preme-axd e araym ‘A[aATIEUIRIR 10 ‘PIeME 0} 1oud Aousjaduros pajerisuouIap sey i je) quowrsaISe suy} ojur Sutsus Aq ‘seaide yustdoaiqng

00070025 Paa0Xg 07 109Xy 10 pIaoXy SPUNy] JUSIeaIsy J0UBIsIssy [e19pa

JuawasISe Sy} I9pUN Bjep [EIUSWUOIIAUS JO 35T 10 UOHEIsUas U SurA[oAul sanTaTOR Aue jno Surdired
01 zoud £ousadurod SyenSUOWSP (05 SUOP ISLMIAFO Sy 3T SSIUM) (LA I Efep [ERUSIUOIIAUR JO UOHRISUSS 10 3T Y1 SA[OAUI [[IM pue (quawaide
stz 03 suawpusure Jusnbasqns woxy Sunmsal) 000‘00T$ SPIsIXa preme S U0 pajesTqo SUIpury [eISpaj 12303 Y3 J1 18U} sea1de justdmaigqng

00070028 O, &[] Spun Juotioaldy 20Ueisssy [elepa]

“pTeme STy 10§ 1901FO 2[01J VJH oy Sunoejuod £q pazsanbai aq oste Lew 4dod e 10 WY dWOSe]/T}/A0S BASMMM/-ATY

1 SUI[UO S[qe[reAe st £o1[0g 9y} 3o Adod v 'ssanoxd Bunroder reninre 3y3 SULMD PAjUSWIMOOP 3 [[LM ST} pue juswaarSe sy JO

portad pafoxd sy jo uoneinp 9y 10§ Aousiedurod urejurews [eys jusldaIqNs SIISUI10 Y SIUEISEsy PIpUIL]-AJUSsY [SPUT BIE(] JUSUISINSEIN
[ETISWIUOTIAT SUNEISUar) SUOTEZIUESI() JO ADUaiod U0,y oU3 9ANssy 0F AJN0] ‘Z0-210T-NEA RqUnN 2412311J Aorjog AoueSy yiLm ourepIodde Uy

LOFETOED LOVAILNOD HOA

V1 q T = - " —
T wetso.d Auenisg [euoiieN|

ANNOS 13495MNd



$107 [y wotsiay
5 30 97 98eq LOYETOED WenuoD HOA

“Bur£qqo] uo SUOHIIYSIY MIN FE 18] WA OF BLL Ym A1dwod o3 sea18e juardwalqns o "senaoR Teonrod 1ayzo 1o Surdqqor 105 10 ‘g

a3 ysuree uonednt 107 spuny juers [erspay jo asn au syquyord AJrersusS UpTym 00z MO 7 1€ S[qR[reAr sardiourz 350Dy ay3 £q apiqe reys
juardpaigns sy, “me[ Sunsixe PpUn PAZLIOYINE SSA[UN ‘G () 93 IsuTeSe wonedyI| Ul 10 JUSWILLIZA0S) Te1apey 3z Jo Surdqqor ur a8e3us o3

PasTL 3Ie JUaWaalde Ue)sIsse ST} Iapun papreme spury nreid ou Jey aamsus [Teys Aousle jusidpaiqns sty JO I90LJ0 SATINIFXS pPrpayr 1

uoneSyry pue Sutdqqo]  ‘pi

"20ueT[duIodUo N 107 SaTpIWY 86E 00T 3ed
AID T 3R pPue £07°00T ¥AD T ‘() 1€£°00T YD T 3¢ payads asoyy se yons Ssanuspiap 1031100 0} Use; sey Ajnus ySnong-ssed sy suompdy e
"SUOISIp JuswRSewew Ajus ySnony-ssed paje[ar pue sSurpuy jipne jo soueunung e
"pasanpe JuardDaIqNS JY) SJ[NSSL [BJUSWIUOIIAUY o
-souweurioyiad jusrdpalgns e
SAT]OAJJA SINSUD 0} SMILADI YSAP I0/pUe S}ISTA 931S WICIJ SSUIPUL JO SILIBLIWNS
‘syrodar ogeunuerford pue [emueUl JO SMITARI JO S[NSAT JO SALILWIUING o

19Te S[qe[IeAR UOHRULIOFUT 313 sty Ajue yBnoxyi-ssed suz 1 parodar aq jsrur yey; suayr yo saydurexy

(P)TEE°002 ¥ID T 19pun sentanoe JuLiojuow premeqns sj uo 1zoda1 jsnu jusrdoaIqns sy
(L0-9T-149) yuawarmbay Sunioday premeqng ogewwerSord [PpoN ‘gl

AOSDPST MMM e puroj aq Aeul sprepueis asay
U0 UOHEWLION] 'SPIEpUe}s PIsIopus (DAD4) 39HIunuo)) eje dnyde1s09s) [e1opay] Yiim JU}SISU0D aq ST pajeald ejep reredsoad v

spiepueig ejeq [egedsosn ‘7|

Wm0 premy ays Jo afed juorg ayy uo passty 100gyQ 18lo1] v IF inok 1pejucd ssesrd ‘suonsanb aaey

noA j] ‘sz231enbpesy v g woy sreaordde syerrdordde urezqo wes 3y 1ey; 0s ‘OoIxay I0/pue epewr]) Jurpniour ‘Anunod 2y jo o pauued st
[9aeq 31 9]g1ssod se uoos se 120130 199[01] V7 moL oejuco ssesl] Teaordde v 110 sexmbar ‘eoustaruon e pueie 03 sjdurexs 1oy ‘A1junod uSra10§
e 0} di1j Jo11q e UsAg 'SIND00 [ALn TIOIHAY (VIIO) SIEHY [eqILL, PUE [EUOHEUIN JO 30L0) 93 £q panoxdde aq 3snw pae1] [PUOBEWISN] [TV

(epeue) Surpnoul) [9ABIL], [EUOT}EUIIJU] LI

}sanbar uogerasp e uo UoISAp Teuy e SUn{ew 210§9q V J7 WM J[NSU0D 03 SaqLy pajosyze 10§ Ayrunizoddo ayy apracid pue £30700g

jo yusunreda( uoiBumysep a3 pue (VyON) Uonensunupy dueydsouwsy pue STUead() [EUOLEN S} UM 270D Im v Jy wrerd juroduou age;s
At pue (STAINL) speoT Afreq urmwpxelA [ejo], ‘suerd A19A0a1 uowr[es ‘ejep juswssasse oyoads-23is se yons sananos wox pado[aasp aq prnoo
S[EUOREI JGUUSS 3], "SIMNSSI JURAI[SI IS0 I0 J[EUONEI DYHUIDS 31 U0 ndur [eqLy azirewrums jsnur jsanbax ay [, “A12400a1 uouryes pue Ajjenb
m21em Zunioddns 10 s1azynq o Aoenbape SunensUOWSP STEUORI DTUIDS U] JIUIGNS JSTIUL 397Ueld a ‘uonidaoxa ue 10y 3senbai v ayeniess

0} Y4 20§ 19pI0 U] "y 49 £q paaordde uondsoxa we ySnoryy paureiqo aq ATuo ueo suongeras( "A19a00a1 uowryes pue Ajpenb 1syem 110ddns o3

LOYET049D LOVIINOD HOA
¥ I weJdold Auenisy [euonen]

(- |

ANNOS 1d495Nd




8107 [dy uoIsiaay
#5 30 LT 98ed LOYEZOED wenuo) HOd

sjuatdidal pIemeqns 03 SJUSUIASINGSIP YSNOoIy} UmMop umelp ja4 jou
‘spuny [eapaj Juadsun, are spalord premeqns 0f PIRIUNIOD Pue P37eSI[qo SPUNy [eI9Pay Jel Ul JO yBua syz 2onpar yey sdem ur Surpury
premeqns pue surerdord 1ey; a8euewr pmoys uejdyzom pasoidde ayj ur spremeqns spnpul yeu} syuawaaide soue)sisse vy Jo spuatdiosy

[e0D Y91315 011 "9l

W[ 90UBITSse/SjUeId/PI0/A0S Bda MMM/[-AT

:2]1SqaM JUILLIEGA(] PUR SIIRIS) JO 30I0 VAH U} 38 Punoj aq wed sjuawarmbai 859y} U0 UOHRUIIONIT [EUOHRIPPY JUSUWINOOP SOUBITSSE

Ayrenb auy pasoxdde sey “reSeurep souenssy AN V H U3 YiLm 1180100 UL 18030 02[01] VId 2u3 [um osloxd styy zopum pajeniur aq [[eys
A3ojouypa; [eruswuoIAUS Jo uoterado pue ‘wononnsuod ‘udsap a3 Sunroddns ejep Pue LIPS JUONII 10 JITHRIAY WL BIRD JO uonerrdurod
‘SUIAPOW [eJUSUIUOIIAD “UORIaUaS ejep 10 SJUSWAINSeal 103I1p SUTAOAUT YI0M ON IO palorg W JH 9 yim pajerjodau se ajep 1ayjoue
10 Jusuraarge snyy jo aoueidadae ay3 jo sAep OF UM 190130 309(01 VJH Y3 03 PIRIIQNS 3q ISTILL UOHRUSIINOOP IUBINSSY Ayreny) a1qeidaooy

TUO 0E0C070/595edATe IS /SUOHeo [ qd /AJ9/ A0S BM SSaTII0]//-SARY

‘pasoidde pue pajerdurod are s1eATeM JJVO) U3 [HUN UrSaq Jou AeW ejep [eUaUIUOIIAUS Sunsixe usn

10 M3t SUTPS[00 0} PAYe[al IOM "IV o 2ao1dde pue dofaasp o3 (D7) JAN) 1oreurp1oo) Anrend) JAN 5,A307007 IIM YIoM [[IM sjuaidaIqns
“parmbai s1 JJVO) © J] OUPITSSE-ATI[EA()/So0TAIIs-O G UG a)eIad0-aM-MOH/ST-IN0q v /A03 BM AS0[099// SRy :a8ed qam soueInssy Aend

JAN 5,4807007 jo jusunredsq a1e1g uoiBUTYSE A U1 SULMILARI I21Je SUTSTL ULIOJ J2ATEA UR[d palor soueImssy Ajeng) e jnugns [[im jusidoaigng

(LT00ST WD 7) syuswmarmbay sduemssy Aend ‘Gl

‘spremeqns yJd 103 9[qrdr[aur axe sanianoe Sutdqqol ut a8eSus Jey) Spo)) SNUSASY [eUIFU] 3U3 JO (F)(2) 106 uonDas I9puUn UoHexe)}
woiz 3dwexe suoneznesio jyorduoN 10y 2msoPsi] 3utdqqoT] Y} JO € UCHIAG Ul paulsp s saRIAne Surfqqor ur a8e3us jou [[1m pue
10U $90P J1q 9PoD) Y3 3O (F)(2) T0G U0HIaG UT Pagrdsap UOHeZIuesIo JjoIducy € st 1t ey} 10 96T JO SpOD) SNUAY [UI] 39U JO #(@)108
UO0TDag Ul PaqIIsap uorezuedio 1goiduoy e Jou ST 31 yey) suwigge JusidaIqns syi 40V 3msopsiq Surdqqor] ay3 JO §T UOTI0aG 0} Jurensing Al
‘SpIeMY [elapaq 19pu[) SPenuo) AUy [e1apa,]-UoN 0§ SUOTSIA0I] 0eHUOD — (00T 3ed
03 1 xtpuaddy a3 ur payemndus se uowsiaoxd Surdqqor-pue ay3 ‘srqedrdde usym ‘UreRIod [[eys wardmaiqns 9yl Aq papIeme s10BIJUOdqNG T
‘amyrpuadxe Uons yoea 10§
000°00TS el 9I0W J0U pue 00p’0T$ weys ssa] jou jo Aeuad [1ap e 03 393[qns aq [[eys suLioy Surkqqor 10 uogesynIa0 parmbar ayj o[y o} S[ref
10 HE 1R YD 0F I[LL Iopun armyrpuadxa pajiqnyord e saxyew oym jusidioar Aue ‘Jusurpuaury SurAqqo-muy pIdg ou3 Jilm souepiodde ul I
-A12urp10008 SULIO] BIMSOPSIP PUE UOHEITHI0 Juqns sjustdnarqns
e axmbaz pue {900‘00TS Surpasoxs spresmeqns [[e 10§ SJUIUNOOP PIeMmE UL uorstaoxd snp Jo s8enSue| a3 apnput [[eys putdoaIqns ayL,

LOYPETOED LIVAINOD HOA

V LISIHXE weld30o.dd AJenisy

ANNOS 13DNd




810¢ THdy uoistAay
e LOFETOED 10enue) HOA

(9) ‘pure wonoIpsLM{ 118y} UNIM weiSord [eJUSWINOIIAUS [eUOT Y © 10 A118d 03 V4 yim s1auired remygo se e 10 |, s103emBar-00,, se surezGord
[EJUSUIUOIIAUS [eI3p3 ] Paje3a[op jno A1Ted Jey) sjusuuioaos [edo] pue [eqLy ‘a1elg 4q asp) (¢) ‘sauroyisodap [eI9Pa Ul UCISNIUT I0] SJUSITIOP JO
uonoNpoiday () LstmIayo 10 uonein ySnong juaidmaiqns sy 03 pamnquie Aadord st NI0M 3} pue (Sapod axemijos "8'9) $}9109S dpel] ISOPSIP
30U S30p JUSWINOOP 3U3 PapPIA0Ld SJUSWMIOP Y JH Ul UOHEdIGI (€) JUaUnLIan0s) ayy 10§ syse3 sgwads Juruwiogiad sz010erjuod Texapayq £q asn)

(7) ‘sesodmd yuouruIaAos) TeRy;0 10§ seakordws [e19pa IUYI0 PUE Vg Aq @sq) (1) :03 payruay jou are ng apnpur asodind exapay e jo sapdurexy

'sasodind [e1apa 107 juswisaiSe aouessisse sy 1spun pPado[aASp BIEp I9YF0 10 SYI0M
payy8rddos asn pue ysyqnd ‘eonpoadar 03 s19130 9ZLIOYINE puE sn “ystiqnd ‘sonpordaz 03 1311 ay3 sy VJH “‘STE00Z YD T UM 0URPIODIE U]

vl pue [eHajely pajysuddony gL

/STRIqR]/S00q /00 I3UIpeal/pa dew MM M//-dTIY e
POSSI0IE 39 UEd PUR [IOUNOT) YoIeasay [eUOHe ‘Se0Imosay [ewiuy A1ojeroqe’] 3o aymynsu] ayp 4q paredaid ‘srewmnry A103e10qe j0 95 pue arey
103 P 3y} INSU0d Prnoys jusidpaiqns a3 ‘sa[dDUTL] 3U3 N0 UOHRULIOT [EUOHIPPE 10,] W TI9A/ MOV1/5qId/I1ME/ADS BPSIT B0 MM
M]Tdpgsa H5931+ULPISTI+ SRR3R 109} [9A+]0+9Te0+ PUEHUOBZI T+ +10)+59[d DU +oUuTu=10191 % [=] H ) z=dd1; JUoTeas/npa dew MMM]/:5dig
e pamata aq wed ssdpund suru oy, (86107 A2IAl 6980Z-H980T :(£6)0S 1215139y [e19pag)

Buturer], pue oresssy ‘BUNSIL UI Pasn S[RWIIIY 31RIGIHIA JO 917 pUE uonezI[y] a3 10§ sadulL] JUsWUISA0D) 'S, 943 4q 9pIqe o}

saa13e os[e Juarda1qns By, "95TT-TETZ DS / ‘POPUSWE st “(F35-68 “1d) 9961 JO PV arej[ap Tewiuy au3 ypm Ajdurod o3 saarde jusrdmarqns sy,

spalqng reuruy )
91Ep pus preme Aq umop umelq ag PINOYS [V 0ZO0TAL Ul PapIemy spung
20T Y21eIN £q umo( wmei( 39 [Te PMoYs (610¢ ‘0¢ 2quiaidag-g10¢ ‘T 12290100) 6T0ZAA Ul PIPIBMY Spung
120C YT 4q umoq ume1( ag [[e Poys (8102 ‘0¢ 19quwa3das-£107 “T 1890RQ) §T0ZAL UL PIpIemy spung
020T Y2Te] 49 umoq umeid ag [[e PIMoys (£L10T ‘0¢ 19qwaidag-9107 ‘I 199010) L10TAL UT Popiemy spunyg

JueIs 913 JO Tead YHNoy aYj 10§ S[qe[IeAr SSLMISU}O S[AAI] 18 PAIaPISUOd 9q 0} SUTPUNJ [eIUSISIOUT 10§ I9PI0 Ul STea4 7/17 Aq juads
9 P[MOYS Spuny ([ "paysI[qeis? ST SpIemeqns Yilm Juels pes] aaLeniul 0189)e1)s Maul |oea 10§ SPUN JO UOHEZI[YN 10§ [203 yp1ans v [e0S) Yo1aIIg

“Aj[un sTeoS yojans 33y JO JUSWUTEN R SR 1Ry} 3SR SIOUR)SUT 12AIUIYM 1aFeuriy juels) O INoA YIm 1ajuod
0} PUe JUsLWedIFe 20Ue)SISSE U} JO 31] aU3 Inoysnony: sfeod ,yo1ans,, asay; Adde o axe syuatdioaiqns pue sjusdal JUsusa1de S0uelsIssy

"paynuapt 324 Jou spreme jusnbasqns o Ajdde few pue ‘presme sardajeng uorejuawa[duy
104 110ddng souaiajuo)) JuswaBeweIn 910ZA 3Y} ‘preme uonezIeSI) pea] [eqIL], 9TOTAL 9Y3 ‘Spleme pea] sanenIu o1893enS 9T0ZAL YL

:5309(01d premeqns Y3 sjuswoarde aoueISISSE asaLf)
0} UOHIPU0d pure wria} dpewruredord Summorroy ayz Suiddde 4q (so1n) suoneSiqo payepmbrun asay; jo uonoNpal 3y} safermnoous y g

LOYECOED IIDVIINOD HOQ

M weJ3old Auenis3 [euoieN]

ANNOS 1495Nd



3107 [Hdy uoIstAy
530 6Z 98eg LOPEZOED Wenuod HOd

‘spuny Jueid [e1opad JO 95N JARDSR PUe JUsDYIe sajouwrold asn yons uaym reid reyjoue wojred o3 jueid
st} 1opun papraoad spuny £9usSy yim padoaasp erep 18U30 10 sxp0m papgSr1Adod asn 01 s9jueld IAYjOUR SZLIOYE Aews yJq ‘aontppe ug

JuowroaIde sty Jo uoneIdxe 10 UOeUNILIa) 10 Blep I9Y10 10 syiom payy31iddod ays jo asn ay dA[0AUT

11 ey 10eloxd e wroprad o1 Wy £q 9s1ueIS 190U JO UOTIS[Is S JO JNSAI € Se jueld st} spun pado[aAdp ejep IS0 10 sYIoMm parySrhdoo
ayj asn 03 (5)ssyureId Iapoue szLIOYINE Aew  J7 teyl so8paymowide aajueld sy} ‘guIa)] Bpuf] "ejep 130 IO SYI0oM pa1y8uAdoo ays asn 03

397UeIS I9UJ0 S\ O} UOTRZLIOUINE §, J5 JO SWLIa} 3U} 3L JUB)SISU0D ST asn ay papiaoid syureid [e1apay mo A1red 03 saajurers 19430 Aq asn pajrur]

LOPETOED LOVIINOD HOA

e weJSoud Alenisg [euoieN|

ANNOS 135MNd



EXITIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CB023407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. DEFINITIONS

As used throughout this contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

I

“Allowable Cost” shall mean an cxpenditure which meets the test of the Uniform Guidance (2CFR
200) (see “I. Federal Compliance™). The most significant factors affecting allowability of cost are;
1) they must be necessary and reasonable, 2) they must be allocable, 3} they must be authorized or
not prohibited under State or local laws and regulations, and 4) they must be adequately
documented. For more specifics see Selected Items of Cost 2 CFR 200.420).

"Client" shall mean an agency, firm, organization, individual or other entity applying for or
receiving services under this contract.

"Cognizant State Agency" shall mean the State agency from whom the sub-recipient receives
federal financial assistance. If funds are received from more than one State agency, the cognizant
State agency shall be the agency who contributes the largest portion of federal financial assistance
to the sub-recipient, unless a cognizant State agency has been designated by OFM.

“Confidential Information " shall mean information that is exempt from disclosure under chapter
42,56 RCW, and other State or Federal statutes and regulations.

"Contractor” shall mean that agency, firm, provider, organization, individual or other entity
performing services under this contract. It shall include any subconiractor retained by the prime
contractor as permitted nnder the terms of this contract.

A contract is for the purpose of obtaining goods and services for the non-Federal entity's own use
and creates a procurement relationship with the Contractor. See §200.22 Contract. Characteristics
mndicative of a procurement relationship between the non-Federal entity and a Contractor are when
the non-Federal entity receiving the Federal funds:

Provides the goods and services within normal business operations;

Provides similar goods or services to many different purchasers;

Normally operates in a competitive environment;

Provides goods or services that are ancillary to the operation of the Federal program; and

Is not subject to compliance requirements of the Federal program as a result of the agreement,
though similar requirements may apply for other reasons.

ToAw>

“Contracting Officer" shall mean that individual(s) of the Contracts and Procurement Office of
DOH and his/her delegates within that office authorized to execute this contract on behalf of DOH.

"Department” shall mecan the Department of Health (DOH) of the State of Washington, any
division, section, office, unit or other entity of the department, or any of the officers or other
officials lawfully representing DOH.

“Equipment” shall mean an article of non-expendable, tangible property having a useful life of
more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 ot more.

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 30 of 54
Revision April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

9. “Noncomphiance” shall mean if a non-Federal entity fails to comply with Federal statutes,
regulations or the terms and conditions of a Federal award, the Federal awarding agency or pass-
through entity may impose additional conditions, as described in §200.207 Specific conditions. If
the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity determines that noncompliance cannot be
remedied by imposing additional conditions, the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity
may take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances:

A. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the non-Federal
entity or mote severe enforcement action by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through
entity.

B. Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of

the cost of the activity or action not in compliance.

Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Federal award.

Tnitiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR part 180 and Federal

awarding agency regulations (or in the case of a pass-through entity, recommend such a

proceeding be initiated by a Federal awarding agency).

E. Withhold further Federal awards for the project or program.

F. Take other remedies that may be legally availabie.

o0

10. "Personal Information” shall mean information identifiable to any person, inchuding, but not limited
to, information that relates to a person's name, health, finances, education, business, use or receipt
of governmental services or other activities, addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers,
driver ficense numbers, other identifying numbers, and any financial identifiers. Personal
information includes “protected health information” as set forth in 45 CFR § 164.50 as cutrrently
drafted and subsequently amended or revised and any other information that may be exempt from
disclosure to the public or other unauthorized persons under either chapter 42.56 RCW or other
State and Federal statutes.

11. "Reimbursement” shall mean that DOH will repay the Contractor for allowable costs incurred undey
the terms of this contract.

12. “Risk Assessment” shall mean (2 CFR 200.331(b)) DOH is required to evaluate each subrecipient’s
risk of noncompliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the
subaward for purposes of determining the appropriate subrecipient monitoring described in
paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, which may include consideration of such factors as:

A. The subrecipient's prior experience with the same or similar subawards;

B. The results of previous audits including whether or not the subrecipicent receives a Single
Aundit in accordance with Subpart F—Audit Requirements of this part, and the extent to
which the same or similar subaward has been audited as a major program;

C. Whether the subrecipient has new personnel or new or substantially changed systems; and

D. The extent and results of Federal awarding agency monitoring (e.g., if the subrecipient also
receives Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency).

13. “Sensitive Data” shall mean data that is held confidentially, and if compromised, may cause harm
to individual citizens or create a liability for the State.

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 31 of 54
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

14. “Specific Conditions”

A. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity may impose additional specific award
conditions as needed, in accordance with (2 CFR 200.207) paragraphs (b) and (c) of this
section, under the following circumstances:

1} Based on the criteria set forth in §200.205 Federal awarding agency review of risk posed
by applicants;

2) When an applicant or recipient has a history of failure to comply with the general or specific
terms and conditions of a Federal award;

3) When an applicant or recipient fails to meet cxpected performance goals as described in
§200.210 Information contained in a Federal award; or

4) When an applicant or recipient is not otherwise responsible.

B. These additional Federal award conditions may include items such as the following:
[} Requiring payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments;
2) Withholding authority to proceed to the next phase until receipt of evidence of acceptable
performance within a given period of performance;
3) Requiring additional, more detailed financial reports;
4} Requiring additional project monitoring;
5) Requiring the non-Federal entity to obtain technical or management assistance; or
6) Establishing additional prior approvals,

C. The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must notify the applicant or non-Federal
entity as to:
1) The nature of the additional requirements;
2) The reason why the additional requirements are being imposed:
3) The nature of the action needed to remove the additional requirement, if applicable;
4) The time allowed for completing the actions if applicable, and
5) The method for requesting reconsideration of the additional requirements imposed.

D. Auy specific conditions must be promptly removed once the conditions that prompted them
have been corrected.

15. “Subcontractor” shall mean a person, partnership, or company, not in the employ of or owned by
the Contractor, who is performing all or part of those services under a separate contract with or on
behalf of the Contractor. The terms “subcontractor” and “subcontractors” mean subcontractor(s)
n any tier

16. “Subrecipient” shall mean a non-Federal entity that received a subaward from a pass-through entity
to carry out part of a Federal program; but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of
such program. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a
Federal awarding agency. (2 CFR 200.93)

Characteristics which support the classification of the non-Federal entity as a subrecipient include
when the non-Federal entity:

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 32 of 54
Revision April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Determines who is eligible fo receive what Federal assistance,

Has its performance measured in relation to whether objectives of a Federal program were
met;

Has responsibility for programmatic decision making;

Is responsible for adherence to applicable Federal program requirements specified in the
Federal award; and

In accordance with its contract, uses the Federal funds to carry out a program for a public
purpose specified in authorizing statute, as opposed to providing goods or services for the
benefit of a pass-through entity.

= oo =

17. “Successos” shall mean any entity which, through amalgamation, consolidation, or other legal
succession becomes invested with rights and assumes burdens of the first contractor/ vendor.

II. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. ACCESS TO DATA — In compliance with chapter 39.26 RCW, the Contractor shall provide
access to data generated under this contract to DOH, the Joint Legislative Audit and Review
Committee, and the State Auditor at no additional cost. This includes access to all information that
supports the findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the Contractor’s reports, including
computer models and methodology for those models. The Contractor agrees to make personal
information covered under this contract available to DOH for inspection or to amend the personal
information, as directed by DOTL.  Contractor shall, as directed by DOH, incorporate any
amendments to the personal information into all copies of such personal information maintained
by the Contractor or its subcontractors..

2. ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED — No payment in advance ot in anticipation of services
or supplies to be provided under this contract shall be made by DOH.

3. AMENDMENTS — This contract may be amended by mutual written contract of the parties. Such
amendments shall not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to
bind each of the parties.

4, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) OF 1990, PUBLIC LAW 101-336, also
referred to as the "ADA" 28 CFR Part 35 — The Contractor must comply with the ADA, which
provides comprehensive civil rights protection to individuals with disabilities in the areas of
employment, public accommodations, State and local government services, and
telecommunications.

5 ASSIGNABILITY - Neither this contract nor any claim arising under this contract shall be
transferred or assigned by the Contractor without prior written consent of DOH.

6. ATTORNEYS’ FEES — In the event of litigation or other action brought to enforce contract terms,
each party agrees to bear its own attorney’s fees and costs.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 33 of 54
Revision April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

7. CHANGE IN STATUS - In the event of substantive change in the legal status, organizational
structure, or fiscal reporting responsibility of the Contractor, Contractor agrees to notify DOH of
the change. Contractor shall provide notice as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty days
after such a change takes effect.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY/SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION — The use or disclosure by any
party, cither verbally or in writing, of any Confidential Information shall be subject to Chapter
42.56 RCW and Chapter 70.02 RCW, as well as other applicable Federal and State laws and
administrative rules governing confidentiality. Specifically, the Contractor agrees to limit access to
Confidential Information to the minimum amount of information necessary, to the fewest number
of people, for the least amount of time required to do the work. The obligations set forth in this
clause shall survive completion, cancellation, expiration, or termination of this contract.

A. Notification of Confidentiality Breach

Upon a breach or suspected breach of confidentiality, the Contractor shall immediately notify
the DOH Privacy Officer at DOHPrivacyOfficer(@doh.wa.gov. For the purposes of this
contract, “immediately” shall mean within two calendar days.

The Contractor will take steps necessary to mitigate any known harmful effects of such
unauthorized access including, but not limited to sanctioning employees, notifying subjects,
and taking steps necessary to stop further unauthorized access. The Contractor agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless DOH for any damages related to unauthorized use or disclosure.
by the Contractor, its officers, directors, employees, subcontractors, or agents.

Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return
of all Information.

B. Subsequent Disclosure

The Contractor will not release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell, disclose, or otherwise make the
Confidential Information known to any other entity or person without the express prior written
consent of the Secretary of Health, or as required by law.

If responding to public record disclosure requests under RCW 42.56, the Contractor agrees to
notify and discuss with the DOH Privacy Officer requests for all information that are part of
this contract, prior to disclosing the information. The Contractor further agrees to provide DOH
a minimum of two calendar weeks to initiate legal action to secure a protective order under
RCW 42.56.540.

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST — Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board
or other tribunal, DOH may, in its sole discretion, by written natice to the Contractor, terminate
this contract if it is found, after due notice and examination by DOH or it’s employee that there is
a violation of the ethics in public service act, chapter 42.52 RCW, or any similar statute involving
the Contractor in the procurement of, or performance of this contract.

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 34 of 54
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In the event this contract is terminated as provided above, DOH shall be entitled to pursue the same
remedies against the Contractor as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the contract by the
Contractor, The rights and remedies of DOH provided for in this section shall not be exclusive are
in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law. The existence of facts upon which
DOH makes a determination under this section shall be an issue and may be reviewed as provided
in the “disputes” section of this contract.

16. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES — The Contractor warrants that no person or
selling agent has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, excepting bona fide
employees or bona fide established agents maintained by the Contractor for the purpose of securing
business. DOH shall have the right, in the event of breach of this clause by the Contractor, to annul
this contract without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration
or recover by other means the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent
fee.

11. DEBARMENT — The Contractor, by signature to this contract, certifies that the Contractor is not
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
in any Federal department or agency from participating in transactions. The Contractor agrees to
include the above requirement in all subcontracts into which it enters to complete this contract.

12. DISPUTES — The parties shall use their best, good faith efforts to cooperatively resolve disputes
and problems that arise in connection with this contract. Both parties will continue without delay
to carry out their respective responsibilities under this contract while attempting to resolve the
dispute under this section. When a genuine dispute arises between DOH and the Contractor
regarding the terms of this agreement or the responsibilities imposed herein which cannot be
resolved, ejther party may submit a request for non-binding mediation to the other party through
the DOH Contracts Unit and the DOH Contracts Unit will notify the other party of the request for
non-binding mediation. DOH Contracts will act as the initial coordination peint and manage the
non-binding mediation communication to and from the parties.

Tach party agrees that the DOH will identify three mediators who are neutral to both parties. Each
party agrees that Contractor will identify one of the three mediators to engage in this process. Each
party agrees that it will be responsible for one-half (1/2) the cost of the mediator. Each party agrees
that the non-binding mediation will occur at a time and place convenient to all parties, including
the mediator and that preference is for the mediation to occur in Olympia or Tumwater,
Washington. Each party agrees the mediation is non-binding,

A party’s request for a non-binding mediation must:

» Be in writing,

o clearly state the disputed issues,

« state the relative positions of the parties, state the Contractor’s name, address, and his/her
contact number, the DOH Program Contract Manager.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 35 of 54
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

o bemailed to ATTN: DOH Contracts and Procurement Director, P.O. Box 47905, Olympia,
WA 98504-7905 within 30 day (30) calendar days after the party could have reasonably be
expected to have knowledge of the issue which he/she now disputes, or

e Dbe emailed to DOHCON.MGMT@DOH.WA.GOV with the subject line clearly displaying
the contract number and the word “DISPUTE.”

The non-binding mediation process constitutes the sole administrative remedy available under this
contract. The parties agree that this resolution process shall precede any action in a judicial and
quasi-judicial tribunal. Both parties have a duty and responsibility to timely pursue and engage in
non-binding mediation. However, the requesting party may pursue judicial or quasi-judicial action
prior to the completion of non-binding mediation if the subject party unnecessarily delays or
intentionally frustrates the mediation process.

13. EFFECTIVE DATE — Unless otherwise specified under period of performance, the effective date
of this contract and subsequent amendments, if any, is the date of execution. The date of execution
is the last date of signature of the parties to the contract. Contractor assumes all liability for any
expenses incurred prior to the date of execution or in the event the contract/amendment is not
executed.

14. GOVERNING LAW — This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington
and applicable federal laws and regulations. The venue of any legal action or suit concerning this
contract shall be the Thurston County Superior Court and all actions or suits thereon shall be
brought therein.

15. INDEMNIFICATION — To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify,
defend and hold harmless the State of Washington, DOH, agencies of the State and all officials,
and employees of the State, from and against all claims arising out of or resulting from the
performance of the contract. “Claim” as used in this contract means any financial loss, claim, suit,
action, damage, or expense, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, attributable for bodily
injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of tangible property including loss of
use resulting therefrom. Contractor's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes
any claim by Conftractors’ agents, employees, representatives, or any subcontractor or its
employees.

Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State for any claim arising
out of or incident to Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s performance or failure to perform the
contract. Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State shall not be
eliminated or reduced by any actual or alleged concurrent negligence of State or ils agencies,
employees and officials.

Contractor waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, defend
and hold harmless State and its agencies, officials or employees.

16. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF THE CONTRACTOR - The parlies intend that an
independent contractor relationship will be created by this contract. The Contractor and his or her

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 36 of 54
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDETIONS

employees or agents performing under the contract are not employees of DOH. The contractor
shall not hold himself/herself out as nor claim to be an officer or employee of DOH or of the State
of Washington by reason hereof, nor will the Contractor make any claim of right, privilege or
benefit which would accrue to such employee under law. Conduct and control of the work will be
solely with the Contractor.

17. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE COVERAGE — The Contractor shall comply with the provisions
of Title 51 RCW, Industrial Insurance. Prior to performing work under this contract, the Contractor
shall provide or purchase industrial insurance coverage for the Contractor’s employees, as may be
required of an “employer” as defined in Title 51 RCW, and shall maintain full compliance with
Title SIRCW during the coutse of this contract. If the Contractor fails to provide industrial
insurance coverage or fails to pay premiums or penalties on behalf of its employees as may be
required by law, DOH may collect from the Contractor the full amount payable to the Industrial
Insurance accident fund, DOH may deduct the amount owed by the Contractor to the accident fund |
from the amount payable to the Contractor by DOII under this contract, and transmit the deducted |
amount to the Department of Labor and Industries, Division of Insurance Services. This provision
does not waive any of the Department of Labor and Industries rights to collect from the Contractor.

Industrial insurance coverage through the Department of Labor & Industries is optional for sole
proprietors, partners, corporate officers and others, per RCW 51.12.020.

18. INSURANCE — The Contractor shall provide insurance coverage as set out in this section. The
intent of the required insurance is to protect the State should there be any claims, suits, actions,
costs, damages or expenses arising from any negligent or intentional act or omission of the
Contractor or subcontractor, ot agents of either, while performing under the terms of this confract.

The Contractor shall provide insurance coverage which shall be maintained in full force and effect
during the term of this Contract, as follows:

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy - Provide a commercial general liability
insurance policy, including contractual liability, in adequate quantity to protect against legal
lability arising out of contract activity but no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.
Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring that any subcontractors provide
adequate insurance coverage for the activities arising out of subcontracts.

B. Automobile Liability - In the event that services delivered pursuant to this contract involve
the use of vehicles, either owned or unowned by the Confractor, automobile liability
insurance shall be required. The minimum Jimit for antomobile liability is:

1) $1,000,000 per occurrence, using a combined single limit for bodily injury and property
damage

C. The insurance required shall be issued by an insurance company/ies authorized to do business
within the State of Washington, and shall name the State of Washington, and its employees as
additional insureds under the insurance policy/ies. All policies shall be primary to any other

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 37 of 54
Revision April 2018



19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24.

EXHIBITB
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

valid and collectable insurance. Contractor shall instruct the insurers to give DOH 30 days
advatice notice of any insurance cancellation.

Upon request, Contractor shall submit to DOH, a certificate of insurance which outlines the
coverage and limits defined in the Insurance section. If a certificate of insurance is requested,
Contractor shall submit renewal certificates as appropriate during the tetm of the contract,

LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION — The Contractor shall comply with
all applicable local, State, and Federal licensing, accreditation and registration
requirements/standards, necessary for the performance of this contract.

LIMITATION OF AUTHHORITY — Only the Contracting Officer or his/her delegate by writing
(delegation to be made prior to action) shall have the express, implied, or apparent authority to
alter, amend, modify, or waive any clause or condition of this contract on behalf of DOH. No
alteration, modification, or waiver of any clanse or condition of this contract is effective or binding
unless made in writing and signed by the Contracting Officer.

NONDISCRIMINATION - During the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall comply
with all Federal and State nondiscrimination laws, regulations and policies.

NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS NONCOMPLIANCE - In the event of the Contractor's
noncompliance or refusal to comply with any nondiscrimination law, regulation, or policy, this
contract may be rescinded, canceled or terminated in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be
declared ineligible for further contracts with DOH. The Contractor shall, however, be given a
reasonable time in which to cure this noncompliance. Any dispute may be resolved in accordance
with the disputes procedure set forth herein,

OVERPAYMENTS AND ASSERTION OF LIEN — In the event that DOH establishes
overpayments or erroneous payments made to the Contractor under this contract, DOH may secure
repayment, plus interest, if any, through the filing of a lien against the Contractor's real property,
or by requiring the posting of a bond, assignment or deposit, or some other form of security
acceptable to DOH, or by doing both.

PRIVACY — Personal information including, but not limited to “protected health information”
collected, nsed or acquired in connection with this contract shall be used solely for the purposes of
this confract. Contractor and its subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell
or otherwise make known to unauthorized persons personal information without the express written
consent of DOH or as provided by law. Contractor agrees to implement physical, electronic and
managerial safegnards to prevent unauthorized access to personal information.

DOH reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate the use of personal information collected,
used or acquired by the contractor through this contract. The monitoring, auditing, or investigating
may include but is not limited to "salting” by DOH. Contractor shall certify the return or destruction
of all personal information upon expiration of this contract. Salting is the act of placing a record

DO Contract CBO23407 Page 38 of 54
Revision April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

containing unigue but false information in a database that can be used later to identify inappropriate
disclosure of data contained in the database.

Any breach of this provision may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return of
all personal information. The contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless DOH for any
damages related to the contractor's unauthorized use of personal information,

For the purposes of this provision, personal information includes but is not limited to information
identifiable to an individual that relates to a natural person's health, finances, education, business,
use or receipt of governmental services, or other activities, names, addresses, telephone numbers,
social security numbers, driver license numbers, financial profiles, credit card numbers, financial
identifiers and other identifying numbers.

25. PUBLICITY — The Contractor agrees to submit to DOH all advertising and publicity matiers
relating to this contract wherein DOH’s name is mentioned or language used from which the
conmection of DOF’s name may, in DOH's judgment, be inferred or implied. The Contractor agrees
not to publish or use such advertising and publicity matters without the prior written consent of
DOH.

26. RECORDS, DOCUMENTS, AND REPORTS --The Contractor shall maintain books, records,
documents, data and other evidence relating to this contract and performance of the services
described herein, including but not limited to accounting procedwres and practices which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the
performance of this contract. Contractor shall retain such records for a period of six (6} years
following the date of final payment. At no additional cost, these records, including materials
generated under the contract, shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review or audit
by DOH, personnel duly authorized by DOH, the Office of the State Auditor, and Federal and State
officials so authorized by law, regulation or agreement.

If the contract reimburses the Contractor for costs incurred in performance, the Contractor shall in
addition maintain books, records, documents and other evidence of procedures and practices which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the
performance of this coniract,

If any litigation, claim or audit is started before the expiration of the six (6) year period, the records
shall be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been
resolved.

27. REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE — The Contractor shall complete
registration with the Washington State Department of Revenue, if applicable, and be responsible
for payment of all taxes due on payments made under this contract.

28. RIGHT OF INSPECTION — The Contractor shall provide right of acecess to its facilities to DOH,
or any of its officers, or to any other authorized employee or official of the State of Washington or
the federal government, at all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance,

DOR Contract CBO23407 Page 39 of 54
Revision Aprii 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CB0O23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

compliance, and/or quality assurance under this contract. The Contractor shall make available
information necessary for DOH to comply with the client's right to access, amend, and receive an
accounting of disclosures of their Personal Information according to the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) or any regulations enacted or revised pursuant
to the HIPAA provisions and applicable provisions of Washington State law. The Contractor’s
internal policies and procedures, books, and records relating to the safegunarding, use, and disclosure
of personal information obtained or used as a result of this contract shall be made available to DOH
and the U.S. Secretary of the Department of Health & Human Services, upon request.

29. RIGHTS IN DATA/COPYRIGHT — Unless otherwise provided, all materials produced
exclusively under this contract shall be considered "works for hire" as defined by the U.S.
Copyright Act and shall be owned by DOH. DOH shall be considered the author of such Materials.
In the event the Materials are not considered “works for hire” under the U.S. Copyright laws,
Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in Materials, including all
intellectual property rights, to DOH effective from the moment of creation of such materials.

Materials means all items in any format and includes, but is not limited to, data, reports, documents,
pamphlets, advertisements, books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes,
and/or sound reproductions that derive exclusively from the Contractor’s work under this contract.
Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability to transfer these rights,

For materials that are delivered under the contract, but that incorporate pre-existing materials not
produced under the contract, Contractor hereby grants to DOH a nonexclusive, royalty-free,
irrevocable license (with rights to sublicense others) in such materials to translate, reproduce,
distribute, prepare derivative works, publicly perform, and publicly display. The Contractor
warrants and represents that Contractor has all rights and permissions, including intellectual
property rights, moral rights and rights of publicity, necessary to grant such a license to DOH.

The Contractor shall exert all reasonable effort to advise DOH, at the time of delivery of materials
furnished under this contract, of all known or potential invasions of privacy contained therein and
of any portion of such document which was not produced in the performance of this contract. DOH
shall receive prompt written notice of each notice or claim of copyright infringement received by
the Contractor with respect to any data delivered under this contract. DOH shall have the right to
modify or remove any restrictive markings placed upon the data by the Contractor.

30. SECURITY OF INFORMATION — Unless otherwise specifically authorized by the DOH IT

Security Officer, Contractor receiving confidential information under this contract assures that:

o It is compliant with the applicable provisions of the Washington State Office of the Chief
Information Officer’s policy, Securing Information Technology Assets, available at:
https://ocio.wa.gov/policy/securing-information-technology-assets-standards

o Itwill provide DOH copies of its IT security policies, practices and procedures upon the request
of the DOH IT Security Officer.

e DOH may at any time conduct an audit of the Contractor’s security practices and/or
infrastructure to assure compliance with the security requirements of this contract.

o It has implemented physical, electronic and administrative safeguards that are consistent with
OCIO IT security standards and guidelines to prevent unauthorized access, use, modification

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 40 of 54
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

or disclosure of DOH Confidential Information in any form. This includes, but is not limited
to, restricting access to specifically authorized individuals and services through the use of:

e Documented access authorization and change control procedures,

« Card key systems that restrict, monitor and log access;

e Locked racks for the storage of servers that contain Confidential Information or AES
encryption (128bit or stronger) to protect confidential data at rest;

e Documented patch management practices that assure afl network systems are Tunning critical
security updates within 6 days of release when the exploit is in the wild, and within 30 days of
release for all others;

s Documented anti-virus strategies that assure all systems are running the most current anti-virus
signatures within 1 day of release;

o Complex passwords that are systematically enforced and expire at least every 180 days;

e Strong (Two Factor) authentication mechanisms that assure the identity of individuals who
access Confidential Information;

e Account lock-out after 5 failed authentication attempts for a minimum of 20 minutes, or for
Confidential Information, until administrator reset;

e AES encrypted (128bit or stronger) sessions for all data transmissions.

o Firewall rules and network address translation that isolate database servers from web servers
and public networks;

e Regular review of firewall rules and configurations to assure compliance with authorization
and change control procedures;

» Log management and intrusion detection/prevention systems;

¢ A documented and tested incident response plan

Any breach of this clause may result in termination of the contract and the demand for return of all
personal information.

31, SEVERABILITY — If any provision of this contract or any provision of any document
incorporated by reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions
of this contract which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end the
provisions of this contract are declared to be severable.

32. SITE SECURITY — While on DOH premises, Contractor, its agents, employees, or subcontractors
shall conform in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or regulations, Failure to
comply with these regulations may be grounds for revoking or suspending security access to these
facilities. DOH reserves the right and authority to immediately revoke security access to Confractor
staff for any real or threatened breach of this provision. Upon reassignment or termination of any
Contractor staff, Contractor agrees to promptly notify DOH.

33. SUBCONTRACTING — Neither the Contractor, nor any subcontractors, shall enter into
subcontracts for any of the work contemplated under this contract without prior written approval
of DOH. In no event shall the existence of the subcontract operate to release or reduce the liability
of the Contractor to DOH for any breach in the performance of the Contractor’s duties. This clause
does not apply to Hospitals and/or Medical Clinics that must contract with specialty physicians
(e.g. anesthesiologists, radiologists, physicians groups, independent practitioners, etc.) nor does it

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 41 of 54
Revision April 2018



EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONBDITIONS

include contracts of employment between the contractor and personnel assigned to work under this
contract.

Additionally, the Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all terms, conditions, assurances and
certifications set forth in this contract are carried forward to any subcontracts. Contractor and its
subcontractors agree not to release, divulge, publish, transfer, sell or otherwise make known to
unauthorized persons personal information without the express written consent of DOH or as
provided by law.

If, at any time during the progress of the work, DOH determines in its sole judgment that any
subcontractor is incompetent or undesirable, DOH shall notify the Contractor, and the Contractor
shall take immediate steps to terminate the subcontractor's involvement in the work.

The rejection or approval by DOH of any subcontractor or the termination of a subcontractor shall
not relieve the Contractor of any of its responsibilities under the contract, nor be the basis for
additional charges to DOH.

DOH has no contractual obligations to any subcontractor or vendor under contract to the
Contractor. The Contractor is fully responsible for all contractnal obligations, financial or
otherwise, to their subcontractors.

34. SURVIVABILITY —The terms and conditions contained in this contract which by their sense and
context, are intended to survive the completion, cancellation, termination, or expiration of the
contract shall survive,

35. SUSPENSION OF PERFORMANCE AND RESUMPTION OF PERFORMANCE — In the
event contract funding from State, Federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in
any way after the effective date of this contract and ptior to normal completion, DOH may give
notice to Contractor to suspend performance as an alternative to termination. DOH may elect to
give written notice to Contractor to suspend performance when DOH determines that there is a
reasonable likelihood that the funding insufficiency may be resolved in a timeframe that would
allow performance fo be resumed prior to the end date of this coniract. Notice may include notice
by facsimile or email to Contractor’s representative, Contractor shall suspend performance on the
date stated in the written notice to suspend. During the period of suspension of performance each
party may inform the other of any conditions that may reasonably affect the potential for resumption
of performance.

When DOH determines that the funding insufficiency is resolved, DOH may give Contractor
written notice to resume performance and a proposed date to resume performance. Upon receipt
of written notice to resume performance, Contractor will give written notice to DOH as to whether
it can resume performance, and, if so, the date upon which it agrees to resume performance. If
Contractor gives notice to DOH that it cannot resume performance, the parties agree thal the
contract will be terminated retroactive to the original date of termination. If the date Contractor
gives notice it can resume performance is not acceptable to DOH, the parties agree to discuss an
alternative acceptable date. If an alternative date is not acceptable to DOH, the parties agrec that
the contract will be terminated retroactive to the original date of termination.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 42 of 54
Revision April 2018




36.

37.

38.

39.

EXHIBITB
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

TAXES - All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, any
other taxes, insurance or other expenses for the Contractor or its staff shall be the sole responsibility
of the Contracior.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE — Except as otherwise provided in this contract, the
Contracting Officer may, by TEN (10) calendar days written notice, beginning on the second day
after the mailing, terminate this contract in whole or in part when it is in the best interests of DOH.

If this confract is so terminated, DOH shall be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms
of this contract for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination.

TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT — In the event DOH determines the contractor has failed to

comply with the conditions of this contract in a timely manner, DOH has the right to suspend or

terminate this contract. Further, DOH may terminate this contract for default, in whole or in part,

if DOH has a reasonahle basis to believe that the contractor has:

A. Failed to meet or maintain any requirement for contracting with DOH;

B. Failed to ensure the health or safety of any client for whom services are being provided under
this contract;

C. Tailed to perform under, or otherwise breached, any term or condition of this contract; and/or

D. Violated any applicable law or regulation.

Before suspending or terminating the contract, DOH shall notify the Contractor in writing of the
need to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken within fourteen (14) days, the
contract may be terminated or suspended. In the event of termination or suspension, the Contractor
shall be liable for damages as authorized by law including, but not limited to, any cost difference
between the original contract and the replacement or cover contract and all administrative costs
directly related to the replacement contract, e.g., cost of the competitive bidding, mailing,
advertising and staff time. DOH reserves the right to suspend all or part of the contract, withhold
further payments, or prohibit the Contractor from incurring additional obligations of funds during
investigation of the alleged compliance breach and pending corrective action by the Contractor or
a decision by DOH to terminate the contract. A termination shall be deemed to be a “termination
for convenience” if it is determined that the Contractor: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to
petform was outside of his or her control, fault or negligence. The rights and remedies of DOH
provided in this contract are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law.

TERMINATION PROCEDURE — Upon termination of this contract DOH may require the
Coniractor to deliver to DOH any property specifically produced or acquired for the performance
of such part of thig contract as has been terminated.

DOH shall pay to the Contractor the agreed upon price, if separately stated, for completed work
and services accepted by DOH. In addition DOH shall pay the amount agreed upon by the
Contractor and the Contracting Officer for (a) completed work and services for which no separate
price is stated, (b) partially completed work and services, (c) other property or services which are
accepted by DOH, and (d) the protection and preservation of the property. If the termination is for

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 43 of 54
Revigion April 2018




EXHIBIT B
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

default, the Contracting Officer shall determine the extent of the [iability of DOH. Failure to agree
with such determination shall be a dispute within the meaning of the Disputes clause of this
contract.

DOH may withhold from any amounts due the Contractor for such completed work or services
such sum as the Contracting Officer determines to be necessary to protect DOH against potential
loss or liability.

The rights and remedies of DOH provided in this section shall not be exclusive and are in addition
to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract.

After receipt of a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer,
the Contractor shall;

¢ Stop work under the contract on the date and to the extent specified in the notice;

* Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, facilities except as necessary to
complete such portion of the work not terminated;

s Assign to DOH, to the extent directed by the Contracting Officer, all of the rights, titles, and
interest of the Contractor under the orders and subcontracts in which case DOH has the right,
at its discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising out of the termination of such orders
and subcontracts.

s Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of orders or subcontracts, with the
approval or ratification of the Contracting Officer to the extent he/she may require, which
approval or ratification shall be final for all the purposes of this clause;

¢ Transfer title to DOH and deliver, as directed by the Contracting Officer, any property which,
if the contract had been completed, would have been required to be furnished to DOH;

» Complete performance of such part of the work not terminated by the Contracting Officer; and,

» Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Contracting Officer may direct, for the
protection and preservation of the property related to this contract which is in the possession
of the Contractor and in which DOT has or may acquire an interest.

40. WAIVER OF DEFAULT — Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any subscquent default or breach. Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the
terms of this contract unless stated to be such in writing and signed by authorized representative of
DOH.

BOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 44 of 54
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

FYEDERAL COMPLIANCE
AND STANDARD FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES

In the event federal funds are included in this agreement, added by future amendments(s), or redistributed
between fund sources resulting in the provision of federal funds, the following sections apply: “I. Federal
Compliance” and “II. Standard Federal Assurances and Certifications”. In the instance of inclusion of
federal funds as a result of an amendment, the contractor may be designate as a “Subrecipient” and the
effective date of the amendment shalf also be the date at which these requirements go into effect.

. FEDERAL COMPLIANCE - The use of federal funds requires additional compliance and control
mechanisms to be in place. The following represents the majority of comphiance elements that may
apply to any federal funds provided under this contract. (Refer to Catalog of Domestic Assistance
numbet(s) cited in the “Payment” section of this contract for requirements specitic to that fund source.)
For clarification regarding any of these elements or details specific to the federal funds in this contract,
contact:

Compliance and Internal Control Officer
Office of Financial Services

Department of Health

Post Office Box 47901

Olympia, Washington 98504-7901

1. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDANCE — The Uniform Administrative Guidance
(Supercircular) became effective December 26, 2014 and combines numerous OMB Circulars into
one document. This document established requirements which govern expenditure of federal
funds. These requirements apply to the Department of Health, as the primary recipient of federal
funds, and then follow the funds to the subrecipient. The Uniform Admuinistrative Guidance
provides the applicable administrative requirements, cost principles, and audit requirements are
identified by subrecipient organization type.

Compliance Matrix

OMB CIRCULAR
ENTITY TYPE ADMINISTRATIVE COST PRINCIPLES AUDIT
REQUIREMENTS REQUIREMENTS
State. Local and Indian 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200
Tribal Governments & Subpart D Subpart E Subpart F
Governmental Hospitals
Non-Profit Organizations 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200
Subpart D Subpart B Subpart F
Hospitals 2 CFR 200 45 CFR 74 2 CFR 200
Subpart D Appendix E Subpart I
Colleges or Universities & 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200 2 CFR 200
Affiliated Hospitals Subpart D Subpart E Subpart F

2. CITIZENSHIP/ALIEN VERIFICATION/DETERMINATION - The Personal Responsibility
and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORAY) of 1996 (PL 104-193) states that federal
public benefits should be made available only to U.S. citizens and qualificd aliens. Entities that
offer a service defined as a “federal public benefit” must make a citizenship/qualified alien
determination/ verification of applicants at the time of application as part of the eligibility criteria.
Non-US citizens and ungualified aliens are not eligible to receive the services. PL 104-193 also

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 45 of 54
Revision April 2018



ATFACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

includes specific reporting requirements, Exemptions from the determination/verification
requirement is afforded the following programs offered by the Department of Health: Family
Planning, Breast & Cervical Health Program (BCHP), Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC), WIC Farmers Market Program, Immunization Programs,
and Ryan White CARE Act programs and other communicable disease treatment and diagnostic
programs,

3. CIVIL RIGHTS AND NONDISCRIMINATION - During the performance of this agrecment,
the Contractor shall comply with all current and future federal statutes relating to
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(PL. 88-352}, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 and 1685-
1686), section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.8.C. § 794), the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107), the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (PL 92-255),
the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act
of 1970 (PL.91-616), §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-
3 and 290ee-3), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), and the
Americans with Disability Act (42 U.S.C., Section 12101 et seq.).

4. SINGLE AUDIT ACT - A subrecipient (including private, for-profit hospitals and non-profit
institutions) shall adhere to the federal. Uniform Administrative Guidance (Subpart F) as well as
all applicable Federal and State statutes and regulations. A subrecipient who expends $750,000 or
more in federal awards during a given fiscal year shall have a single or program-specific audit for
that year in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart F,

II. STANDARD FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES - Following are the
Assurances, Certifications, and Special Conditions that apply to all federally funded (in whole or in
part) agreements administered by the Washington State Department of Health,

CERTIFICATIONS

1. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifics to the best
of his or her knowledge and belief, that the contractor, defined as the primary participant in
accordance with 45 CFR Part 76, and its principals;

A. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal Department or agency;

B. have not within a 3-year period preceding this confract been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

C. are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b)
of this certification; and

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 46 of 54
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

D. have not within a 3-year period preceding this contract had one or more public transactions
{Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

Should the contractor not be able fo provide this certification, an explanation as to why should be
placed after the agsurances page in the contract.

The contractor agrees by signing this contract that it will include, without modification, the clause
titled Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, In eligibility, and Volantary Exchusion--
Lower Tier Covered Transactions in all lower tier covered transactions (i.e., transactions with sub-
grantees and/or contractors) and in all solicitations for lower ter covered transactions in accordance
with 45 CFR Part 76.

2. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies that the
contractor will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free workplace in accordance with 45 CFR Part
76 by:

A. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

B. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2) The contractor’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
the workplace;

C. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the contract
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph 1) above;

D. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1), above, that, as a condition
of employment under the contract, the employee will:

1) Abide by the terms of the staternent; and

2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

E. Notifying the agency in writing within ten calendar days after receiving notice under paragraph
D. 2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of
convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract officer or
other designee on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 47 of 54
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBRO23407

Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall
include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

F. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
paragraph 1. 2) with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

2} Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

G. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (A), (B), (C), (D), (E), and (F).

For purposes of paragraph (E) regarding agency notification of criminal driug convictions, DOH
has designated the following central point for receipt of such notices:

Compliance and Internal Control Officer
Office of Grants Management

WA State Department of Health

PO Box 47905

Olympia, WA 98504-7905

3. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Title 31, United States Code, Section 1352, entitled "Limitation on use of appropriated funds to
influence certain Federal contracting and financial transactions,” gencrally prohibits recipients of
Federal grants and cooperative agreements from using Federal (appropriated) finds for lobbying
the Executive or Legislative Branches of the Federal Government in connection with a SPECIFIC
grant or cooperative agreement. Section 1352 also requires that each person who requests or
receives a Federal grant or cooperative agreement nmust disclose lobbying undertaken with non-
Federal (non-appropriated) funds. These requirements apply to grants and cooperative agreements
exceeding $100,000 in total costs (45 CFR Part 93).

The undersigned {authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies, to the best
of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of
any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

B. If any funds other than Federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 48 of 54
Revision Apzil 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, ot cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying
Activities," in accordance with its instructions. (If needed, Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities," its instructions, and continuation sheet are included at the end of this
application form.)

C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for alf subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, subcontracts, and contracts
under grants, loans and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure.

4. CERTIFICATION REGARDING PROGRAM FRAUD CIVIL REMEDIES ACT (PFCRA)

The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies that the
statements herein are true, complete, and accurate to the best of his or her knowledge, and that he
or she is aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject him or her
to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. The undersigned agrees that the contracting
organization will comply with the Public Health Service terms and conditions of award if a contract
is awarded.

5. CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that smoking not
be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by an entity
and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, early childhood development
services, education or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by
Federal programs cither directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee. The law also applies to children’s services that are provided in indoor
facilities that are constructed, operated, or maintained with such Federal funds. The law does not
apply to children’s services provided in private residence, portions of facilities used for inpatient
drug or alcohol treatment, service providers whose sole source of applicable Federal funds is
Medicare or Medicaid, or facilities where WIC coupons are redeemed.

Failure {o comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary
penalty of up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance
order on the responsible entity.

By signing the certification, the undersigned certifies that the contracting organization will comply
with the requirements of the Act and will not allow smoking within any portion of any indoor
facility used for the provision of services for children as defined by the Act.

The contracting organization agrees that it will require that the language of this certification be
included in any subcontracts which contain provisions for children’s services and that all
subrecipients shall certify accordingly.

DOH Contract CBO23407 Page 49 of 54
Revision Aprit 2018



ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

The Public Health Services strongly encourages all recipients to provide a smoke-free workplace
and promote the non-use of tobacco products. This is consistent with the PHS mission to protect
and advance the physical and mental health of the American people.

6. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective contractor is providing the certification
set out below.

A

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wilf not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective contractor shall submit
an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below, The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination
whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective contractor to furnish
a ccrtification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this
transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when the department or agency determined to enter ino this transaction. If it is later
determined that the prospective contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may
terminate this transaction for cause of default,

The prospective contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency
to whom this contract is submitted if at any time the prospective contractor learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumnstances.

The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction,
participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded,
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of
the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to whom this
confract is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regnlations.

The prospective contractor agrees by submitting this contract that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction
with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DOH.

The prospective contractor further agrees by submitting this contract that it will include the
clause titled Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion -- Lower Tier Covered Transaction, provided by HHS, without modification, i all
lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant
in a Jower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A
participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its
principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-procurement List (of
excluded parties).

DOH Contract CB023407 Page 50 of 54
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

H. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge
and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by
a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

I. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered fransaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who
is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction,
in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, DOH may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

7. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

A. The prospective contractor ceitifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

b

2)

3

4)

Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

Have not within a three-year period preceding this contract been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting {o obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commiission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph . B. of this certification; and

Have not within a three-year period preceding this contract had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the prospective contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective contractor shall attach an explanation to this contract.

CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE 1S REQUIRED

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL | TITLE

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE NAME:

ORGANIZATION NAME: (if applicable) DATE

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 51 of 54

Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

FEDERAL ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the
data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the
burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing
this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040),
Washington, DC 20503

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF
MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADBRESS PROVIDED BY THE
SPONSORING AGENCY.

Note: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions,
please contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require
applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the contractor, I certify that the contractor:

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial
capability (including funds suffictent {o pay the non-Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper
planning, management, and completion of the project described in this application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, and if appropriate, the
State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books,
papets, or docurmnents related to the award; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes
or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the
awarding agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. [1{14728-4763) relating to
prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R,
900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited
to: {a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1.. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended
(20 U.S.C. (1[U1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c)
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 05794), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of handicaps; {d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42
U.S.C. (13 6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; () the Drug Abuse Office
and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of
drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of
alcohol abuse or aleoholism; (g) {110 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C.
(i) 290 dd-3 and 290 ee 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient

DOH Contract CB0O23407 Page 52 of 54
Revision April 2018




10.

1L

12,

13.

14,

15,

ATFACHMENT 1
DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. I 3601 et seq.), as amended, relating
to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination
provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for Federal assistance is being made; and
(j) the requirementis of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the aniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide
for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal
or federally assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for
project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.

8. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 11111501-1508 and
7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are
funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S8.C. [101276a to 276a-
7}, the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. [1276¢ and 18 U.S.C. 1111874) and the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 307 327-333), regarding labor standards for federally assisted
construction subagreements.

Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood
Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area
to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction
and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a)
institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of
1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EQ) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to
EQ 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EQ 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State
management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. (1111451
et seq.); {f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation Plans under Section
176(c) of the Clear Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. ©31717401 et seq.); (g) protection of
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L.
93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as

amended, (P.L. 93-205).

Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. 101721 et seq.) related to
protecting componerts or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system,

Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 13470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of
historic properties), and the Archacological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.8,C. (1[1469a-
I et seq.).

Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved in research,
development, and refated activities supported by this award of assistance.

Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C.

research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.

DOH Coniract CBO23407 Page 53 of 54
Revision April 2018




ATTACHMENT 1

DOH CONTRACT CBO23407

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 104801 et seq.) which
prohibits the use of lead- based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single

Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Super circutar 2CFR200, Subpart F.

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations

and policies governing this program.

CONTRACTOR’S SIGNATURE IS REQUIRED

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL | TITLE
PRINT OR TYPE NAME:
ORGANIZATION NAME: (if applicable) DATE

DOH Contract CBO23407
Revision April 2018

Page 54 of 54

|
i
|
|
|
|
|




Tab 7




DocuSign Envelope |D; 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

MEMBER PLACEMENT CONTRACT BETWEEN

WASHINGTON STATE

WSC ONLY:
Contract #:
{As assigned by ESD)

EMPLLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

WASHINGTON SERVICE CORPS

AND

Thurston Conservation District - South Sound GREEN

AmeriCorps Member Placement PY 2018-19

1. INTRODUCTION

This Contract, pursuant to 45 CFR Chapter XXV (§§2500-2550, and to all applicable
federal, stale or local laws, rules and regulations, is made and entered into by and
between the Washington State Employment Security Department’s Washington Service
Corps, hereinafter called "WSC,” located at 212 Maple Park Ave. SE, Olympia,

Washington 98501, and

Thurston Conservation District - South Sound GREEN

hereinafter called "Sponsoring Organization” at

2918 Ferguson Street SW, Ste A, Tumwater, WA 98512

Project Title(s):
South Sound GREEN Puget Sound Educator
Fee per Members
Program Participation Fee Type Member Awarded Total Fee
IP {1-5 members) $ 9,500 1 $ 9,500
$ $ 0
$ $ 0
Grand Total 11$ 9,500

2. PURPOSE

It is the purpose of this Contract to establish terms and conditions which the
Sponsoring Organization and WSC must follow to meet the requirements of the
AmeriCorps Program and the Corporation for National and Community Service grant

programs.

In consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, including attached

exhibits, the parties mutually agree as follows:

3. DEFINITIONS

As used throughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set

forth below.

A. “CNCS” means the Corporation for National & Community Service, the national
oversight organization for the CNCS Grant Program which funds the AmeriCorps

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18
Appraved by AGO 05/21/2018

Page 1 of 14




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4AIEFFO7
program.

B. "AMERICORPS MEMBER” or “MEMBER” means an individual who has been
selected to serve in an approved national service position under the AmeriCorps
program.

C. "MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE," "MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS
ENTERPRISE," or "MBE" shall mean a business organized for profit, performing a
commerciallyuseful function, which is legitimately owned and controlled by one or
more minority individuals or minority business enterprises certified by the Office of
Minority and Women's Business Enterprises. The minority owners must be United
States citizens or ilawful permanentresidents.

D. "SPONSORING ORGANIZATION" shall mean that agency, firm, organization,
individual or other entity performing services under this Contract. It shall include any
MEMBER service site subcontracted by the SPONSORING ORGANIZATION.

E. “SUB-SERVICE SITE” shall mean that agency, firm, organization, individual or
other entity under written agreement with SPONSORING ORGANIZATION
performing all or part of the services as required by this Contract.

F. "WASHINGTON SERVICE CORPS” or “WSC” means the sub-agency within ESD
designated as the direct recipient of grant funds from the CNCS grant program to
implement an AmeriCorps program in the State of Washington.

G. "WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE," "WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS
ENTERPRISE," or"WBE" shall mean a business organized for profit, performing a
commercially useful function, which is legitimately owned and controlled by one or
more women or women's business enterprises certified by the Office of Minority
and Women's Business Enterprises. The women owners must be United States
citizens or lawful permanent residents.

4. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

WSC’'s Contract Manager, or his/her successor, shall provide the Sponsoring
Organization the assistance and guidance necessary for the performance of this
Contract. WSC’s Contract Manager shall be responsible for the review and acceptance
of the Sponsoring Organization's performance, deliverables, invoices and expenses, and
accepting any reports from the Sponsoring Organization.

WGSC Contract Manager responsible for management of this Contract is:

Name: Mark Duncan

Title: Compliance Coordinator

Phone Number:  (888) 713-6080 FAX Number: (360) 902-9662
Email: maduncan@esd.wa.gov

Sponsoring Organization staff member responsible for management of this Contract is:
Name:
Title:
Phone Number: FAX Number:
Email:

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 2 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelape ID; 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

5. STATEMENT OF WORK

The Sponsoring Organization shall furnish the necessary personnel and services and
otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of the work set
forth in Exhibit A, Statement of Work, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

Failure to comply with the requirements within Exhibit A, Statement of Work, may
result in termination of this Contract and removal of the AmeriCorps Member(s) from
the site.

6. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

All rights and obligations of the parties to this Contract shall be subject to and governed
by the Terms and Conditions of this Contract, including the Statement of Work — Exhibit
A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. The federal funding source, Corporation
for National and Community Service, designates that all those accepting member
positions as a sub-grantee will understand fully and comply with and include in all
awards and contracting or agreement process the following Terms and Conditions,
Assurances and Certifications as part of the federal granting process:

= CNCS Assurances and Certifications, attached and incorporated herein as
Exhibit B.

= 2018 Terms and Conditions for AmeriCorps State and National Grants,
incorporated by reference.

= 2018 AmeriCorps General Grant and Cooperative Agreement Terms and
Conditions, incorporated by reference.

7. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance of this Contract shall start on
September 1, 2018 and end on August 31, 2019 unless terminated sooner as provided
herein.

8. REPORTING

The Sponsoring Organization shall comply with the requirements set forth in Section IV
of the Statement of Worlk, Exhibit A.

9. PAYMENT

The parties have agreed that the total program participation fee payable to WSC for
placing 1AmeriCorps Members in the project(s) listed above will not exceed

$  9,500.00

The Sponsoring Organization will not be reimbursed for any travel expenses.

10. BILLING PROCEDURE

WSC shall submit an initial invoice to Sponsoring Organization on or before September
1, 2018 for the total program participation fee. Failure of Sponsoring Organization to pay
the program participation fee on or before September 30, 2018 may result in removal of
the member(s) from site and termination of this contract by WSC.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 3 of 14
Approved by AGO (5/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E£33E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

11.

12,

REFUNDS

The program participation fee will not be refunded or pro-rated to the Sponsoring
Organization for any member who terminates service early. If a Member terminates prior
to serving 15% (255 hours) of their full-time 10.5 month, 1,700-hour service term, WSC
MAY allow a limited opportunity to refill the position with a six-month placement at no
additional charge to the Sponsoring Organization.

FPayment for total program participation fee shall be made in accordance with the table
in Section 1 of this Contract. However, if Sponsoring Organization, upon written notice
to WSC, requests a reduction in the number of originally-awarded placements that
remain unfilled after payment, Sponsoring Organization shall receive a full refund for the
program patlicipation fee of the unfilled placements only.

INSURANCE
A. Liability Insurance

The Sponsoring Organization will maintain insurance coverage at all times when
performing services under this Contract via commercial insurance, self-insurance, or
any other similar risk-financing alternative. Written evidence of insurance must be
provided to WSC prior to the commencement of service. Insurance certificates must
list Washington State Employment Security Department as an additional insured.

The Sponsoring Organization shall provide insurance coverage or its alternative,
which shall be maintained in full force and effect during the term of this Contract as
follows:

The minimum acceptable limits shall be as indicated below, with ho deductible for
each of the following categories:

i.  Commercial General Liability covering the risks of bodily injury (including
death), property damage and personal injury, including coverage for
contractual liability, with a limit of not less than $1 million per occurrence/$1
million general aggregate;

ii. Business Automobile Liability (owned, hired, or non-owned) covering the risks
of bodily injury (including death) and property damage, with a combined single
fimit of not less than $1 million per accident if the Sponsoring Organization will
require a Member to operate a vehicle in performance of the Member's service.

B. Industrial Insurance

The Sponsoring Organization waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it
is required to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State and its agencies, officials,
agents or employees.

The Sponsoring Organization shall provide industrial insurance coverage required by
law. The intent of the required insurance is to protect the State should there be any
claims, suits, actions, costs, damages or expenses arising from acts or omissions
whether negligent or intentional of the Sponsoring Organization or Sub-Service Site,
agents or employees of either, while performing under the terms of this Contract.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 4 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E33E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

Any limitations of liability stated elsewhere in this Contract do not apply where the
Sponsoring Organization is providing insurance fo cover its liability as herein required.
Where insurance coverage is required by this sectlion, neither the insured nor the
insurer may use as a claim or defense limitation of liability otherwise stated in this
contract.

13.0RDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of an inconsistency in this Contract, unless otherwise provided herein, the
inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:
A. Applicable Federal and State Statutes and Regulations;

B. 2018 Terms and Conditions for AmeriCorps Slate and National Grants,
incorporated by reference;

2018 AmeriCorps General Grant and Cooperative Agreement Terms and
Conditions, incorporated by reference;

Those Terms and Conditions as contained in this basic contract instrument;

The Statement of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein;
Request for Application, incorporated by reference;

Response to Request for Application, incorporated by reference; and

Any other provisions of this Contract whether incorporated by reference or otherwise.

o

T ommo

14.USE AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

The use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a program recipient
or Member for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of WSC's or
the Sponsoring Organization's responsibilities, with respect to contracted services
provided under this Contract, is prohibited except by written consent of the recipient
or Member, his/her attorney, or histher legally authorized representative.

The Sponsoring Organization shall use any private and confidential information
provided under this Contract solely for the purpose for which the information was
disclosed. The Sponsoring Organization shall not disclose or misuse any private and
confidential information under this Contract unless the disclosure is authorized by law.
The misuse or unauthorized release of private and confidential information shall
subject Sponsoring Organization, its employees or agents to a civil penalty of $5,000
and other applicable sanctions under state and federal law.

15.MUTUAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Each party represents and warrants to the other party as follows: Such party has the
requisite power and authority and the legal right to enter into this Agreement and to
perform its obligations hereunder; and has taken all requisite action on its part to
authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of its
obligations hereunder. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on
behalf of such party, and constitutes a legal, valid, binding obligation, enforceable
against such party in accordance with its terms. All necessary consents, approvals,
and authorizations of all governmental authorities and other persons or entities
required to be obtained by such party in connection with this Agreement have been
obtained.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 5 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope ID: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

16.ACCESS TO RECORDS AND FACILITIES / AUDITS

The Office of the State Auditor, federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the
United States or any of their duly authorized representatives, and any persons duly
authorized by WSC shall have full access to and the right to examine and copy any or
all books, records, papers, documents and other material regardless of form or type
which are pertinent to the performance of this Contract, or reflect all direct and indirect
costs of any nature expended in the performance of this Contract. In addition, these
entities shall have the right to access, examine and inspect any site where any phase
of the program is being conducted, controlled or advanced in any way. Such sites may
include the home office, any branch office, or other locations of the Sponsoring
Organization. The Sponsoring Organization shall maintain its records and accounts in
such a way as to facilitate the audit and examination, and assure that Sub-Service Sites
also maintain records that are auditable. Access shall be at all reasonable times not
limited to the required retention period, but as long as records are retained, and at no
additional cost to WSC.

17.ASSIGNMENT

The work to be provided under this Contract, and any claim arising thereunder, is not
assignable or delegable by either party in whole or in part, without the express prior
written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonablywithheld.

18.ASSURANCES

WSEC and the Sponsoring Organization agree that all activity pursuant to this Contract
will be in accordance with all applicable current or future federal, state or local laws,
rules and regulations.

19.ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

If any litigation is brought to enforce this Contract or any litigation arises out of any
Contract term, clause or provision, each party shall be responsible for its own expenses,
costs and attorney fees.

20.CHANGES AND MODIFICATIONS

A. WSC or the Sponsoring Organization may, from time to time, request changes in
the servicesto be performed, or in the project undertaken. All changes to this
Contract will be made at the sole discretion of WSC. Any changes which are
approved by WSC shall be incorporated in written modifications to this Contract.

B. Modification of this Contract may be needed when a request from the Sponsoring
Organization to reduce the number of unfilled awarded placements results in an
increase in the program participation placement fee. This reduction is made upon
mutual agreement by WSC and the Sponsoring Organization.

C. In the event none of the placements awarded in this Contract are filled by WSC's
stipulated final member start date, this Contract will be considered nulf and void.
21.CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Notwithstanding any determination by the Executive Ethics Board or other tribunal,
WSC may, in its sole discretion, by written notice to the Sponsoring Organization

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 6 of 14
Appraved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope [D; 50B50262-E39E-43A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

terminate this Contract if it is found after due notice and examination by WSC that there
is a violation of the Ethics in Public Service Act, RCW 42.52, or any similar stafuie
involving the Sponsoring Organization in the procurement of, or performance under,
this Confract.

In the event this Contract is terminated as provided above, WSC shall be entitled to
pursue the same remedies against the Sponsoring Organization as it could pursue in
the event of a breach of this Contract by the Sponsoring Organization. The rights and
remedies of WSC provided for in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition
to any other rights and remedies provided by law. The existence of facts upon which
WSC makes any determination under this clause shall be an issue and may be reviewed
as provided in the DISPUTES clause of this Contract.

22. CONFORMANCE

If any provision of this Contract is in conflict with or violates any statute or rule of taw of
the state of Washington, it is considered modified to conform to that statute or rule of
law.

23.DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

The Sponsoring Organization has provided its certification that it is in compliance with
and shall not contract with individuals or organizations which are debarred, suspended,
or otherwise excluded from or ineligible from participation in Federal Programs under
Executive Order 12549, and "Government Wide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement) and Government Wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace
(Grants)' codified at 45 CFR part 2542.

24 DISALLOWED COSTS

At WSC's sole discretion, the Sponsoring Organization is responsible for any audit
exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by WSC as a result of the Sponsoring
Organization’s negligence, or the negligence of its Sub-Service Site(s).

25.DISPUTES

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, when a dispute arises between the
parties and it cannot be resolved by direct negotiation, the parties agree to participate
in mediation in good faith. The mediator shall be chosen by agreement of the parties. If
the parties cannot agree on a mediator, the parties shall use a mediation service that
selects the mediator for the parties. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to
limit the parties’ choice of a mutually acceptable alternative resolution method such
as a disputes hearing, a Dispute Resolution Board, or arbitration.

26.GOVERNING LAW

This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state
of Washington and the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be in the Superior
Court for Thurston County.

27.INDEMNIFICATION
To the fullest extent permitied by law, the Sponsoring Organization shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the state of Washington, WSC, and all officials, agents,

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 7 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

and employees of the State, from and against all claims for injuries or death arising
out of or resulting from the performance of this Contract. Sponsoring
Organization’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes any claim
by Sponsoring Organization’s agents, employees, representatives, or any Sub-
Service Site, or its employees.

Sponsoring Organization expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the
State for any claim arising out of or incident to Sponsoring Organization’s or any Sub-
Service Site’'s performance or failure to petform this Contract. Sponsoring
Organization’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State shall not be
eliminated or reduced by any actual or alleged concurrent negligence of State or its
agents, agencies, employees or officials.

Sponsoring Organization waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is
required to indemnify, defend and hold harmless State and its agencies, officials,
agents or employees.

28.INDEPENDENT CAPACITY

Except in cases where the Employment Security Deparlment is the Sponsoring
Organization, the Sponsoring Organization and his or her employees or agents
performing under this Contract are not employees or agents of WSC. The Sponsoring
Organization will not hold itself out as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of, WSC
or of the state of Washington by reason hereof, nor will the Sponsoring Organization
make any claim of right, privilege or benefit which would accrue to such employee
under law. Conduct and control of the work will be solely with the Sponsoring
Organization.

29.INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES

The Sponsoring Organization is required to conserve and protect state resources for
the benefit of the public interest. This requirement is necessary to maintain public trust,
conserve public resources and protect the integrity of state information resources and
systems.

The Sponsoring Organization must conform to ESD Policy and Procedure #2018,
which is hereby incorporated by reference, when using ESD-provided state-owned
information technology resources.

30.PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

Activities prohibited in AmeriCorps subfitle C programs are described in 45 C.F.R
2520.65.

A. While charging time to the AmeriCorps project, accumulating service or training
hours, wearing or displaying the AmeriCorps/WSC logo, or otherwise performing
activities supported by the AmeriCorps project or the Corporation, the AmeriCorps
Member(s), Sponsoring Organization staff and service site staff may not engage
in the following activities:

1) Attempting to influence legislation;

2) Organizing or engaging in protests, petitions, boycotts, or strikes;

3) Assisting, promoting, or deterring union organizing;

4) Impairing existing contracts for services or collective bargaining agreements;

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 8 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope ID: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

5) Engaging in partisan political activities, or other activities designed to influence
the outcome of an election to any public office;

6) Participating in, or endorsing, events or activities that are likely to include
advocacy for or against political parties, political platforms, political candidates,
proposed legislation, or elected officials;

7) Engaging in religious instruction, conducting worship services, providing
instruction as part of a program that includes mandatory religious instruction or
worship, constructing or operating facilities devoted to religious instruction or
worship, maintaining facilities primarily or inherently devoted to religious
instruction or worship, or engaging in any form of religious proselytization;

8) Providing a direct benefit to—

(i) A business organized for profit;

(i} A labor union;

(iii) A partisan political crganization;

(iv) A nonprofit organization that fails to comply with the restrictions contained
in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 except that
nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent participants from
engaging in advocacy activities undertaken at their own initiative; and

{v) An organization engaged in the religious activities described in paragraph
(7) of this section, unless Corporation assistance is not used to support
those religious activities;

9) Conducting a voter registration drive or using Corporation funds to conduct a
voter registration drive;

10)Providing abortion services or referrals for receipt of such services;

11)Such other activities as the Corporation may prohibit.

B. Furthermore, Member(s), Sponsoring Organization staff and service site staff may
not engage in conduct in a manner that would associate their AmeriCorps project,
WSC or the Corporation for National and Community Service with prohibited
activities.

C. WSC prohibited activities for Members:

In addition to the prohibited activities above, AmeriCorps Members may not
engage in the following activities as part of their service:

1) Organizing a letter-writing campaign to Congress;

2) Participating in activities that pose a significant safety risk to participants;

3) Preparing any part of a grant proposal or performing other fundraising functions
to help the project achieve its program placement fee requirements, or to pay
the project’'s general operating expenses. Additionally, members cannot write
or support preparation of a grant from CNCS or any other federal agency; and

4} Fundraising, unless under the following circumstances:

» it provides direct support to a specific service activity;

« falls within the project’s approved objectives;

¢ is not the primary activity of the project; and

¢ does not exceed 10% of the total hours served in their term.

AmeriCorps Members, like other private citizens, may participate in the above
listed activities on their own time, at their own expense, and on their own initiative.
However, the AmeriCorpsM/SC logos must not be worn while doing so.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 9 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope |D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

31.

Federal funding for AmeriCorps Members is approved with the understanding that
member service is directly supporting AmeriCorps objectives. Contrary circumstances
could lead to removal of AmeriCorps Member(s) from the service site.

RECORDS RETENTION

Sponsoring Organization shall retain all books, records, documents and other material
which reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of
this Contract, including participant data, for a period of six years from termination of
the Contract. Records shall be retained beyond the above referenced retention
period(s) if litigation or audit is begun prior to the end of the period referenced above, or
if a claim is instituted prior to the end of the period referenced above involving the
Contract covered by the records. In these instances, the records will be retained until the
litigation, claim or audit has been finally resolved.

32.SEVERABILITY

The provisions of this Contract are intended to be severable. If any term or provision is
iflegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect
the validity of the remainder of this Contract.

33.SINGLE AUDIT ACT REQUIREMENTS

If the Sponsoring Organization is a sub-recipient of federal awards as defined by Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) 2 CFR 200, the Sponsoring Organization shall
maintain records that identify all federal funds received and expended. Such funds
shall be identified by the appropriate OMB Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Numbers. The Sponsoring Organization shall make the Sponsoring Organization’s
records available for review or audit by officials of the federal awarding agency, the
Comptroller General of the United States, the General Accounting Office, Employment
Security Department, and the Washington State Auditor's Office. The Sponsoring
Organization shall incorporate OMB 2 CFR 200 audit requirements into all contracts
between the Sponsoring Organization and its Sub-Service Sites who are sub-recipients.
The Sponsoring Organization shall comply with any future amendments to OMB 2 CFR
200 and any successor or replacement Circular or reguiation.

If the Sponsoring Organization expends $750,000 or more in federal awards during the
Sponsoring Organization's fiscal year, the Sponsoring Organization shall procure and
pay for a single or program-specific audit for that year. Upon completion of each audi,
the Sponsoring Organization shall submit to the Contracting Officer named in this
Contract the audit report and other appropriate documentation as required in OMB 2
CFR 200.

34.SITE SECURITY

While on WSC premises, Sponsoring Organization, its agents, employees, or Sub-
Service Sites shall conform in all respects with physical, fire or other security policies or
regulations.

35.SMALL, MINORITY, AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

The WSC shall provide to qualified small, minority and women-owned business
enterprises the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the performance of
this Contract.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 10 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




BocuSign Envelops 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3BEFF07

36.SUBCONTRACTING

The Sponsoring Crganization shall not subcontract work or services contemplated
under this Contractand/or use an outside consultant, except as provided for in the
Statement of Work, without obtaining the prior written approval of WSC for the authotity
to enter into subcontracts. WSC retains the authority to review and approve or
disapprove all subcontracts. Sponsoring Organization acknowledges that such
approval for any subcontract does notrelieve the Sponsoring Organization of its
obligations to perform hereunder.

AtWSC's request, the Sponsoring Organization will forward copies of Subcontracts and
fiscal, programmatic and other material pertaining to any and all subcontracts.
For any proposed Sub-Setrvice Site, the Sponsoring Organization shall:

A. Be responsible for Sub-Service Site’'s compliance with the Terms and Conditions in
the Contract, the Statement of Work and the Subcontract terms and conditions;
B. Ensure that the Sub-Service Site follows WSC's reporting formats and procedures
as specified by WSC.
C. Ensure that written agreements with Sub-Service Site(s) reference the primary
contract between Sponsoring Organization and WSC.
37.TAXES

It is mutually agreed and understooed that all payments accrued on account of payroll
taxes, unemployment contributions, any other taxes, insurance or other expenses for
the Sponsoring Organization staff be the sole liability of the Sponsoring Organization.

38. TERMINATION, SUSPENSION AND REMEDIES

A.

Termination or Suspension for Cause

In the event WSC determines the Sponsoring Organization has failed to comply
with the conditions of this Contract in a timely manner, WSC has the right to suspend
or terminate this Contract. Before suspending or terminating this Contract, WSC
may, at its sole discretion, notify the Sponsoring Organization in writing of the
need to take corrective action. If corrective action is not taken, the Contract may be
terminated or suspended. In the event of termination or suspension, the Sponsoring
Organization shall be liable for damages as authorized by law including, but not
limited to, any administrative costs directly related to the replacement Contract, e.g.,
cost of the competitive bidding, mailing, advertising, and staff time.

WSC reserves the right to suspend all or part of this Contract during investigation of
the alleged compliance breach pending corrective action by the Sponsoring
Organization or a decision by WSC to terminate this Contract. A termination shall
be deemed to be a “Termination for Convenience” if it is determined that the
Sponsoring Organization: (1) was not in default; or (2) failure to perform was outside
of his or her control, fault or negligence. The rights and remedies of WSC provided
in this Contract are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law.

WSC reserves the right to immediately suspend all, or part of, this Contract, when
it has reason to believe that fraud, abuse, malfeasance, misfeasance or
nonfeasance has occurred on the part of the Sponsocring Organization under this

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 11 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope ID: 50B50292-E33E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

Contract.

Termination for Funding Reasons

WSC may unilaterally terminate this Contract in the event that funding from federal,
state or other sources becomes no longer available to WSC or is not allocated for
the purpose of meeting WSC's obligation hereunder. In the event funding is limited
in any way, this Contract is subject to re-negotiation under any new funding
limitations and conditions. Such action is effective upon receipt of written
notification by the Sponsoring Organization. Positions noted as “DSHS-Funded” are
contingent on receipt of funds for those positions from the Washington State
Department of Social & Health Services.

. Termination or Suspension for Convenience

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, WSC may, by ten (10) days’ written
notice, beginning on the second day after mailing, suspend or terminate this
Contract, in whole or in part. If this Contract is suspended, the Schedule shall be
delayed for a period of time equal to the period of such suspension. WSC may, by
ten (10) days’ written notice, beginning on the second day after mailing, lift the
suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part, at which time the Schedule and
the parties’ right and obligations shall resume to the extent that the suspension is
lifted.

Termination for Withdrawal of Authority

In the event that WSC’s authority to perform any of its duties is withdrawn,
reduced, or limited in any way after the commencement of this Contract and prior to
normal completion, WSC may terminate this Contract by seven (7) calendar days or
other appropriate time period by written notice to Sponsoring Organization. No
penalty shall accrue to WSC in the event this Section shall be exercised. This
Section shall not be construed to permit WSC to terminate this Contract in order
to acquire similar Services from a third party.

40. TERMINATION PROCEDURE

Upon termination of this Contract, WSC, in addition to any other rights provided in this
Contract, may require the removal of Member(s} from their service site(s).

The rights and remedies of WSC provided in this Section shall not be exclusive and are
in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.
After receipt of a nolice of termination and except as otherwise directed by WSC, the
Sponsoring Organization shall:

A

C.

D.

Stop work under this Contract and service provided by WSC’s AmeriCorps
Member(s) on the date, and to the extent specified, in the notice;

Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders
and subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of WSC fo the extent WSC may
require, which approval or ratification shall be final for all purposes of this clause;

Complete performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated
by WSC; and

Take such action as may be necessary, or as WSC may direct, for the protection

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 12 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50850292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

and preservation of all performance measurement data related to the Member
service which is in the possession of the Sponsoring Organization Upon WSC's
direction, Sponsoring Organization must deliver such data to WSC in the manner,
at the times and to the extent directed by WSC.

41. TREATMENT OF ASSETS

A. Any property of WSC furnished to the Sponsoring Organization shall, unless
otherwise provided herein, or approved by the Program Manager in writing, be used
only for the performance of this Contract.

B. Property will be returned to WSC in like condition to that in which it was furnished
to the Sponsoring Organization, normal wear and tear excepted. The Sponsoring
Organization shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property of WSC in
the possession of the Sponsoring Organization which results from the negligence
of the Sponsoring Organization or which results from the failure on the part of the
Sponsoring Organization to maintain said property in accordance with sound
management practices.

C. If any WSC property is damaged or destroyed, the Sponsoring Organization
shall notify WSC and shall take all reasonable steps to protect that property from
further damage.

D. The Sponsoring Organization shall surrender to WSC all property of WSC upon
completion, termination or cancellation of this Contract.

E. Ali reference to the Sponsoring Organization under this clause shall inciude any
employees, agents or Sub-Service Sites.

42.USE OF NAME PROHIBITED

The Sponsoring Organization shall not in any way contract on behalf of or in the name
of WSC. Nor shall the Sponsoring Organization release any informational pamphlets,
notices, press releases, research reports, or similar public notices concerning this
project without obtaining the prior written approval of WSC.

43.WAIVER

Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent
default or breach. Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of
this Contract unless stated to be such in writing signed by authorized representative of
WSC.

44.ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES, COUNTERPARTS, AND DELIVERY

The parties agree that this contract may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which is deemed an original and all of which constitute only one agreement; and that
electronic signature, or e-signature, of this contract shall be the same as execution of an
original ink signature; and that E-mail, electronic, or facsimile delivery of a signed copy
of this contract shall be the same as delivery of an original. |

45. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN

This Contract sets forth in full the entire agreement of the parties in relation to the subject
matter hereof. Any other agreement, representation, or understandings, verbal or
otherwise, relating to the professional services of the Sponsoring Organization or

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 13 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018



DocuSign Envelope |D: 50B50292-E39F-48A9-883A-5B3E4A3EFF07

otherwise dealing in any manner with the subject matter of this Contract is hereby
deemed to be null and void and of no force and effect whatsoever.

By signing below, the Sponsoring Organization agrees to perform all actions and
support all intentions of this Contract and all terms and conditions of the Exhibits and
Aftachments.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract.

Washington State Thurston Conservation District - South
Employment Security Department Sound GREEN
James Trujillo Eric Johnson
By By (print hame)
Title Title
Signature Signature
Date Date
Attachments:

Exhibit A Statement of Work
Exhibit B CNCS Assurances and Certifications

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 Page 14 of 14
Approved by AGO 05/21/2018




DocuSign Envelope |D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFOY

AmeriCorps Member Placement PY 2018-19
STATEMENT OF WORK
Exhibit A

Responsibilities of the Sponsoring Organization

Section | — Sponsoring Organization Duties and Financial Responsibilities

1.

Provide transportation or mileage reimbursement to Member(s) to conduct service
away from their established service site during service hours. Reimbursement amount
is subject to Sponsoring Organization's written travel policy, not to exceed federally-
allowable transportation or mileage reimbursement.

Provide lodging and meals to Member(s) when travel (including overnight) is
necessary to perform required service or training away from the service site.
Reimbursement amount is subject to Sponsoring Organization’s written travel policy,
not to exceed federally-allowable transportation or mileage reimbursement.

Provide transportation or mileage reimbursement to Member(s) who attend the
required member regional training, to be scheduled in program year 2018-19.
Reimbursement amount is subject to Sponsoring Organization’s written travel policy,
not to exceed federally-allowable transportation or mileage reimbursement.

Conduct Washington State WATCH criminal history check and the state-of-residence
check (if required) of AmeriCorps applicants. No reimbursement allowed.

Conduct FBI Check AmeriCorps applicants. Reimburse WSC for any FBI check costs
beyond the allowed one FBI check per enrolled position, including, but not limited to:

- cancellation or rescheduling fees incurred due to no-shows or changes made with
less than 24 hours’ notice to Fieldprint;

- applicants who back out after fingerprinting;

- applicants who do not foliow instructions and must re-do the FBI check;

- applicants who do not enter their legal name as it appears on their government-
issued photo ID when registering with Fieldprint.

All Member expenses to serve at the project site are the responsibility of the
Sponsoring Organization. This includes, but is not limited to, member reasonable
accommodation or ergonomic assessment.

Comply with the Grant Program Civil Rights and Non-Harassment Policy {(incorporated
by reference), Assurances and Certifications (incorporated by reference), AmeriCorps
Member Service Agreement (incorporated by reference) and the RFA Expectations &
Agreements (incorporated by reference).

Abide by all applicable state and federal laws and CNCS policy on Equal Opportunity
Employment. An environment free of discrimination for all AmeriCorps Members must
be provided. Recognizing that the fabric of our society is strengthened by the diversity
of its citizens, the policy of CNCS is to ensure a mutual respect for all differences

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 10f 9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




DocuSign Envelepe ID: 50B50292-E39E-48A3-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

among us. Discrimination for race, color, gender, national origin, religion, age, mental
or physical disability, sexual orientation, marital or parental status, military service,
and religious, community or social affiliations, or any other category protected by state
or federal non-discrimination law will not be tolerated. Treatment of all Members must
be based upon merit.

9. Comply with all WSC Policies, Procedures, Project Site Staff Manual, and other
guidance in effect during the term of this Contract, including the current policies and
procedures listed below, and other policies or procedures that may be developed and
implemented throughout the program year:

POL-105 — Providing Adequate Oversight & Support of Members

POL-110 — Completing National Service Criminal History Checks on Members
POL-120 — Managing Member Hours

POL-121 — Ensuring Service Activities are Allowable

POL-122 — Managing Alternative Service

POL-123 — Managing Member Leave

POL-124 - Participation in Training Institutes

POL-125 — Managing Limited Teleservice by Members

POL-130 — Managing Member Conduct

POL-131 — Managing Member Appearance and Use of Service Gear
POL-132 — Managing Member Grievance

POL-133 — Managing Member Accidents-Injuries

POL-140 — Managing Reasonable Accommodation Requests for Members
POL-150 — Managing Member Transfers

POI--160 — Managing Member Deployment for Disaster Response

10.Establish and impart safety guidelines and rules that ensure the well-being of the
Member(s) and participants.

11.Ensure Sponsoring Organization has current Drug-Free Work Place and Non-
Discrimination Palicies, and these are shared and made available to Member(s).

12.Ensure that Member(s) provides direct service in accordance with the position
description.

+ Ensure any changes to duties are updated on the Member Position Description
form and immediately sent to WSC.

» Administrative and/or janitorial duties that are directly related to and are necessary
to reach the Member's service goals, will be allowed. However, administrative
and/or janitorial duties that support general organizational goals are not allowed.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 2 of 9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D; 50B50292-E38E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

13. Ensure that service activities do not displace or supplant employees. Service activities
and project must expand or enhance the organization’s impact, not simply sustain a
service or work of the organization.

14.1f the Member's duties have customarily and historically been performed by
employees of the Sponsoring Organization and/or service site who are represented
by a labor union, provide WSC with written concurrence with the local [abor
organization of the AmeriCorps placement.

15. Ensure accuracy of Member's service.

s Monitor Member(s) service hours to ensure that the Member is serving an average
of at least 40 hours a week for the full term of service, and is on track to complete
the required minimum service hours indicated in the Member Service Agreement.

» Members must get adequate breaks according to the Member Service Agreement.
This includes a lunch break of at least 30 minutes.

+ Monitor timesheets for accuracy and io ehsure Member(s) do not exceed the
percentage of time allowed in training (20%) and fundraising (10%).

s Project staff will approve all member electronic timesheets through the WSC
electronic timesheet system no later than five (5) business days after the end of
each semi-monthly living allowance payment period.

+ No hours can be granted for service out of state (disaster deployment may be only
consideration).

+ Member training out-of-state can only occur with prior WSC approval.

+ Generally, no hours can be granted for out-of-country frainings. In rare cases, this
may be allowed with prior written approval of WSC.

¢ No hours can be performed prior to the first day of the term of service.

« No hours can be performed after the last day of the term of service.

16.Ensure that Member(s) do not participate in any activities which are not allowable
under CNCS regulations and guidance.

17.Communicate to Member(s) that they must be available to serve the hours needed by
the project including any weekend and evening service activities.

18.Ensure AmeriCorps Member(s) wear AmeriCorps gear daily while serving.

19.Ensure service site has the WSC and AmeriCorps*State logos visibly posted as
follows:

+ In a prominent location visible to staff and customers where member serves: sign
with WSC logo, AmeriCorps logo, and “AmeriCorps Member Serves Here".

+ At the entrances to the building where Member serves: sign with WSC logo,
AmeriCorps logo, and (aptional) service site name.

20.When communicating with customers, stakeholders, Legislative Representatives, or
media about the program a Member is serving in, the Sponsoring Organization and
any Member service placement site will identify the roles of both the Washington

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 3 of 9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




DocuSign Envelope |D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4ASEFFQY

Service Corps and AmeriCorps in the project. For example: “As part of the Washington
Service Corps, the AmeriCorps Members serving at (organization name)...... 5

21.1f the Member is reimbursed for use of a personal vehicle in the performance of their
service duties, require and retain member's proof of valid driver's license and current
proof of vehicle insurance.

22.Participate in the following types of monitoringfaudits from federal or state WSC
program partners:

» Desk review of program documents by WSC Program Coordinator or an
authorized representative.

« On-site monitoring/audit process by WSC Program Coordinator or an authorized
representative. This includes allowing access o member or program files,
documents and materials; as well as access to members and staff for interviews.

¢ Scheduled programmatic visits as requested by WSC state program/funding
pariners {such as Serve Washington, CNCS, or Washington State Employment
Security Department).

23.Host scheduled programmatic visits as requested by WSC Program Coordinator or
authorized partner/stakeholder related to the program.

24.1n the event of any change to the information regarding the Sponsoring Qrganization,
notify the WSC Program Coordinator within ten (10) working days.

25.Ensure that AmeriCorps Member eligibility verification is met.

26. Ensure that AmeriCorps Member(s) do not accept or solicit monetary or other service
site compensation from the Sponsoring Organization or in addition to their WSC
stipend or living allowance while serving as a Member of the WSC.

Section Il - Recruitment and Enrollment of AmeriCorps Member(s)

1. Conduct recruitment, interviews, and selection of Members according to guidance in
the WSC Project Site Staff manual.

2. Comply with WSC criminal history check requirements as identified in guidance
including, but not limited to, WSC Project Guide to National Service Criminal History
Checks, and WSC policies #POL-110 & #POL-111. Prior to submitting enrollment
paperwork to WSC, Member(s) must pass National Service Criminal History Checks
and cannot be listed on the National Sex Offender Registry. Comply with other criminal
history check requirements that may be developed and required throughout the
program year to maintain CNCS compliance.

3. Submit all required Member enroliment documents to WSC by the required date.

Section [If - Oversight of WSC Project and Support of AmeriCorps Member(s)
1. At the time of enroliment of Member(s), identify staff persons from the Sponsoring
Organization who are to provide oversight and support of the Membaer(s).

WS3C Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 4 of 9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50850292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

¢ Identify a Sponsoring Organization staff to be the primary point of contact for the
AmeriCorps project.

¢ Identify a project site staff to provide primary oversight and support for the
Member(s) at the service site location.

o ldentify backup staff to provide oversight and support to the member when the
primary staff is not available.

2. In the event of a change in project site staff, submit a sighed Change of Project Site
Staff form to WSC prior to the change.

3. Orient any new project site staff fo their AmeriCorps duties and ensure they review
this Contract, the WSC Member Service Agreement, and the policies & guidance
materials on the WSC website. Ensure that all new project site staff view the recorded
project staff orientation and provide certification to WSC that it has been completed.

4. Update Member position descriptions as necessary and submit signed forms to WSC
for approval. Changes in Member's service site, schedule, or duties require an
amended position description. If the WSC becomes aware of any change without prior
approval, it may result in the removal of the member from the Sponsoring
Organization.

5. Ensure Member's project site staff participates in required trainings offered by WSC
throughout the program year. Advance information will be provided. Ensure that all
secondary or replacement project site staff view the recorded WSC project orientation
and, if requested, provide certification to WSC that it has been completed.

6. Orient Member(s) to AmeriCorps, WSC, the Sponsoring Organization, service site,
the community demographics and client base, and the service they will provide.
Ensure Member(s) are made aware of and understand the Prohibited Activities, as
well as policies and procedures of WSC, the Sponsor Organization and Sub-Service
Site.

7. Ensure Member(s) are aware of safety measures and procedures of the Sponsoring
Organization and Sub-Service Site.

8. Provide Member access to project documents, to include but not limited to Member
Service Agreement, Request for Application, Contract and Exhibits, Performance
Plan, etc.

9. Inform Member(s) about Sponsoring Organization rules of conduct and appropriate
behavior, including procedures for communicating service hours and absences.
Provide Member(s) with policy manuals and/or handbooks, and include organizational
chart for Sponsoring Organization.

10. Introduce Member(s) to other Sponsoring Organization staff and include Member(s)
in appropriate Sponsoring Organization functions. Orient the service site staff to the
Member and the duties, as well as the differences between an AmeriCorps member
and staff.

11. Provide appropriate tools and equipment for the Member(s) to perform service and to
communicate with WSC.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 50of9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




Docl:Sign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

12.Recognize and support distinct roles and responsibilities of the Member(s) as outlined
in the Member's position description. If the service site has closures (e.g. school
breaks) throughout the year, incorporate plans for alternate service activities during
these closures.

13.Provide oversight of the Member's progress and skill development, including
Member's participation in required site and WSC training.

14.Ensure Member(s) participate in days of national service which oceur during the term
of service including, but not limited to, Martin Luther King Jr. Day of Service,
AmeriCorps Week, National Preparedness Day, and other days that may be
designated by WSC as national days of service or special initiatives.

15. Communicate within one (1) business day with WSC Program Cocrdinator regarding
Member(s) performance issues or other program concerns.

16.Document Member performance/personnel issues in writing, including actions taken
toward resolution.
» Forward documentation to WSC within one (1) business day to ensure proper
documentation for Member file.

¢ Obtain WSC approval prior to taking action to remove or transfer a Member.

17.Follow Member discipline procedures as outlined in the Member Service Agreement
and WSC policy #POL.-130.

« Work with the WSC Program Coordinator if there are any service site policy
conflicts or different approaches. These are to be coordinated for clear and
consistent messages to Member(s) should disciplinary issues emerge.

» Please also refer to Section 12, Order of Precedence, as contained within this
Contract.

18.1f the Sponsoring Organization fails to follow required WSC member progressive
discipline (as noted in the Member Service Agreement & WSC Policy #POL-130) and
subsequently terminates the Member from service, and the Member's grievance
hearing grants the former Member a pro-rated education award, the Sponsoring
Organization will repay the pro-rated education award amount to WSC.

19. Use retention strategies to ensure Member(s) successfully completes their full term of
service,

20.1f the Sponsoring Organization, or one of its Sub-Service Sites, hires a Member as an
employee before the completion of that Member's agreed-upon term of service, the
WSC may elect not to place another Member with the Sponsoring Organization or the
Sub-Service Site in the future.

21.1f a Member indicates the intent to leave their service early, the Sponsoring
Organization will;

¢ Troubleshoot reasons for exit with Member and WSC in efforts to retain Member.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Staternent of Work Page 6 of 9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A2-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

¢ If Member still decides to terminate service early, work with the Member to
complete all WSC-required exit documentation, per the checkiist on WSC website,
prior to the Member leaving service.

22.Members cannot begin service prior to WSC-approved start date, per the Member

Service Agreement. The enrollment documents must be complete, accurate, and
approved in advance by WSC.

23.Members may not serve in other positions or be under a work, pay or reimbursement

agreement or contract for performing work within the Sponsoring Organization or Sub-
Service Site while under current WSC Member Service Agreement.

Section IV - Performance Measures and Reporting

1.

Collaborate with WSC and the Member(s) to develop a well-defined project that has
clear goals and objectives in accordance with the Member's position description and
the Request for Application (incorporated by reference).

Once project plan is approved, any adjustments or revisions need prior written
approval by WSC.

. Ensure performance objectives are quantifiable and demonstrate the impact of the

Member's service in one of the focus areas, as defined in application and negotiated
in writing with WSC.

Implement data tracking tools, as agreed-upon by WSC, to use for collecting data on
the performance objectives negotiated following award notification.

Complete Performance Plan and Data Collection Strategy documents, with tools,
assessments and surveys included, following award notification and negotiation and
submit by the required deadline stipulated in the 2018-19 Request for Application
Projected Timeline. WSC will confirm approval and acceptance of the plan.

Ensure that the Performance Measure plan, Data Collection Strategy document and
the Member’s position description are in alignment fo meet the agreed upon targets
and support the interventions and data collection process.

Comply with other records retention requirements that may be developed and'required
throughout the program year.

Submit quarterly progress reports according to the annual calendar provided by WSC,
or as requested by WSC, on outputs and outcomes for each performance target as
defined in the Performance Measure Plan and Strategy documents and the Member’s
position description.

« Upload project site aggregate participant rollup report into the WSC-designated
reporting system.

Support the Member(s) in reaching the performance goals for volunteer recruitment
and training.

WSC Member Placement Gontract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 7 of 9
Appraved by AGO 05/17/2018




DocuSign Envelape 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A3-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

Track and report on goals for episedic and ongoing volunteers, hours to be served by
volunteers, number of veteran and military family volunteers (if requested), and
effective volunteer management strategies.

9. Submit original, signed performance evaluations of the Member twice during the
service term (by due dates provided by WSC) using forms provided on the WSC
website.

10. Notify WSC of impending scheduled visits by stakeholders such as representatives of
the Legislature or Congress, or events or activities that may warrant media support.
Follow WSC guidance for media relations and interactions including releases for all
pictures.

11.Report AmeriCorps-sponsored activities and events in which stakeholders, legislators
or other elected officials are invited fo be educated in the effectiveness of the
AmeriCorps program.

12. Ensure that Member(s) submit at least one “Story of Service” per quarter (due dates
will be communicated by WSC).

13.Submit copies of written or electronic articles that highlight Member(s) andfor
AmeriCorps project as they occur.

14.Provide, as requested by WSC, additional performance- and programmatic-related
information as needed throughout the program year. This could include response to
program impact evaluation surveys, interviews, request for materials, etc.

15.1f data sources are external to the Sponsoring Organization, ensure that
appropriate/required data sharing agreements are in place with those data sources.

16. Support WSC program evaluation, working with external program evaluator sources
as required.

Section V - Career Development/Training

1. Provide adequate ftraining to ensure Member is prepared for the roles and
responsibilities of the project.

2. Provide a minimum of two (2) site-specific trainings to Member related to the service
position.

* No more than 20% of members’ total service hours may be spent in training.
+ Training received by member(s) during orientation do not count toward the site-
specific training.

3. Submit all requests for approval of out-of-state training for the Member to the WSC at
least two weeks in advance of the training.

4. Support Member(s) in attending WSC training and career development opportunities.

+ Release Member(s) to attend mandatory training events, service projects, and
other WSC events including WSC-sponsored regional trainings.

+ Ensure members meet all core training requirements.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 8 of 9
Approved by AGO 05/17/2018




BPocuSign Envelope 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

5.

6.

Ensure Member(s) reporl completed training as requested by WSC into the WSC-
designated tracking system.

Release Member(s) from regular service o respond to disasters in accordance with
WGEC Policy #POL-160. Out-of-state deployments must meet specific CNCS criteria,
and require prior written approval of WSC.

Section VI — Sustainability

1.

The AmeriCorps project must support the long-term goals of the Sponsoring
Organization, and the Sponsoring Organization must be committed to the project.

The project must be designed to yield results beyond the Member(s) term of service.

The Member(s) position is t0 enhance or expand the Sponsoring Organization’s
service to its clients or participants through the project where the Member(s) will be
pfaced, not to maintain existing programs or replace (supplant) staff.

Section VIl — Other Responsibilities

Responsibilities of Washington Service Corps

1.

Provide program orientation for Members, Sponsoring Organization contract
manager, and project site staff.

Provide on-going technical support to Members, Sponsoring Organization contract
manager, and project site staff by telephone and/or e-mail, webinars, other technology
assisted approaches as available and accessible, and on-site visits as arranged.

3. Communicate expectations and procedures about Member service and performance.

4. Conduct desk reviews and on-site monitoring reviews, and issue reports that list

findings, concerns and observations. Provide technical assistance to the Sponsoring
Organization and Members to complete corrective action.

Ensure oversight of electronic timesheets for each Member, and maintain the official
permanent Member file.

Process Member living allowance for payment on the 5th and the 20th of each month.
Provide State Industrial Insurance coverage for Members.

Provide Medical Insurance coverage for the AmeriCorps member(s) who do not
already have coverage.

Provide Sponsoring Organizations with WSC/AmeriCorps logo posters to post in a
prominent location.

10. Provide Members with basic AmeriCorps gear.

11.Provide training and development opportunities to Members.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY 18 - Exhibit A - Statement of Work Page 9 of 9
Approved by AGO (05/17/2018




DocuSign Envetope 1D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

AmeriCorps Member Placement PY 2018-19
CNCS ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS

Exhibit B

ASSURANCES

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | certify, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, that the applicant:

Has the legal authority to apply for federal assistance, and the institutional,
managerial, and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-federal
share of project costs) to ensure proper planning, management, and completion of the
project described in this application.

Will give the Corporation for National and Community Service (CNCS}), the CNCS
Inspector General, the Comptroller General of the United States, and if appropriate,
the state, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to examine
all records, books, papers, or documents related to the award; and will establish a
proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards or agency directives.

Will initiate and complete the activities described in the application within the
applicable time frame after receipt of CNCS's approval.

Will comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including any seif-
evaluation requirements. These include but are not limited to:

1. Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1864 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et.seq.), which prohibits
federal grantees from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national
origin;

2. Title iX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in an
educational program or activity that receives or benefits from federal financial
assistance;

3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794),
which prohibits federal grantees from discriminating on the basis of disability;

4. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.5.C. 6101-6107), which
prohibits the exclusion of any person on the basis of age from participating in
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance;

5. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.), as amended,
relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of dwellings
provided in whole or in part with the aid of CNCS funding;

6. Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the National and Community Service
Act of 1990, as amended (NCSA), or the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of
1973, as amended (DVSA); and

7. The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to
the application.

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 — Exhibit B Page 1 of 7




BocuSign Envelope iD: 50B50292-E39F-48A8-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

o Will comply with section 543 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C.
290dd-2), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient
records.

¢ [f a governmental entity -

1. Will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1870 (42 U.5.C. 2601 ef seq.), which govern
the treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of
federal or federally assisted programs, and

2. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508 and 7324-
7328), which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

« Wil assist CNCS in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), EO 11593 (identification and
protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act
of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-| et seq.).

» Wil cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance
with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F.

« Will, when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations
and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with
CNCS funds, clearly state - (1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or
project which will be financed with Federal money; (2) the dollar amount of Federal
funds for the project or program; and (3) percentage and dollar amount of the total
costs of the project or program that will be financed by non-governmental sources.

« Wil not provide any CNCS funding to the Association of Community Organizations for
Reform Now (ACORN), or any of its affiliates, subsidiaries, allied organizations, or
SUCCESSOors.

«  Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal laws, executive orders,
regulations, application guidelines, and policies governing the program under which
the application is filed.

» Will comply with all rules regarding prohibited activities, including those stated in
applicable Notice, grant provisions, and program regulations, and will ensure that no
assistance made available by the CNCS will be used to suppott any such prohibited
activities.

» Will comply with the nondiscrimination provisions in the NCSA, which provide that an
individual with responsibility for the operation of a project or program that receives
assistance under the NCSA shall not discriminate against a participant in, or member
of the staff of, such project or program on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, political affiliation, disability, or religion.

¢ (NOTE: the prohibition on religious discrimination does not apply to the employment
of any staff member paid with non-CNCS funds or paid with CNCS funds but employed
with the applicant organization prior to or on the date the grant was awarded. If your
organization is a faith-based organization that makes hiring decisions on the basis of
religious belief, your organization may be entitied, under the Religious Freedom
Restoration Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000bb, o receive federal funds and yet maintain that
hiring practice, even though the NCSA includes a restriction on religious discrimination
in employment of staff hired to work on a CNCS-funded project and paid with CNCS

WSC Member Placement Confract PY18 - Exhibit B Page 2 of 7




DocuSign Envelope (D: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

grant funds. (42 U.S.C. § 5057(c)). For the circumstances under which this may
occur, please see the document “Effect of the Religious Freedom Restoration Act on
Faith-Based Applicants for Grants” at: hitps://www.justice.gov/archive/fbci/effect-

rfra.pdf.

» Will provide, in the design, recruitment, and operation of any AmeriCorps program, for
broad-based input from — (1) the community served, the municipality and government
of the county (if appropriate) in which the community is located, and potential
participants in the program; and (2) community-based agencies with a demonstrated
record of experience in providing services and local labor organizations representing
employees of service sponsors, if these entities exist in the area to be served by the
program;

e Will, prior to the placement of participants, consult with the appropriate local labor
organization, if any, representing employees in the area who are engaged in the same
or similar work as that proposed to be carried out by an AmeriCorps program, to
ensure compliance with the non-displacement requirements specified in section 177
of the NCSA;

« Will, in the case of an AmeriCorps program that is not funded through a state, consult
with and coordinate activities with the State Commission for the state in which the
program operates;

o Wil ensure that any national service program carried out by the applicant using
assistance provided under section 121 of the NCSA and any national service program
supported by a grant made by the applicant using such assistance will address unmet
human, educational, environmental, or public safety needs through services that
provide a direct benefit to the community in which the service is performed;

« Will comply with the non-duplication and non-displacement requirements set out in
section 177 of the NCSA, and in CNCS’s regulations at 45 CFR § 2540.100;

« Will comply with the grievance procedure requirements as set out in section 176(f) of
the NSCA and in CNCS’s regulations at 45 CFR § 2540.230;

« Wil provide participants in the national service program with the training, skills, and
knowledge necessary for the projects that participants are called upon to perform;

e Wil provide support services to participants, such as information regarding G.E.D.
attainment and post-service employment, and, if appropriate, opportunities for
participants to reflect on their service experiences;

« Wil arrange for an independent evaluation of any national service program that is
carried out using assistance provided to the applicant under section 121 of the NCSA
and 45 C.F.R. Part 2522, Subpart E; or, with the approval of CNCS, conduct an
internal evaluation of the program;

« Wil apply measurable performance goals and evaluation methods, which are to be
used as part of such evaluation to determine the program’s impact on communities
and persons served by the program, on participants who take part in the projects, and
in other such areas as required by CNCS;

* Wil ensure the provision of a living allowance and other benefits to participants as
required by CNCS;

» Has not violated a federal criminal statute;

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 — Exhibit B Page 3of 7




DocuSign Envelope 1D; 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

« If a state applicant, will ensure that the state subgrants that will be used to support
national service programs are selected in conformance with the requirements of the
NCSA;

o If a state applicant, will seek to ensure an equitable allocation within the state of
assistance and approved national service positions, taking into consideration such
factors as the locations of the programs, population density, and economic distress;

« If a state applicant, will ensure that not less than 60% of the assistance will be used
to make grants to support national service programs other than those carried out by a
state agency, unless CNCS approves otherwise based upon the state applicant not
having a sufficient number of acceptable applications to meet the 60% threshold.

CERTIFICATIONS

The certifications set out below are material representations upon which the Corporation
for National and Community Service (CNCS) will rely when it determines fo award a
grant. False certification, or violation of the certification, may be grounds for suspension
of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or
debarment (see 2 CFR Part 180, Subparts G and H).

Certification — Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters

This certification is required by OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide
Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement), 2 CFR Part 180, Section 180.335, What
information must | provide before entering into a covered transaction with a Federal
agency?

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | certify, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, that neither the applicant nor its principals:

e Is presently excluded or disqualified,;

* Has been convicted within the preceding three years of any of the offenses listed in 2
CFR § 180.800(a) or had a civil judgment rendered against it for one of those offenses
within that time period;

» |s presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (federal, state, or local) with, commission or any of the offenses listed in 2 CFR
§ 180.800(a); or

¢ Has had one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated within the
preceding three years for cause or default.

Certification — Drug Free Workplace

This cetrtification is required by section 184 of the NCSA (42 U.S.C. 12644), sections
5150-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. 8101-8106), and CNCS8’s
implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part 2245, Subpart B. Under these authorities,
grantees must cerlify, prior to award, that they will make a good faith effort, on a
continuing basis, to maintain a drug-free workplace.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | certify, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, that the applicant will provide a drug-free workplace by:

WSC Member Placement Contract PY18 — Exhibit B Page 4 of 7




DocuSign Envelope 10: 50B50292-E39E-48A3-B83A-5B3E4A3EFFO7

Publishing a drug-free workplace statement that:

1. Notifies employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controfled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace;

2. Specifies the actions that the grantee will take against employees for violating that
prohibition; and

3. Informs employees that, as a condition of employment under any award, each
employee will abide by the terms of the statement and notify the grantee in writing
if the employee is convicted for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in
the workplace within five days of the conviction;

Requiring that a copy of the statement described in paragraph (A) be given to each
employee who will be engaged in the performance of any federal award;

Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and

4. The penalties that the grantee may impose upon them for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

. Providing CNCS, as well as any other federal agency on whose award a convicted

employee was working, with written notification within 10 calendar days of learning
that an employee has been convicted of a drug violation in the workplace;

Taking one of the following actions within 30 calendar days of learning that an

employee has been convicted of a drug violation in the workplace:

1. Taking appropriate personnel action against the employee, up to and including
termination; or

2. Requiring that the employee participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance
or rehabilitation program approved for these purposes by a federal, state, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (A) through (E).

Certification — Lobbying Activities
As required by 31 U.S.C. 1352, as the duly authorized representative of the applicant, |
certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that:

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement;

If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the applicant will submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions;

WSC Member Placement Confract PY18 — Exhibit B Page 5of 7




DocuSign Envelope ID: 50B50292-E39E-48A9-B83A-5B3E4A3EFF07

« The applicant will require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients
will cerlify and disclose accordingly.

Certification - Grant Review Process {State Commissions Only)

| certify that in conducting our review process, we have ensured compliance with the
National and Community Service Act of 1990, and all state laws and conflict of interest
rules. '

Certification — Federal Tax Liability
| certify that, if the applicant is a corporation,
A. The corporation does not have any unpaid federal tax liability—
1. That has been assessed,
2. For which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have
lapsed, and -
3. That is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the
authority responsible for collecting the tax fiability, or

B. A federal agency has considered suspension or debarment of the corporation based
on the unpaid tax iability and has made a determination that this further action is not
necessary to protect the interests of the government.

Certification — Felony Criminal Conviction under Federal Law

| certify that, if the applicant is a corporation,

A. The corporation has not been convicted of a felony criminal violation under any federal
taw within the preceding 24 months, or

B. A federal agency has considered suspension or debarment of the corporation based
on that conviction and has made a determination that this further action is not
necessary to protect the interests of the government

Certifications — Subgrants and Lower Tiered Nonprocurement Transactions with
Excluded or Disqualified Persons (NCSA Subtitie C and Social Innovation Fund
applicants only)

Definitions

The terms "debarment,” “suspension,” “excluded,” “disqualified,” “ineligible,” “participant,”
“person,” “principal,” “proposal,” and "voluntarily excluded” as used in this document have
the meanings set out in 2 CFR Part 180, Subpart |, “Definitions.” A fransaction shall be
considered a “covered transaction” if it meets the definition in 2 CFR Part 180 Subpart B,
“‘What is a covered transaction?”

8 G n o

Assurance requirement for subgrant and other lower tier nonprocurement
agreements

You agree by submitting this proposal that, if we approve your application, in accordance
with 2 CFR Part 180 Subpart C, you shall not enter into any lower tier nonprocurement
covered transaction with a person without verifying that the person is not excluded or
disqualified unless authorized by CNCS.

WEC Member Placement Contract PY18 — Exhibit B Page 6 of 7




DocuSign Envelope ID: 50850292-E39E-48A9-B83A-583E4A3EFF07

Assurance inclusion in subgrant agreementis

You agree by submitting this proposal that you will obtain an assurance from prospective
participants in all lower tier covered nonprocurement transactions and in all solicitations
for lower tier covered nonprocurement transactions that the participants will comply with
the provisions of 2 CFR Part 180 subparts A, B, C and |.

Notice of error in certification or assurance

You must provide immediate written notice to us if at any time you learn that a certification
or assurance was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous because of
changed circumstances.

WSC Member Placemeant Contract PY18 — Exhibit B Page7 of 7






e 1 SN U R LD e

Board of Supervisors

C_(_)_I‘l servation Work Session Minutes
= District = Tuesday, June 26, 2018
", (,’ o 1:00pm
p'fburstoflca'
~Present at Meeting: .

Eric Johnson, TCD Board Chair Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair
Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor ~ Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director
Paul Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor Heather Roskelley, TCD Staff
Shana Joy, WSCC Ben Peterson, WFSE

Alison Halpern, WSCC

Action ltems:
None

Meeting not audic recorded

1. Review June 26" Monthly Board Meeting |

= Supervisors & Staff reviewed agenda items {0
meeting

= No formal Board action was taken.=

s/discussion

Respectfully Submitted,

Eric Johnson, Board Chair




o
SO ND G0 =1 O Lh s LD D e

(SRR T O O YO NG S N N N N N "N S N S S P T O T U T O T U A P P PG T N T N N T N T (0 T N T (6 T (N T N O N e e e e S o Ve G e Gy
W= ODWee-IN AN OO LN =, OO eI NN R W~ OO o —

Board of Supervisors

C_O_l’l servat 10n Monthly Board Meeting Minutes
i D istrict = Tuesday, June 26, 2018 (2:00pm)
(o 0

”’urstol\c

Present at Meeting:

Eric Johnson, TCD Board Chair Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director
Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor ~ Heather Roskelley, TCD Staff

Paul Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor Chris Steamns, TCD Associate Board Supervisor
Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair Shana Joy, WSCC

Alison Halpern, WSCC Joe Hanna, TCAAC

TJ Johnson, Public Madeline Bishop, P
Martin McCallum, Public Vickie Larkin, T
Esther Kronenberg, Public
Dan Calvert, PSP

Action Items:
1.
2.

tes as minutes
olicit proposals; Sara

Staff to send RFP to employment law firms an
copy to Enduris and invite commentary
Board Chair to review and sign min
compliance with Action Plan

Staff to send out Doodle poll to cha

Supervisors .
Staff will email quarterfy-t
Staff to send Doodle poll
Spm or 5- 8pm

—

Welcome, Introductions, Audio Recording Announcement and Pledge of Allegiance
= Eric Johnson called the meeting to order at 2:09pm. There was a quorum.

»  Welcome, Introductions, & Pledge of Allegiance conducted

* Chair announced meeting is audio recorded

Public Comment (3 minutes per person)

» Persons who provided public comment:
o TJ Johnson
o Joe Hanna




54 3. Agenda Review, All

55 = Include Supervisor Reports in Partner Reports — 6D

56 = |nclude quarterly payroll and staff reports in Financial Report — 8E

57 = Paul made a motion to move the Executive Session Statement earlier in the mesting. No

58 second.

59 * VSP Technical Support MOU Addendum (B) and CREP Assignment of Payment Forms (C)

60 under Conservation Projects are tabled to July 31 Board meeting

61 = Add Chehalis Outreach Grant Work Addendum to Conservation Projects as -11D

62 * Discuss potential OPMA viclations — 9B

63 = Discuss HR/legal services as it relates to budget — 10B

64 = Move #15 Protocol for Supervisor Reguests to 13B

65

66 4. Board Officer Elections, All

67 Table until July 31 Board Meeting

68

69 5. HR/lL.egal Subcommittee Report, Sarah Moorehead

70 A. HR/Legal Services

71 ¢ Discussion about firms and costs; co

72 this would help to frame path forw

73 s Sarah provided the names of two ad

74 they provide free mltial consultation

75 .

76 issues are resolved

77 * Need to have budgst disci

78 B. Legal Services RFP

79 = Paul moved to us

80

81

82

83

84

85

86 1

87 2 Hoyir s and solicit proposals; Sarah will also

88 $ { d invite commentary

89

90 6.

91 A.

92 B. WSCC, Shana“Je

93 * |ntroduced new Pu ‘Regional Manager, Alison Halpern

94 = WSCC meeting Ju 1-19 in Shelton at Little Creek Casino and Resort, Mason CD tour

95 = WSCC has conclude investigation of TCD; drafting final report; report should be available

96 sooh

97 = Livestock technical assistance — WSCC is asking more questions of each CD so they can track

98 funding

99 = Thurston CD will be audited this year — to be reimbursed through grant money; each district is
100 audited every three years
101 = legal requirements for TCD — still have 4 different elements not in compliance with Action Plan
102 {handout): open public meetings act; keeping public informed through minutes; adherence to
103 iabor laws; unresolved HRC complaints
104 = Shana will be reporting CDs in red (TCD) to the Commission and they make decision; there is a
105 new CAPP program so she is not sure what they will do
106 = ltis up to TCD to provide evidence that they have complied by July 18

2




107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155

156

157
158
159

= Shana mentioned that it's OK to not post minutes for a couple of months, but not beyond two
months

C. WACD/NACD - Doug Rushton was not able to attend June 26 Board meeting but provided
handouts that were included in Board Packet

D. Supervisor Meetings

Eric and Richard have aftended US Fish and Wildlife Service meetings; they would like to attend

a meeting in Boise on August 28 that addresses how landowners are handling easements; other

issues are problems with endangered species and making the building permit process easier

= Meetings with Partners in Conservation

Al — Board Chair to review and sign minutes provided at meeting so they can be pubiished

on wehsite in compliance with Action Plan

Al — Sarah to send out Doodle poll to change Board meeting date in August because of

conflict with USFWS meeting in Boise (August 28}

o

Letter from Eric Johnson and his attorney read by F
= Letter states that closed door sessions are legalfo;
Executive Director; final action may be takenin p

Al — Staff to ask for public meeting guidan

Handout - Statement of Paul Plckett

in the future, it is recommen
communicating by email so th
= in addition, Shana advised no

& Wock Session minutes
h Sarah with his edits.
8]

Q
o Edits 80-82 =
o TakeoutD

D. February 27, 2018 Regular Meeting minutes
Linda moved to approve as amended. Richard seconded. Eric, Richard, and Linda approved.
Paul abstained. Motion passed.
» Lines 79-81 — put on agenda for July 31 Board meeting

8. Financial Report

A. Monthly Financial Report
» |f Richard would like different information provided, Sarah will implement
»  Staff birth dates to be removed from Regence invoice/staiement

B. May Check Register




160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212

= Paul moved to approve checks 19602-19642 fotaling $104,171.78 with voided checks
19604, 19626, 19638. Linda seconded. Unanimous approval.

Break at 3:54pm. Meeting resumed at 4:07pm.

C. DOH Grant
= Ready for signature; Sarah emailed it to Supervisors during previous week (54 pages)
= $300,000 total
*  Approved in 2018 annual budget; through March 31, 2020
* Provides for technical assistance — working with school and urban gardens, farm tours,

beginning farming training programs, riparian programs
» Two hard copies requested for Supervisors
Al — Staff to put DOH Grant on July 31 agenda for dis
copies for Supervisors

3sion and provide two hard

D. Quarterly Payroll and Staff Reports 7
Al — Sarah will email quarterly payroll and st;

rhid—month to hah ‘outine items and place

animous approval.

Linda moved to have Work Session sched
them on consent calendar. Paul seconded:

sometime between 3-6pm or

9. Executive Session Statement
A. Paul Pickett read statement earlier

re-information to make budget decisions
Pierce, King, Mason and other districts; However,

Board Auditor to hire a qualified HR person through a temp

k to the Auditor and the Board. Linda seconded. Eric, Linda,

Richard approved. Paul objected. Motion Passed.

» Richard will provide recommendations to Board mid-July during Work Session

= Shana Joy noted that TCD policy states the hiring is done by the permanent or acting
executive director, not Board Supervisors. TCD needs to know if there is budget to hire
HR and/or legal services.

= Sarah shared concerns about operating against TCD policy and the Board authorizing
expenses of unknown amounts. She recommended first ensuring there is sufficient
funding available and second following the District’s policy on hiring staff.

Al — Staff to provide revised mid-year budget with additional information to Supervisors
Al —- Richard will contact HR temp agencies to hire a temp and will provide
recommendations to Board in Work Session mid-July




213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265

11. Conservation Projects, All
A. WRIA 13 Lead Entity Contract Renewal
= This is the next contract with RCO to continue TCD’s commitment to operate as the fiscal
agent for the WRIA 13 Lead Entity
»  Staff recommendation is to approve this second half biennium contract with RCO (July 1,
2018 — June 30, 2019) and authorize the TCD Board Chair or Interim Executive Director to
sign the final contract document upon receipt
» Billable time starts July 1
= Final contract not yet available
* Shana advised Board to vote to approve at July 31 Board meeting and backdate it to July
1
*  Board would like entire contract (as hard copies) to be:provided for approval
« Board Chair stated that there is to be no monetary expenditure by staff until contract is
signed
B. VSP Technical Support MOU Addendum - Tabled
C. CREP Assignment of Payment Forms — Tabled
D. Chehalis Outreach Grant Addendum
» Staff working on this: Sarah, habitat te
Chehalis Basin Strategy work — Skot

— interested’in working lands easements;
that landowners have a

Paul moved to approve
Unanimous approval.

Al — Staff to provide entire co
during July 31 Board meeting

Preparation for Board
*» Meeting on June

smore:dime 1s n

2018 for reference ed that one Board member, Linda, will attend a staff meeting to
co-create Code of Gonduct with staff
B. Protocol for Supervisor Requests
= Between meetings there are requests; Interim Executive Director can either 1) provide
answer fairly quickly, 2) set a time frame for deliverable, or 3) defer to discussion in
meeting because request requires extensive time commitment
» Sarah gets conflicting direction from Supervisors; need a broader discussion on priorities
- how best to prioritize from a collective Board with one voice
Al - Travel Policy to be discussed by Board in July Work Session
Al - Linda will attend a staff meeting (date TBD) to co-create Code of Conduct with staff

14. Review of Policies & Procedures
Al — Staff to put policy updates in books




266
267

268
269
270
271
272
273
274

15. Adjourn, All

Paul moved to adjourn. Linda seconded at 6:33pm. Unanimous approval.

Respectfully Submitted,

Eric Johnson, Board Chair




NDOO I ON L R

Board of Supervisors

C__O_Il S.e I'V_a t 1211 Special Meeting Minutes
= District == Tuesday, July 24, 2018
", (,’ o 1:30pm

‘fburstof\"é"

Present at Meeting:
Eric Johnson, TCD Board Chair Sarah Moorehead, TCD Interim Executive Director
Richard Mankamyer, TCD Board Auditor  Alison Halpern, WSCC

Doug Rushton, TCD Board Supervisor Melinda Holman, Public

Linda Powell, TCD Board Vice-Chair Jerry Dierker, Public

Paul Pickett, TCD Board Supervisor Tony Wilson, Public
Steven W. Morrison, Public
Paula Holroyde, Public
Ben Peterson, WFSE

Action ltems:
1. Staff to explore with the Attorney General’s offi

1 with the Arthur West
lawsuit -
Board Supervisors and staff to review legal se
(or on potentially rescheduled date in August)

es RFP submissions 31% Board meeting

. Welcome, Introductions, Audio Re

= FEric Johnson called the meeting o

» Persons who provide
o Steven W. Morriso

the documents received to date in response to the legal services
nn Essko, Senior Counsel with the Office of the Attorney

receipt of the Notice of Appearance by the State of Washington
as not discussed between Chair and other Board Supervisors
ensure this happens in the future; Chair is to work collaboratively
and agenda is then formalized by staff

RFP as well 3
General — Ecology:
» Doug stated that tf
and the Board Chair-
with the other Supervisor

Discuss a contract for leqal services to respond to and answer the notice served to the
District reqarding Notice of Appearance, State of Washington Thurston county Superior
Court No. 18-2-03305-34 dated July 12, 2018:

» Clarification regarding Notice of Appearance and the State of Washington; the State filed a
Notice of Appearance, which does not extend to the District or to any of the District’s
Supervisors

» Doug motioned to have staff explore with the Attorney General's office representation with
this lawsuit to be considered at a future meeting. Paul seconded. Unanimous approval.




52
53
54
35
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71

72
73
74
75
76
77
78

5.

Respectfully Submitted,

= Only the State of Washington has been served; Thurston Conservation District and the
individual Supervisors named in the lawsuit — Eric, Richard, and Linda — have not been
served

= The Board has 20 days after they've been served to respond

« Alison Halpemn noted that TCD hasn't received all of the legal services RFPs — deadline is
July 27 — so there is no ticking clock and TCD might have the Attorney General's office
provide representation

= Doug motioned to stick to agenda topics and look at RFP submissions at July 31% Board
meeting since there is no need for an attorney at this time. Paul seconded. Unanimous
approval.

* Paul wants his printed documents to be included in record because they are relevant to
legal process for hiring contract workers

Al - Staff to explore with the Attorney General’s office: ble representation with the
Arthur West lawsuit
Al — Board Supervisors and staff to review legal s

Board meeting (or on potentially rescheduled_

ubmissions at July 31°

Adjourn, All
Eric moved to adjourn. Linda seconded at 2:11

Eric Johnson, Board Chair:




Tab 9



Thurston County VSP Implementation Update

August 20, 2018

Due to limited capacity currently at Thurston Conservation District (TCD), a proposal to subcontract a
portion of the implementation deliverables is provided to the Thurston VSP workgroup. Proposal details
are included below:

1L

TCD proposes subcontracting the development of Individual Stewardship Plans (ISPs) at this
time to ensure the successful implementation of the Voluntary Stewardship Plan, until Thurston
Conservation District can increase its staffing capacity to fulfill this portion of the program.

Through local dollars acquired by TCD to support the Thurston VSP program, TCD piloted
subcontracting the development of (2) ISPs with 7 Generations Ag Conservation. 7 Generations
Ag Conservation, a local conservation agricultural consulting firm lead by retired TCD employee
James Weatherford. James has extensive qualifications and is known throughout WA State for
his work on complex conservation plans, nutrient management plans, TSP service through NRCS,
development of Dairy Nutrient Management plans and work on the development of VSP. He is a
certified crop advisor and certified pesticide applicator. He has 14 years of experience as a
Natural Resources Specialist at TCD, over 30 years of experience as co-owner and operator of his
family’s wheat farm in Eastern, OR and a BS in Natural Resources Management. TCD performed
a broad search, including obtaining quotes from other similar area consultants. 7 Generations
Ag Conservation was selected as the lowest quote received, as well as, the high level of specific
experience pertaining to this proposal. '

The plans were completed in 2.5 weeks, and follow the template developed by the VSP
Workgroup and TCD. The pilot proved efficient, accurate and expeditious in completion of these
ISPs.

On July 26", 2018 the VSP workgroup discussed pursing a subcontractor for ISP development.
The VSP workgroup showed interest and recommended subcontracting to increase the capacity
for current ISP development. Draft minutes from the VSP workgroup meeting are attached. It is
projected that it will be possible to complete another ~10 plans before December 31, 2018 with
the current VSP grant budget, depending on the complexity of the operations developing ISPs.
This is subject to change depending on timely approval of contracts with subcontractors to
perform this work.

Moving forward, TCD will prepare a hid process in accordance with TCD policy and generate an
addendum with the selected subcontractor to perform this work.



Thurston Conservation District intends to retain the outreach component and move forward
with the plans brought before the Thurston VSP group.

An update on the Outreach Plan is as follows:

Final versions of VSP outreach materials reviewed and revised by VSP workgroup following the
July VSP meeting are attached.

Materials will be utilized to promote the program broadly throughout the remainder of the
program. Including, flyering throughout the agricultural communities, dissemination to granges,
work groups, faith organizations, ciubs and other social and civic committees.

An advertising campaign will hegin using the language from the VSP workgroup vetted outreach
materials. This includes a multiplatform social media campaign, as well as print media
advertisements in The Olympian, The Nisqually Valley News, The Chronicle, The Tenino
Independent / Rochester Sun newspapers (within supported budget parameters.

A combined program postcard outreach mailing occurred this Spring, generating additional
interest and candidates for ISPs. This postcard was sent to ~1800 properties throughout
Thurston County . This mailing list was generated using GIS, identifying parcels that included
agricultural activities AND critical habitat, over 5 acres. These parameters were identified as high
priority and utilized to ensure the mailing would fall within the limited supply budget included
for Thurston CD to perform outreach under the VSP contract.

VSP will be included as a component of future program mailings by TCD. Parameters and
constraints of these mailing lists will need to meet the scope and budget constraints of multiple
programs. TCD has offered to incorporate specific parameters for future mailing lists provided
by the VSP Workgroup if feasible.

A series of workshops/on-farm walks is scheduled for mid-Fall 2018 for landowners to learn
about VSP and work through their initial checklists. Broad outreach and advertising will be
provided to maximize participation.




Thurston County Voluntary Stewardship Program

Workgroup Meeting #45
July 26, 2018, 1:00-3:00 pm
Washington Farm Bureau, Suite 201
975 Carpenter Road NE
Lacey, WA 98516

Chair McAninch called the meeting to order at 1:05 pm

in attendance:

Jlon MicAninch, WWA, Cedarville Farms, TCFB
Raul De Leon, TCFB

Bruce Morgan, TCFB/UPPL

Karen Parkhurst, TRPC

John Stuhlmiller, WFB

Rick Nelson, TCFB/Grange

Patrick Dunn, CNLM

Jim Goche

Brian Merryman, TCFB

Richard Mankamyer, Board of TCD Supervisor, TC Ag Committee
Sarah Moorehead, TCD

James Weatherford

Theresa Nation, WDFW

Tom Davis, WFB

Current Voting Members:

Jon McAninch, WWA, Cedarville Farms, TCFB
Patrick Dunn, CNLM

Rick Nelson, TCFB/Grange

Evan Sheffels, WSFB

Karen Parkhurst, TRPC

Brian Merryman, TCFB

Raul De Leon, TCFB

John Stuhlmiller, WSFB

Jlim Myers, Nisgually farmer

Dan Calvert, PSP

Bruce Maorgan, TCFB/UPPL {reapproved 7/26/18)

Welcome and Introductions: Chair Jon McAninch had all participants introduce themselves.

Public Comment: No comment.




Approval of Agenda: Pat Dunn moved that the meeting agenda be approved as published. Rick
Nelson seconded. Approved by consensus.

Chair McAninch asked for a secretary to take minutes. John Stuhlmiller was nominated by
Patrick Dunn. Motion secaonded by Bruce Morgan. Approved by consensus.

Brief update on VSP Implementation: Thurston Conservation District staff Sarah Moorehead
updated the group on VSP efforts and shared the concept of subcontracting with James
Weatherford to provide Work Plan implementation assistance by writing ISPs. Sarah noted that
TCD will follow the TCD policy requirements with respect to subcontracting, which includes
soliciting multiple informal bids/quotes before selecting a subcontractor. Additionally, all other
state and federal laws for public entities will be followed and TCD will keep the work group
informed of each step in the process.

Consideration/approval of implementation Plan Modifications:

Discussion ensued regarding the subcontract potential. Sarah shared that TCD had conducted a
pilot with other TCD resources to pay James for writing plans. He was able to complete 2 plans.
TCD shared that there are also several ISPs in process through other CD staff efforts.

Members shared the desire to connect more closely with Thurston Conservation District. The
district shared the same desire. If this subcontracting is approved by the county and the TCD
board of supervisors, the V5P workgroup would like regular check in with James to ensure that
plan goals are achieved. James would be the technical aspect of TCD effort and another staff
person will be continuing the outreach component.

In addition to ensuring accountability for the work, other options to contract with districts from
other counties was also discussed.

Karen Parkhurst moved to support the TCD proposal to subcontract the ISP technical work,
including the potential of contracting with James Weatherford. Seconded by John Stuhlmiller.
Approved by consensus: 6 in favor and 1 opposed {Pat Dunn).

Karen Parkhurst moved to reinstate Bruce Morgan as a voting member. Seconded by Rick
Nelson. Motion carried by consensus.

Rick Nelson moved that the TCD come to our next meeting with details of time and cost of the
contracted implementation work and prioritization strategies to enable us to meet VSP plan
goals. Bruce Morgan seconded. Motion carried by consensus.

lohn shared that the WSCC recently informed Thurston County of a lack of meeting VSP
reporting deadlines. It was pointed out that there is need the County to be sure to complete
the status reports. Contact with the County is needed to ensure compliance is achieved.




Sarah Moorehead shared additional VSP materials. Comment is needed as soon as possible so
they can be distributed.

Next Steps:
Chair McAninch will approach the county regarding getting current on WSCC VSP reporting

requirements. TCD will proceed with seeking subcontracting authority with Thurston County.

The workgroup decided by consensus to continue to meet on an as-needed-basis. The
workgroup will get feedback on outreach materials to the Conservation District via email, and
TCD committed to communicating regularly with the Work Group to demonstrate progress and
ensure that implementation goals are met.

The next meeting of the Work Group was tentatively set as 9/23/2018 at 3 PM. This meeting is
subject to the call of the chair and depends on activity needing review.

Adjourned at 3:03 PM,

Respectfully submitted,
Acting Secretary
John Stuhlmiller




siaumopue| yum sds| dojsasq z1

*233 ‘s||ea auoyd ‘susiA a1s Yy2noJyl ‘uosiad Ul SISUMOPUE| 01 3DUEBISISSE |BIIUYIRY SA 3PIA0Id TT

luswdo|aAap 45| pue JUBWadUBYUS SeaJe [eafLJD ‘AljiqeIa [einy|nalde ‘ssaualeme dSA @jowold o3 (wesSeisul 1a1m] Hj0ogades) uSiedwed elpaw [B120S Yaune ] g1
saljunioddo aoueslsisse [ea1uy2al ydnoayy pue siaA)) Alunwwos Sunisod ‘sdoysyiom Jsuied pue paisoy ‘SjUsAs |8 1B dSA 210Wold 6
seale [e213142 uipueyus pue Sundalosd ajiym ‘uoriesado Je Jo Alljiqela BulSEaUDUl UO PAsNI04 Slaumopue| 104 sdoysyJom ISOH §
1B3iqeYy [B2[314D pue saj3ialoe |eininal8e papn|aul Jeys saiuadoud 28T 01 8T0Z/EZ/F U0 1UIs Jajlew pJedisod yoesing /
1uswdojzaap ds] Ul sisumopue| 2Fe8us 01 s|elalBW Yoeauino gJL 3epdn/dojasag g
siaumopue| Joj uoljeulioul |nidjay/saainosal asealoul 1y adedgam 4sA @JL 91epdn §
1uswagesus Joj sa1dajens pue SuiSessaw ‘sa1ep doysyiom ‘ueld yaeasino Suidojdasq ¢
8T0T ‘TE 19qwadaq %3 8§T0T ‘0€ aunr :sa3ep Suipadad a12wW 1984e) €
8T0T ‘6T YdJeN 34301 Ag panolddy NOW ¢
8T0¢ ‘0€ Menuer uo pieog oL Aq panolddy nowW T

|1e3aq ysel

juswdojaraq ds| ZT

IUEISISSY |B2IUYI3] dSA TT
uonejuawa|dw|

usiedwe) eipay |e1208 0T
SulaA|4 13 Buljsgel 6
SAOYSHIOM dSA 8
I3|IBN PJEIISO4 YoE3UINO £
s|eualeln yaeasng dojeasqg 9
juawdoaaap adedgapn S
SuiSesss|N 73 ue|d yoeasing dojesag v
yoealng

OM dSA g 01 03 Buiioday JlIBIN €
D1 Ag paroiddy NOW 2

pieog gJL Aq panciddy NOW T
uonESIUIWPY

229 AON 00 dag any |nr unr Aen Jdy JEAl qe4 uer
AdAaY JL 8102
ALAIY DL 19143510 UOIIBAISSUOD) Uo3sInyl

uoneluswsa|dw| weidold diyspiemals Alejun|op



uopeIuaWa|dill diNg Jo) BJBYS 1507
wiesSold UBWIIUBYUT AID53Y UO[IBAIBSUCD
ESA Yum J1e4 01 swelFouyg sAjusau|



WWW.THURSTONCD.COM/WELCOME/PROGRAMS/VOLUNTARY-STEWARDSHIP-PROGRAM/ + ) () ©
LN

Cons.erv.ation ‘:
District |

o

&5t 1981

ENC L
o VSR

Voluntary Stewardship Program

The Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP) is an alternative approach for counties in Washington
State to protect and voluntarily enhance environmentally critical areas while maintaining and
improving the long-term viability of local agriculture. Instead of enacting further critical areas
regulation for agricultural activities, the VSP allows a technical assistance provider to work with
agricultural operators to develop voluntary, site-specific stewardship plans. The Thurston
Conservation District is the technical service provider for Thurston County.

GOALS OF THE PROGRAM F_ﬁ -1
+ Protect and voluntarily enhance critical areas where
they overlap with agricultural activities E

+ Maintain and improve the long-term viability of
agriculture and reduce the conversion of farmland to
other land use types Curious if you qualify for an

Individual Stewardship Plan?

Want to know more?

+ Proactively address land-use regulation and conversion

WHY PARTICIPATE?

+ Gain a better understanding of the critical areas on your land and how to work with
those to improve operational efficiencies, see higher yields, and increase production

We want to hear from you!

+ Flexible —allows farmers and ranchers to manage in a way that meets their needs

+ Focuses on results rather than regulations. Proactively be a good steward of your land for
generations to come

+ Enhances the image of agriculture to the larger community as good stewards of natural
resources

+ Protect your farm from violations and regulation

¢ Participation in the VSP potentially opens individual landowners up to other cost share
opportunities

¢ A successful Voluntary Stewardship Program supports a voluntary approach to land
stewardship for all Thurston County residents. Success is dependent upon landowner
participation.

QUESTIONS: SARAH MOOREHEAD ¢ SMOOREHEAD@THURSTONCD.COM ¢ (360) 754-3588 x 136




36T Lg
. \.«V +
L1381
ﬁOmwdemmﬂQU

DT
M

| digspremais oyads aus |

SNOILSIND
adisv
A1LNIND3IY4

wno.abo.ad
diysp.ibmajg
Aupjunjo/p

N

Jweagoid-diyspiemals
-Asejunjon/swelssosd/swosjam
Juwlod pauoisinyyr mmm//ssdniy

21586 VM “4aiemwin]

v 31NS ‘MS "1S Uosn31a4 8T6¢

885€-75/ (09¢€)

1DUISIg uoeAlasug) uolsinyl

d3dIAOYd FDIAY3S TVIINHIOIL
Jubld

diysp.apmais jpnpialpuj
up buniab ui pazsa.aajug

|uy weisoid
-diysplemals-AIeTunjoa/suruued
/SAEMTUOISINUT 00 MMM //:d1y

snem-uolst _‘EHOu @UmLmHmB
T¥55-982 (09€)

Ja8eueln weudold ‘siaiepn Bssliey)

uauwinedaqg
diyspiemals aainosay
Ajuno) uojsanyy

SN 1DVLNOD

‘paysielem
ay31 uj suonengads yuswdojansp
9sIAal ‘Auessaoau J| ‘pue malnal

1snw AJunod ays ‘(yzoz) s1eah o1
J91JE $)JBeWIuag Juswadueyus pue
uoyoajo.d eate [ed11Id Y] 193W Jou

S90P dSA 93 4| “Alessadau se isnfpe
pue Aluno) uoisiny] ul wesdoud
3Y3 Jo s5922ns 3y3 Sulioluow
anupuod ||Im dnoudylop syl ¢
‘pue| Jiayl uo weadoud diyspiemsis
Asejunjop ay3 Juswajdwi 03 1013sIQ
UOLEAIBSUOD U01SINYL 3YT Y1M JIOM
Aew sisumopue| ‘gTOZ JOWWNS JOSY ¢
"1911S1J UOLBAIASUOD) Uolsiny] ayl
‘Japinold Souelsisse [ealuyIsl pea| ays
ysnouayy Ajuewud s sueld diysplemals
[enpiaipu] jo Juswdojansp
pue ‘uonejusws|dw ‘Yyoeanng ¢
"£T0T ‘9T |udy uo (J2S) uoissiwwo)
uoneAIasuUO) 91e1S 2yl Ag panoidde
sem ue|d 3yiom s AIUNOD UOISINY] "S3GLIY
pue ‘sapuade ‘sdnold |erusBWIUOIIAUD
‘Alunwiwod |esnynaSe ayl wody
saApeuasaldal sapnpoul dnoi8ydopn ayL

‘uejd J4om ay3 dojanap 01 dnolByopn dSA

e Bu1ysi|ge1sa s1ojaq sJap|oyaye1s yHUm
paJsaguod Ayunoa ay) °sssooud Suiuueld
2y31 uedaq AJuno) uoisinyj ‘¢TOz ul a1e1s
2yl Aq papunj sem wessoad ay3 Jayy

¢1eYM MON

‘uj paxdo Ajuno) uoisinyy




"sup}d diysp.apmajs d110ads
-a11s ‘Aupiunjon dojanap 01
SIUMOPUD] YJUM SH.LOM JSA
aY3 ‘sa110139D (DN NILI6D
Lof uoypNBa. SDALD [DIYLID
Jay1unf buyooua fo ppajsuy

‘Ajljenpialpul uogesado yoes

01 pajdepe ale sUoLlEpUBWWODA. pue
sue|d "Suizesd paqlasald Jo quawsieuew
1sad pajeidaqul ‘Supusy uoIsn|axa
‘Guiddoud Jan02 se s8ulyl Yyans apnjoul
353y "sainpado.d Suluue|d uoneAlssuod
(SD¥N) @21n13S UOLBAIBSUOD) SB2UN0SY
|einieN uo paseq suondo aagoed
UOLBAISSUOD PUE S3IALIE |Bin]jnalEe

puUSWLIOIAY ||IM LBIS [EDIUYDD ]
éiAuadoud

Aw 1o} papuawiwiodal aq [|Im ey

'sueld s,[enpiaipul

03 uoluedwod e se IS Os|e JI13SIQ
uonealasuo) ay3 Aq paiayo ssniuniioddo
|[euoneanpa da.4 ‘Inoysnouyl sydads-als
pue aayeloqe||0d st ssadoud siy| ‘suopesado
|ednynaui3e syl jo Aujigela wusi-8uol

2y31 Suinoadwi Jo Suluieluiew pue saaoeid
uoygentasuod Suguaswa|dwi Joy ueld uoyoe
ue dojansp 01 pue Aladosd ay} uo seaue
[E20142 JO UONEBIO| PUB JUIIX3 3yl AJLI9A 03
He1s gD uolsiny] yiim 31e10qe||od uay] pue
saayoe.d Juaauna jo 1s1poay2 e a19|dwod
siaumopue| Suediped "pueg| Jiay3 uo
seaJe |EJ1II 3Y3 JO uoLIEAISSUOD AJBIUN|OA
3Y1 Ul ple 01 puej J13yY3 Uo paluawa|dun

aq ued 1eyl saoyoesd uoeAISSUOD

Ajnuapi wayj djay o3 suoyesado [eanjndlse
[ENpIAIpUI 0] paJojie] pue Jy1oads

-21is ‘9244 ase sueld asay] "dSA Y3 Japun
(dsl) sue|d diyspiemails [enpiaipu] dojasap
sisumopue| sdjay 1eyi Japinoid Aewad

33 S1 1214351 UOLBAIBSUOD UO03SINy L
éSlaumopue| 0} paiayo

3q ||IM 3dueISISSE [BIIUYIA] JBYM

Ja1em sjgelod Joy
pasn seale 33.ieydal Jajinbe [eanl) ¢
(sedojs daais
Suipnjoul) seale piezey 2180|039 ¢
seale pspooj Ajjusnbai{ ¢
Spuejisapy ¢
seale
uoneAlasuod 1elqey Bl[pIM B UsSld  ¢

¢Sealy [eanl) aJde 1eymn

‘spue| |ein3jnaliSe uo seale |eaud 199104d
0} (VIND) 1Y Juswaseue |y ymols syl
Japun suope|n8aJ Sunsixs YIm snuguod 1o
dSA 3y1 03 ul-3dQ :suondo om3 usald atem
sauno) “a4n3jnauSe jo Ajjigein waal-suo)
ay1 Suntoddns ajiym sauinoe |einynaude
yum depiano Asyl 213ym Seale [EIRIID
13104d 03 sailunod 1o} Yoeoidde Asozendal
|EUCLIIPEI} 3Y] O} SALEUID]|E UE S

(dsA) weiSoud diyspremais Aieiunjop syL

éwelsSold
diyspiemais Alejunjop ayi st 18y







(360) 902-3000
TTY: (360) 902-1998
Olympia, WA 98504-0917 Fax: (360) 902-3026

1111 Washington 5t. S.E. E-mail: Info@ico.wa.qov

Olympia, WA 98501 Web site; www.rco.wa.gov
STATE OF WASHINGTON

RECREATION AND CONSERVATION OFFICE

Natural Resources Building
P.0. Box 40917

June 28, 2018

Sarah Moorehead, Acting Execntive Director, and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson St SW A

Tumwater, WA 98512

RE: Salmon Recovery Lead Entity Contract
Dear Ms, Moorehead and Members of the Thurston Conservation District Board of Supervisors:

It has come to my attention that the Board of Supervisors of the Thurston Conservation District
is uncertain about its willingness to renew its role as fiscal agent for the lead entity of Water

Resources Inventory Area (WRIA) 13,

The District was designated as the Iead entity in 2000 by resolutions adopted by the Thurston
County Commission, the cities of Olympia, Lacey, Rainier, and Tumwater, and the Squaxin
Istand Tribe. As such, the District serves as the fiscal agent for the lead entity citizens committee
and helps manage the citizens committee and the technical review committee in their role of
developing the ranked Est of habitat projects submitted to the Salmon Recovery Funding Board
each year. Isent you a letter in November 2017 detailing the roles and responsibilities of this
function.

I am very disappointed. This is a critical time in the annual grant round for the Salmon Recovery
Funding Board. The work of the lead entity is essential for any grant funding to flow to sponsors
in WRIA 13. We see two possible pathways at this moment:

1. The parties that make up the lead entity designate a new fiscal agent quickly and that new
fiscal agent signs the necessary documents to keep the process moving.

2. Thurston Conservation District signs the necessary documents no fater than July 13,
2018, to continue to serve as the fiscal agent. Documents include an authorizing
resolution and contract with Washington State Recreation and Conservation Office.

The consequences of delay are that sponsors in WRIA 13 would receive no funding for salmon
recovery projects during the 2018 grant round, a loss of more than $830,000 in project funding.
This would be a huge blow to those sponsors and, frankly, to salmon and the orcas that depend
on them,

Recreation and Censervation Funding Board = Salmon Recovery Funding Board -~
Washington Invasive Species Councit « Governor's Salmon Recovery Office Bt
Habitat and Recreation Lands Coordinating Group



As a result, my preferred option is that the parties that make up the lead entity designate a new
fiscal agent quickly, and that new fiscal agent sign the necessary documents to keep the process
moving.

Tunderstand that you are scheduling a special meeting during the second week of July. I ask that
you please provide a response about which path you intend to take the day following that
meeting.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Kot (sdghon

Kaleen Cottingham
Director

ce: Thurston County Commissioners
Washington State Conservation Commission
City of Olympia
City of Lacey
City of Rainict
City of Tumwater
Squaxin Island Tribe
Sheida Sahandy, Director, Puget Sound Partnership |
David Troutt, Chair, Salmon Recovery Funding Board

Enclosures:  Recreation and Conservation Office Applicant Resolution/Authorization
WRIA 13 Salmon Habitat Recovery Committee Lead Entity Scope of Work 18-19




Puget Sound Salmon Recovery Region
Lead Entity Scope of Work
July 1, 2018—June 30, 2019

NAME OF LEAD ENTITY: WRIA 13 SALMON HABITAT RECOVERY
COMMITTEE

Background

In this grant period, lead entities are funded with capacity grants from the Washington State
Legislature using general fund (operating budget) and capital budget (bond) dollars. These
funds are allocated by the Salmon Recovery Funding Board (SRFB), and the contracts that
govern these grants are administered by the Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO).

Puget Sound lead entities also receive funding from capital funds that the Legislature
appropriates to the Puget Sound Acquisition and Restoration (PSAR) program. The RCO
administers these funds through a Memorandum of Understanding with the Puget Sound
Partnership (Partnership). For this grant period, six percent of the first $30 million of the PSAR
program will be distributed among the Puget Sound lead entities to support their capacity to
recruit, develop, review, and prioritize eligible projects.

The Legislature appropriated more than $30 million to PSAR during this biennium. As a result,
the Partnership and SRFB are supplementing the lead entity capacity contracts so that each lead
entity receives $100,000 per year from a combination of SRFB and PSAR funds.

This scope of work, for the period July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019, includes funds in these categories.
The PSAR balances will be determined after RCO receives and pays the final billings.

Lead entity support from operating budget EXUXXHXX
Lead entity support from capital budget EXXXXKXX
SUBTOTAL XX XXX.00

PSAR balance, 2015-17
PSAR balance, 2017-19

Grant Funding Timing

The fund sources included in this agreement have different timelines.



The lead entity support from the operating and the capital budget must be spent in one
fiscal year, i.e., by June 30, 2019.

PSAR funding may be used for up to two biennia.

e PSAR capacity funds allocated for 2015-17 must be spent by June 30, 2019. Any
balance of 2015-17 PSAR capacity funds remaining on July 1, 2019 will no longer be
available to the lead entity.

e PSAR capacity funds allocated for 2017-19 must be spent by June 30, 2021. Any
balance of 2017-19 PSAR capacity funds remaining on July 1, 2021 will no longer be
available to the lead entity.

The purpose of this scope of work is to describe the tasks that will be completed by the lead
entity during the fiscal year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2098 with the funds available as
described above.

Each task includes:
o A description of the services to be provided or work to be performed
e Deliverables
e Responsible person or job title
e Timeline
e Budget amount and funding source, summarized in table at end of document

All work is bound by the lead entity contract agreement, its terms and conditions, and the
applicable RCO policy manuals (e.g., Manual 8-Reimbursements; Manual 18-Salmon Grants;
Manual 19-Regional Organization and Lead Entity Capacity Grant Guidance).

The lead entity may sub-contract out portions of the tasks described in this scope of work, but it
must meet these requirements:

o The lead entity must have adopted written procedures on the procurement of contracted
services in compliance with state law.

e The lead entity must allow the RCO to review proposed sub-contracts of more than
$20,000.

See Manual 19 for specifics.



Indirect/Overhead Costs

RCO allows indirect costs for lead entity capacity grants. Organizations are required to complete
a RCO Fiscal Data Collection Sheet available at
https://rco.wa.qov/documents/manuals&forms/FiscalDataCollectionSheet.pdf

See Manual 19 for specifics.

The lead entity will report twice a year to RCO on its progress in completing these tasks. RCO
will provide a template for the progress report. Progress reports will become publicly available
as attachments on PRISM.

Due dates: April 15" and October 31

TASKS 1—7: REQUIRED TASKS FOR ALL PUGET SOUND LEAD ENTITIES

Task Groups 1-5 comprise the work a lead entity engages in to complete its SRFB grant round.
Accordingly, for budget purposes, the costs associated with these five task groups are
combined. See the table at the end of this document for that budget amount.

Task Group 1: Lead Entity Organization

The lead entity will maintain sufficient administration, facilitation and coordination capacity to
support the on-going goals and objectives of a lead entity organization.

Task 1.1 The lead entity organization will maintain an office and points of contact. It will keep
the Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) informed of its physical and mailing address and
the names, phone numbers, and e-mail addresses for points of contact. It will report changes
within 15 calendar days to the RCO.

Deliverable 1.1 Notice to RCO of changes within 15 calendar days.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 1.2 The lead entity will provide a brief summary of the number of staff involved in
performing the lead entity tasks (whether on lead entity payroll or not), their individual roles,
and any training that has occurred during the reporting period. Examples of some common
roles include billing, accounting, education, outreach, data management (e.g., Habitat Work
Schedule), and coordination.




Deliverable 1.2  Lead entity will provide summary of staff, roles, and training in the April 15"
progress report.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 1.3 The lead entity coordinator and appropriate committee members will represent the
lead entity organization in salmon recovery settings as directed by the regional recovery
organization, the lead entity committee(s) and the lead entity organization.

An important setting in 2018-2019 is the lean study on how salmon recovery projects come to
the SRFB. Lead entities are expected to play a key role in this study and their participation is
expected and encouraged. This includes participation in at least one workshop, completion of a
survey, and review of draft materials.

Expected Participation
e Lean study workshop, completion of a survey, and review of draft materials.
o Puget Sound Watershed Leads meetings', (monthly; in person or conference call)
e Washington Salmon Coalition meetings (as scheduled; in person or conference call)

e Meetings with the coordinator(s) of the relevant Local Integrating Organization, if
applicable (quarterly, in person)

e Lead entity operational review meeting with GSRO lead entity program manager (annual,
in person)

Optional Participation:

e Puget Sound Salmon Recovery Council, when on agenda or as requested (bimonthly, in
person)

e Salmon Recovery Funding Board, when on agenda or as requested (quarterly, in person)
o Washington State Salmon Recovery Conference (2019, in person)

e large Capital Project Review Team for PSAR (summer 2018, in person and conference
calls)

T A coordinated ecosystem recovery workshop (Fall 2018) and training (Spring 2019) with the Local
Integrating Organization will take the place of two Puget Sound Watershed Leads meetings and focus on
how to improve coordination and alignment of salmon and ecosystem recovery goals, strategies, and
priorities.




e Puget Sound Ecosystem Monitoring Program Salmonid Workgroup (monthly or
quarterly, in person or conference call)

The lead entity coordinator will ensure that the time spent and any travel costs incurred are
directly work related, obtained at the most economical price, and both critical and necessary for
state business.

Any travel associated with this scope of work must follow the rules in the State Administrative
and Accounting Manual. See Manual 19 for guidance.

Note that any out-of-state travel must be authorized in advance authorization from the RCO
agency director or authorized designee (see SAAM 10.10.50a)

Deliverable 1.3  The lead entity will provide summary of lead entity representation in
appropriate salmon recovery settings to RCO in the April and October progress reports.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 1.4 The lead entity organization will serve as the agent administering the lead entity
grant with the RCO, either by administering the grant itself or by an agreement with a fiscal
agent.

The lead entity organization is responsible for accounting and reporting to the RCO in a timely
fashion. Invoices for reimbursements of eligible costs will be sent to the RCO no less frequently
than annually and no more often than monthly.

Lead entity organizations must prepare their bills in PRISM Online E-billing. Information is
available on the RCO Web site at http://www.rco.wa.gov/doc pages/reimbursement.shtml

Deliverable 1.4 The lead entity will administer its grant in a timely manner, including
accounting, reporting, and invoicing using PRISM Online E-billing. Invoices for reimbursements
of eligible costs will be submitted no less frequently than annually and no more often than
monthly.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task Group 2: Lead Entity Committees:

As required in statute, the lead entity is to establish and maintain a committee that is
representative of diverse salmon habitat and community interests (citizens committee) and
whose primary purpose is to compile a prioritized habitat project list (see RCW 77.85.050).




Task 2.1 The lead entity will establish and maintain a citizens committee. The lead entity shall
ensure diverse membership that reflects RCW 77.85.050.

The lead entity coordinator or designee shall:
e Arrange and facilitate citizens committee and subcommittee meetings
¢ Create agendas for citizens committee and subcommittee meetings
e Perform staff assignments
o Develop meeting summaries

¢ Maintain a complete set of records to be made available to the RCO as needed for
oversight of the lead entity grant. These records to include, at a minimum:

o Agendas
o Sign in sheets

o Meeting summaries, including action items

Deliverables 2.1

a. Arrange, facilitate, and document citizen committee meetings, maintain records, and
make the information available to RCO as needed.,

b. Document the diverse membership on the citizens committee that reflects RCW
77.85.050

¢. Submit the name and affiliation of each member of the citizens committee to the RCO in
the April 15" pragress report.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 2.2 The lead entity will organize and coordinate a means of ensuring that the technical
and science-related needs of compiling a prioritized habitat project list are met. For many lead
entities, this entails coordinating a technical advisory group.

For any such technical advisory group, the lead entity coordinator or designee shalk:
« Arrange and facilitate technical advisory group meetings
s Create agendas for technical advisory group
s Perform staff assignments

¢ Develop meeting summaries




e Maintain a complete set of records to be made available to the RCO as needed for
oversight of the lead entity grant. These records to include, at a minimum:

o Agendas
o Sign in sheets
o Meeting summaries, including action items

If no separate technical advisory group exists for the lead entity, the lead entity coordinator or
designee shall document how the technical and science-related needs of the lead entity area are
met.

tDeli\rerahles 2.2

a. Arrange, facilitate, and document technical advisory group meetings {or document how
the technical and science-related needs of the lead entity area are met), maintain
records, and make the information available to RCO in the April 15" progress report.

b. Submit the name and expertise of each member of the technical advisory group to the
RCO in the April 15" progress report

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 2.3 The lead entity will maintain a set of written bylaws approved by the citizens
committee and update them as needed.

At a minimum, the bylaws will include:
» Membership criteria
¢ Attendance requirements
» Roles of all participants including chairs
¢ Decision-making and/or voting structure and process
s Purpose and membership of any standing supporting committees
o Statement of fairness and/or conflict of interest policy

These bylaws shall be made available to the RCO as needed for oversight of the lead entity
grant.

Deliverable 2.3: Maintain a set of written bylaws approved by the citizen committee and

update as needed. Make the bylaws available to the RCO on request.




Task Lead: Amy HatcHlWinecka, Députy Director

Task 3: Lead Entity Annual Work Plan and Grant Program Criteria

The lead entity will develop an annual work plan to guide its overall effort for creating the

prioritized habitat project list and to provide transparency and clarity for its watershed partners,
the Partnership, and the RCO.

The annual work plan will include:

o A description of how the prioritized project list will be created (the overall process,
structure of application workshops, guidelines for applicants, etc.)

e Grant program criteria consistent with lead entity’s local habitat strategy, watershed
recovery strategy chapter, or regional recovery plan

o Timeline
e Plan for ensuring that the citizens committee reflects RCW 77.85.050

e Plan for how Task 6 will be completed (i.e., use of Habitat Work Schedule database
(HWS))

e Staff and committee roles

e Decision-making structure to ensure compliance with Manual 18.

Deliverable 3.0
Develop an annual work plan and provide it to the RCO as part of the April 15" progress report

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task Group 4: Adaptive Management of Watershed Recovery Chapter

The lead entity will document the goals and strategies needed for salmon recovery in its area.
The lead entity will maintain a current watershed salmon recovery chapter, advance or
implement a salmon recovery monitoring plan, and maintain a current list of high priority
salmon recovery projects planned for the next four years (i.e., a Four Year Work Plan project list).

The Partnership encourages lead entities to incorporate the following into its salmon recovery
chapter: habitat goal statements, updated strategies, H-integration approaches, pressures, and
climate change considerations.




The lead entity will coordinate with the Alliance for a Healthy South Sound to ensure that
salmon recovery goals and strategies (e.g., watershed salmon recovery chapter updates) are
incorporated into the LIO's South Sound Strategy (Ecosystem Recovery Plan), or at a minimum,
ensure there is no conflict exists between salmon recovery goals and strategies and the South
Sound Strategy.

The WRIA 13 Salmon Habitat Recovery Committee is one of five Lead Entities working with the
Alliance for a Healthy South Sound {(AHSS). As such, the WRIA 13 Lead Entity will fulfill the
relevant portion of the below deliverables, as they relate to the geography of WRIA 13.

The lead entity will bring any difficulty or conflict in achieving this alignment to the attention of
Partnership staff and the GSRO Lead Entity Program Manager.

Task 4.1 The lead entity will assist the LIO and the four other Lead Entities in the South Sound
Recovery Chapter geography to maintain a current salmon recovery chapter. Current
information shall be incorporated into the watershed’s Miradi fileand HWS (4YWP project list) as
appropriate.

Deliverables 4.1:

a. Provide summaries from comimittee meetings that focus on adaptive management of the
recovery chapter in the April 15™ and October 315 progress reports to RCO.

b. Contribute to the update the recovery chapter Miradi file with the other South Sound
Lead Entities no less than twice a year, due Aprit 15" and October 31st. If Miradi capacity
is not available within the lead entity, the information should be provided to the
Partnership.

¢. Maintain current list of priority projects (4YWP project list) in HWS.

d. Provide documentation of coordination with relevant LIO(s) (if applicable) in the April
15™ and October 31% progress reports to RCO.

e. Initiate coordination of goals between the South Sound Strategy and the Habitat
Protection and Restoration Plan for WRIA 13 (WRIA 13 strategy document created in
2005), to enable an update of the latter when funds become available.

f.  Participate in the Alliance for 2 Healthy South Sound (AHSS) Council and Technical
meetings. This participation will contribute to the update of the WRIA 13 freshwater




strategy (noted above) while also supporting the adaptive management of the AHSS
South Sound Strategy document.

l Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task Group 5: Create a Habitat Project List for the SRFB:

The lead entity will submit a habitat project list to the SRFB in accordance with Manual 18 (see
RCW 77.85.050(3)). Generally, this includes the following activities:

« Initiating and facilitating prioritization meetings

e Conducting community outreach about the grant round

e Preparing and organizing meeting materials

e Scheduling and coordinating site visits with the SRFB review panel

o Compiling project ratings and final rankings

o Scheduling and coordinating application workshops

o Ensuring all aspects of project pre-applications and project applications are complete

o Coordinating with the SRFB review panel and providing review panel comments to
project applicants and sponsors

o Completing and submitting the lead entity list memorandum to RCO and the regional
organization

e |Interacting with the SRFB and RCO staff as requested.

Task 5.1 The lead entity will submit a ranked habitat project list in accordance with Manual 18.
Each project will demonstrate a link to the lead entity's Four Year Work Plan (see Task 4) and to
the strategies in the relevant watershed recovery chapter.

Deliverable 5.1: The lead entity will submit its ranked habitat project list to the regional
organization and SRFB in accordance with the Grant Schedule published in Manual 18.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 5.2 The lead entity will summarize and evaluate its involvement in the current SRFB grant
round.

Deliverable 5.2: The lead entity will summarize and evaluate its involvement in the current
SRFB grant round in the progress report due October 31*,

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

10



Task 5.3 The lead entity will provide feedback to the RCO, making suggestions to improve
Manual 18 for the next grant round.

Deliverable 5.3: The lead entity will provide feedback to improve Manual 18 in its progress
report due October 31,

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task Group 6: Habitat Work Schedule

The lead entity organization will track salmon restoration and protection projects in its area
using the Habitat Work Schedule (HWS) database, following the instructions and guidelines in
Attachment A.

This task must be charged to lead entity support from the operating budget. See Manual 19 for
further guidance.

Tracking will include projects on the lead entity's ranked list, in its Four Year Work Plan or Four
Year Project Forecast, and salmon restoration and protection projects in its area that are funded
at $20,000 or more that are not in the PRISM database. This tracking allows better reporting on
salmon recovery progress statewide and a better picture of the other funding sources.

The lead entity will define a budget amount of its award dedicated to tracking salmon recovery
projects in HWS. For the purpose of this scope of work, the budgeted amount is $3,000.

Task 6.1 Track project information in the Habitat Work Schedule database in accordance with
instructions in Attachment A (see below). Work with RCO to improve data quality and verify
metrics in support of state-wide reporting (i.e. State of Salmon in Watersheds) and the new Four
Year Project Forecast.

Deliverable 6.1 The lead entity will complete data entry in HWS as described in Attachment
A by April 15 for salmon recovery projects, in the budgeted amount of $3,000.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 6.2 The lead entity will provide the RCO with a description of how it uses the HWS
database, how often it updates information, and how the HWS database helps it identify and
coordinate with all known salmon habitat projects in the lead entity area, including Washington
Wildlife and Recreation Program, the Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program, and other
conservancy programs (see RCW 77.85.060), including the Estuary and Salmon Restoration
Program, as relevant,

Deliverable 6.2 The lead entity will respond to the questions about HWS in the progress
report due April 15,

11




FTask Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 6.3 The lead entity coordinator or designee shall attend one HWS database training
event per year, which may be a Web-based training event. If project sponsors are assigned
responsibility for providing project data input into HWS, the lead entity shall coordinate a
minimum of one HWS database training opportunity per year for project sponsors.

Deliverable 6.3 The lead entity will provide documentation of training attended and, where
relevant, provided, in the progress report due April 15%.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Task 7: Outreach

Building community support is critical for project development and creating an authorizing
environment for salmon recovery project implementation. Community outreach and education
are activities that may occur throughout the year. Accordingly, the lead entity will report its
progress for these activities in either the spring or fall progress report, as appropriate.

Outreach activities examples include educating elected officials (federal, state, local
representatives), presentations to community groups, youth education day camps, and meetings
with landowners.

NOTE: Only outreach activities directly related to project recruitment and development
should be charged to lead entity support from the capital budget or PSAR capacity funds.
Any other outreach activities must be charged to lead entity support from the operating budget.
See Manual 19 for further guidance.

Task 7.1 Please provide a bulleted list of activities.

The WRIA 13 Salmon Habitat Recovery Committee Lead Entity (Thurston) plans these
outreach activities for 2018-19:
O Legislative outreach at the state and national levels

OOutreach to local elected officials
O Presentations to community groups, youth education day camps, etc.

OOutreach and meetings with landowners to benefit future project implementation

Deliverable 7.1 Please indicate how these activities will be documented, how success will be
measured, and when they will be reported to RCO and the regional organization.

12



Opportunities for the above-referenced outreach will be discussed at the monthly combined -
meetings of the Lead Entity technical and citizen group, seeking input and direction. Reports
will be given at PSP Watershed Leads meetings and in the biannual grant reports to RCO.
Highlighting a particular success may mean inclusion in the WA Salmon Coalition update to the
SRFB at a regularly scheduled meeting.

Task Lead: Amy Hatch-Winecka, Deputy Director

Budget Summary Table
July 1, 2018—June 30, 2019

NAME OF LEAD ENTITY

This scope of work includes these funds:

Lead entity support from operating budget (25%)

Lead entity support from capital budget (75%)

SUBTOTAL

| PSAR balance, 201517

PSAR balance, 2017-19

13




LEAD ENTITY BUDGET

TASK DESCRIPTION BUDGET
Tasks 1. The lead entity will maintain sufficient administration, facilitation XXXX
1o and coordination capacity to support the on-going goals and
objectives of a lead entity organization.
2. The lead entity will maintain and coordinate a citizen committee
and technical advisory group.
3. The lead entity will develop an annual work plan and provide it to
the RCO as part of its spring progress report (April 15th)
4. The lead entity will maintain a current salmon recovery chapter
5. The lead entity will submit a habitat project list to the SRFB in
accordance with Manual 18 (see RCW 77.85.050(3)).
Task 6 | The lead entity organization will create and maintain a habitat work XXXX
schedule for salmon restoration and protection projects using the
Habitat Work Schedule (HWS) database.
Task 7 | Community Outreach XXX
TOTAL

14



Appendix A.
Habitat Work Schedule

As noted in the body of the scope of work, the recently implemented interface between the
PRISM and HWS databases reduces the level of effort needed to manage data in HWS for
projects that are opted-in to the PRISM / HWS interface.

To allow better reporting on salmon recovery efforts and funding sources throughout the state,
it is important to track as many salmon recovery projects as possible in the HWS database. This
includes projects at all different phases of completion (in different categories of project status)
and projects funded by sources in addition to the Salmon Recovery Funding Board.

Project status

Tracking projects at all different phases of completion (i.e., in different categories of project
status) allows for a more complete picture of salmon recovery in Washington.

How is project status defined?

e A conceptual project is one that has a timeline, but has not yet been proposed for
funding. |
e A planned project has a timeline such that it begins within the next four years, but has
not yet been proposed for funding. These projects will be included in a Forecast List and ;
require additional information.
e A proposed project is one that is actively seeking or has applied for funding and is
awaiting approval.
e An active project is one that is currently underway.
o A completed project is one that has been finished.
s A dormant project has been proposed but withdrawn for some reason (e.qg., landowner
changed mind)

Projects with salmon recovery benefit

Projects with salmon recovery benefit may be funded from many different sources. Tracking
these in HWS allows better reporting on Washington's salmon recovery efforts. Ideally, HWS will
track projects funded by all sources, including:



1. Projects funded through the lead entity ranked list process:
e Salmon Recovery Funding Board projects
» Puget Sound Acquisition and Restoration Program.

2. Projects with salmon recovery benefit that receive funding administered by the
Recreation and Conservation Office, including but not limited to:

e Aquatic Lands Enhancement Account

e Brian Abbott Fish Barrier Removal Board

e Estuary and Salmon Restoration Program

o Family Forest Fish Passage Program

e Land and Water Conservation Fund

e Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program

3. Projects with salmon recovery benefit that are funded from sources administered
elsewhere, for example:

¢ City or county funds

e Bonneville Power Administration

e U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

e Conservation Reserve Enhancement Praogram
¢ NOAA Restoration Center

e National Fish and Wildlife Foundation

Publishing projects in HWS

HWS provides the option for projects to be hidden or to be shared to the public. All proposed,
active, and completed projects and activities are to be made public unless an agreement has
been made between the lead entity and GSRO to allow certain information relating to projects
or activities to remain unpublished (e.g. private landowner information).

The lead entity will ensure that all proposed, active, and completed projects and activities
entered into HWS are published on the public portal by April 15 of each year.

Conceptual, planned, and dormant projects and activities may be published on the public portal
also, if public access to project information is allowed.

RCO or the HWS developer (Paladin) are available for help on how to publish your projects.

Data to enter into Habitat Work Schedule

Please enter the following fields into HWS for projects with salmon recovery benefit.



The following table outlines the required fields by project status. For conceptual projects some
of the fields may be estimated, as noted by the (C*).

The planned project category will serve as a Four Year Project Forecast for estimating legislative
budget requests for two bienniums (i.e.,, 2019-2021 and 2021-2123). Project contact and project
sponsor information is optional.

A template for planned projects is under development; it will help you ensure that you have all
the required fields prior to submission.

If you are moving a conceptual project to planned project status, the metric validation tool
(currently being enhanced) should be used to confirm required fields.

For details regarding metric definitions, please refer to the PCSRF data dictionary or the
Washington state reporting codes available in HWS.

Required Data Fields by Project Status

Field Name Conceptual | Planned | Proposed / Active /
Completed

Project name (descriptive hame) X X X

Project ID (unique ID created by HWS user) X X X

Project category (e.g., restoration, X X X

acquisition, etc)

Project status (conceptual, planned, X " X

proposed, active, complete, dormant)

Start date and end date Xx X X

Cost or Budget x* X X

Project summary (written overview of the X X X

project)

Goals X

Funding entries (project funding in addition %

to RCO funding)

Location (latitude/longitude, line, or X %

palygon)

17



PCSRF metrics and values (choose all that
apply)

Total Amount Of Estuarine / Nearshore
Acres Treated

Miles Of Stream Made Accessible
Number of blockages / impediments /
barriers impeding passage

Total Miles Of Instream Habitat Treated
Total Riparian Miles Streambank Treated
Total Riparian Acres Treated

Acres of restored land maintained

Total Acres Of Wetland Area Treated
Acres of upland area treated

Miles of road treated

Acres of treatment for forestry
practices/stand management (Treatment
or management of trees and
undergrowth in riparian area including
prescribed burnings, stand thinning,
stand conversions, and silviculture.)

Washington metrics and values - (choose all
that apply)

Floodplain acres reconnected
Floodplain acres protected
Acres of off-channel / floodplain
connected or added

Primary species benefiting

Secondary species benefiting

Biennium

Limiting factors / ecological concerns

Recovery plan goals

Recovery plan chapter

x| X| X| X| X| X

18



Additional Information

Project sponsor / primary project contact

Habitat type

19




Organization Name (sponsor)

Resolution No. (if applicable)

Project(s) Number(s), and Name(s)

Recreation and Conservation Office
Applicant Resolution/Authorization

This resolution/authorization authorizes the person identified below (in section 2) to act as the authorized
representative/agent on behalf of our organization and to legally bind our organization with respect to the
above Praject(s) for which we seek grant funding assistance managed through the Recreation and
Conservation Office (Office).

WHEREAS, state grant assistance is requested by our organization to aid in financing the cost of the Project(s)
referenced above;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

1.

Our organization has applied for or intends to apply for funding assistance managed by the Office for the
above "Project(s).”

[insert
NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE/AGENT] is authorized to act as a representative/agent for our
organization with full authority to bind the organization regarding all matters related to the Project(s),
including but not limited to, full authority to: (1) approve submittal of a grant application to the Office, (2)
enter into a project agreement(s) on behalf of our organization, (3) sign any amendments thereto on
behalf of our organization, (4) make any decisions and submissions required with respect to the Project(s),
and (5) designate a project contact(s) to implement the day-to-day management of the grant(s).

Our organization has reviewed the sample project agreement on the Recreation and Conservation Office’s
WEBSITE at: https.//rco.wa.gov/documents/manuals&forms/SampleProjAgreement.pdf. We understand
and acknowledge that if offered a project agreement to sign in the future, it will contain an
indemnification and legal venue stipulation (applicable to any sponsor) and a waiver of sovereign
immunity (applicable to Tribes) and other terms and conditions substantially in the form contained in the
sample project agreement and that such terms and conditions of any signed project agreement shall be
legally binding on the sponsor if our representative/agent enters into a project agreement on our behalf,
The Office reserves the right to revise the project agreement prior to execution and shall communicate
any such revisions with the above authorized representative/agent before execution.

Our organization acknowledges and warrants, after conferring with its legal counsel, that its authorized
representative/agent has full legal authority to enter into a project agreement(s) on its behalf, that
includes indemnification, waiver of sovereign immunity (as may apply to Tribes), and stipulated legal
venue for lawsuits and other terms substantially in the form contained in the sample project agreement or
as may be revised prior to execution,

Grant assistance is contingent on a signed project agreement. Entering into any project agreement with
the Office is purely voluntary on our part.



10.

1t

12.

13.

14.

15.

Our organization understands that grant policies and requirements vary depending on the grant program
applied to, the grant program and source of funding in the project agreement, the characteristics of the
project, and the characteristics of our organization.

Our organization further understands that prior to our authorized representative/agent executing the
project agreement(s), the RCO may make revisions to its sample project agreement and that such
revisions could include the indemnification, the waiver of sovereign immunity, and the legal venue
stipulation. Our organization accepts the legal obligation that we shall, prior to execution of the project
agreement{s), confer with our authorized representative/agent as to any revisions to the project
agreement from that of the sample project agreement. We also acknowledge and accept that if our
authorized representative/agent executes the project agreement(s) with any such revisions, all terms and
conditions of the executed project agreement {including but not limited to the indemnification, the waiver
of sovereign immunity, and the legal venue stipulation) shall be conclusively deemed to be executed with
our authorization,

Any grant assistance received will be used for only direct eligible and allowable costs that are reasonable
and necessary to implement the project(s) referenced above.

Our organization acknowledges and warrants, after conferring with its legal counsel, that no additional
legal authorization beyond this autharization is required to make the indemnification, the waiver of
sovereign immunity (as may apply to Tribes), and the legal venue stipulation substantiaily in form shown
on the sample project agreement or as may be revised prior to execution legally binding on our
organization upon execution by our representative/agent.

{Recreation and Conservation Funding Board Grant Prograrms Only] If match is required for the grant, we
understand our organization must certify the availability of match at least one month before funding
approval. In addition, our organization understands it is responsible for supporting all non-cash matching
share commitments 1o this praject should they not materialize.

Qur organization acknowledges that if it receives grant funds managed by the Office, the Office will pay us
on only a reimbursement basis. We understand reimbursement basis means that we will only request
payment from the Office after we incur grant eligible and allowable costs and pay them. The Office may
also determine an amount of retainage and hold that amount until the Project is complete.

[Acquisition Projects Only] Our organization acknowledges that any property acquired with grant
assistance must be dedicated for the purposes of the grant in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed to in
writing by our organization and the Office. We agree to dedicate the property in a signed "Deed of Right”
for fee acquisitions, or an "Assignment of Rights” for other than fee acquisitions {which documents will be
based upon the Office’s standard versions of those documents), to be recorded on the title of the property
with the county auditor,

[Acquisition Projects Only} Our organization acknowledges that any property acquired in fee fitle must be
immediately made available to the public unless otherwise provided for in policy, the project agreement,
or authorized in writing by the Office Director.

[Development, Renovation, Enhancerment, and Restoration Projects Only — If your organization owns the
property] Our organization acknowtedges that any property owned by our organization that is developed,
renovated, enhanced, or restored with grant assistance must be dedicated for the purpose of the grant in
perpetuity unless otherwise allowed by grant program policy, or Office in writing and per the project
agreement or an amendment thereto.

iDevelopment, Renovation, Enhancement, and Restoration Projects Only — If your organization DOES
NOT own the property] Our organization acknowtedges that any property not owned by our
organization that is developed, renovated, enhanced, or restored with grant assistance must be
dedicated for the purpose of the grant as required by grant program policies unless otherwise
provided for per the project agreement or an amendment thereto.




16. [Only for Projects located in Water Resources Inventory Areas 1— 19 that are applying for funds from the
Critical Habitat, Natural Areas, State Lands Restoration and Enhancement, Riparian Protection, or Urban
Wildlife Habitat grant categories; or the Puget Sound Acquisition and Restoration program, or a Salmon
Recovery Funding Board approved grant] Our organization certifies the following: the Project does not
conflict with the Puget Sound Action Agenda developed by the Puget Sound Partnership under RCW
90.71.310.

17. This resolution/authorization is deemed to be part of the formal grant application to the Office.

18. Our organization warrants and certifies, after conferring with its legal counsel, that this
resolution/authorization was properly and lawfully adopted following the requirements of our
organization and applicable laws and policies and that our organization has full legal authority to commit
our organization to the warranties, certifications, promises and obligations set forth herein.

[Native American Tribes, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations Only] This application authorization
was adopted by our organization during the meeting held:

Location

Date

[All Applicants] Signed and approved on behalf of the resolving body of the organization by the following
authorized member(s):

Signed

Title Date

Washington State Attorney General's Office

Assistant Attorney General Date

Approved as to form

You may reproduce the above language in your own format; text however may not change.



Tab 11




Council 28~~~

Washington Federation of State Employees

July 19, 2018

Sarah Moorehead, Interim Executive Director
Thurston Conservation District

2918 Ferguson St SW, Suite A

Tumwater, WA 98512

Dear Ms. Moorehead,

STATE HEADQUARTERS OFFICE
1212 JEFFERSON ST. S.E., SUITE 300 = OLYMPIA, WA 98501-2332
800-562-6002 » www.wise.org

by Electronic Mafil and USPS

Pursuant to RCW 41.56.200 | am writing to request negotiations of an initial Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the Washington Federation of State Employees, AFSCME Council 28 and the

Thurston Conservation District.

The Washington Federation of State Employees (WFSE) also requests that the two percent COLA that
was approved during the December 20, 2017 Board of supervisors meeting be implemented

retroactively to April 1, 2018.

Mark Hamilton will be the chiel negoliator for the Washington Federation of State Employees, Please
contact Mark at (360) 709-1940 or by e-mail at MarkH@wfse,org to discuss scheduling,

We look forward to productive negotiations resulting in a first agreement that benefits both the WFSE

membership and the Thurston Conservation District,

Amy Spiegel
WEFSE Director of Negotiations

cG Eric Johnson, Board Chair
Greg Devereux, WFSE Executive Director
Sue Henricksen, WFSE Council President
Mark Hamilton, WFSE Labor Advocate
WFSE Officers
WFSE Bargaining Team
Kurt Spiegel, Olympia Field Supervisor

OLYMPIA FIELD OFFICE
906 Cofumbia S1. SV, Suile 500
Dlympis, WA 93504

SERTTLE FIELD OFFIGE
GIB3 70 Avi 5. Snite 220
Seallie WA, 88108-3407

SHIOKEY POINT FIELD OFFICE
16710 Smokey Poinl Blvd., Siiiz 208
Arfington, VA 98223-3435

SPBKAHE FIELE DFFICE
222 W. thisslon Ave., Suke 201
Spokane, Wi 99201-2301

TACORA FIELD DFFIGE
EOG3 Tacomta Mafl Bl
Tacoma, VA 98400-6826

YANCOUVER FIELD DFFIGE
I1B18& SE A% Pixin Bhed., Stz 202
Vancoiaer, WA D8634-5000

YAKIIAA FIELD GFFICE
3804 Karn Read, Swmilz B
Yahima, Wh S8502-7201

CALL CENTER: 833-MCC-WFSE (833-622-9373)




Tab 12




AR

From: Sarah Moorehead (Interim Executive Director) Conservation

To: TCD Board of Supervisors

District
Date: August 20, 2018

2 &
Subject: Interim Executive Director’s Report ST 194

Priority Initiatives & Conservation Programs

Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP)

Please see status report on this program under Tab 9 of the August 20", 2018 TCD
Monthly Board Meeting packet.

Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP)

CREP plan 01-2018 has been completed by TCD staff and is progressing through the
review and implementation process.

At this time, an action item is included on the August 20“‘, 2018 TCD Board of
Supervisors meeting agenda (item #12) to approve the standard CREP
reimbursement agreement.

A copy of the standard CREP reimbursement agreement is included following this report
for review. This agreement signifies that TCD will facilitate the state cost share
reimbursement to the landowner for implementation and maintenance of this CREP
project.

Funding comes directly from the Washington State Conservation Commission (WSCC)
and is restricted for use as cost share reimbursement. TCD operates as the local pass
through for these state provided cost share dollars. A cost share breakdown is included
for your convenience o show the local pass through dollars that will come through TCD
to the landowner for implementation and maintenance of this project. In addition, a
project summary has been provided as supplemental information.




District Operations

Rates & Charges

Thurston Conservation District successfully prepared and provided Thurston County
with the proposal to implement a system of Rates and Charges beginning in January
2019 on June 27" 2018. Additional information and follow up discussion was provided
during a second briefing on July 18", 2018.

The Thurston County Board of Commissioners will now hold a public hearing, before
considering the proposal. Additional information on the status of Rates and Charges
and the pending Thurston County public hearing will be provided as it is received.

Washington Federation of State Employees Union Update

Please see the letter provided under Tab 11 of the August 20™ 2018 Board of
Supervisors meeting packet. After Board discussion, a response can be sent to the
contact included.




Conservation
= District =

2"},, { 2 &
W, ©
hurgron®

CREP 01-2018 Project Summary

Location: Beaver Creek. The property is located within Section 5 of Township 16 and Range

2W. Currently, the pasture is used rotationally for grazing and haying. When grazed, 30 head of
livestock use the pasture without adequate exclusion from Beaver Creek.

Stream Length: 1,770 linear feet

Practices

Livestock Exclusion Fence (NRCS 382): 1,300 linear feet on Right Bank, 1,300 linear
feet on Left Bank (2,600 linear feet total)

Riparian Forest Buffer (NRCS 391): Total area to be enrolled in CREP is 5 acres. The
buffer is on left and right bank, with a total average width of 125 feet.

Landowner Objectives: Landowner would like to exclude livestock from Beaver Creek and re-
establish diverse native vegetation along Beaver Creek to increase the habitat value on his
property. His objectives reinforce the objectives of the CREP.

Project Objectives: The project will install permanent fencing to exclude livestock from Beaver
Creek, which will reduce nutrient input and improve water quality. The project will also plant
native vegetation along Beaver Creek to provide increased water filtration, provide shade, long-
term bank stabilization, and increase habitat value. Beaver Creek is mapped by the Washington
Department of Fisheries SalmonScape to have documented spawning of Coho and is a CREP
eligible stream. Beaver Creek is also mapped by the US Fish and Wildlife Service IPaC to
include Critical Habitat area of the Oregon spotted frog. This CREP project has been designed
in collaboration with USFW to protect the function of this Critical Habitat through use of strategic
planting zones.

t: 360.754.3588 e f: 360.236.0941 ¢ www.thurstoncd.com
2918 Ferguson ST SW STE A Tumwater, WA 98512

00O



01'609°C $

aleys)sos LIS (2101

o¥9skolL $ did =30l

0g'svo'cl $ 2I2YS)S0D VS [BJ0L

00' 16092 $ 1809 [ejoL
0¥ 08 09°102 00Tse 00'¥05 ose 1 $ Z2'$ 31N %08 1800 qnIyg pue sa1] £ZS1 810z Buudg
Q091 00°v9¥ 00°088 0009l 000" L 91°L ] §6°8 ILN %05 1800 qruyg pue s34 zzsl 810¢ Buudg
0202 09608 00'ZLO'L 00+E0'T 00g'e 88°0 g #¥'S IIN %08 150D gUYS pue sal] 1ZsL 810z Buudg
262 gaL'L 08l 0Z6'2 059'c 08'0 $ UoBa 0%'0$ JLN %05 sbn|d ‘sgruys ‘ssal} Joj sjsoo Bunuely £1LSL 810z Buudg
asg Q0% L 054'L 005'¢ 08L'1 00z $ yoea 00'LS ALN %08 SI0J03104d IIBM PIOS ££8 610 Buudg
€ 143 gl LE ooos 290 $ yoea L0 $ Bumau/agny ysaw pibpry Lzs 6107 Bundg
gol 199 978 268’1 G 00°05¢ $ aoead /1% J LN %085 daig ays 9Lds 610z Bundsg
08 ) 0zl's 0512 D0E'vL 0092 0S'S g 100y Jad DOD LN %08 Buipus JusuBUIS N4 810z Buudg

S0 9IEIS did SO WS Xep siefog SHUN JO#  }S00 PAUBYSISOD HUN/RIBYSIS0D) VS uonduose( weuoduio) apon awll |

umopyesig aleysisod 8L0¢-L0 d3HI



<Participant>

<address line 1>

<address line 2>

FSA Contract No. <Contract #>

<District Name> Conservation District
Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program (CREP)
State Reimbursement and Maintenance Contract

WHEREAS the State of Washington (“State”) and United States Department of Agriculture
(‘USDA") entered into a joint partnership to provide incentives to restore and improve salmon and

steelhead habitat on private land through the Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program
("CREP”), and

WHEREAS the funds appropriated by the State for CREP are to be to administered by the
Washington State Conservation Commission (“COMMISSION") through local conservation district
offices; and

WHEREAS the <District Name> Conservation District (“DISTRICT”") is thereby authorized to
reimburse local participants enrolled in CREP for the State portion of eligible costs; and

WHEREAS the undersigned <Name> (“PARTICIPANT") has entered into a Conservation Reserve
Program (“CRP”) contract with the USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”);

NOW THEREFORE the DISTRICT and PARTICIPANT agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS: The following definitions are applicable to this contract.

1.1. Contract means this document and the PARTICIPANT'S approved Conservation and
Maintenance plans that are incorporated herein by this reference,

1.2. Conservation Plan means a record of the PARTICIPANT'S decisions, and supporting
information for the treatment of a unit of land or water, and includes the schedule of
operations needed to solve identified water quality concerns, protect or improve salmonid
habitat. The Conservation Plan includes standards and specifications for implementation
and maintenance requirements.

1.3. Approved Conservation Plan means a Conservation Plan that has been signed by
authorized representatives of the PARTICIPANT, DISTRICT, FSA and USDA Natural
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS).

1.4. Approved Maintenance Plan means the maintenance requirements identified in the
approved Conservation Plan or a separate maintenance plan developed by the
PARTICIPANT, meeting the requirements of and approved by the DISTRICT. Such
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

1.5. Conservation Practice means a specified treatment, such as a structural, vegetative or land
management practice, which is planned and applied according to NRCS or FSA standards
and specifications.

1.5.1. Structural Practice means establishment, construction or installation of a site-specific
measure to protect from degradation or improve water resources. Examples include
crossings, fences and livestock water development.

1.6.2. Land Management Practice means site-specific management techniques and
methods to conserve, protect from degradation or improve water resources and
salmonid habitat. Examples include nutrient, manure, grazing or wildlife habitat
management.

CREP State Reimbursement Contract Page 1 of 5.
Ver. 12016



1.5.3.

1.5.4.

1.6.

y 197

1.8.

<Participant>

<address line 1>

<address line 2>

FSA Contract No. <Confract #=

Vegetative Practice means the establishment or planting of site-specific vegetative
measures to conserve, protect from degradation, improve water resources and
salmonid habitat. Examples include the 391A -- Riparian Forest Buffer and 612 —
Tree/Shrub Establishment.

Mid-Contract Management means activities that must be performed on CREP
practices to ensure the original plant diversity, wildlife benefits, and protection of the
soil and water resources are present for the life of the contract, as required in the
CRP contract.

Cost Share Payment means FSA, COMMISSION, or DISTRICT financial payments to
reimburse the PARTICIPANT for the respective portion of eligible cost of installing or
implementing a Conservation Practice identified in an Approved Conservation Plan;
not including Maintenance Requirements or other obligation of the PARTICIPANT
identified in the plan.

Program Payment means the financial payments from the DISTRICT fo reimburse the
PARTICIPANT for the State portion of eligible cost of installing or implementing a
Conservation Practice; or advance of the Federal 40% PIP payment.

Technical Assistance means the personnel and support resources needed to conduct
conservation planning; conservation practice survey, layout, design, installation, and
certification; and evaluation and assessment of the Program,

2. AGREEMENTS
The PARTICIPANT agrees:

2.1. To implement the practices specified in the Conservation Plan;

2.2, Collaborate with DISTRICT staff in the development of a maintenance plan meeting
the requirements of the DISTRICT to ensure the successful establishment of the
Vegetative Practices and implementation of any mid contract management activities.

2.8 Not to start:

2.3.1. Any structural practice before NRCS has approved any structural designs called for in
the Conservation Plan; and

2.3.2. The maintenance of any vegetative practice before DISTRICT approves the
maintenance plan.

2.4, To implement the maintenance plan for the life of the FSA contract.

2.5. To comply with all Federal, State, and Local laws that apply to the Conservation Plan’s
content;

2.6. Not to undertake any action on land under the PARTICIPANT'S control that may
defeat the purposes of this contract as determined by the DISTRICT.

2.7. To comply with the DISTRICT's Cultural Accidental Discovery Policy if, during the
construction of any practice, the PARTICIPANT or their contractor encounters a
previously unidentified archeological or historical site;

CREP State Reimbursement Contract Page 2 of 5.

Ver. 12016



<Participant>

<address line 1>

<address line 2>

FSA Contract No. <Contract #>

2.8. Submit original invoices and receipts and complete necessary forms to facilitate FSA
and DISTRICT processing of program payment requests.

2.9. Permit access by DISTRICT or Commission personnel during normal business hours
and after reasonable notice to provide technical assistance, monitor implementation or
effectiveness, or otherwise inspect the project.

2.10. Notify the DISTRICT within 15 days of any accepted offer of purchase by a third party
that will require transfer of the CREP contract.

2.11.  Ensure any purchaser of the property qualifies for and assumes the FSA contract.
The DISTRICT agrees to:

2.12.  Provide technical assistance to PARTICIPANT in the development and
implementation of the Conservation Plan, Maintenance Plans; and Mid-Contract
Management activities.

2.13.  To make program payments upon properly submitted invoices, receipts and forms and
subject to availability of funds for:

2.13.1. Cost Share. DISTRICT to reimburse PARTICIPANT 10% of eligible costs approved
by FSA for implementation of the Conservation Plan. Payment shall be made within
30 days of presentation by FSA to the DISTRICT of the calculation of the State cost
share payment.

2.13.2. Maintenance. For five (5) years from date of 1% planting, to reimburse PARTICIPANT
100% of the eligible maintenance costs of maintaining the vegetative practices within
60 days of presentation of original receipts to DISTRICT. Eligible maintenance costs
are those identified in PARTICIPANT’S approved maintenance plan or authorized in
writing by DISTRICT CREP Specialists. Costs in excess of Commission maintenance
eligibility caps will be the PARTICIPANT'S responsibility.

2.13.3. Mid-contract Management. DISTRICT to reimburse PARTICIPANT 50% of eligible
costs authorized by FSA for Mid-Contract Management activities. Payment shall be
made within 30 days of presentation by FSA to the DISTRICT of the calculation of the
State cost share payment.

2.13.4. Insufficient Funds. The obligation of the District to reimburse Maintenance costs is
contingent on the availability of state and federal funds through legislative
appropriation and state allotment to the Washington Conservation Commission.
When this contract crosses over state fiscal years, the obligations of the Commission
and DISTRICT are contingent upon the appropriation of funds during the next fiscal
year. The failure to appropriate or allot such funds shall be good cause to terminate
this contract.

2.13.5. Practice Incentive Payment (PIP) Loan. To advance up to 40% of eligible costs to
establish the conservation practices (excludes maintenance) at 0% interest to the
PARTICIPANT where the necessary loan agreement, promissory note and
assignment of proceeds documents have been executed with the COMMISSION and
DISTRICT.

3. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. It is mutually agreed that in the event the PARTICIPANT breaches
this agreement or the approved FSA Contract referenced above, the DISTRICT will suffer
substantial damages, which may not be possible to quantify with certainty. Therefore, the

CREP State Reimbursement Contract Page 3 of 5.
Ver. 12016




10.

11;

<Participant>

<address line 1>

<address line 2>

FSA Contract No. <Contract #>

PARTICIPANT will refund all payments received plus interest at the legal rate, for the breach of
contract.

EFFECTIVE DATE. The Program contract is effective when signed by the PARTICIPANT and
an authorized representative of DISTRICT.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. If a PARTICIPANT fails to carry out the terms and conditions
of this contract, but DISTRICT determines that such failure does not warrant termination of this
contract, DISTRICT may require such PARTICIPANT to refund, with interest, payments
received under this contract, or require the PARTICIPANT to accept such adjustments in the
subsequent payments as are determined to be appropriate by DISTRICT.

VENUE. If either party commences an action to enforce rights under this contract, venue of
such action shall lie in <County Name>County, Washington.

MEDIATION AND BINDING ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this
contract or the breach thereof, the parties agree to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by
non-binding mediation through the PARTICIPANT’S nearest Dispute Resolution Center. [f this
does not resolve the matter then the parties shall resort to binding arbitration. All dispute or
claim in law or equity arising out of this contract or any resulting transaction shall then be
decided by mandatory arbitration of civil actions under RCW §07.06 et seq. and Superior Court
Mandatory Arbitration Rules (MAR), and not by court action except as provided by law for
judicial review of arbitration proceedings. Judgment upon the award rendered by the
arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

ATTORNEYS' FEES. In the event the parties to this contract resort to mediation, binding
arbitration or judicial review and enforcement of the arbitration decision, the prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover judgment against the other party for reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs (including title and lien searches) including trial or on appeal. If any Party exercises any
non-judicial right or remedy to enforce such Party’s rights hereunder, it shall be a condition for
the cure of the default that the defaulting party pay the non-defaulting Party(s) reasonable
attorneys’ fees incurred and all reasonable costs, including costs of service of notices and title
and lien searches. Failure to pay such costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees shall constitute an
event of default under this contract.

HEADINGS, INTERPRETATION AND SEVERABILITY. The captions heading the various
paragraphs of this agreement are for convenience and shall not be considered to limit, expand, or
define the contents of the respective paragraphs. Masculine, feminine, or neuter gender, the
singular, and the plural number, shall each be considered to include the other whenever the
context so requires. If either party consists of more than one-person, each such person shall be
jointly and severally liable. This agreement shall be interpreted under Washington State law and
according to its fair meaning, and not strictly in favor of or against any party. Whenever possible,
each provision of this contract shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid
under applicable law, but if any provision of this contract shall be prohibited or invalid under
such law, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity
without invalidating the remainder of this contract.

TIME. Time is of the essence in the performance of the parties' rights and obligations
contained herein.

WAIVER. No waiver of any of the provisions of this contract shall be deemed, or shall
constitute, a waiver of any other provisions whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver

CREP State Reimbursement Contract Page 4 of 5.

Ver. 1 2016



<Participant>

<address line 1>

<address line 2>

FSA Contract No. <Contract #>

constitute a continuing waiver. To be binding, the party making the waiver shall execute a
waiver in writing.

12. BINDING ON SUCCESSORS. For the period of Participants CRP contract with FSA, this
agreement inures to the benefit of, and is binding on, the parties, their respective heirs, personal
representatives, successors and assigns. If a Participant dies, their heirs may elect to cancel the
contract.

13. FEDERAL OBLIGATION. This contract in no terms, reduces, eliminates or alters in any
fashion the PARTICIPANTS obligation under FSA CRP-1 contract requirements.

(Participant name)
FSA Contract Participant

<DISTRICT NAME> CONSERVATION DISTRICT

By I/
<DISTRICT NAME> Conservation District Board Chair

CREP State Reimbursement Contract Page 5 of 5.
Ver. 12016



